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Welcome to the Severn Trent
Annual Report 2018

OUR PURPOSE IS TO SERVE OUR i
COMMUNITIES AND BUILD A LASTING __
WATER LEGACY. THIS DRIVES OUR VISION
TO BE THE MOST TRUSTED WATER
COMPANY BY 2020, DELIVERING AN
OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE,
BEST VALUE SERVICE AND
ENVIRONMENTAL LEADERSHIP.

This report hightights the progress we have made over the past year
in achieving that vision through our strategic objectives and absolute
focus on delivering value for all of our stakeholders.

We're committed to keeping your water flowing clearly and making your
waste water clean again, sc you can carry on enjoying this force of
nature in your very own home, for generations to come.

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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20 MINUTES
OF TRANQUILITY...




MADE BY DECADES
OF CONTINUED
INVESTMENT

Image removed

We have always been committed
to investing for the benefit of our
customers and future
generations. This year we
invested a total of £855 million
across our business, including

in renewable energy and the
resilience of our networks.

See more on page 38

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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1 MINUTE
NURTURING...
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MADE BY 100%
COMMITMENT

Image removed

We are proud of the fact that we
have outperformed against our
commitments that our
customers mast care about.
Our customer service and
operational improvements have
contributed to customer ODI
rewards of £80.2 million.

See gur '0ODIs on page 32

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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240ml OF
PURE QUALITY...

Image removed
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DELIVERED BY
49,000 km OF PIPES

Image removed

Our drinking water is rated at
99.96% for quality. We distribute
1.6 billion litres of quality drinking
water through 49,000 km of
pipework. This, combined with
94,000 km of sewage pipework,
is enough pipes to go around the
world three and a half times.

See more an page 36

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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Strategic report

What we do

We provide clean water and
waste water services and develop
renewable energy solutions
through our businesses:

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regulated Water and Waste
Water business includes the
wholesale and household retail
activities of Severn Trent Water
and Dee Valley Water.

Image removed

The primary markets we focus on

¢ Wholesale operations and engineering
* Household customer services

Aboutus

We are one of 10 largest requlated water and waste
water businesses in England and Wales We provide
fngh guality services to more than 4 3 mullion
households and businesses in the Midlands and Wales

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from
the Bristol Channe! to the Humber, and from North and
mid-Wales to the East Midlands

Image removed
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Turnover

£1,574.6m

Households and
businesses served

4.3m

Profit hefore interest
and tax

£503.8m

Litres of drinking water
supplied each day

1.6bn

Underlying profit before

Litres of waste water

interest and tax’ treated per day
£5149m  2.77bn
Revenue split Employees

Dee Graph
Valley removed
00%
Severn Trent
Water

00%

Severn Trent Water 98.2%

Dee Valley Water 1 8%

Read more on page 34

5,660

average during 2017/18
fsee page 157

1 Alternative Performance Measures
at 2 defined in Note 46 te the gioup
Iirancial statements on pages 192
e 194




Severn Trent
Business Services

Image removed

The markets we focus on

¢ Operating Services
* Renewable Energy

Where we operate
Business Services operates in the UK and lreland

There are two parts of Business
Services:

UK Operating Services [including Ireland)

UK Qperating Services provides contract services to
municigal and industrial clients in the UK and Ireland
and the UK Ministry of Defence [MOO'] for design, build
and operation of water and waste water treatment
facilities and networks, and services to developers

Renewable Energy

Business Services generates renewable energy from
anaerobic digestion, hydropower, wind turbines and
solar technology

wodas aibajedis

RS ENPRLLS] |

Turnover

£138.7m

Profit before interest
and tax

£34.2m

Underlying profit before
interest and tax’

£36.0m

Employees in continuing
operations

596

average during 2017/18
(see page 157)

Read more on page 42

1 Astornative Porfarmans o Moopsurcs

are defined 10 Naote 46 1o the qroup
finanvial stateme=n’s on pages 1972
te 194
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Strategic report

Our business model

Running

an efficient

water
business

Severn Trent
provides clean
water every time
our customers

turn on the tap

and removes

their waste water

in an affordable,
sustainable and
reliable way.

It does so through its
regulated subsidiaries and
draws upon its skills in
water and waste treatment
to provide services to other

organisations through its
Business Services division.

Critical
inputs

The Water Cycle

Water is collected

We pay the Environment
Agency and Natural Resources
Wales for the water we collect
from reservoirs, rivers and
underground aguifers across
aur region

Natural resources

Water from reservoirs, rivers
and underaraund aguifers

Read rmore on page 45

Water is cleaned

Our 116 groundwater and 23
surface water rreatment works
clean raw water to the higrest
standards, making it safe

to drink

Power

The treatment and distribution
of clean and waste water
CONSUMICS sigrt cant energy

Read moare on page 43

Clean water
is distributed

Our 49,167 km network of
pipes and enclosed storage
reserveirs bring a continuous
supply of clean water right

to our customers taps

5NN NN NN NN NARR NN AN RAIRTOYTsReeREOOREERERENTRSTES ¥

Image removed
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Our investments in renewable energy production

Cleaning waste water is an ‘energy
hungry’ process so we are utilising
waste and renewables to help us

power our operations.

We are on track to produce 50%
of cur cwn energy needs by 2020

Outcomes

1 0 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Natural resources

s Clean water for 4 3 million
homes and businesses

e Clean gas produced from
anaerobic digestion
plants, contributing to the
decarborisation of the
UK cconarmy

Food waste anaerobic
digestion plants

Physical assets

¢ Zfficient and reliable services
1 & biluion tres of drinking
water supplied each day ang
2 8 billon Litres of wastewater
treated each day




Physical assets

Aresilient, well rnamtamed
network of clean water pipes
and reservorrs, sewers and
pumping stations

Read more on page 47

Customers enjoy
our services

We serve 4 3 mitlion businosses
and houscholds with a safe,
reliable supply of water and
collect waste water 24 hours

a day, 365 days a year.

L T T

Qur people

We look to attract, develop and
retain talented people, and to
bring the next generation of water
expertsinto the indusliry

Read more on page 48

Waste water
is collected

Qur 94,027 km of sewers

and pump ng stations collect
waste water from homies andg
businesses and take it to aur
treatmentworks

Relationships

e Our suppliers and partners
Jointventures and strong
supplier relationships

« Qur customers

and communities
The heart of our bus ness

Waste water
is cleaned

Waste water s carefully
screened, iltered and treated
mour 1,010 sewage treatmient
works to meet str ngent
cnvirenmental standards

* Our regulators
Our industry s regulated
by Ofwat and several other
requlators and public bodes

Read mare on page 50

Water is recycled
to the environment
We pay the Environment Agency

and Natural Resources Wales
annual consent fees to return the

treateg water Lo the water systern

LR T N Ly Y Y TR )
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Solar and
wind turbines

Our people
¢ Angwesome place to work

e Aderse, skilled and
talented workforce

Relationships

» Our suppliers and partners
Arobust supply chain Wework
with partners overthe five vears
of an AME, which means more
compet tve pricing

Clean gas from our sludge
anaerobic digestion plants

* Qur customers
and communities
The lowest average combined
water and waste water bills
n Britan Educational visits on
water efficiency and
being sewer savvy

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

* Our regulators
Pasitive and constructive
relat.onships and industry-
leading 005 and KFIs

1
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Strategic report

Chairman’s statement

Image removed

—_— -

PROVIDING RESPONSIBLE
LEADERSHIP

“High levels of customer service create financial rewards. This means
we are able to share the benefits of our work with shareholders
as well as with our customers and other stakeholders.”

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Dividend per share Group turnover Croup profit before interest and tax
86.55p £1,694.1m £528.4m
2017 8150p 2017 £1,638.0m 2017 £536.7m

1 2 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



This has been a good year for our customers and therefore for
Severn Trent. Our operational performance is discussed in
detail in our Chief Executive’s statement. Here, | want to take
the opportunity to look at the bigger picture by highlighting
the improvements we have made to customers’ lives inthe
last 25 years - and to underline our commitment to running
aresponsible business,

Water services in England and Wales have been transformed for
the better over the last 25 years - leakage 1s down by over a third
since its peak in 1994/95, service quality 1S up, as evidencecd by a
65% reduction inwritten complaints since its peak in 2007/08 and
environmental performance 1s unrecognisable from that which
we Inherited from the nationalised industry in 1989, with an 86%
reduction in serious peliution incidents in England and Wales
These changes have not happened by accident, they are the direct
result of the near doubling of Investrnent that has been pumped
into the sector since privatisation

At Severn Trent, we have played a major role in this step-
change, investing £21 billion in today s monay in infrastructure
imprevements over the last quarter of a century We are proud
of the achievernents that this investment has generated for our
customers They drink and wash in cleaner water, experience
fewer supply inter ruptions and floads, and enjoy healthier and
more pleasant surroundings, all thanks to our work At the same
time, and despite the huge capital investments we have made,
we have been able to keep prices down This last year, as in the
previous seven years, the aver age price paid by a customer in
the Severn Trent region was the lowest anywhere in Englang
or Wales

Our team 15 absolutely committed te continuing this good

work - and a key aspect of that 15 demonstrating the highest
standards of governance and behaviour Ourvalues of putung
customer s first, creating an awesome place to work, being
passionate about what we do, acting with integnity, and
protecting our environment sit right at the heart of our decision
making We fully support the governance changes that the
regulator and Government wish to see - indeed, as a listed
company these standards of transparency and respensible
behaviour are already in place at Severn Trent we are prudent
N how we manage financial risk and even-handed in the way
we share the returns from our outperformance with customers
and shareholders, we pay our taxes i full and on time,

we pay dividends and executive salaries that are reasonable
and sustainable and linked to the delivery of cutcomes to
customers, avold complex offshore financiat vehicles, and

we communicate progress on all of these matters inthe
Annual Report which we provide lo stakeholders and to the
public at large on our website every year

Having strong and transparent corporate governance 1s the
right way to carry out our activities [t will ensure the long-term
sustainability of our business and reinforce our legiimacy in the
eyes of the communities we serve

Sharing the rewards

Under our industry s regulatory regime, high levels of customer
service create financial rewards Thts means we are able to
share the benefits of our work with shareholders as well as with
customers and other stakeholders, In this five year period we
are reinvesting £220 million of Totex cutperformance back into
our business, with a further £120 million of outperformance
being shared with customers in the form of lower bills in AMP7

Our investors too have benefited through our base dividend
commitment of growth at RPI+4%, and this has all been achieved
whilst mamntairing a sustainable, resilient financial structure

We delivered a 3.4% increase in Group turnover to

£1,694.1 million, Group PBIT of £528 4 million, down 1 5% from
the prior year, and underlying basic earnings per share of
121.0 pence, up 4 6% from the prior year

We are therefore proposing a final dividend of 51.92 pence per
share to be paid on 20th July 2018 This will take the total dividend
for the year to 86 5b pence

Your Board

Emma FitzGerald stepped down from her pasition as a Director
during the year On behalf of the Board., | thank her for her insight,
professionalism and dedication It has been a privilege to work
alongside her

We have worked with regulators to successfully realign

our English and Welsh licences aleng natienal boundaries

From 1 July 2018, all aur Welsh interests will sit under a single
bcence, and we will rebrand Dee Valley Water as Hafren

Dyfrdwy after the two main rivers which supply the region
Hafren Dyfrdwy will serve the interests of all our Welsh
customers, and we are pleasad to have made positive progress
to ensure the robust governance of that carmpany through the
appaintment to s Board of three new independent non-executive
directors with a wealth of experience in business, public services
and Welsh public policy | am delighted that they all enhance the
already diverse make up of our business

A diverse team doing great work

Severn Trent’s people are a significant asset We have a fantastic
team here who worked tirelessly through the year, often in severe
weather conditions, te deliver extraordinary service They are
rightly proud of both their efforts and the outcomes

Itisimportant that the makeup of our werkforce is representative
of the communities we serve So | am pleased to repert that

21% of the 124 graduates, placement students and apprentices
who joined us during the year came frorm black or minority
ethnic backgrounds We are also mindful of the role that

gender diversity ptays in supperting a successful team

The representation of women on our Board led to us again being
recogrised by the Hampton-Alexander Review in 2017, which
placed us second among FTSE 100 companies for representation
of wormen on boards and in leadership In addition, 40% of the
members of our Executive Commuttee are fernale and, at 72 4%,
our mean hourty pay gap 1s one of the lowest in the FTSE index

Looking ahead

We are now working hard to continue to position the business

for suiccess during the next requlatery period Gur draft business
plans are well advanced and will be subrmuitted to Ofwat in
September 2018 We look forward to continuing to cutperform
against our service commitments through the rest of this AMP
and Into the next

Andrew Duff. Chairman

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 1 3
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview

Our context and peers

Atotalof 17 regional businesses supply water services to

50 mitlion household and non-household customers in England
and Wales Ten of these, including our reguiated business
Severn Trent Water Limited, also provide waste water services
The rermnaining seven, including our regulated business Dee
Valley Water Limited, provide water only

Over 25 years of continuous improvement...

Water services in England and Wales have been transformed in
recent years, with a total investment of around €130 bilbon driving
significant increases inreliability, effrciency and quality

We re very proud of our industry’s achievements For exarnple,
whilst adverse weather such as that encountered last winter and
spring can skew the picture, customers are still five times less
likely to be without water than they were 25 years ago and eight
times less likely to be affected by sewer flooding Leakage has
fallen by 35% since the rmid-1990s, and 99 6% of drinking water
as well as 98 &% of bathing waters now meet EU standards.

As discussed below, our regulatary framework 1s continuing to
evolve We believe that improving this existing mechanism, for
exarnple, by encouraging lower gearing and greater apenness
and transparency, 1s a more viable way forwards than embarking
on a disruptive course of action that would distract attentien from
our Industry s core priorities

Regional businesses

17

Number of households and
non-household customers

50 million

Total investment
for transformation

£130 billion

14 severnTrent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

...but there’s stilt more to do

We re excited about the opportunities to continue the good work
the industry has recorded sc far But although we've taken

huge strides in embedding customers right at the heart of what
we do, we recognise that there’s stilt room for iImproverment
Custorners rightly expect the highest standards of water quality
and waste water treatment, 24 hours a day and seven days
aweek, and while these are continuing to move In the right
direction there’s absalutely no room for complacency We have
totarget capital iInvestrment programmes wisely in erder to
make sure our network — parts of which originate in the late

19th Century — is equipped to meet the demands of 21st Century
living That's no easy ratter, in Light of an increasing population
and rnare housing, as well as ali the challenges to water supplies
and drainage caused by the droughts and floods associated with
climate change It requires expertence, expertise and a great deal
of meney - i fact Severn Trent alone will have invested some
£3,000 ronlbony in assets over the five year s to March 2020

Custorners also want to be able to contact us whenever and
however they want, whether that s to ask for advice, question
abillor notify us of a leak Digital technolegy 1s playing a major
role here at Severn Trent, helping us interact with customers wa
nine different channels, ensuring we are always there to talk to in
person over the phane, or in writing

‘Water quality... waste water

treatment... reliability and efficiency...
service and support... all delivered
with great value... these are the things
our customers expect.”




And, of course, customers rightly expect all this while enjoying
great value for money Bills matter to everybody - and while
weTe pleased that yet again Severn Trent Water's custormers
benefited fram the lowest hills in England and Wales over the last
year, wa're also committed to doing even more to support those
vulnerable members of our local cormmunities who struggle

to pay

Water quality . waste water treatment . reliabiity and efficiency...
service and support  all delivered with great value  these are
the things our customers expect, We've made ternific pragress

in the last quarter of a century and we know there's more to do

- and we re committed to working with our paers in the mdustry
and with our regulators to give cur custorners a service to be
proud of

Our regulatory framework

The Government s approach to our industry is set by the
Departrnent for the Environment. Food and Rural Affairs | Defra’]
In England and the Welsh Government in Wales Ofwat i1s the
Industry s econornic regulator This means it sets limits on

the prices we can charge our customers over five year Asset
Management Plan [AMP'] cycles This financial year was the
third o° AMPé, which runs from Aprit 2015 to March 2020

We also work closely with a vanety of other regulaters and
public bodies

¢ The Drinking Water Inspectorate ([DWI'] independently checks
that water supplies in England and Wales are safe and that
drinking water quality 15 acceptable to consumers Its work
includes assuring water guality, ensuring compariugs make the
changes necessary to iImprove, developing new regulations to
further improve water quality, and science and policy

+ The Consumer Counci for Water [ CCW'] speaks on behalf of
water consumers in England and Wales It advises consumers
and takes up complaints on their behalf

¢ The Envircnment Agency [EA] allows us to collect water from
reservolrs, rivers and aquifers and return it to the environment
after it s been used by our customers and treated by us

*

Natural Resources Wales s the environmental regulater in
Wales It oversees how the country s natural resources are
maintained, improved and used now and in the future

Natural England advises the Government on the natural
environment in England and helps to protect nature and the
landscape, especially for plant and animal ‘e in fresh water
and the sea

The Health and Safety Executive helps us to reduce the
health and safety risks faced by our employees. customers
and vistors

Image removed
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview continued

Moving into the next phase of regulation

Every five years, our regulater Ofwat reviews industry pricing
The most recent price review — known as PR14 —was in 2014 and
heralded sweeping changes PR14 gave customers a greater
voice in setting our prionities and also ntroduced a performance-
related reward and penalty syster, called Outcorne Delivery
Incentives (ODIs] We welcomed these inihiatives and believe
they're playing an impartant part in driving greater efficiency
across the ndustry

Now we're moving towards the next price review, which

will take place i 2019 [n Decernber 2017, Ofwat published

its methodology for the 2019 price review, known as PR19

This provided us with guidance on expectations for cur business
plans, which we'll subrrut in Septernber 2018 In our view, the
methodolegy sets out a challenging environment, but also one
where high performing compantes can succeed Were fully
supportive of Ofwat's reform agenda, which includes stronger
0ODIs - and although they're currently still in development, our
business plans will lay out our ambitions in four key areas

“Reliable supplies and
services depend on reliable
infrastructure. But to us
‘resilience’ is a broader
issue than just having good
quality pipes, reservoirs and
treatment works. It means
being operationally resilient,
so our people are sufficiently
well trained to carry out the
tasks we need them to do.”

16 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Customers

Our preparation work for PR19 has included the most
cornprehensive customer engagerment actiity and research
programme In sur history, In conjunction with insight from our
everyday interactions with them The result 15 a new level of
understanding about the issues that are most important to our
custormers {n brief, they want us te go beyond just balancing
supply and demand, praviding clean drinking water and taking
waste water away. They see us as key influencers in the everyday
lives of their local communities And they want us to step up and
play our role to the full

50, among other initiatives, we're investing in better
communications and also redoubling our efforts arcund
custerner education, especially of children - for example onwhat
not to put down their toilets - as well as supporting cur people to
do more volunteering to benefit the communities which we serve

Affordability

In 2017, and for the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water s
customers had the lowest bilis in England and Wales That's an
achievernent in its own right, but we're cornrmitted to making sure
that these bills are affordable for all our custormers - including
the most vulnerable Struggling to pay a water bill can be an
indication of other 155ues N a customer’s life, so we're working
with partners in lecal communities to identify those who may
need some extra help

Image removed




Resilience

It goes without saying that reliable supplies and services depend
onareliable infrastructure Butto us resilience’)s a broader 1ssue
than just having geod quality pipes, reservoirs and treatment
works It means being operationally resitient, sc cur people are
sufficiently well trained to carry out the tasks we need them to

do, both in a steady state and in an emergency And It means
financially resiient, with a stress-tested capital structure to
maintain an investrnent-grade rating for our regulated business
and the appropriate equity strength to effectively rmanage

risks ltalso means having corporate resiience, with the right
gavernance processes ensuring that we're fair and transparent at
alt times, and recegnised as a responsible and trusted business
by society at large We're rightly regarded as a public service
company and we'll do everything in our power to deliver a service
that the public can be proud of

Innovation

You cant deliver cutstanding custormner service, keep bills
affordable or run a resilient business witheut innovation We're
pleased to see that Ofwat s PR1% methodology embraces the role
of markets, not only In bicresources but also inwater resources
through water trading

In fact we re working with United Utilities to engage with
Thames Water on the evaluation of a project to build a super
interconnector that would enable us to transfer and trade water
between the Severn and Thames catchment areas

How our market environment influences
our five strategic priorities
Embedding customers at the heart of all we do

we'll continue to anticipate and to meet changing
customers and wider societal needs [see page 22)

Driving operational excellence and continuous innovation

innovation helps us to deliver the services customers
need and keep bills affordable (see page 24

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

What happens next?

Ofwat's timetable for PR1% 15 as follows

Subrmission of business plans - 3 September 2018
Initial assessment of plans - late January 2019
Fast-tracked draft determinations - March/april 2019
Remaining draft determinations - July 2019

Final determinations — December 201%

Playing our part in the debate

We agree with the general diraction in which Ofwat s
taking the industry and have continued te add our voice
to the debate wherever and whenever possible

For example, In addition to evaluating the possibilities of water
trading, we worked with a number of our peers and the Social
Market Foundation to publish a report into the Ukely implications
of renationalisation on public sector debt levels

We ve also stepped up our consumer-facing communications,
including launching our new brand - Wonderful ontap -

to improve understanding of what we do and how we do it
Please see our website for more details

we invest to make sure we continue to benefit from a restlient,

well-maintained network that meets the demands of a

growing population and a changing climate [see page 2é)

Changing the market for the better

we work constructively with requlators, helping to prepare

the industry for the opportunities and challenges of the future

(see page 78

Creating an awesome place to work
we can only succeed if we have the support of inspired,
talented, diverse and engaged people [see page 30)
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review

GETTING THE
BALANCE RIGHT

“What truly matters 1s balance...
balance between today and tomorrow,
between making iImprovements
where customers value them
most, keeping bills affordable
and providing a fair return
to our investors.”

Liv Garfield,
Chief Executive

Image remaoved
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Times have changed. Today, atl of us, across all walks

of life expect the companies that serve us to he socially
responsible. It's time for leading businesses to step up
ta the challenges of running a sustainable operation and
to embrace all aspects of their performance: social and
environmental as well as financial.

Successis not as easy to quantify as it was in the past Gone are
the days when a company was judged purely on its balance
sheet and income statement At Severn Trent, this1s a change
we welcome wholeheartedly

That's not to say that financial performance no longer matters
It does, and we're extremely proud of our track record in that
respect, as you can see from the figures for 2017/18 that you'll
find elsewhere on these pages, notably in James’ financial
report What truly matterss balance balance between
today and tormorrow, between making improvements where
custorners value themn the mest, keeping bills affordable and
providing a fair return to our investors

We can debate what has caused this shuft of opinion wetl inte
the early hours, whether it's the financial crisis or global
political unrest, government action or the poor behaviour of

a handful of companies, or something else entirely What 1s
undeniable 1s that this change has happened And that the new
world it s ushered in s here to stay

So, nstead of a traditonal CEQ review, | want to use these 1,500
words or so ¢ tell you what | m really proud of and what makes
Severn Trent different, through the lens of social respansibility

I want to show you how have we performed when the metrics of
success are extended beyond financial returns

Our environment: everybody’s most
important priority

Climate change has focused everybody's minds on the need
to look after the planet we call home At Severn Trent were
fortunate that our estate, which 1s one of the largest corporate
land-holdings in the UK at over 53,000 acres, includes severat
Sites of Special Saentfic Interest [ $551s] as well as many
other areas that are impartant for plants and wildife But with
great fortune comes great responsibility - more than most
companies, we're In a position to have significant iImpacts on
these wonderful envirenments

So we work very hard to make sure that these impacts are as
positive as possible That means encouraging greater biodiversity
by working with groups such as The Wildhfe Trust and farmers
Qver the last year, we improved biodiversity on 9 86 hectares of
55SIs and are targeting many mare by 2020 We also encourage
and empower our people to facus their volunteering efforts on
local rivers and other habitats near their hormes And last year,
40% of our colleagues chose to clean up 50 km of riverbank
through our volunteering scheme

Environmental responsibility also means reducing sewer
flooding - where we reduced the number of external flooding
events by around 2,000, which 1s a 49% outperformance against
our target — and serious pollution incidents, which came down
from seven to two We continued to improve the quality of water
entering our rivers, for example by working in partnership with
farmers and rewarding them for using less metaldehyde on their
fields [t was great to see all these achievernents corme together
and we believe they will help us regain the mark of exceptional
environmentat performance In our sector, the coveted 4* status
from the Envirenment Agency

Locking to the long-term future of the environment, we're
continuing to invest heavily iIn renewable energy - and | was
delighted that we generated the equivalent of 38% of the energy
we consumed tast year, and also sold green gas back into

the grid

Group PBIT

£528.4m

2017 £5367m

Group turnover

£1,694.1m

2017 £1,6380m

Dividend increase Net 0D} outperformance

t
6.2%
2017 10% E80-2m
2017 £47.6m

Underlying Group PBIT

£541.0m

2017 €520 1m
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review continued

Our customers: the reason why we'e all here

There are two ways of behaving when you're a natural rmonopoly
You can simply take advantage of the opportunities your situation
presents, or you can work night and day to create a service that s
s0 good that your cusiormears would st choose you, 1f they had
the chaice We firmty believe that this 1s wital for any business that
wants to still be a business in the years ahead

So how do we do that? Firstly by striving to give custormers what
they tell us they want —low bills, less sewer flooding and high
quality water at the turn of atap OurUpper Quartile positioning
10 the UK Customer Service index and our Customer QDI
performance show that wete making good progress

Affordability 1s right at the top of our agenda and | rm delighted

to report that at an average of £348 0 2018/19, Severn Trent
Water s bills will once again be the lowest in England and Wales
That's £57 lower than the average household bill, £35 lower than
the next cheapest and - If we look beyond the UK - half those in
Berlin and a quarter of those in Coperhagen

We're also increasing our ettorts to support the most vulnerable
people in aur communities As well as providing discounts to
customers who are struggling to pay their bills, we ve started

to work more closely with other agencies and use our close
relationship with local communities todentify where a little bit
of extra understanding and finanaial help can go atong way to
easing pressure on customers facing difficulties Thisisn't the
best way to improve our bottom line - but itis demonstrably the
right thing to do

As I've already mentioned, the number of sewer floodings are
one of a number of measures in which we have outperformed,
but 1t 1s disappomnting when our customers are left with

nothing coming out of therr taps, as happened too often this
year Our performance on supply interruptions was our worst
performance in five years and the first ime we've missed

our target on that measure during that tme Sorme of these
interruptions to supply can be explained away by the extreme
freeze-thaw-freeze cycles of the tter winter, which alse meant
that we missed our challenging target on leakage - despite
strong performance for 11 months of the year But the fact
remains that we know we have let sorme of our custorners down
in an area that really matters to them Although small succour for
these performance failures, custorners are rightly cornpensated
for themn through compensation when our performance falls
below regulatory standards and by virtue of the 0Dl penalty
system, through reductions in future bills

We're working really hard to improve our ability to cope with
extreme weather, as this is a fact of Ufe for us all now, through
nitiatives like leakage detector robots and other high tech toels
that can give us extra ‘eyes’ on the network

20 Sevarn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Custorners also tell us that 1t s yimportant that we re available for
them when they need to talk to us We all lead busy lives, and we
all know how frustrating it 1s when you can't tatk to somebody
when you need to in the five minute slot that you have i between
dealing with more important work or family matters So we ve
extended and improved our contact channels We're now the only
water company that customers can contact at any me of day or
night, on any 1ssue - not Just for emergencies

We need to help our customers understand what they should :
and shouldn't put down the loo or the sink, and how to use water
more efficiently Winte | passionately believe that most people
want to do their best for the environment, they don t always have
the right knowtedge to do so That s why we spend so much time
and effort on education, particularly in schools if we can get
young people to value water and support what we're doing to
preserve and supply it, then we will all be In a much better place
as well as our children and grandchildren in years to come

Our people: the assets that make it all happen

Severn Trent s its people Theyre the ones on the front bine,
the ones who talk to customers, the ones who innovate and

implement the bright ideas that help us deliver a service you
would choose to have.

To be your best, you have to be happy and supported in your
workplace Sowe re constantly looking for new and better ways
to help them thrive, fulfil their potential and show therm how
rmuch we value their expertise and commitment Over the last
year we've increased our focus on training Ours s a technical,
engineering-led industry where there s absolutely no substitute
for the right expertise Of course, investing i training 1s good

for our business, because it belps us be mare technucally
competent Butits also good for our colleagues, because it gives
them a platform for growth, promotion and more rewarding
careers ~ and s good for local cornmunities and industry oo,
because it improves the skills base across the Midlands. This s
what businesses like Severn Trent can and shauld be doing
butding cur employees talenis and playing our part as mermbers
of scciety to benefit everybody

As a significant employer in our region and presence m local
communitres across the Midlands, we can also do a lot to help
change general atttudes towards 1ssyes that affect indwiduals
everywhere Forexample, according to the World Health
Organization, one in four people in the world will be impacted

by rnental or neurological disorders at sorne pointin their lives
So last year we decided that we needed to remaove the stigma
associated with mental health, particularly for men We now have
over 400 quatihied mental health first aiders at Severn Trent, who
have undertaken forrnal training programmes and also listened
to first-hand stories of how mental health can affect lives ~
including personal contributions from my senior team. Now we re
turning our attention to the menopause, which 1s ancther area
thatis a bit of a taboo In society at large but which can have a
masstvely detrimental impact on wemen and their famibies



Our emptoyee engagement score rose by a full six percentage
points last year, proving that the things we re daing for our
people are appreciated, and we are turning Severn Trent into an
even better place to work Ourteams respond io the sense of
belonging and community that we're trying to create here - and
anincredible 40% of them turned out to volunteer their time to
improve their local environment during the last 12 months

Dee Valley Water is now substantially integrated, and the people
there are already a vital part of the Severn Trent famuly i'm so
proud of the fact that they haven t missad a beat in delivering a
great year from an operational perspective, with zero coliforms
[an rmpaortant feature of water guality) at their sites probably
being the standout achievement We're learming frorm each other
and adopting each other’s best practices in order to provide
better services to our customers and the envirenment

I'd ke to thank all 6,000 of cur pecple for the passion they've
applied to all they do over the year. sometimes in difficult
circumstances, but atways with a smile on their faces They make
it an honour to have my job Thank you!

Our outlook: lots to look forward to, but more
hard work lies ahead

In Septernber, we Ll submit cur plans to Ofwat for our next
five year business plan Make no mistake, from an industry
perspective this 1s going to be tough

But for customers, this 1s the right thing at the right time
Putting the facus fairly and squarely on customer service,
affordability and long term resilience 1s absotutely the correct
thing to do and we fully support Ofwat s goals

We ve been working hard over the last few years to make sure
we'e in good shape to rise to these challenges As this report
highlights, Severn Trent Water's custorners again had the lowest
bills in England and Wales, and we re making good progress in
mast other areas of the business Are we getting it nght all the
time? No But we know where and how we can improve - and we
have a total determination with our people s support to get there

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives

Embed customers at
the heart of all we do

What do we mean by this?

We'll improve the way in which
customers engage with us through
improved insight and understanding
of what's important to them.

frmage removed

Lowest hills in the land
- yet again

Research tells us that with so many competing demands
on household budgets, affordability is one of the biggest
concerns for our customers. Which is why it was great
to see that our efforts to keep water bills down yet again
proved so worthwhile.

For the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water's customers
have the lowest bills in England and Wales. Our average
combined bill for 2D18/19 will be £348. That's £57 below
the average across the two natiens and £35 less than the
next cheapest.

Nevertheless, we know that some vulnerable customers still
struggle to make ends meet - 50 over the last 12 menths, we
used our Big Difference scherne to give discounts of up to $0%
to 36,000 people.

22 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Make a step change in customer service

* Continue to deliver on the things that matter most
to our custormers 1o acheve a substantial reward of
around £23 million in custorner ODIs,

Provide a service that is affordable for all and
support our financrally vulnerable customers by
assisting 50,000 customers with their bills

Be recognised as an upper guartile wholesaler in
the new nan-hausehold retail market

*

* Provide an industry leading experience for properly
developers and custorners who need new water
and waste connecttons

tmage removed

Protecting the interests
of our customers

From investing in robotic leakage detectors to encouraging
farmers and fast food chains to be more careful about
what they put on fields or down drains, we work tirelessly
to make Severn Trent water as clean, available and
affordable as possible.

Although customers certainly appraciate what we do

- infact water quality complaints are down 12% year-on-
year - not everybody buys into the need to look after this
precious resource. We don't enjoy taking people to court,
but sometimes it's the only way to protect the interests
of all those who pay their bills and play by the rules.
Since the start of 2014, we've successfully prosecuted
over 50 companies that have been caught illegally using
hydrants to access our network. And to prevent future
misuse, we've now fitted 30,000 locking caps to hydrants
across our network,



Our progress 2017/18

s Achieved upper quartile position in the UK
Customer Service Index and reduced custorner
written complaints by 17%.

Achieved better nutcomes for customers on

a number of measuras including external and
internal sewer flooding, and achieved 0D
outperformance payments of £80 2 million
Maintained the lowest bills in England and
Wales, and assisted more than 50,000 vulnerable
customers with their bills

Developer Services team recognised by Ofwat

as 1st for Water and 2nd for Waste inits SLA
compliance companson tables

-

Image removed

Improving our performance
for developers

Every year, we connect around 20,000 new properties and install
and adopt around 100 km of new water and waste water pipes.

And whether we're working with an individual doing a self-build, a
nationat housebuilder constructing a new 200-home estate or office
block, or a farmer wanting a new water supply for a distant drinking
trough for his cattle, we aim to make this process as simple and
cost-effective as possible.

By recrganising our Developer Services business around our
three main customer segments -« small and first time developers,
large developers and self-lay providers — we evolved our
approach aver the last year to meet the needs of our customers
more precisely.

The result? The best customer service within our seclor - finishing
1st for water and a close 2nd for waste water as measured by

the Ofwat customer service KPI. We also saw a 29% reduction in
customer complaints compared to the previous year.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

¢ Build greater capability in incident management
focusing on continueus Improvement

+ Develop the use of the ‘Wonderful cntap brand to
increase the focus of all colleagues on enhancing
the quality of our products and customer service,
and make our customers aware of what we do for
thern and our connecticn with their daily Lives

Deliver on the things that mattar most to our
custorners as measured in Customer ODls

* Provide a service that 1s affordable for atl and
support our financially vulnerable customers
by assisting 50,000 customers with therr bills

“We continue to maintain the
lowest bills in England and
Wales, and assisted more than
50,000 vulnerable customers
with their bills.”

Severn Trent Pic Annual Report and Accounts 2018 23
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Drive operational
excellence and
continuous innovation

What do we mean by this?

We'll build a smarter water and
waste water network, develop our
business intelligence and simplify
our cross business processes.

24 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

« Onirack delivery of our ptans to be Upper Quartle
for Retail, Water and Waste

On track delivery of Upper Quartile financing
perforrnance by the end of 2019

Continue to provide environmental leadership as
evidenced by EA 4* status.

Develop the profitability of cur US and UK Business
Services operations

+

.

Deliver budgeted henetfits from implernenting

10 nnovation projects and 10 digital projects,

and developing a sustainable pipeline and process
for innovation

* Drive innovative developer solutions to deliver

a step-change in the new connections service
to customers

Reduce the number of water quality complaints

Image removed

Seeking out best practice,
wherever in the world it lives

Our teams are constantly coming up with brilliant ideas on how we can
do things better, faster or cheaper for our customers - and the Bike
on a Boat project gives them all the support they need to become even
maore inngvative,

Named after a clever idea developed by an America’s Cup yacht racing
team, Bike on a Boat is all about learning from each other as well as
from best practice around the world. Towards the end of 2017, we took
Bike on a Boat on tour, holding 64 roadshows at 10 different venues over
six weeks and generating over 6,200 ideas from our people.

In October 2017, we launched a £100,000 Bike on Boat fund to enable any
of our people to apply to travel anywhere in the world in order to learn
more about how other companies are reducing water usage and leakage.

We have received over 30 applications and approved 13 trips as far afield
as Australia and Singapore.



Our progress 2017/18

» Achieved Upper Quartle performance in key waste
measures ncluding externat sewer flooding

Delivered sector teading enviranmental
performance, which we expect to lead to
EA 4* status

¢ UK Business Services profit increascd,
and US business sold

Expanded our search globally for innovative
solutiens to deliver the highest standards and
greatest efficiency for our customers

Achieved 1st and Znd place in Ofwat's water and
waste rankings respectively for new connections
SLA compliance

years, reducing water quality complaints by 12%

Deployed innovative solutions, such as the addition
of bio-augmentation to prevent the builld-up

of fatbergs, to deliver higher standards and
greater efficiancy

Delivered our best water quality performance in five

Areas of focus for 2018/19

¢ Deliver our plans to be Upper Quartile for Retall,
Water and Waste

« Continue to provide environmental leadership
+ Regain self-assured status for our English business

+ Make hurther progress on the quality of our water
as measured by the DWI's Compliance Risk Index

Customer water
quality complaints

12%

image removed

Tralling the use of augmented reality technology
at one of our operational sites
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Invest responsibly
for sustainable growth

What do we mean by this?

We'll develop an effective strategy
which optimises our regulated asset
base, whilst creating new growth
opportunitites for the future.

Image removed
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What we said we would do in 2017/18

« On track to delivering on our PR14 commitrments
and make appropriate targeted investments for
the future

Integi ate and deliver the benefits of the Dee Valley
acquisition, combrming the strengths of the two
companies to create a strong Welsh entity focused
on delivering local priorities

-

*

Compiete the transfer of our non-household
customners to our joint venture business Water Plus

Generate the eguivalent of 38% of our energy needs
from renewable sources

e Achieve material improvements in some of our key
Enterprise Risk Management risks

Bringing new resilience
to local infrastructure

The market town of Newark in Nottinghamshire has survived
everything from the black death to the civil war. But an expanding
population coupled with an ageing, inadequate sewer network was
challenging the town's resilience. The infrastructure was at breaking
point, with 400 properties regularly at risk of sewer flooding - after
fire, the worst thing that can happen o a property.

We're currently investing £60 million in a three year preject to replace
more than 20 km of pipes, inclyding a 2,8 metre diameter tunnel
running 15 metres below Newark's streets. Daspite short term
disruption, the end results will be welcomed by all. The town will have
a sewer and water pipe network {it for its future population. And for
the 400 households at the heart of the project, a drop of rain will no
longer raise the fear of sewage flooding their hemes and gardens.



Our progress 2017/18

s Embraced Totex, identifying a further £100 million
of effivencies which will be re-invested in the
business to further improve customer service and

ensure were in the best possible position for AMP7

Substanhally completed the integration of Dee
Valley Water into the Severn Trent Group, allowing

the two companies to learn and share best practice

with each ather for the benefit of their customers,

Well advanced in realigning the boundaries of
Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water along
English and Welsh national borders

Generated the equivalent of 36% of our energy
needs from renewable seurces, and made good
progress on the construction of new renewable
enargy plants

-

including the Birmingham Resilience Programme
and the Newark waste and water improvement

project Major capital schernes are on track to meet

any associated 0Dl commitments

Theend of an era

Customers in North Wales are now enjoying higher
quality water, thanks to the completion of a camplex
schemae to close an old treatment works and instead
supply water from a more resitient and efficient facility.

Constructed in the 19205, the works at Legacy on

the outskirts of Wrexham was licensed to abstract

water from nearby farmer lead mines. This water was
then treated through a series of pressure filters and
chlorination plants before being held in a 350,000 gallon
tank. However, despite regular upgrades, the facitity was
nearing the end of its useful life and some customers
were experiencing occasional discolouration problems.

In March 2018, following several years of hard work

by the team at Dee Valley, a project to transfer the raw
water to Liywn Onn was completed - including a new
distribution water pipe - and the Legacy treatment works
was finally closed.

Delivered key milestones in major capitat schemes,

Areas of focus for 2018/19

 Delver fully on our PR14 {AMPS&] investment
commitments, being confident that we are able
to deliver aganst our current plans and make
appropriate investrnents for the future

+ Achieve material improvements in some of our key
ERM risks

* Drive a focus on efficiency across all business
areas Including central functions to support
frontline iInvestment

* Continue to embed innovation acress the Company,
making it part of every team’s way of working

image removed
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Change the market What we said we would do in 2017/18

» Have a clear PR1% outhine plan in place that

for the better evidences our leading status

Produce compelling cases for investment that
custorners want to see, at PR19, that enables strong
RCV growth over AMPs 7 and 8

Design and implement the Bioresources change
programme and business model

* Be seen as the water sector’s thought leader

Create a strong Welsh entity focused on delivering

What do we mean by this? local priorities

We'll embrace market opening in

the UK and explore opportunities
for growth in new water markets.

Preparing for competition
in new markets

Image removed

During the year we commenced preparations for
the separation of our Bioresources activity from
our Regulated Water and Waste Water business
nto Business Services to ready ourselves for
competition. We have created regional treatment
hubs; streamlined logistics: optimised treatment
strategy and ratienalised sites. We are already
active in the market having completed our first trial
trade with Yorkshire Water in April 2018.

Tanker arriving at our studge treatment centre
at Worksop, north Notbinghamshire.
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Our progress 2017/18

Our PR19 plans are coming together well, co-
creatng them wath our largest ever customer
engagernent prograrnme, and we are In a good
position to submit in Septernber 2018

Restructured ourwaste business to create a stand-
alone Bioresources team, identifying opportunities
for operating efficiencies and trading with

our companies

Worked with the Social Market Foundstion
to assess the likely costs associated with
renationalising the water and sewerage
industry in England

Worked with United Utilities to engage with Thames
Water on the construction of a super interconnectar
to transfer and trade water between the Severn and
Thames catchment areas

Integration of Dee Valley Water 1s well advanced,

and plans to realign the boundary of the Company
wholly within Wales will take effect in July 2018

Areas of focus for 2018/19

Produce compelling cases forinvestment at PR1%
that enable strong RCY growth over AMPs 7 & 8

Deliver phase two of the energy and renewables
strategy to achieve 50% self-generation

Build a sector leading approach to Bioresources

Finalise the creation of Hafren Dyfrdwy and deliver
agreat first year.

Image removed
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Integration of Dee Valley Water 15 well advanced, and plans to realign the
boundary of the Company wholly within Wales will take effect in Juty 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Create an awesome What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Deliver a step change in our safety performance

place to Work « [mprove the wellbeing of our colleagues

Deliver a further uplift in our employee
engagement scores

.

Frogress our talent agenda.

Centinue to strive for the rmost diverse and inclusive
business withincreasing numbers of Black, Asian
and Minortty Ethnic [ BAME ] talent in our business

Further improve employee engagement
What do we mean by this? by resobaing the top 10ssues identified by

We'll create a culture of o emplovees
empowerment and accountability

with a focus on skills, talent

and career development.

Opportunity and support for alt

We're striving to make Severn Trent an awesome place to work -
where anybody who wants to reach their potential can thrive.

Image removed Graduates already recognise the opportunities we offer - and
apprentices are continuing to follow suit, with another increase in their
numbers over the last year. We're also succeeding in attracting a more
diverse workforce ~ BAME employees on our graduate programmes
were up 12.74% during the year. Now we're redoubling our efforts to
encourage people from less sociatly mobile populations te join us,
removing artificial barriers to entry and working with more schools in
disadvantaged areas. For example, for the year ahead we've ring fenced
25 work expérience opportunities at five schools across five sociat
mobility ‘cold spots’ in our region.

Once they're part of our team, we provide all our people with a range of
training programmes. We've committed to invest in technical skills and
will create a new Severn Trent Training Acaderny, focused on delivering
tailored programmes for staff across our region, with the aim of making
our workforce the most technicalty skitled in the industry,

We recognise the importance of supporting people in all aspects of
their lives. During the year, we continued our major programme to
improve our employees’ understanding of mental health issues, as well
as encouraging greater awareness of cancer and menopause. la Aprit
2018, we also signed up to the TUC's Dying to Work charter which aims
to protect employees with a terminal diagnosis.
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Our progress 2017/18

s Achieved a 23% reduction in lost time injurtes,

resultingin an LT rate of 017, through an enhanced

focus on safety culture, standards compliance
and training

Continued our focus on mental and
musculoskeletal health to drive an improverment
In empleoyee wellbeing and reduce absences.

Achieved a six percentage pomnts improvement in

our employee engagement survey, demanstrating
improvemnent m all areas, and achieving an upper
quartile position relative to our peers

= Continued investrnent beth in our graduate
and apprentice schemes, as well as innovative

investment in the ongoing traiming and development

of our broader employee population

Focused efforts on further improving social
mobility within our region, through targeted
recruitment from social mobibity cold spots

Delivered solutions for two of the top 10 1ssues
dentified by our employees, and made progress
to resolve the remaining 1ssues.

Image removed

Supporting clean, safe water
and sanitation

As a founding member and long term supporters of WaterAid,

we've raised over £450,000 for the charity over the last two

years, We believe that our continued support can help WaterAid
realise our shared ambition for clean water, decent toilets and

hygiene for everyone everywhere by 2030.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

¢ Deliver a further step change in our safety
performance and support the wellbeing of
our coileagues

s Continue to build on our strong volunteering
perforrmance and drive the CR agenda

« Continue our focus on iImproving overall Quest
engagement sceores

e Daliver the foundations of the new
Academy, te make a positive contribution
to technical development
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Strategic report

0DIs and KPlIs

We continue to make progress against
our customer ODIs and financial KPls.

Progress against our
Outcome Delivery Incentives?

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Internal sewer flooding

External sewer flooding

Minutes without supply

Ac tual Actual Actual
562 3,763 34 29
-~ -}Graph removed ‘ -~ Graph removed raph removed

Rew ard/Penalty
960

Ruate ot Rew 3rd/Pﬂmtty lper i d( ntl
£42 820

Why we measure it

To ensura we do everything we can Lo prevent llaording
ot customers homes or busmesses Wis e of our
custormers mastimportant pricribies

Progress inthe year

Wie are reporung a performance of 62 mternae!
in~idents, ahead of aur comantted performanc e tevel
of YeUmcidents

Reward/Penalty
7447

Rate nf Rev»ard’Penally per e \qwal

£19,779"

Why we measure it

To ensure we dn rverylhing we ean lo prevent [Looa.ng
of Lusiomers’ homes o Businesses 1y ane of bur
cuysiomers moastimpuertant priorities

Progress inthe year

We arereperling aperformani e of 3763 exti rral
incide nts abwad of cur commutied porfsrnance lew !
e 24&T inudents

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Improvements to river water quality

Actual
1%

Number of category X pollution incidents

Aclual
37

Reward  Ponalty
10.8 12

Rate of Reward/Penalty (per ronute)

£1.10m

Why we measure it

Gur custemers value water being there whaen they
need it Thos performance commitment ensares we
ire drving down the mpact ef any interruptions o
~upply 3t ross cur natwark to minrmse theampadt
cncustorners

Pragress.n the year

We interrupted - ustomers supplio s tor an average of
14 29 munuges in 201798, weell bebund our perierman, e
cemmutiment of 10 % ninutes

Successful catchment management schemes

Actual
]

"Graph removed ‘

Graph removed

“Graphirermoved

Penalty/Reward
233

alo of Pena ly/Rl wavd !erumtI

E150 00aQ’

Why we measure it

We have statutory abligatinns ta datrer, bugt aue
~ustomers told us that we should de mere where we
ran This perferrRance comimiiment ensures we rmeet
our ebhigations and drives us to deliver morsa where 1t
1s poysible

Progress inthe year

There were 19 individual points campleted in 2017418
bringing our curnulative total to 34 ponts, and we are
on track for our end of AMP tasget

3. Invest responsibly for
sustainable growth

See our Regulated Water and Waste Water
perfarmance review an pages 34 to 41
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Rewarcﬁpenally

Rate of Ruisear d/Penalty [per moidant]

Whywe measure |t

Minurusing the rmpac L gur achwity has en the
crivirgNment s a key concern for cur custoimers
This parformance commmiment ensures we drve
Loimprove oerformance in this area

Progress inthe year

Wi are reporimg 327 ateyger y 3 midents agamst
acommitted performance level of 374, thrsis 47
ahead of larget and our rewasrd dead-band

Ally/Roward Reward Cap
12 21

Rate o PLﬂﬁLly/R[Wrifd[pxr‘sdne.mef

£1.03m’

Whywe measure it

Qur custemers want us to loak for new and innavative
ways (o improve waler quality, whilst working in
partnershipwih other stakehoiders o deliver wider
benehts This performance commilrmanl locuses on
how aur approasches are enccuraging tarmers and
land owners to change ther behaviour and pract.ces

Progress in the year

Over the last year we have undor taken a roview of gur
sehemes and processes and optmnised cur apgroach
based on previous years cxperience We are on track
ta delver mare than oul periet mance commmutment of
12 catchments i 2018/19

4. Create an awesome place to work

Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked

Sevarn Trunt Water Lirnited

O 17 2016/17.0.22

Severn Trent Business Servicas

O 15 2016/17:0.04




SIM - Customer experience

Not yet defined by Ofwat

83.25Mscore

Why we measure it
Provid nz goed quality seract e ool Lustominr o1 koy
and the Somvice Incentive Mechamism [ S8 ] provids s us

w tha regular cpperturity o underslard our perfermance

and implermentimibiatves ' mprove the quaity o aore oo

we previde, but also deliver value f2r maney

Pragress mn the year

We have sean a chigrt dechrie n cur quantitative
areas cf car busines=s and maintaned cur qualitative
scereswhich has meant that we ha e reporied a S:M
score ¢t 83 2 far 2017718, behind sur ariginal upger
quartile targar

Asset Stewardship - coliform failures

Actual
8

Complaints about water quality

Artual
12,487

f Graph removed

Reward/Penaity
9,992

Rate of Reward ‘Penalty per complant’

Why we measure it

Castmiers v alue the gesthetic guality of their

wter Tk perfarmance comentment s dus-gned
16 wmaure Al manage ur nl Hork 12 nomrmeze the
Aurt ber 3lcvent=tht cause d scoleuratizn {aste or
cdeu T prot orms

Progress in the year

In 217 the rumper of drinking water qual ty
complaints gecreaced from 14,447 £ 12 587, but
we diz ot achieve vur commitied per orman.e
evel ol 9922

Leakage

Actual
443

Graphi fémoved ™

’ G'r'a'bh:'i"é'h'ib' I

Penatty
7
Rte of Ponalty
Whywe measure it
The presence o« cliformsin zar drinking water 1s
unaceeptable asitis anndicator ot poor quality sowe

cerfinaa'ly rrenilsr our works (o ensure they are nol
boing detected

Progress inthe year

During 2017, we detected colformes a1 caghl woater
treatment works sites, whichis warse than gur
remimitled performance level of soven or fewer
warkswith coliform detections

Severn Trent engagement score improvement®

Reward/Fenalty
434

Rate of Reward/Panalty [per megatitre per dayl

£123,000
Why we measure it
Customers see leakags a< awaste of a key rescurce

our custamers want us tc reduse our level of leakaae
as apricrity

Pragress inthe year

Qur cutturn position for 201718 was a tatal

of A43 MU 4y, whiLhowas behend cur cammitted
performan o levelof 434 MUday

6 percentage points

Progress against
our financial KPIs*

Group turnover

£1,694.1Tm

2016/17: £1,638.0m

Group underlying PBIT
£541.0m

2016/17: £520 1m

Underlylng e-arni-r-lés- be-r share
121.0p

2016/17: 115.7p

Notes

In 2012413 prizes after tas

Theasare abse key measurements Ustd 1 aas055
cur Corpor ate Re=punaitnlt; pertermance
Crngagement index used for the Group since
2015416 1o suppas t benchmarking and gain better
nsight abeut us as an emplayer

Aller haive “erlermance Measures ale defined
In Note 46 othe Group Financ al Statemens
onpages 192 to "%

Key

Actual

Soworn Trent Actual Portermance 20171«
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Strategic report

Performance review

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regultated Water and
Waste Water business
performed well during the
year, as we continued to deliver
our five strategic priorities.

Here, we provide greater detail on the achievements
and challenges we encountered while delivering
our hve strategic priorities over the last 12 months

- and alsodentfy some of the areas where there's
stll rpore ta do.

Kilometres of sewerage
pipes in our network

94,027

Litres of drinking water
supplied each day

1.6bn

Households and
businesses served

4.3m

Image removed

We aim to educate and mspire an entire generation, not just about water
conservation and environmental protection, but also by emphasising
the importance of hydration to therr health and wetlbeing
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Embedding customers
at the heart of all we do

Serving our & 3 millien customers and doing our best for therr
local communities sits right at the very centre of everything
we do.

During the year, we carried out the most intensive customer
engagerment activity in our history This included a range of
in-depth, deliberative sessions with customers to gat right to
the heart of their needs, and close collaboration to explore how
those needs - and our service - could evolve In the future

The custormer engagement confirmed that the priorities for our
customers are consistent and simple - including less sewer
flooding and lower bitls, Simple 1o understand, of course, but not
so simple to achieve So i's extrernely pleasing to report that this
was the third consecutive year where we outpertormed on the
measures that our customers care most about

Less sewer flooding

Animproved record on sewer llocding sits night al the top of our
list of achievements There's been a 35% reduction in the number
of customers aflecled by external sewer flooding, largely due to
our continued focus on prevention

With rnany blockages caused by wipes and other non-degradable
iterns, we ve continued to use a wide range of Iniiatives to
educate our customers about what they can and can't put

down loitets and drains Among households, wipes are the

main culprits and during the year we interacted with 200,536
custemners to help thern to improve therr understanding of

how sewers work and to be careful around how much water 1s
consumed We're paying particular attention to the customers
of the future, and engaged with 156,102 schoolchildren during
the year We aim to educate and inspire an entire generation, not
just about water conservation and ervironmental protection, but
also by ernphasising the imnportance of hydration to their health
and wellbeing.

(0 the non-hausehald sectar, we fallowed up last year's
pioneering agreement with McOonald s by engaging with more
fast food restaurants In Gloucestershire, for example, we
worked with companies including YO! Sushi, J 0 Wetherspoon
and The Mayflower to help prevent fatbergs by educating staff
about what they shouldn't be pouring down sinks and drains,
and adwising them on what grease containment and treatment
15 neaded,



Image removed

We're the first water company to provide a 24/7 service for
non-emergencies, so custemers can contact us to discuss anything
theywantin the middle of the might, if that's what fits in with their Lives

Lower bills

For the 8th consecutive year, Severn Trent Water's customers
paid the lowest bills in England and Wales, with our average
combined bill for the year being £341 We re proud of this record
- but we're even mare proud of our continuing effortste do more
every year to help vutnerable custormers who are struggling to
make ends meet Inits third year, our Big Difference scheme
helped 36,000 custormers access discounts of between 10% and
90%, which1s a critical part, along with other talored schemes.
to ensure we deliver on our commutment to help at teast

50,000 customers with bills every year Experience tells us that
financial difficulties can often indicate 1ssues in other areas cf a
customer’s life, so we've expanded our care and assistance team
to give us the capacity to engage with agencies such as housing
associations, the NHS, Citizens Advice and charities including
MIND, Samarttans and local food banks, as well as other utility
companies By working together, sharing appropriate information
and adopting a holistic approach to vulnerable people, we believe
we |l be able to do even more to play a key role at the heart of
local communities

More ways to contact us

It's important to our custormners that they can get in touch with us
how they want, when they want We now matntain nine different
customer communication channels, including webchat which
saw an increase in traffic during the year, We're the first water
company to provide a 24/7 service for non-emergancies, so
customers can contact us to discuss anything they want in the
nuddle of the might, if that's what fits in with therr bves. The value
of round-the-clock avallability can be seen in the fact that en
mast nights, maore people contact us with questions about
payment of their bitls and other 1ssues than about emergencies

Although our customer Service Incentive Mechamsm (SIM ]
score - which Ofwat uses to measure how welt and how quickly
we plit things right when our service fails to meet customers’
expectations - Is disappeointing, we are working hard to improve
the consistency of our custormer experience Theres still more
te do, and we re going to focus extra effort in areas such as the
time we take to respond when customers inform us of a leak
But 1t s encouraging to see that our drive to embed custormers at
the centre of all we do I1s paying off where it matters most - in the
hearts and rinds of customers themselves Customer written
complaints for the year are down 17%

We continued ta perform well on the Institute of Customer
Service s UK index, which measures custormer satisfaction
across the utilities sector, achieving upper quartile position for
custemer satisfaction, equivalent to fourth pesition in the Utilities
sector We look forward to the intreduction of Ofwat’s new C-MeX
measure, currently in development, we believe that this measure
will provide a truer reflection of our relative performance
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water

Driving operational excellence
and continued innovation

We're fully supportive of the incentive environment that Ofwat
has created The clear linkage between performance and
reward has encouraged us to think differently about how we
wark and to develop a sharper focus than ever on improving
customer service The result has been a good performance
which has generated sigiificant 0D outper formance payments
of £80 2 million We ve decided ta defer these earnings and
access them in the years to come, when they lLhelp us to
smooth future customer bills

Nowhere 15 our performance better demonstrated than on
our waste measures, Including sewer flooding. As reported
above, we achieved a significant reduction in the number of
customers affected by such incidents over the last year In fact
we've outperfor med our internat sewer flooding requiatory
target by 31% and our external target by 49% How have we
achieved this? By continuous investment supported by leading
edge technology Ata macro level, we're using sophisticated
data and analytics to predict the areas at greatest risk and then
addressing these with targeted capital investment At a more
micro level, we're carrying out root cause anatysis of incidents
when they do occur and putting measures in place to prevent
reaccurrence - whether caused by geagraptuc factors or
custemer behaviours

Regaining 4* status

Pallutionis an area where the ivestments made since
privatisation are really paying off - and we re delighted to
report that our environmental performance should enable us
to regain coveted 4* status from the Environment Agency

Our number of serious pollution incidents [calegories 1 and 2|
decreased to two from seven the previous year while category
3 performance agam improved, with 327 incidents against a
regulatory target of 374 At the same tirne, we worked hard

to improve the quality of the water entering our rivers and
reservoirs Metaldehyde 15 an effective pesticide against slugs.
snalls, and other gastropods ~ but once 1t runs off fields and
anters the watercourse, It s extremely expensive to remove
We continued to use financial Incentives to encourage farmers
10 pursue different and less environmentalty damaging
alternatives, with considerable success
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Image remaoved

We've cutperformed our internal sewer flooding regulatory target
by 31% and our external target by 49%.

The Drinking Water inspectorate [DWI) plays a key rolein

aur regulalory environment, and we continued to fulfd our
commitment to carry out diagnostics at our 16 largest sites

Our performance 1s measured by a metric known as mean zonal
compliance, and during 2017/18 we improved our performance
compared with the prior year at 99.96% [2016/17 99 94%)

Scope for improvement

Unfortunately, aur performance on supply interruptions was less
pleasing, with a two-fold year-on-year deterioration Duetoa
number of significant bursls same of our custormers were left
without water The major burst at Tewkesbury in Decermnber,
which affected many thausands of people, was challenging both
to locate and 1solate Although we worked tirelessly to reconnect
our customers and pravided 100,000 litres of bottled drinking
water, we recognise that our performance was unacceptable

Then, In March 2018 the very rapid thaw following The Beast
frorm the East led to a substantial increase over a seven day
period In the number of burst pipe notifications we would typically
receive during that perod, followed by cornphications caused

by airtocks, further snowfall and then further bursts We were
incredhbly disappointed that homes and communities were

left without water as a result of the unprecedented weather.

We know how difficult everyday life was for our customers until
we could restore supplies - and we decided immediately to pay
£30 compensation, reughly equivalent to our average monthly
combined bit! for water and waste, to any who were without water
for more than 12 continuous hours, or expenenced ntermittent
supply for more than 15 hours We also worked with business
custorners and their relailers who were affected With arcund
70% of Issues occurring on private property, we know we need to
do more to advise custorners better on how to prepare for winter.



The quality of our drinking water 15 constantly menitorad and
strictly regulated Our strategy for the year was to focus moere
efforts on our surface water treatment works - and while this
generated good results it was accompanied by a skight dipin
perforrnance at our ground water sites For example, the number
of sites where coliforms were detected rose from five to eight
While coliforms are harmless bacteria, their presence can be

an indication that water quality 1s not as high as it should be.

Querall, we received 12,687 complaints about water quality
during the year, down by 12% This was our best performance
for six years, and sustained the prior year's improvements
We're commutted to further improvernent and acknowledge that
the number of camplaints in 2017718 15 stll significantly above
our regulatory target of 2992 We're targeting improvements in
many ways, Including adepting the waler flushing programme
initiatives 1n place at Dee Valley Water which helped the team
there achieve 100% compliance during the year

Ore of the Dee Valley Water teams 15 currently leading the
Severn Trent water quality improvement programme - a good
example of how we re sharing best practice and learning from
each other's experiences

Investing in innovation

We continue to seek out innovative ideas that can transform our
performance, no matter where they originate For example, our
commitment to remave phosphorus from our sewage treatment
works has seen our iInnovation team evaluate technologies from
across the world Following intensive £2 rillion trials at our
Fackington site over the last two years, we re now commencing
the roll-out of five different and highly advanced technologies,
These include a magnetite ballasted coagulation process
picneered inthe US At one site this technology has replaced

our original solution, which was costed at €211 midlion The new
solution reduced the cost to £12 5 million and will lead to atotat
expenditure [Totex] saving of £8 7 rmullion - a return an investment
of 218% on one scheme alone

We re also seeking to improve our performance on leaks
through innovative projects, such as the introduction of detector
rebots mto the pipe network This Innovative solution uses
small touch sensors Lo spol the nature and exact location of
leaks rather than the current visual and acoustic technigues.
Based on technology first used in North America, we werc the
first test case in Europe and only the third test case giobally
with very encouraging early results.

Image removed

We re alse seeking to improve our
performance cn leaks through
innovative projects, such as the
introduction of detector robots
into the pipe network
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Investing responsibly
for sustainable growth

At Sevarn Trent, wa've been respansible for £21 billion of the
£130 billion invested by our industry since privatisation - and our
capttal prograrome continued at pace through 2017/18, as we
invested £855 million across our estate Last year, we committed
to investing a furtner £120 million in AMP4n order to make sure
we re in the best possible shape for AMP7, and we've Increased
our forecast Totex efficiencres by E100 million These now stand
at £870 million This addiional £100 million of lotex efficiencies,
whichs in addition to the £120 million previously announced, will
also be reinvested 10 cur business, for the benefit of customers.

Delivering our capital programme

Locking at our major capital projects, we started work ona

€40 rrulhion project 1o protect 400 homes and businesses at
Newark it Nottingharmnshrre from sewer flooding, and provide the
town with a rmare reliable water supply On track for completion
in 2019, the project will see us install 4 km of new sewers and

10 km of new water mains, and also build a 3 km, 2 8 metre
diameter, tunnel 15 metres below Newark

The £300 mitlion Biroingharn Resilience Project is the largest
capital project undertaken in the industry during AMPé Oue to

be completed in 2020, this will create a second mayor source

of water for Birmingham Progress during the year included
preparatory works for the Lickhill to Frankley pipeline comprising
the laying of 17 km of pipework and major tunnelling operatiens

Meanwhile, the €40 million investment to replace an ageing
reservorr with two new ones at Ambergate was completed a year
early in February 2018 This project will lower the nisk to drinking
water quality while improving our storage capacity resiience at
the same time

Our capital programme 1s delivering rewards in many areas
of the bustness We've retained aur Upper Quartile posttion
i waste and are moving in that direction on water. In terms
of O0Is, we've significantly outperformed our targets and our
0D/ outperformance payments have cxceeded £80 rmillion,
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Building a sustainable business

It s important to balance capacity-building projects with the
need to creale a sustainable business that s able to deliver
customer benefits in the long term - not just next year but over
the corning decade and beyond

For example, we carried out 15,367 home water efficiency checks
during the year These help customers save money by using
water more efficiently - and that means less pressure on water
resources in the future We re now using demographic data such
as sociweconomic profiling, 1o tar get customers who we believe
stand to gain most from a visit by our team In total, cur education
programmes hetped cver 171,469 custorners use water more
wisely n 2017/18

We're fortunate that the Severn Trent estate ishome to a
diverse array of species of plants and amnimals During the year,
we nmproved biodiver sity at Sites of Special Scientitic Interest
{S551s | covering 9 86 heclares, representing good progress
aganst pur 2020 target of 75 hectares - and we alsormproved
almaost 120 km of rivers as part of the Water Framework
Directive We continue to focus on exploring innovative ways

te generate renewable energy from waste, and last year self-
generated the equivalent of 38% of our energy needs Please see
the Business Sarvices perfoermance review on page 42 for
mare details

On a more negative note, our emissions performance was
disappointing as we failed to achieve our Water carbon 00! due to
higher than expected energy use In response, we've introduced
new energy management iniiatives for the coming year Weve
alsa agreed to help the National Grid balance energy supply

and demand by turning some of our operatonal sites off at
certamn times.

We know that our own efforts to become more sustainable
become even more effective whenwe're joined by others - and
in May 2017, we were delighted to see our supply chain partners
stepping up to support our arnbitions. At an event in Coventry,
seniar delegates from our top suppliers engaged with aur
management team ta explore opportunities ta work tagether for
mutual benefit The outcome meiuded a saries of pledges from
these influential suppliers to work on (mproving sustainabrlity in
areas relevant to their business For example, embedding carbon
and water reductions in their processes and pledging to work
closely with us on mitigating the risks of modern slavery,

Claser to hame, we are working with Pw(C and Hope for Justice
to provide our people with bespoke training on modern slavery.
This programme raised awareness of the 1ssue and how to
identify it, particularly among our suppliers — and it’s encouraged
our people to become advocates of cur zero tolerance approach
to modern slavery



Changing the market
for the better

Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water are very active players
In the water industry across England and Wales We're keen to
play our part ta the full - promoting the industry and the positive
influence it has had on lfe 1n the UK since privatisation, and
encouraging greater awareness among regulators and others
of the issues we tace.

During the year, we supported the Sccial Market Foundation in
publishing a report into the likely implications of renationalising
the water industry on public sector debt levels With some
commentators estimating the cost of such a development to

be in excess of £90 billion, our view 15 that the public should be
fully aware of the facts around all aspects of renationalisation
We also collaborated with Thames Waler and United Utilities to
publish a thought leadership document on how water companies
could create and manage a systems operator for water trading in
order Lo drive greater efficiency.

lmage removed

Encouraging new ideas

We have a track record of embracing markets where we believe
we can create value for cur customers For example, our

Water Plus joint venture with United Utilities 1s enabling us to take
advantage of the opportunities presented by the opening of the
non-household retail market in April 2017

We continued to engage with our industry peers cn a wide range
of 1ssues throughout 201718, in order to identify and evaluate
new and better ways of working Our draft Water Resources
Management Plan outlines a range of potential trading options
to help meet future demand pressures and to secure supplies
for the long term We ve already worked with Thames Water

and Urited Utlibies to investigate the benafits that a super
Interconnector could bring to our respective regions, by enabling
us to move and trade water Additional future options include bio-
resources trading - and we ve taken partin trials to make sure
we're ready for the opportunty when it arises

We atso worked closely with the Water Forum, which nat only
gave us valuable customer insights but also helped guide the
new and deeper approach we re taking to supporting vulnerable
members of cur local communities

Acquired in 2017, Dee Valley Water has now been substantially
integrated inte the Group, and we've been busy sharing ideas
between the businesses The acquisition gave us the opportunity
to realign both Bee Valley Water and Severn Trent Water around
natignal boundaries Once the realignment is complete in July
2018, Dee Valley Water witl be answerable to the government

in Wales, while Savern Trent Water will be answerable to the
government in England

We recognise the impertance of ieading by example, and

aim to help our industry regain public trust and legitimacy by
demanstrating the highest standards of governance Our Board
leads from the front and ts responsible for the oversight of all
aspects of the business, including cutture During the year, the
Directors continued to evaluate a broad set of cultural indicators,
such as exit interviews and external stakeholders’ perceptions,
inarder to ensure that our values remain central to everything
we do
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Creating an awesome
place to work

Our people are key to the success of our business - and we
want to make sure we motivate, reward and support themn
accordingly It was very encouraging to see our efforts reflected
by a six percentage points improverneant in our annual employee
engagernent survey in 2017 Thencreased score buitds on the
positive momentum of recent years as gur culture matures,
and was achieved across the board - people in every part of the
business support what we're doing

We're creating an awesome place to work by focusing on a
broad set of projects and inttiatives Recruitment and career
paths clearly play an important role - graduates continue to be
attracted to the challenges and opportunities we offer, and our
apprentice intake increased yet again Infact during 2077/18 we
were delighted to see four experienced employees start on our
first ever Masters level apprentice programme

Image removed

Celebrating diversity

The last 12 months saw the establishment of cur first LGBT+ inclusion
group The rmssion of ths tearn was to create a proud and inclusive
culture for our LGBT+ communuty, supporting our colleagues

and angoing commitment to being recognised as a diverse and
inclusive business
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Helping people progress

We invest in skills and development at all levels of the business,
doing all we can to provide people with progressive, successful
careers Anumber of our courrent senior managears started in
junior positions We arm to prowde great apportunities for all,
regardless of gender, race or background We continually strive
to be a diverse, inclusive business that t eflects the demographics
of our region, and achieved a 13% increase in the numbers of
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic | BAME ) ernployees on our
graduate programmes duning the year The population in the East
and West Midlands is among the least socially mobile groups

in the UK - but as a major employer we can help change that

and enable people to realise their potential To this end, we ve
removed barriers to entry such as the requirement to have a
degree for some of our programmes and we have changed our
selection process to focus on potential rather than experience

Our gender dwersity performance improved durtng the year

and we now have a mean gender pay gap of just 2 4% However,
we're working nard to reduce 1t still further. We benefit from high
female representation at executive level and were pleased to be
ptaced second among FTSE 100 cormpanies for representation
of wornen an boards and in senior leadership roles by the 2017
Hampton-Alexander Review The last year also saw the creation
of owr first LGB+ mcluston group The mission of this team was
to create a proud and inclusive culture for our LGBT+ community,
supporling our colleagues’ ongoing commitment 1o being
recogmsed as a dverse and inclusive business

We encourage all our people, across all roles and age ranges,

to be creative and put forward their deas for innavations that can
improve customer service We repeated the all-employee staff
roadshow, followng its success in 2015 The Bike on a Boat”
tour, Inspired by the iInnovative approach of the New Zealand
America's Cup-winning tearn of 2017, captured and shared a
wide range of brilbant ideas Since its launch we have funded
13.1deas, including sending emplayees to evaluate mitiatives in
Singapore, Australia, Denmark and USA that could be adopted in
our business



We also restructured the business during the year. This braught
a renewed emphasis on our core work in water and waste
water, it's also improved our custormer focus and, crucially,
brought a new level of clarity to our employees on roles and
responsibilities We all know what s expected of us, and we all
know that the business will do its best to support us by giving

us the tools we need - whether that's a robot leakage detector,
an innovative agreerment with a farmer ar a day of intensive
management traning

Pay and conditions are high on everybody's list of priorities,

and we ve rnade good progress here too We provide jobs that
are well paid and with excellent pensions Our bonus scheme
also embraces everybady, ensuring that the rewards o a good
year's work are shared amoeng us all The annual employee
engagement survey identified pay transparency and relativity
as twa of the top 10 1ssues where our pecple thought we could
improve We re now addressing this by clanfying pay rates and
being more thorough in the way we explam career opportunities

Promoting health, safety and wellbeing

We pay particular attention to the health, safety and wellbeing of
our teams, and in 2017/18 continued our major inhiative around
mental health. Qur aim s to remove the stigma around mental
health, for example by creating a workplace where people can
talk about problems with depression or stress To date, we ve
lraned cver 400 mental heallh first aiders o spot the signs of a
possible 1ssue, while a number of senior managers have brought
mental health more into the open by talking frankly about their
own experiences During the year, we held animtiative on the
menopause and other areas that people can be uncomfortable
discussing, including cancer, and we signed up to Dying to Work,
which supports employees with a terminal diagnosis

We're commutted to the highest standards of behaviour at all imes,
nat only in our own business but also among cur suppliers, whe
are reguired to sign up to our Code of Conduct, anti-cerruption
and bribery policy and our sustainable supply chain charter to
illustrate that they share our values and are commuitted to helping
us achieve our geals We audit suppliers as gart of our tendering
process for large contracts, and they must demenstrate full
compliance with our standards at all times

Image removed

Over 40% of employees velunteered during the year, a huge increase
on the 11% that took partin 2016/17

During the year, we worked with Hope for Justice to develop a
training package, including upskilling our contract managers

on how to spot the signs of slavery and human trafficking and the
steps they should take if any concerns are raised We have clear
pobeies and traiming in place — and these are supported by an
independenl and conlidential whistleblowing service which we
actively promaote via communications such as messages on
payslips Every report of possible corruption or bribery, from

any source, 1s investigated and reported to both the Corporate
Responsibility and Audit Commuttees of the Board.

We want our people to feel part of a progressive company

that plays its part to the full — and the record level of employee
volunteering Is another positive sign of this Qver 40% of
employees volunteered during the year, a huge increase on the
11% that taok partn 2016/17 Most volunteering was through
our new Community Chamgpions programme, working alongside
key partners such as The Wildlife Trust to improve 50 km of
riverside envircnments in our regions Our volunieers alsa
hetped our carporate charities, Cormic Relief, Sport Relief and
Children in Need, as well as continuing our long term support for
WaterAid In addition to raising nearly £300,000 during the year,
our people also drew on specific industry skills to give practical
help to WaterAud, for example by supporting the charity s
campaign lo improve water quality in Cambodia,
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Business Services

We have transformed Business
Services during the year: divesting

our overseas operating services
businesses and increasing our focus

in the UK; expanding our energy
production capacity and establishing
our Bioresources business; and setting
up our Property division.

Image removed
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Focusing on the domestic UK market

Following the sale of our ltallan busingss in the previous year,
in June 2017 we sold the Operating Services’ US business

to Public Pensions Capital for $42 millien This enabled us

to sharpen our focus enour core UK and Ireland domestic
market, in line with our strategy

Our UK contracts husiness again provided a solid foundation
for the year's performance The 25 year operating and
maintenance contract with the Ministry of Defence (MOD] has
now reached the halfway point We're delighted to continue to
recewve positive feedback from our customers regarding the
service we're delivering and we've continued to see strong
returns from project work across the MQD estate

We continue to grow and value our close working relationships
with customers Far example, this was demonstrated o

good effect on our Coal Authority contract Our team 1s now
co-located in the customer s Mansheld office, from where we
manage the contract to prevent flooding and polluton issues
at disused mines

Seizing new opportunities

We've completed the integration of our non-household retail
operation inte Water Plus This joint venture with United
Ublities 1s focused on the opportunities created by the
opening of the non-household retail market to cornpettion
in April 2017 Water Plus 1s working well, maintarming

its share of & growing market by winning several major
contracts The emphasis for the year ahead will be on driving
improvements in the market and improving our service ta
meet customer needs, as we strive to be recognizsed as a
leadern this new market

In a move that will help us extract maximum value from our
estate, we created a new property division during the year
The Property Developrnent business urit aims te develop
land previously used for operations through the planning
process for onward sale to developers to enable new hormes
and commercial premises to be built, creating new homes,
communities and jobs Qur experienced, dedicated team has
significant property expertise and witl assess the potential in
our surplus land Together with Severn Trent Water's Estates
Management Team, our aim s to deliver £100 million profit
over the next decade
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Construction of our third food waste plant is also progressing well Sited in Derby, this new plant
15 the first in the UK to incorporate advanced thermopressure hydrolysis, which will enable us

to generate more energy and take in waste from the broader waste market

Generating our own energy

Our sewage sludge anaerobic digesters, food waste and crop
digestion plants, two wind turbines and sclar PVs generated
the equivalent of 38% of our energy during the year - and

we remarn on track to achieve our target of increasing thal
percentage to 50% by 2020

In pursuit of that goal, we tock steps to expand ocur renewable
activities by announcing a new Bioresources business unit
Set to beqin operations in April 2018, the new unit will rmanage
all bio-resource activities within our regutated business, in
preparation for the opening up of the bio-resource market

i 2020

Qur crop digestion plant near Nottingham will play an
impertant role in achieving our 50% target The plant
produces gas by digesting maize that's been grown

on contaminated land around our treatment works
Construction of a new biogas facility to expand capacity by
50% completed in December 2017 and delivers biomethane
directly into the National Gnd

Food waste plants - which take waste food from restaurants,
supermarkets and other facitities — are another way in which
we're turning waste into renewable energy Qur second

food waste plant at Stourbridge opened for business in June
2017 Itwall preduce enough green gas to power around
3,000 homes and help the Government meet its objective to
decarboruse the environment Construction of our third food
waste plant 1s alsc progressing well Sited in Qerby, this new
plant s the firstin the UK to incarporate advanced thermo-
pressure hydrolysis, which will enable us to generate more
energy and take in waste from the broaderwaste market
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships

Every day, we rely on six key
resources and relationships
to support the long-term
sustainability of our business.

On these pages we explain these resources
and relationships in detatl, and showcase

a number of practical examples of how we
managed them over the last year.

This year we have integrated our CR metrics
among our commentary on managing our
critical resources and relationships.

Positive engagement Water Framework

Hectares improved from

with land managers Directive classification unfavourabie or deteriorating
o improvement points condition using Natural
85 /0 England’s database of 555ls
2017 44% 19 9 86
2017 15 .
2017 2974
Expected EA rating Number of Environment Reduction in Group

* Agency Categary 1 & 2 incidents
4 {calendar year metric)

2017 3~ 2

207 7
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carbon emissions

4.4L%

Iscope 1 and 2} - our direct ermssions
and those from the energy we use

2017 83%



Our natural resources

Maintaining our reservoirs, rivers
and underground aquifers

We're fortunate to be responsible for some of the UK's most
impressive natural resources. From the chain of man-made
lakes created by damming the Elan and Claerwen rivers in
Wales, which provide clean water to Birmingham, te stunning
stretches of rivers such as the Severn, the Dee and the Trent,
these wonderful resources provide the raw materials for

our services.,

Despite the relatively dry winter, our reservorrs were full at the
end of the financial year, and we're In a strong position to ensure
areliable supply to customers during the year ahead,

Working with landowners...

Prevention s better than cure, so we work hard to make
sure that the water entering aur watercourses 1s as clean
as possible Supported by the skills of a dedicated team

of agnicultural advisers, the Severn Trent Environmental
Pretection Scheme [ STEPS | aims to improve watercourses
and the wider environment

STEPS provides grants of up to £5,000 for infrastructure
improvernent and land management changes in our target
areas Thisispartof our plan tainvest £21 million by 2020 to
help farmers improve water quabty — an investment that will
pay off several times over by protecting the environment and
reducing treatment costs.

Far example, we continued to recompense farmers prepared
to switch from metaldehyde (o less invasive alternatives for
the control of slugs Once in the watercourse via field run-
off, metaldehyde Is extremely expensive to remove - and the
scheme has again delivered excellent value while helping us
achreve our catchment managernent target

We improved biediversity on ¢ 86 hectares of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest [ 555157 during the year, and have a target of
improving 75 hectares of 555Is by 2020

...and ensuring long term supply

As the financial year closed, we published our draft Water
Resources Management Plans 'WRMP) Qur long term

view on supply availability, the WRMP articulates the need to
make significant investments i water supply and demand
management schemes, partcularly in light of the Government s
requirements for the industry to reduce levels of water
abstraction For example, Severn Trent Water has targeted a
15% reduction in leakage over the next five years, and we plan
to Increase the use of water meters, in addition to stepping up
our home water efficiency checks We carriad out 15,367 checks
during the year ~ helping customers save money and protect
future supplies by using water more efficiently

Image removed

Helping farmers step up
to the challenge

Prevention can be more cost-effective than treatment,
particularly when it comes to pesticides which canenter
our rivers from surrounding fields. Through STEPS we offer
farmers grants of up to £5,000 per year to undertake works
which will help reduce pollution.

Logo
removed

Retaining the Carbon
Trust Standard

We were proud to once again be reaccredited with the Carbon
Trust Standard during the year. This achievement verifies that
we have sound carbon management processesin place and are
reducing absolute carbon emissions year-on-year. In fact, we've
reduced our GHG emissions by 17% since 2014,
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Cleaning our rivers

Under the EU Water Framework Directive [ WFD'|, we're
charged with achieving good status’ for all watercourses
We continued to support the aims of the WFD durng 2017/18
and again made significant progress towards achieving our
ambitious target of iImproving the health of 1,800 krn of river
by 2020. We completed 10 WFD sewage treatment projects
during the year which improved almost 120 km of river —an
mncrease of around 650% over the previous year - and we re
now approximately 15% of the way to reaching our objective
River health 15 assessed by the Environrnent Agency and
measured against a set of criteria including oxygen levels and
the presence of fish and mnvertebrates

Managing our environmental impact

Nuring 2017/18, we outperformed our internal sewer flooding
regulatory target by 31% and our external target by 4%% ~ and
these have been key factors that should help us regain a 4*
rating from the Environment Agency

We also achieved all of our regulatory targets relating to
pollutien incidents, reducing serous category 1 and 2 pollutions
to two events during 2017/18, down from seven in the prior year

We failed to reach our water 0Dl carbon emissions target

for 2017/18. primarily due to greater energy censumption as

we need to meet increases in demand for water production
Efficiency measures now in place are expected lo drive the
required reductionin the coming 12 months Meanwhile, we
continue toincrease the amount of renewable energy we
generate During the year, we preduced the equivalent of 38% of
Severn Trent Water Limited’s energy needs and are ontrack to
increase this to 50% by 2020
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Using technology to
prevent pollution

Combined sewer overflows ['C50s’) are susceptible to
pollution if they block or stop working properly. So over

the last year we've invested in monitors at over 70% of our
£S0s. We're alse installing over 1,000 monitors in manholes
where there’s a high risk of internal flooding or pollution.

Image removed

40% of employees volunteer
to clear 50 km of rivers

Cur volunteering stheme continues to go from strepgih to
strength. During the year, over 40% of our people worked
with partners such as local Wildtife Trusts to help clean up
the environment alongside 40 km of rivers in England and
a further 10 km in Wales.



Our physical assets

Ensuring a resilient and well-maintained network

Our physical assets include over 49,000 km of water mains,
27 dams, 139 water treatment works and a vast range of
equipment, sites, offices and other structures across an
estate that covers more than 53,000 acres. While a significant
number of these assets are over 100 years old and of historic
importance, many are among the most technotogically
advanced examples of their type in the water industry - not
anly in the UK but worldwide.

We're committed to ensuring that our assets are in optimum
condition at all imes, able to deliver the high quality services that
our customers depend on At dams and reservoirs, for example,
we carry out regular checks to identify any remedial actions that
need to be undertaken - and every year, the Board receves a full
report on the condition of each dam and reservoir in our portolio

Security 1s an increasingly important 1ssue for all key UK
infrastructure Mind+ul of cur role and responsibilities, we
co-operate closely with the Government on potential terrorist
targets and provide physical security at all major sites At the
same time, our cyber security team constantly monitors our | T
assets, identifying and addressing any vulnerabilities in order
to protect our data and that of our customers.

Improving our portfolio to improve efficiency...

Since privatisation, the water industry has invested some
£130 billion 1n assets to Improve services for customers, with
our awn capitat programme involving an investment of around
£3 billion over the five years to March 2020.

The major projects currently underway include the £300 million
Birmingham Resilience Project - the largest ongoing capital
project in the industry — and a £60 million scheme to improve
sewers and water mains at Newark in Nottinghamshira

We also have a continuous investment programme to improve
the effectiveness of our sewage treatment works, including a
€17 5 million project to rernove phosphorus

...and reduce interruptions and leakage

While our capital programme 15 delivering rewards in many
areas of the business, we recognise that cur customers
experienced too many supply interruptions during the year
Some of these caused major hardships, notably at Tewkesbury
in Decernber 2017, when we took too long to lacate, 1solate and
rectify a burst mam, and 1n March 2018 when the countrywide
freeze and subseguent thaw contributed to some customers
being left without water or with only interrmittent water supplies
for extended periods of time

Were working hard to ymprove our performance, including
investing in robot leakage detector technology which we
believe would have been invaluable at bursts such as the one
at Tewkesbury

The time we take to respond when customers tell us about a

leak 1s another area where we need to improve However, this

15 not as clear cut as it appears Qur performance commitment
target s to respond within 24 hours, but, this may not be the most
operationally effective way to provide a good service to customers
or manage our network efliciently We re currently evaluating

our response capabilities in order to assure ourselves and cur
customers that our current appreach 1s appropriate

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 47

wodaznbaens

ERIFILPRBLIN 3}

SPIFINAMS PR 1 Ao

IPIBLLIR, 1183 () { SULP] B Ul AURdy Y



Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our people

Creating a place where people enjoy coming to work -
where they're safe, well rewarded and treated with respect

The Group employs around 6,000 people atlocations primarily
across the East and West Midlands aswell as in North and
mid-Wales. We know that we're only as good as our people.

So we strive to create a workplace that's welcoming, safe

and well-rewarded - and where they're treated with respect.
This year's employee survey showed a six percentage points
increase in engagement, clearly demonstrating that we're on
the right path to making the Group an awesome place to work.

Health, safety and wellbeing

The health and safety of our people 15 a core aspect of howwe
work, and we ensure that theyre provided with the training
and resources to follow our safety rules Qur Lost Time Injury
LTI’} frequency rate tor the year was 0.17 per 100,000 hours
worked, a significant decrease of 23% over the previous year
Our rigorous approach to safety has led to this mmproverent
aver the last thres years, fram 0 2141 2015 However, therg's
no room for complacency and we il continue to promote safe
working practices threugh initiatives including training and
regular communications

We also made good progress in ensuring our people’s wellbeing
during the year We continued our mental health pregramrme and
now have over 400 trained mental health first aiders across the
Group Thisis part of cur drive to promote greater awareness of
sorme of the more challenging resues that people can face n their
everyday Uves - for the year ahead we're continuing to focus on
the menopause and cancer.

togo removed

Signing up to help those
with a terminalillness

We were proud to sign up to the TUC’s Dying to Work
charter during the year, which aims to protect employees
with a terminal illness, We believe that nobody should
have to worry about keeping their job if they have a
terminal diagnosis.
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Pay and career paths

We airn to provide people with careers, not just jobs Pay scales
are relatively high for our Midlands heartlands, and we work
hard to make sure that our people can see how and where they
can progress up through our organisation - regardiess of their
starting point

Attracting high quality people 1s a challenge for all employers,
sowe re pleased to see the high numbers of graduates that
apply to Severn Trent Our apprentice programme expanded yet
agan durng the year and for the first ime included a Masters
level option.

Over the next 12 months we're going to respond to rssues raised
in the employee survey, including greater clarfication on pay
rates and extra focus on how we explain career opporiuntties

Diversity and inclusion

We're already a diverse, inclusive business - but we know
there are opportunities to do even more to reflect the
dermographics of our region,

The year saw a 13% increase in the numbers of Black,

Asian and Minority Ethnic [ BAME') employees on aur

graduate programmes, and we've infroduced new ways

of working designed to drive a turther increase in future

years These include removing barriers 1o entry such as the
reguirement to have a degree for some of our pregrarmmes and
improving the way we target recruitment activities at schoaols

Gender diversity 1s another area where we're performing well
Gur mean gender pay gap for the year was 2 4% - and we're
commtted to reducing it still further Our executive team

has particularly high female representation, which 1s why we
were placed second among FTSE 100 companies by the 2017
Harmpton-Alexander Review

Raising awareness
of mental health

Since 2015, 19% of our employees have taken part

in mental health awareness training. We're going to
continue to focus on this issue during the year ahead
- white also expanding our efforts to embrace

other aspects of wellbeing such as physical health,
nutrition, exercise and sleep,



Our suppliers and partners

Building strong relationships that provide

mutual benefit

We rely on a pool of suppliers that use their expertise and
resources to maintain and imprave our infrastructure.
Through the One Supply Chain programme, we agree

long term contracts that give suppliers greater certainty

of workflow and revenue, while the benefit to Severn Trent
lies in the opportunity to negotiate more competitive prices.
The long term nature of the contracts also enables both
parties to build stronger relationships, work more closely
together and explore more efficient ways of working.

In addition to achieving operational excellence and meeting our
efficiency targets, our contracts also stipulate that supptiers
rnust adhere to cur own high safety standards and sign up

to cur policy on bribery and corruption and our sustainable
supply chain charter We ensure compliance with these
requirements through a comprehensswve audit during the
tendering process, and through regular communications and
meetings For examgple, a number of cur suppliers have signed
up to corporate responsibility targets agreed with us, and we
review progress against these monthly Through our supplier
events, we have set out our plans and expectations, and have
Invited delegates to contribute their own deas on how we coutd
work better together We also took the opportunity to underline
the role that safety and ethics play in creating enduring
supplier relationships

Partnering with others

We're keen to work with partner organisations from both inside
and outside our industry, combining their specialist knowledge
with our own in order to address some of the challenges and
oppartunities we face

For example, during the year we extended our drive to

support vulnerable custemers - and have now formed deeper
relaticnships with badies including MIND, Sarmaritans, Citizens
Advice, local food banks, the NHS and other utility firms,

By sharing cur knowledge, we aim to build a holistic view of
people who are potentially vulnerable and to put measures in
place to help thern at an earlier stage

Weve continued to collaborate with cur peers in the industry
We engaged with Thames Water to evaluate a project to build
a superinterconnector that would enable water trading,

and with the Scaial Market Foundation to publish a report

into the pessible financial implications of renationalisation

In partnership wath Thames Water and United Utilities, we
also published our joint ideas on how the creation of a systems
operator could support greater efficienay
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Inspecting the cendition of our waste water assets
at Packington treatment werks
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Suppliers paid on time

96%

2017 97%

Suppliers signed up
to sustainable supply
chain charter

211

Introduced i May 2017
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our customers
and communities

Improving the customer experience

We're responsible for meeting the needs of 4.3 million
household and business customers, across an area stretching
from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from North and
mid-Wales to the East Midlands. We provide these customers
with around 1.6 billion litres of high quality drinking water
every day and treat around 2.77 billion litres of waste water,
which we clean and return to the system.

Everything we do s to the benefit of our customer s and thew
communmties - and during the year we carried out our most
extensive research project ever, to make sure that we're
addressing the 1ssues that matter most to them

Making a difference

Commurication 1s the key to managing expectations, and we
work hard to keep customers and cormmmunities informed and
to minirmse disruption when we carry out planned work on our
network Through our education programme, we help people
save water and prevent blockages in our sewers and drains,
suypporting the long term integrity of the network and protecting
water supplies for future generations

The scale of our operations and the nature of our assets

rmeans we have a great opportunity to be a posttive influence

on the environment in local cormmunitres We re continuing
toimplerment tutiatives — and warking with local businesses,
including farmers - to improve important habiats such as rivers,
for the uttimate enjoyment of alt Our 17 wsitor sites host a total of
4 million visits & year, and provide access to water for a range of
leisure facilities, as well as customer education facilities

Many of pur people continued to play their partin the lives of thei
local commurimes during 2017/18 In fact rmore of our people than
ever before took the chance te join in some form of volunteering
or fundraising activity

Customers we help
each year through
social tariffs and

Customers who rate
our service value for
money in an independent

quarterly survey assistance schemes
59% 51,716
2017-58% 2017 50503
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Regulators

Working with the authorities
to shape our industry

We maintain positive and constructive relationships
with Ofwat and other requlatory bodies. Complying with
their requirements at all times isn’t just the right thing
to do - it's essential to our licence to operate and our
ability to meet our commitments to our customers and
other stakeholders.

We engage with regulators on a regular basis in arder to
share our knowledge and promeote developments which
could lead to improved services for customers across

the Industry

Image removed

Our 17 visitor sites host a total of 4 mithon visits ayear, and praovide
access to water for a range of leisure facilities, as well as customer
education facilibes



Chief Financial Officer’s review

We have delivered a good financial performance in 2017/18,
absorbing the upward pressures from sector-wide changes in
business rates and energy pass-through costs In our Regulated
Water and Waste Water business, a full year's contribution from
Dee Valley Water and higher revenues more than offset the
impact of these pressures on our operating costs In Business

Services we have deiivered good growth both in revenues
and PBIT

Underlying basic earnings per share increased by 4 6% to
121.0 pence per share in the current year. Reported basic EPS
from continuing operaticns was 102 2 pence

Our Return on Regulated Equity [RoRE] at 11 5%15 15
percentage points higher than the previcus year, driven by a
strong performance across all three levers - Totex, custorner
0DIs and hinancing ast year our RoRF was amongst the best
in the sector and we expect to be in a similar position when this
vear's results for all companies are published in July

In line with the revised dividend policy announced last year of
growth of RPI plus at least 4% per annum, the proposed dividend
for the year has increased by 6 2%

On financing. we have a strong funding position, with all our
projected investment and other cash flow needs covered by

cash or commutted facilities through to March 2020 This year
saw the first rate increase frorm the Bank of England in more
than 10 years We actively monitor and manage our interest rate
exposure and took steps to hold our proportion of debt al floating
rates at 26% through the year end We are also preparing for

the introduction of CPIH indexation in AMP7, entering into CPY/
RPI swaps with a nctional value of £100 rillion in the secend half
of the year, which increased the total amount of these swaps to
£150 millian at 31 March 2018 And we have entered inta a further
swap for £100 million since the year end

We are committad to paying the right amount of tax at the right
time In addition to the corporation tax, which 1s included in
our tax charge in the iIncome statement, we alsc pay business
rates, employers’ nationzl insurance and envirenmental

taxes such as the Climate Change Levy and the Carbon

Regulated Water and Waste Water

Reduction Commitment [n 2017/18 we incurred £146 5 rmillion

in these taxes, charges and levies [2016/17. €147 2 riilion]

Our carporation tax charge for the year was just above the
statutory rate of 19% with our cash tax payments reduced by the
benafit of allowances on cur capital prograrmme, contributions to
our penston schemes and by the timing of instalment payments
1o HMRC under the current rules.

A brief overview of our financial performance for the year s
as follows

¢ Group turnover from continuing operations was £1,6%94 1 miltion
(2016/17 £1.638 O mullion], an increase of 3 4% as Regulated
Water and Waste Water revenue increased by 3 0%, mainly due
to the RPI-linked tanff increases and a full year of Dee Valley
Water, and Business Services external turnover grew by 9 2%

¢ We increased underlying PBIT by 4.0% to £541 0 million
(2016/17 £520.1 nuthion) The first full year of Dee Valley Water
contributed an additronal £5 7 million and, excluding Dee
Valley Water, underlying PBIT in our Severn Trent Regulated
Water and Waste Water business grew by £14 2 mullion
Business Services underlying PBIT grew by £3 8 million, offset
by a reduction in corporate and other PBIT of £3 7 rillion

We recorded net exceptional costs of £12 & mullion (2016/17
credit of £16 & mitian) Costs to prepare our Bioresources
business for the introduction of the competitive marketin
2020 were £20 9 million, partially offset by a credit from
the Penston Exchange Arrangement reported at the half
year Reparted Group PBIT was down as a result by 1 5%
to £528.4 million [2016/17. £536.7 mitlion|

Net finance costs were £219.5 million {2016/17 £205 1 million).
Our effective interest rate of 4 5% was up only marginally
from 2016/17 [4 4%] despite the impact of fugher R on our
index-tinked debt

Our full effective tax rate was 20 5% and our underlying
effective tax rate was 12 7%, down from 16 6% in 2016/17
largely due to higher capitat allowances from the larger
capital programme in the year

-

Turnover for our Regulated Water and Waste Water business was £1,574 6 mullion (2016/17 £1,528 8 mullion} and underlying PBIT

was £914 S mullion [2016/17 £494.7 ruthan),

2018 2017 Better/(worse)

Excluding

DEjg l\Lf]adl:;% Dee Valley Total [E;ec l\?:t‘lz‘?v Dee Valley Totat . Dee Valley

Em £m £m tm £m £m Em kA

Turnover 15467 279 1,574.6 1,626 6 22 15288 2071 13
Net labour costs (136 4] (5 4) (141.8) (1398) (10) (140 8] 34 24
Net hired and contracted costs 145 8) (19) (147.7 (144 4) -~ (144 &) 2 {0 8]
Power o (93 8] (23 (9591 (86 7 (07 (84 8] (6 9] {80
Bad debts [251] (0 6) 125.7) (20 4] (0 2] (20 &) 14 7) (230
Other costs (1881) (4 8] 192.9) 1877 [0 6] (188 3) (0 4) {0 2)
(589 0] (150) [604.0) (579 2] {19 (5811) 5.8) (17

Infrastructure renewals expanditure {134 4] {08  [135.2) (136 2) - (136 2] 18 13
Depreciation (314 3) {621 (320.5) {316 7) (01) (314 8 24 08
Underlying PBIT 5090 59 5149 494 5 072 4947 145 (29)
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

Dee Valley Waterwas acquired on 15 February 2017 so this
1s1ts first full year in the Group. It contributed £279 million

to turnover and £3.9 million to underlying PBIT in the year
The following commentary on the Regulated Water and Waste
Water business excludes Dee Valley Water and is therefore

on a like-for-Uke basis

Turnover increased by 1 3%, as tigher tariffs, including

the impact of the annual RP! increase on prices, increased
revenue by £33 8 rition Custorner 0D rewards earnedin
2015416 increased twrnover by £25 8 mitbion but this was offset
by a reduction from the Whalesale Revenue Forecasting
Incentive Mechanism of £24 5 milion anising from revenue

billed In excess of the wholesale price control alsoin 2015/16

Our successful drive to help more vulnerable customers reduced
revenue by £4 4 million due to greater take-up of social tanffs
Other movernents of £10.4 rmitlion [net] including the impact of
customers opting for metered status, offset by consumption
increases further reduced turnover In the current year our billed
revenue was around £3 million below the wholesale price control
and this will be added to revenue to be billed in 2019/20

Net labour costs were £3 4 mulian [Z 4%)] lower Gross emplayee
costs increased by 5 3%, due to the annual pay award and our
strategy to bring more work in-house The increase in activity on
capal projects resulted in an increase in the level of own labour
caprtabised, up £16 0 rmllion on the previous year

Net hired and contracted costs were up £1 2 miltion [D 8%)

Pawer costs were £6 9 million higher year-on-year driven as
forecasted by higher pass through costs, greater consurnption
from a higher volume of water produced and the costs of
responding to Incidents The Group manages its power costs
through a combination of demand management, self-generation
and forward price contracts

Our bad debt charge increased by £4 7 mithon this year, and
represented 2 2% of household revenue fup from 1 8% last
year] Inthe year we improved cash caltections on our current
debt, but saw a decline in the amounts collected on older debt -
hoth i accounts cotlected by us and by other water companies
on our behalf The prudent provisioning we apply to this older
debt increased both our charge and the level of bad debt as a
percentage of household revenue for the year

Other costs increased by £0.4 mullion i total after hugher profits
on disposal of hixed assets up £5.8 miltion] affset by tigher
business rates of around £3 rnillian and other costincreases
Infrastructure renewals expendrture was £1 8 rmtlion lower in
the year, at the lower end of our guidance range, we expect to
see growth in the programme next year

Deprecration of £314.3 million was £2 4 million lower than the
prior year. Our underlying depreciation rate increased in ine with
our asset base, but the change was lower year-con-year due to
impatrments recarded in 2016/17
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Return on Regulated Equity (‘RoRE’)

RoRE 15 a key perforrmance indicator for the regulated business
and reflects our combined performance on Totex. customer
ODls and financing agamnst the base return allowed in the

Final Determination

Severn Trent Water's RoRE for the year ended 31 March 20618
and for the three years ended on that date 1s set outin the
following table

AMPS

201718 to date

Base return 36 b6
Totex outperformance o 0.8 1.3
0Dt outperformance 23 15
Financing outperforrmance 28 09
RoRE’ 11.9 9.3

P Calrulated in accordance vath Clwot guidane e set outin RAG 4 07

We have delivered strong returns across the board - with
outstanding Customer DO performance, improved operational
and investment cfficiency driving Totex savings, and continuing
outperformance on financing.

Business Services

2018 2017 Increase
[restated?
£m Cm fm B
Turnover

Operating Services 78.3 Th 4 39 52
Renewable Energy 0.4 540 b4 119
138.7 128 4 103 80

Underlying PBIT

Operating Services 15.9 128 31 242
Renewable Energy 20.1 194 07 38

36.0 322 38 18

Our Busmess Services division delivered good growth in
revenues (up 8.0%) and underlying PBIT [up 11 8%)

In eur Operating Services business, turnover and underlying PBIT
increased by £3.9 mutlion and £3.1 million respectively, due in

part to higher income from our new contract with plurmbing and
dramnage msurers

In the Renewable Energy business, turnover increased by 119%
largely driven by increased generating capacity in the non-
regulated business from our new food waste plant at Roundhutl.
Underlying PBIT ncreased by 3 6%, with our operabing margin
mpacied by start-up costs in the new plant

The results ahove exclude the US Operating Services business,
which was sold on 30 June 2017, the ltalian Operating Services
business [sold on 23 February 2017), and the nan-household
Retail business [transferred to the Water Plus joint venture
during the prior year]. All of these businesses have been
classified as discontinued operations in the current and previous
periods and the results for the previous period have been
restated to reflect this.




Corporate and Other

Corparate overheads were £8°9 million (2016/17 £69 millian)
and our other businesses generated a net loss of £0 8 million
[2016/17 profit of £0 9 million),

Exceptional items before tax

We recorded a net exceptional charge of £12 6 million [2016/17
credit of £16 & million)

We have made an early start in prepaning our Bioresources
business for AMP7 We have developed our business model and
identified the actions that we need to take to compete effectively
In the new market, determining the lowest cost structure

from our existing network of sites, optimising our tanker fleet
operations and identifying oppartunities for trading in the new
market We have implemented a programme to reorganise the
business to deliver our business model, reducing from 20 sites
to 17, and as a result incurred exceptional costs of £20 9 million
as follows

» Setup and restructuring costs £2 1 million,

o Write-o*f of assets that will not be used in the new
busmess £16.8 nullion, and

* Provisian for costs to decommission these assets
of £2 0 mullion.

An exceptional gain of £8 3 million arose {2016/17 gain of
£16.6 million] from the net benefit, after implementation costs,
of a Pension Increase Exchange arrangement, under which
member s of the defined benehit schermes will be offered the
opportunity at retirement to exchange future non-statutary
inflationar y ncreases in a portion of their pensions ear ned
priorta 1997 for a higher pension payment now In the prior
year the exceptional gain arose from a similar exercise for
ex1sting pensioners

Net finance costs

Our net finance costs for the year were £219 5 million, up

£14 4 million on the prior year Our effective cash cost of interest
lexcluding the RPI uplift on index-linked debt and pensions-
related charges) was 3 4%, 40 basis points lower than 2016/17
Higher RPlinflation on our index-linked debt [up £23 2 mithon]
and pensions-related charges meant our overall effective
interest rate increased marginally year-on-year to 4 5%
[2016/17 4 4%6), but still compares favourably to our position

at the start of AMPé (5 4%].

Capitalised tinance costs were higher than the prior year due

to the mcreased level of capital activity in the year,

Our earnings befora interest, tax, depreciatien and amertisation
[EBITDAT interest cover was 4 3 times {2016/17 4 3times] and
PBIT interest cover was 2 7 times [2016/17 2 7 times] See note 46
for further details

Gains/tosses on financial instruments

We use financial derivatives solely to hedge risks associated with
our normal business activities including

¢ Exchange rate exposure on foreign currency borrowings,
* Interest rate expasure on floaling rate borrowings, and
¢ Exposure to increases In electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at
each balance sheet date and, unless the strict criteria for cash
flow hedge accounting are met, the changes invalue are taken

to the Income statement If the risk that s being hedged does not
impact the incorme staterment in the same peried as the change in
value of the dervative, then an accounting mismatch arises and
there 1s a net charge or credit to the income statement

During the period a counterparty requested to terminate four
interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £190 rmullion

The fair value of the swaps at terrmination was a £42 6 miltion
bability and the terrmination payment was £40 0 rullion The gain
on termmination has been included in finance incame

We hold Interest rate swaps with a net notional principal of
£251 3 million, fixed to floating, and cross currency swaps
with a sterling principal of £98 3 million, which economically
act to hedge exchange rate risk on certain foreign currency
borrowings However, the swaps do not meet the hedge
accounting rules of IAS 39 and sc the changes in far value are
taken to gains/(losses] on financial instruments in the incame
staternent During the year there was a loss of £12 6 million
12016/17 gain of £111 million) in relation to these instruments

Note 12 to the financial stalemenls gives an analysis of the
amounts charged to the income staternent in relation to
financial instruments

As part of cur power cost management strategy, we have fixed
around 95% of our estimated wholesale energy usage for 2018/19

Taxation

We are comrmtted to paying the rnight amount of tax at the right
time As well as corparation tax on profits, which is included in
the tax charge in cur accounts, we Incur a range of taxes, charges
and levies irnposed by government agencies.

2018 2017
£m £m

Tax borne: o
Corporation tax 26.7 324
Business rates and property taxes 82.4 788
Employer’'s National Insurance 23.2 216
Climate Change L evy 4.0 372
Carbon Reduction Commitrnent 59 63
Other taxes 4.3 43
146.5 1466
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

The corporation tax charge for the year recorded in the income
statemnent was £41.9 rullon [2016/17 £6.5 milion] and we
made net corporation tax payments of €6 5 mitlion n the year
(201617 £21.8 mtbon) The difference between the tax charged
and the tax pad 1s summarised below

2018 2017
Em Emn
lax on profit on ordinary activities 51.9 465
Tax effect of ring differences [23.00 [26.4]
Current tax credits recorded n Other
Comprenensive incorne or Equity {10.1) 1149
Overprovisions in previous years 39 274
Impact of rate change - 398
Corporation tax payable for the year 267 324
Payable by instalments next year 12.2) 180}
Instalments paid in the year 14.5 14 4
Repayments recetved (8.0 (20 6)
Payments relating to prior years - 280
Nel tax paid in the year 6.5 218

Tax payments were reduced by £29 0 million

[2016/17 £26 4 million] as a result of capital allowances
and other timing differences where tax relief 1s given ahead
of the cost being recognised i the income staternent.

The total tax incurred was further reduced by £10 1 mullion
{2016/17 £14 9 mutbon) representing tax credits that we recewve
on charges that are shown in the statement of comprehensive
income or equity - the tax for these tems is also shown in the
statement of comprefiensive Income or equity 50 15 not included
n the mcome staternent charge

The tax charge includes a credit of £3 9 mullion

(2016/17 €27 & mullion] for amounts overprovided in prior
years. In 2016/17 there was also a credit of £39.8 mitlion

from the impact of adjusting our deferred tax Liability 1o
reflect the tax rate reductions announced by the Government
to take effect in 2020. These accounting adjustiments

do not impact the amount payable to HMRC

Together these amounts represent the corporation tax payable
for 2018 of £26.7 rothion (2016417 £32.4 rrntion).

Corporation tax liabilities are currently settled in four instalments,
two in the year of assessment and two in the following year

In the current year we have paid instalments on this year's tax
amounting to £14.5 million [2016/17. £14_4 rullion] and receved
repayments of tax averpaid In previous years of €8 0 million
(2016/17 £20 6 million], net of the instalments due from 2016/17,
resulting in a net tax payment of £6 5 rmtlion {2016/17 net payment
of £21 8 million including payments of £28 O mitien relating to
prior years}
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Instalrnents of £12.2 milbion (2016/17. £18 0 million] are due to be
paid ta HMRC next year in respect of the current year's habiity

Note 13 in the financiat statements sets oul the tax charges and
credits in the peried, which are described in rore detarl helow

The current tax charge for the yearwas £32 2 million
(201617 €199 mullion) In the previous year there was an
exceptional credit of £16 4 mullion from adjustments fallowing
agreement with HMRC of prior years tax matters

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29 0 mitlion
[2016/17 £22 4 million] In the previous year there was an
axceptional deferred tax credit of £35 8 milion comprising an
exceptional charge of £4 0 million following agreement with
HMRC of prior years' tax matters and an exceptional credut of
£398 million ar=ing from a reduction in the corporation tax rate,
enacted in that year, to 17% with effect from 1 Apnit 2020,

Qur full effective tax rate this year was 20 5% (2016/17 2 0% after
the exceptional tax credits described above] We expect this rate to
be close to the corporation tax rate in the UK of 19% (2018/17 20%)
because substantially all of our business tsin the UK and the
profits of these businesses are chargeable to UK corpot abion tax

UK tax rules specify the period over which tax retief can be
obtained for capital expenditure Typically this 1s a shorter period
than that over which the assets are depreciated in the accounts
and this tends to reduce the corporatron tax charge in the year
and the Group underlying effective current tax rate We make
provision for tax that will be pard in future periods when the

tax relief on the capital expenditure has been recerved and we
recerve no allowance for the depreciation charge ansing from
that expenditure. This 1s the most significant component of our
deferred tax position

Our underlying effective current tax rate was 12 7%
(2016117 16 6%)

Profit for the year and earnings per share

Profit for the year [rom continuing operations decreased by

25 2% to £240 5 mitbon {2016/17 £321 5 rmthioni

The profit for the year from discontinued operations was

£13 2 million [2016/17 €211 million,

Total prefit for the year including discontinued operations was
£253.7 rolbion 12016/17 £342 6 mittion)

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations decreased
by 25 3% to 102 2 pence (2014/17 136 8 pence) Underlyng basic
earnings per share was 1210 pence [2016/17 115 7 pencel

For further details see note 15



Cash flow

2018 2017

£m E£rm

Cash generated from cperations 773.3 8510
Net capital expenditure (591.0) {201 3)
Net interest paid 182.1) 1770)
Purchase of subsidiaries
net of cash acquired [0.2) (777)
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries net
of cash disposed and dispesal costs 25.1 (192
Proceeds on maturity of
forward contracts - 43
Swap termination payrment (40.0) -
Tax paid [6.5] (218
Free cash flow {21.4) 58 3
Dividends o (197.0) (190 4)
Issue of shares 5.6 41
Change in net debt fram cash flows {212.8) (126 0]
Non-cash movements {61.4) {133 0]
Change in net debt (274.2] (2590
Opening net debt (5.082.4)]  [4,8214]
Closing net debt (5,356.6)  [5.082 4)

2018 2017

£m fm

Net cash and cash equivalents 38.5 446
Bank loans (1,217.4]  [1.073 3)
Other leans (4,2239)  [4,0900)
Finance leases {113.9] 1157
Cross currency swaps 24.5 43 4
Loans due froem joint ventures 135.6 108 4
Net debt [5,356.6) (0,082 4)

At 31 March 2018 we held £38 5 million 2017 £44 6 million) i net
cash and cash equivalents Average debt maturity was around

14 years [2017. 15 years| Including committed facilities, our cash
flow requirements are funded unul March 2020.

Net debt at 31 March 2018 was £5,356 6 million

(2017 £5,082 4 million] and balance sheet gearing [net debt/
net debt plus equity| was 84 4% (2017 84 6%) Group net debt,
expressed as a percentage of estimated Regulatory Capital
Value at 31 March 2018 was 60 6% (2017 61.6%]

The estimated fair value of debt at 31 March 2018 was

£1.184 3 mullien higher than book value (2017 €1,444 0 million
higher] The decrease in the difference to book value 1s largely
due to the mcrease in the discount rates applied, driven by higher
prevailing market interast rates

Treasury management and liquidity
Our principal treasury management objectives are

« To access a broad range of sources cf finance to obtain both
the gquantum and lowest cost compatible with the need for
continued avaitability,

* To manage our exposure to movements in nterest rates
to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to our cost
of funds,

* To minirmse our exposure to counterparty credit risk,

Ta provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to our foreign
exchange exposure,

* To maintain an investment grade credit rating for cur regulated
subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited, and
¢ To maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure
We invest cash in deposits with highly rated banks and liquidity
funds We reguiarly review the list of counterparties and report
to the Treasury Committee
Our policy for the management of interest rates s that at least
40% of our borrowings in AMP4 should be at fixed interesl rates,
or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements At 31 March 2018, interest rates for 48% (2017 51%]
of our net debt of (5,356 & million were fixed

Our long term credit ratings are

Severn Trent Seven Trent
Long termratings rlc Water Outlcok
Moedy's Baal A3 Negative
Standard & Poor's BBB BBB-+ Stable

Treasury policy and operations

Qur treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Staterent
The treasury operation’s rele 1s toc manage liguidity, funding,
investment and our financial risk, including risk from volatility in
interest and [to a lesser extent] currency rates and counterparty
credit risk The Board determines matters of treasury policy
and its approvalis required for certam treasury transactions
The Board has established a Treasury Managemant Commitiee
to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate imely responses
to changes in market conditions when necessary,

Our strategy Is to access a broad range of sources of finance to
pbtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued availability Our principal eperating
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, 15 a lang term business
characterised by multi-year investment programmes

Qur strategic funding objectives reflect this and the Liguidity
position and availability of commutted funding are essential to
meeting our cbjectives and cbligations We therefore aim fora
balance of long term funding or comrmitment of funds across
a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost
The Group also seeks to maintain an investment grade credit
rating and a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

We use financial derivatives solely to manage risks assocrated
with our normat business activities We do not hold orissue
dervative frinancial instruments for financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency. which s fully hedged,
our business does not involve sigrihicant exposure to foregn
exchange transactions

The Group issues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
programme and Uses Cross currency swaps to convert the
proceeds to sterling The effect of these swaps 15 that interest
and principat payments on the borrowings are denormmated in
sterling and hence the currency nisk is ebminated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in the
balance sheet at their fair values and the changes in fair values
are taken to gans/ilosses) on financial instruments 1n the income
statement Since the terms of the swaps closely match those

of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal
and opposite

Pensions

We have three defined benefit pensions arrangernents, two from
Severn Trent and one from Dee Valley Water. The Severn Trent
schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015

Formal three-yearly actuarial valuations have been completed as
at 31 March 2016 for the Severn Trent schemes [the Schemes’)
and we have agreed the future funding plan for the Schemes
with the Trustee The agreement reached with the Trustee for the
STPS, which s by far the largest of the schemes, includes

Deficit reduction contributions of £25 milbon paid in the year
ended 31 March 2017 and payments of £10 rmillion for each
of the subsequent financial years ending 31 March 2019

Inflation-linked payrments of £15 milllon per annum through
an assel-backed funding arrangement, potentially comtinuing
ta 31 March 2031, although these contnibutians will cease
earlier should a subseguent valuation of the STPS show

that these contributions are no longer needed

Payments under another asset-backed funding arrangement
of £8 2 mullion per annum to 31 March 2032

In addition to these payments, the Company will directly pay the
annual PPF tevy incurred by the STPS [£1 1 mallion in 2017418}

The Schernes have entered into addilional hedging arrangerents
ta reduce the impact of fuctuations ininterest rates and nflaton
on the Schemes’ lzbiliiies without adversely impacting the
expected return from the Schemes’ assets

Dee Valley Water participates in the Dee Valley Water Limited
Section of the Water Companres Pension Scheme {'the Section’)
The Section funds are admiristered by trustees and are held
separately from the assets of the Group
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0On an IAS 19 basis, the net position [before deferred tax] of all

of the Group's defined benefit pension schermes was a deficit

of £517 8 millron 12017 £574 6 million] To calculate the pension
deficit for accounting purposes, we are required to use corporate
bond yields as the basts for the discount rate of our lang-ferm
liabiltties, irrespective of the nature of the Scheme s assets

or their expected returns

The movements in the net deficit during the period were

Defined
Fairvalue of benefit
plan assets  obligations  Netdeficr
£m tm Em
At start of the period 23528 (2,927 4] [574.6)
Amounts credited/[chargeal
to Income statement 60 2 16%7) i95)
Actuarial flosses)/gains
taken to reserves 13 304 271
Net cantributions recewed
and benefits paid [719) 1071 352
At end of the period 2,339.8 (2,859.6) [519.8)

On an |1AS 19 basis, the funding level has improved to 82%
(2017 80%).

Exchange rates

The trading results of overseas subsidiaries are translated to
sterling at the average rate of exchange ruling during the period
and their net assets are transiated at the closing rate on the
balance sheet date The impact of changing exchange rates on
the subsidianes’ trading results was immateriat

Dividends

In line with our policy for the remainder of AMPé anncunced
last year to Increase the dividend by at least RPI+4% each year,
the Board has proposed a final o dinary dividend of 51.927 pence
per share for 2017/18 (2016/17 48.90 pence per share]

This gives a total ordinary dividend for the year of 86 b5 pence
(2016/17- 81.50 pencel] The final ordinary dividend 1s payable on
20 July 2018 to shareholders on the register at 15 June 2018

Accounting policies and presentation

of the financial statements

Qur consolidated financial statements are prepared I
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

that have been endorsed by the European Union The Cornpany
financal statements are prepared in accordance with FRS 101



Risk management

Our approach to risk:

Risk 15 all about uncertainty and risk management describes the
activities performed within our organisation to idenhfy, assess,
and control events which may impact an our ability to achieve
our aims and objectives We also recognise that uncertainty can
manifest itself as both negative and positive impacts, hence our
goalis to minimise these threats and maximise the opportunities
for the benefit of our customers, people, contractors and

key stakeholders

The Board has overall accountahility for ensuring that risk s
effectively managed across the Group The Board s mandate
includes defining sk appetite and monitoring risk exposure to
ensure significant risks are aligned with the cverall strategy of
the Group The management of sk 1s embedded in our everyday
business activities, with employees encouraged to play their part

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee assesses the
effectiveness of the Group s Enterprise Risk Management | ERM )
process and internal controls ta identify, assess, mitigate and
manage rnsk Internal Audit supports the Audit Commuttee in
evaluating the design and ef‘ectiveness of internat controls and
risk mitigation strategies implermnented by management

The Executive Committee reviews strategic objectives and
assesses the level of risk taken in achieving these objectives
This ‘top down nisk process helps to ensure the ‘bottom up’
ERM process is alignad to current strategy and objectives

Across the Group, we manage risks within the overall
Governance Framework which includes clear accountabilities,
delegated authority lmits and reward policies These are
designed to provide employees with a holistic view of effective
risk management

Within Severn Trent Water Limited, our approach reflects our
status as a regulated utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Critical National Infrastructure for the
UK The nature of our Severn Trent Water Limited business is
such that there are seme significant inherent risks, as illustrated
on pages 60 to 65 We aim to have a strong control framework

in place to enable us to understand and manage these risks In
accordance with cur nisk tolerance and appetite

In cur non-regulated businesses we take a more cormmercial
appreach to risk However, we recognise that we provide
products and services for clients who operate in requlated
environments As a result, for risks that could impact on cur
clients regulated services, we take a similar approach to risk
as in o own regulated business. The risks inherent in our
non-regulated business are illustrated on pages 40 to 65

Our Enterprise Risk Management process

We use an established ERM process across the Group to
assess and manage our significant risks, which are linked to
our corporate objectives, core processes, key dependencies,
stakeholder expectations and legal and regulatory obligations
The process is controlled by the central ERM team and
underpinned by standardised tools and methodology to ensure
consistency ERM Champions and Co-ordinaters operate
throughout the business, with support and chalienge from the
ERM team, to identify and assess risks in ther business units
quarterly against a defined set of criteria that consider Lhe
likelihood of cccurrence and polential financial and reputationat
impacts The potential causes and subsequent impact of the risks
are documented to enable mitigating controls to be assessed
This assessment allows us to putin place effective strategies to
rernediate defective controls or implement additional controts

This information 1s combined to form a consolidated view of

risk across the Group and allows the risks to be prioritised

Our significant risks, in terms of kelihood and impact, form our
Group ~1sk profile which 1s reported to the Executive Committee
for review and challenge ahead of final review and approval by
the Audit Cormmittee and Board half-yearty The report provides
an assessment of the ef*ectiveness o’ cantrols over each of those
risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been
deemed necessary

To further enhance our ERM information, we now report risk
fightpaths  These graphically dermonstr ate the level of risk the
Group faces and the timeline for the key risk mitigation steps
to manage the risk to the target position, The flightpaths help
to facilitate a more thorough review of the target risk positions,
considering risk appetite and whether improvement actions

to achseve these are on target with the correct prioritisation

in place

In addition, individual risks or specific risk topics are also
discussed by the Board during the year

On a monthly basis, the status of cpen risk mitigation actions
across the Group risk profile is reported intc the Executive
Committee by the central ERM team The level of ERM maturity
in each business unit 1s assessed haif-yearly and reported

to the Executive Commuttee Improvement plans are agreed

to ensure ERM s fully embedded and effective An overview

ot accountability for our ERM process s illustrated in the
diagram opposite

Risk appetite

The Board keeps under ongoing review the relationship between
our strategic ambitions and the managament of risk

The ERM precess establishes target risk positions for each of
our significant risks, The Board formally discusses the progress
towards this pesition and the mitigating actions being undertaken
every six montis
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Strategic report

Risk management continued

The ERM process

The Board

= Sets strategy and determines
regulatory pulcomes
* Sets business plan abyectives

= Defines rish appetite

Operational teams

* |[dontify and assess nisks

* Sefrisk targel posdion

e ldentify risk improvernent actions

ERM team

+ Manitars perfarrmance

» Assesses ERM motumity across
the Group

* Provides challenge and insight

s Reports to Executive Cormmittee,
Audit Commuttec and Board

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in line with
business need This s part of our normal business planning
process [see Principal Risk 2)

The Board receives regular updates relating to funding, solvency
and Lquidity miatters through the Treasury Committee so we

can respond gquickly to any changas in our ability to secure
firancing Isee Principal Risk 10} The pension fund Trustees

and Company regularly monitor our pensien deficit, wath advice
frarn Investment managers and actuaral adwisers An annual
pension fund review paper s produced for the Board to apprise
thern of fund performance and proposed inbatives to rmanage
down pension liablities and further balance pensions risk {see
Principal Risk 9)

The ERM process and relevant risk assessments are factored
Into the ‘'stress testing’ to assess the Group’s praspects as part
aof our Long-Ter m Viability Staterment

Sustainability risks

Sustainability risks are treated in the same way as all our
other Company risks, captured at & local level by responsible
teams and managed centrally through our established ERM
process. By the nature of what we do, several of our principal
risks have a Sustainability focus, and we monrtor our social and
environmental impacts in line with cur broader performance
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Long-Term Viability Statement
Assessment of current position and lang torm prospects

The Direciors assessment of the Groun < current imancial position 15 set out
inthe Financial review on pages 51 te 56

The Group s principal operating subsidiary is Severn Trent Water Limited,
whrch s a regulated long term business characterised by multi-year
nvestment programmes ard stable revenues The water industry in England
and Wales 1s currently subject to economuc regulation rather than market
competrtion and Otwat, the econormic regulator, has a statutory obugation
1o secure that waler cormparies are ab'e to finrgnce ther appoirted activ bes
Qfwat meels this obhgalion by selting price cortrots for five year Asset
Management Penotds [AMPs ) This mechanismm reduces the potental for
vanability in revenues from the regulated business The current AMP runs
unbil March 2020 Ofwat has published its Final Methodology for assessing
campanies’ business plans and setting price cantrals far the AMP geniad
2020 - 202% and Savern Trent Water Limnited nas made sigrulicant progress
indeveloping its business plan whuch 1s due to be submutted to Qfwat

in September 2018

The Group has sigmbicant inves ment pi ogr ammes that are largely fu~ded
through access todebt markets The Group s strategic funding objectives
reflect the long ferm nature of the Severn Trent Water Liunted business anag
the Graup seoks to abtain a balance of long lerm funding at the best possible
cconomuc cast The Group s Treasury Palicy requires that it maintams
suflicient Liguidity 1o cover cash llow require™ents for arol.ng pariod of

18 rmonths i order to mutigate the risk of restricted access to capital markets
The Group s debt maturity profite is actively managed by tre Grouo Treasury
departrment to spread the tinting of refinancing reaurements and le enable
such requirements to be met under most market conditions The weighted
average ralunty o debl at the bala~ce sheet date was 14 years

The Group has an cstablished process to assess its prospoects The Board
undartakes a detaled agsessment of the Greup’s strategy an an annua! basis
and the output fram this assessment sets the framoework far the Group s
medium term plan, which 1s updated annuatly

The plan assesses the Group's prospects and considers the potentizlbmparts
of the principal risks and uncertantes Stress tests are performed to assess
the potentiabimpacts of combinations of thase nisks and uncertamiies

The plan also considers the mitigating achons that siught be taken to reduce
the impact of such nisks and uncertaintics and the likely effectwencss of the
rruhigating actions

Period of assessment

The Directors considered a number of factors in deterrmining the period to

be covered by the assessment The lang terr nature of the Group s principal
business together with relatively stable revenudes and a model of economrc
regulation that places a duty on the regulator to secure that water companies
car finance the proper carrymg ou! of their functions support a longer pertod
of assessment

However, the changing nature of requlation of the water ndustry ncreases
the uncertairty thatis inherentin the Group s financal projections

The Group has an established planning and forecasting process and the
Directors cansider that the assessment of the Group s prospects 15 more
reliable if it 1s based on an established process The Group's latest medium
term plan extends to the end of the next AMP geriod in 2025 and the Board
of Severn Trent Water Ltrmited will make an assessrment of viability covering
that pertod in 1ts business plan submission to Ofwat in Septernber 2018

Alonger period of assessment introduces greater uncertainty as the
variability of potential outcemes increases as the period considered extends

Bearing in rund the lang term nature of the Group’s business, the enduring
dermand for its services, the nature of the Graup s establtshed planning
pracess and the changing nature of the regulation of the water industry in
England and Wales, the Directors have determincd that sevenyears s an
appropriate period over which to assess the Group’s prospects and make
its viability statement this year



Assessment of viability

in assessing the future prospects the Group has considered the potential
effect ot risks thal coutd have a sigriticant finanual mpact under severe
but plaLsiote scenarias Therisks consimered were identified from the
Group s ERM process, which s described en pages 57 to 88, and from
the: key assumpt onsan the finansial model The scenarios tested are
described below

The Ditectors have ideniiflied actio~s, including reducing discrelionary
outflows of funds and worki~g with providers of finance, that would be
avallable to the Group te mitigate the impact of adverse outcomes

e Group has sigmticant fund ng “equirernents to refinance exis™ ng debt
that falls due for repayrment during the period under review and to fund

the Group s capital programme Undar all scenanos considered the Group
wzuld remain solvent and have access to sut? uent tunds inno~ ~al market
condr .ons The Groug s Treasury Policy requires thatff ratains sufi cion
liquiaity to meet its forecast obl-gatiors, including debt repayments for the
next 18 months In making its assessment the Board has made the following
key assamption

e Anyperiod inwhich the Group s unable to access capital markets to raise
'nanze during the period under review wi.. be shorter than 18 months

Onth.s basis, the stross tests indicated that nene of these scenanios,

Inc uding tne combined scerario resulted inanimpact 1 tne Group s

expected bgwd ty, sowency orcredit metrics that could not be gddressed

by mitigating action and Fence were not cansidered to be threats to the

Group s viability

Scenario tested

Governance and assurance

The Board reviews and approves the medium term plan on wnich this
wiability statement 1s based The Board also considers the periad over
which the assessment of prospects and wiabilty statement should be

made The Audit Cammuttee supports the Board in performing this review
Detalls of the Audit Committec s activity in relation to the Viabiiity Statement
arec sct out inthe Audit Cormmittee report on pages 83 to 89

This staterment 1s subject to review by Deloitte, our External Auditor
Their audit report 1s set out on pages 136 to 140

Assessment of viability

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Company over a seven year
period to March 2025, taking mnto account the Company’s current positicn
and principal risks

Based on that assessment, the Directors have a reascnable expectation
that the Co~pany w Il be able to cont-nue In operation a~d meel its abilities
as they fall due over the period ta 31 March 2025

Going Concern Statement

In preparing the financial statements ihe Zirecto-s considered the
Company's ability 1o meet its debts a5 they fall due tor a periad of one year
from the dae of this report Thiswas carried out.n conjunction with the
corsideration of tne Long Term Vigbility Statement abave

Ontnis basis the Dircctors considered <t appropriate to adapt the go ng
ConLern basis nopresaring the hnart, sl statements

Related principal risk

1. An increase In the funding deficit of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes

Risk 9 Increased funaing for pension schemes

The planned funding for the Group s de”ined bena’ | pension arrangemen’s 's based on
assumplions on fute-e it auon, asset returns and mermbers langewity Urderperforma=ce
against these assumptions right result o additicnal cash contributiens being reguired
during Lhe period under consideration Centributio~s ace reviewed and agreed with the
scherne trustees on a trienmial basis with the next valaation ot the main scheme due as

at 31 March 2019,

2. A severe climate event, operational failure or other exceptional event with a very

significant financial impact

The G-oup s Enterp- se R sk Managemenl process hasident:lied a number of risks
including cyber securily laifure af key assels and severe weathet eve-ts that mighl

Risk & Cyber security

Risk & Failure of key assets

Risk 7 Health and safety and environmental impact
Risk 8 Impact of extreme weather/climate change

have a significanl impact on the Greud s operational and financial perlermance

3. Areduction ininflation and increase in interest rates for the duration of the period

under consideration

N/A =~ key assamption inlinane al modal

Severn Trent Water | im led s revenues are iinkea to nitation. ow o~ negative inflation
tends o adversely Impacl pro‘ns a~d cash llows if increases in cosis exceed revenue

4_Underperformance against performance commitments

Risk 1 Faillure to deliver what our customers want

Severn Trent Water Lirmited operates under a regulatory model which encourages companies
to deliver what cuslomers want using pes.ormance ~elated rewerds and penallies taillure lo

delive performance at the committea level can fead to sigrilicant penalties

5. Higher costs than planned that are not funded

Significart cverspendirg could resultin a deterioration in linancia: melrics and

performance, whichimigh® adversely impact the Group s solvency

Risk 2 changesin the regulatory environment for
the UK water iIndustry

6. Acombination of scenarios 2, 3and 4

Sce above

[*1s unbikely that sce~arios 1 a~d 3 would occur simullaneously since lower inflation
and higher interest ~ales woeutd tend to reduce the pens'on deficil Therefore scenaro 3,

which has a great indimdual iImpact has been included
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Strategic report

Principal risks

The Directors have carried oul a robust assessment of the * Operations, assels and people, and
principal nisks facing the Cormpany, including those that would o Enancial risks

threaten s business model, future performance, solvency or
liguidity These have been categorised across

s Custorner perceplton,
» | egal and regulatory environment,

Customer perception

1 What is the risk?

We may be unable to rmprove
or mantam our levels of
customer service sufficiently
to deliver what our customers
tell us they want.

Which part of Severn Trent i1s affected?
Reyulated Water and Waste Waler businessae
Link te how we're achieving our strategy
(page 22)
Embedding customer = at the heart of afl we de
Link te our values

We put our customers firs

We are passronate abicut wha' we do

We act withintegrity
00Is
QDls 24-27

Key

Increase in net risk exposture
No change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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For each risk we state what it means for us and what we are
doing to manage it

What does it mean for us?

We are aregulated utibty providing essential sesvices te our custemers We recognise that sur customers
inereasmyly expelt more from us and de mand on empr oyod and more consistent expericnce As other
industrres improve thea levels of service, the barcentinug: to ue raised

Failure to daliver the service that - ustomers exgect will lead to custemer dissatisfaction This may result
in hinancial penales under 0 wal s Servive Incent ve Mecharusm | $1% ] and associated GO gu turn

What are we doing to manage the risk?

The three upper quartle {UQ Y pregrammes in Retail, Water and Waste are key o SIMimpregement

Whulst Rerail has 2 nuimber o translormabion ac ionsan ltig~t there are turther art-ans to be aalver ed which
will improve customer exponience for example website transformation: Custerners tell us they are debi jted
whenwe are able to complete billing rasues lor them at Paint of Contact sc the retail programime 15 locking Jt
haw toimprase ane Pownt of Cantact resatution ta improve the swerall experienc e

The Waste U ptogramine & focusing an Batt the veark of anr supply partaer Amey nour day-lo-day
customer offering and also how Severn Trent supparts them n camplve e ases The Werste UQ programene
has idena’ ed »ome key areas (o drve a~d wnprove performance ir arder o improve our SIM score

The Water UQ programime i gt arnearly stage The rapad o ton learn pitot that 1 currently engemg in our

Der byshice arza ts show ng tantaste customer banelit [he pr oy armme s out renlly develop g a roliout pla
taall ether areas The C20 custormer cornmiume ahans ssrkostreant s isking at e xpe <tabon that we sof
when acustomer contacts ue through ther channel of cheice and how we keep the cuslomer infermed along
thejourmey Anelement of his worketream v o revew of out Track nuy 3ob custorer commume shon 1ol that
we use to keap custaners infaraed

Movement 1n net risk exposure



What is the risk?

We may be unable to effectively
anticipate and/or influence future
developments in the UK water
industry resulting i our business
plans becoming unsustainable

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?

Reyulated Water and Waste Water burines sey

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
|pages 26 to 29)

Chanqingthe marketicrthe batter

Inpesting responsibly for sustanabl, growthk
0DIs

N

What I1s the risk?

The regulatory landscape s cormplex

and subtect to ongaing change
There 13 a nisk that processes may
fall or that cur processes may not
effectively keep pace with changes
in legislation leading to the risk of
non-cormpliance

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
|pages 24 to 29)

DOrrang nperational excellence and
Lontinuous innovaticn

Chanqing the market ter the better

Inyesting resgonsibly for sustamable groath
Link to our values

Woe act watnontegr by

We prater tour enveronmeznt
0DIs

0ODls 1-4,19-23, 20-43

Legal and regulatory environment

What does it mean for us®

Severn Trent Water operatesin a highly regutated environment Whilst we are broadly conlentwith the
dinection of changes proposed for ounndustry, there rermains 3 nisk that future changes could hawe 3
signilicanlimpact on Severn Trent Waer

Severn Trent has always contributed to the debate about cur industry s future, including through our series of
Chanqing Course public ations Wewail continue to bie ap active parhicipant m these conversations, scwe can
help shape think:ng about how to best serve vur custamer < n the future

W have contribulad to embedding the ro'e of Markel Operat s Services Lid lthe body whith versces the
nan heuseheld retall market] and contributed towards the success of competition in the non-household market

Wo continue tc par ticipate in distus=ions with Ofweat on the dovelepment of the Tuture regulatory envirsnment
anisince pablication of Ofwat s final metnogolegy in relat o - to Water 2020 we are Jeveleping Gur business
plan We are alvely partiopating ndisrussiors on the cpening of the campetitive markel far biaresources
Engagementvith cur peers, cther regulaters UK Government departments and other stakeholders,
including the Welsh Goverrmant halas us Lo influence the ciraction of regulatory policvwhere passible ard
pul farward cur cwn case tor change in ycensiruct ve way

Woonhinu tg engage censtoucbive iy with stakeholders follaeang Labeor < 20017 st <t - grmitrment to
re-na onalisz the water seclor We are en-ouragad “hat balh the benefits to customers of the currert ~a-el
anithe costte taxpagers orra-nati~rahisaticn are now beng betrer understoed

Movement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

Our palicies and proczsses mustretlect the current legat and ragula sry enwveronment and atl relavant
smployees must be kept aware of new requrements The Group as a whcle may face censure for nan-
cornpliance in am indwidudl group compary or aspeaficreg or n amichwe ccerate

What are we doing to manage the risk?
Qur Covernance Framewnrk, transparency, engagement #ath custerers and stakehorders policies and

woternal s ontrols cnsur s gur onguing cumpline e with all applicable laws and requlatinns

For the operation of separate Wholeszale and Retasl business wa have a contrel tramewsrk of protoosls,
policie = wystems, guidance ind traming te ensyre cngoing cemphance with the elevant legislatinnineluding
Ceormpetition Law

Fellawing the integraticn of Dee Valleyintc the Severn Trent Group we have retreshed our policy framework
an 4 are updating sur < ystems, protacols ana policies in readiness for the boundary realignment »f cut
regulated businesses

Crauring re adiness fur the General Data Protes lon Regulatien [ GDPR ) coming into effect on 25 May 2018
hasalse been akeyarea of focus ferus

Changes Lo the legaland requlatery sovirenmoent ar ¢ captured s emerging risks through our ERM process
Anlh ke necessary owners and azuons identified to e~sure compliance whzn the changes corre into efiect

Movement in net risk exposure
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

Operations, assets and people

4

Key

What is the risk?

We may experience loss of data or

Interruptions t our key business

systemns as a result of cyber threats

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Greup-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
{pages 22t0 25)

Crnbedding custemers al the hear L of alt we o

Druang aperational excetlenre and
continuous Innavation

Link ta our values

We put our customers firss
Q0Is

O0Is 1-4,5-18 19-23 24-37

What is the risk?

We may fail to meet our regulatory
targets includmg targets from

Ofwat for operational performance

of our assets resuliing in
regutatory penalties

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Regulated Water armd Waste Water businosaes

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
{pages 2210 27}
Embedding customers at the heart cf all we do

Orwing operational excellence and
COnLAUAUS nNAvALON

Inve~tirg responsibly for sustainable growih
Link to ourvalues
We put our customers first

We are passtenate about what we do

W protect our envirgnmernt
QoDIs
00ls 1-a5

What does it mean for us?

The risks ansing from 16ss of ane or more of our Major systemns or corruption of data held in those systems
coutd have fur 1eachmg effects on our busmiess We havere ogmized the incr casing threats of cyber attacks
05 0ur syEterns and data Whalst this thr eat tan neves be elimunated and will contimue ty evclwe we are forused
oo the need tn mamtan effec e mgatian
What are we doing to manage the risk?

We continue tc Tollow guidaric e from the Nationat Cyber Securty Centre t NCST | to mpr ove aur defences
against cyler attai ke ardd have focusedthis year onmore layered-secunty controls to pretect sensibve data
inreadiness far the intraducion in May 2018 of the GIIPR

We have alst completed risk assessments ef cvbor thre its k2 our water supply systerms for theintradugnon
in May 2018 of \ha Network and Infermation Systoms Direcise [ MISD )

We have parlicipated in a number of Government ted and mternast cybe rincrdent exeroses to dest our
responee € apaility 1o cyBer attacke

Although ~at directly Impacied by sigmificant recent cyber incidents e ¢ WannaCry and Not=e yal we did
review QU security controls and response plans to ensure we are prepar ed for future tacks of this type

Movement in net nisk exposure

What dogs it mean tor us?

I we at e unadle to meet opet al unal pet fonmace targels, we reay be subgected 10 signihcant regulatory
penattres cither within the current price roview pered or applied to the nexd pree e roview

Reqgulatary targots apply to all of cur weater tre atnient, distribution sewe rorge and seveage reatment aascte
Measures are i~ place i relation o water quality, continugus supolies, sewer flooding sewer collapses and
potlutian cvents

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Gur busimess plan for 2015 2020 indtudes consider able iraestment in eur assels 2 nprove the resshenoe
of our netwarks, reduce nterruptions and inprow the servr e thal our custorns e tecee We recognise
there are areas where our per formance 15 nat 35 consis tent as we wodld bike and we are committed 1o
impraving these

W are cantinuing our Cleanest Water Plan which de cves the ispechon, de aming and regar of stofage tanks,
increaning our cagital maintenartze ntorventions, cptimsing cur operation and mantenance tasks and
fermalising our processes, standards and oper ating procedures mvalved in delivering clean water

Wa use leading measures anane comm cells and performance meetings ta track delvery against cuslomee
0015 and performance commutrments <o that we can intervene in o timely fastuen of perfermance s drifting

The three UG programimns o Retad, Water and Waste arc key (o us debvining our targute for the remandar of
this business plan

Movement in net risk exposure

increase in net risk exposure
No change in net nsk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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What 15 the risk?

Failure of certain key assets or
processes may result in inability
to provide a continuous supply of
clean water and safely take waste
water away within our area

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group wide

Link to how we're achteving our strategy
(pages 2210 31)
Erberdding customes af the beart of allvee de

Or wving cperatiznal excellence and
continucus nnavaticn

Investng respanaibly for sustairable growth
Link to our values

We puto.r customersfirs

Yee are passicnate avcut whatvee da

0DIs

a0l 1-4 R-18 10-23

What is the risk?

Due to the nature of our operations
we could endanger the hezalth and
safety of our people, contractors
and rmembers of the public as well
as negatively impact our local and
wider environment

Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving eur strategy

Oriving operaticnal excellerce and
LOrfinueus mnovaticn

Irenting 1 espurabity for su-tainabie growth

Creating anawesome place o work
Link to our values

We protect cur endranmieny
Weaclwithmiogrly

QDIs

001 30-41,42-43

What does it mean for us?

Some of gur assets are sritical to the provisisn of water to large populaticns fer whi hwe require allernative
means of supply

Examples include cur reservare andwater treatmeant werks These assels are regularlymspeacted anid
maintine d and our assessment of the over all candition of these asset= s goad

Other examples are our |7, telepheny systems and remote monitoring systems which are also key e
our gperations

What are we doing te manage the rnisk?
We Inrluded substantizlinvestmentin cur AMPS plan tz reduce the Lkelihood of tatlure of strategic a<sets
that supply Bermingham and to prowde the uty with a secanit saurce of woter We are ahead of defvery onthe
impravements ta cur strategic assets and on track with the previson of e sccond source

Wi continue to muntain and test our Being prepared framework (o ensure our busimess continuilly
arrangements a~e N1t lor ourpose and tne Group can react quicky fo safeq.ard our critical operations

I seddition o eve sting i resilienee mprovenenis 1o our netwar kwe also have assurance plansin place ko
musniter, inspecl and maintain gur most critical assets and to ensurce clean water 1o slways available (2 our
custamars and ae will always be able to =afely take their waste water awa,

Wewill contimue to make signifivan” investrmentmto gur netwa k and processes cul we accept there s always
arisk ' unexpetted fadures Forexample weoxperw reed 1number of trunicmam burstsin 2007 aduch | d
to supply interruptions to cwr customers and in March 2018 the rery rapid thaw following The Beast from the
Eaut resultadin a substantaliners a- 2w pige burets Ourincdent respense helped to mitigate the impast

of the s fallures Qurng the burstewe worked with focal resilienes tarume and cther aieres ind had

areat rommunity engagement ta reture supphers back to rarmral as quickly as pessible Weara takang the
learmungs fren the incidents ta expand our network conditizn monitering prearamme to detect volnerabiliics
befare falures cocur and e ensure that cunr it resoer se procedur-e s 3- Qoad sz they wanbe
Movement In net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

The nHurs af cur gesets, cperatens and busine-« are sunh that threats e the safoty of cur emplaovees,
contrazters custemers and the wider pablic cxst Operatienal failures oroegliger cee suld resultin damage
tz the ervrcnment

We are responsible for a large estate of assets ana hava Lo zecure these from unguthoriced ducesstoensare
cur sperations are notimpacied ner the safety of the public camprenmsed

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Our 2015 2020 business planincludes substantial inve stmentin community schermes to engure the risk of
far'ure at key paints aleng our Elan Valtey Aqueduct, that could cause substant.al damage and endarger the
safity oi the public, = further reduced

W hawe 3 well-oslablished Health, Safety & Wellbeinsg frarnewnrk to ensur e all cperations and processes

are cenducted i cempliance with Health and Safety legislation and in the interests of the safety of our peopre
and contractors Cur Geat Zerownetiative clearty establishes sur target that ne one shauld be inpured o made
urwell gy g result of whatwe do Wove continued toeeduce tetabinunies e staffand cantractors threugh the
application of the Goal Zero plan and we wor k cotlaberat.vely with aur supply chain and sther key stakeholders
to continue te seekamprovements

There are a number of 0Dl ccrmmitments we have reade to protect odr tscal epvirenmenl mciudina river
water quality, polluticn incdents, biediver sity improvernents and envirenmiental cocmphance In AMPS v wall
be delvering cur'ar gest cver enwranment prograrmre, spending over C300 nullien . eliver improvemente
to rivers throughout cur region, a pregramme which s supported by our customers whe want {e see U

Ao mare tormprove hiver water quality Thas year we expectta regaincur 4° Enviconmental Pertormance
Aszezement status from he Envronroent Agency

We rocognise theimpas b aur sperabons have on thewider eraronment andwe aonl tareduce aar carbon
lociprimt oy snzking lower -arpon way= of operat ng au-bus ness, driang energy e'liciency and genera’ing
renewable energy We ain to ncrease the armount of renesable energewie generate ind Lo invest nways to
make our processesmera energy efficient, and our targe” 1 to genarate the equivaien 50 of Severn Trent
Water serergy needs by 2026

Movement in net risk exposure
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

8 What is the risk?

We are unable 1o deal with the
impact of extreme and unpredictable
weather events on our assels and
infrastructure and/or are unable to
successfully plan for future water
resource supply and demand due to
climate change

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Croup -wide

Link to how were achieving our strategy
lpages 240 27)

Driving cperaticnal exceltence and
continucus innavaticn

tnvesting respenisibly for <ustanable growth
Link to our values

We protect cur environmient

CDis

OQis 1-4,918,19-23, 42-43

Key.

Increase in net risk exposure
No change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure

b4 severn Trent Ple Annual Repaort and Accounts 2018

What does it mean for us?

Clienate _hangs [halter and drer surimmiers, wathor wantors and ncreas ed fraquency of storns) could result
in @~ nakulity to mest custorner dernand lower niver levels, deceased raw water qua'ty flooding of eur water
or waste works, sewer capacity being excesded and increased land meverre nt Clirnate change could also be
a contributing factor for princpal rwks 1 5, éand 7 detaed above

Ther ¢ are also seme potentiat oppertumities that climate change presents for us, including aquifer recharge
and increased biologu sl treatmant s impartant that we under<tand these oppartumbes (o mammisy
the benefils

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Qur chimate change adaptation report sets cul aur sirategs for coping with fulure ¢ hanges to cur cimate

In Fabruary 2018, we published cur draflwater resources management plan for the next 23 years The plan |
mcludes 3 detaled assessment of chimate change inpact far cwr region and cur demand management and
propesed fow »eutces are detigned (o offset any supply nisk rezutting fror cbmate change

Qur analysss for the Matorat Flood Resience Review { NERR Y, that was nstigaed by Deirafine Cabinet O'fice
after the flooding of winter 2015/1& 1dentrfied cur non-infrastructure [overgroyng, sites that cou.d be at risk
from river or surface water floodi~g using a new h-gher standard catled *he Ex‘reme Flood Qutline This has
migrmed our contingency plans and tuture investrment plans

Weaden tconsider climagte change rsks inisetation and wevizw therm alengside all the challenaes wee face
To that effect alatge nusniber of our wurs ot ohyectives ond Ly gets agr eed 2 part of our ODF commmtments
witl increase our resiltence from clima'e chanae, including reducing leakage, inmprovi~g water efficiency,
reducing praperiies prone to low pressure prolect ng prone properties/areas frem sawer flooding and
ncreasing the reahience of cur water supply and waterwasie warks

Onir ownirnpact and contribution to clmate change cannot be gnoted and, 45 outhined in pringipal nsk 7
cverteal, (here are a number of Wy i ke h we are dddreaw\g SUr Hnpadct on he enwronment

Moverment in net risk exposure '



Financial risks

10

What is the risk?

Lower interest rates, higher inflation

or underperforming equity markets
may reguire us to provide more
funding for our pension schemes.

Which part of Severn Trentis affected?
Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[pages 26 and 27)

Investing respoansibly for sust anable growth

What s the risk?

We are unable to fund the business
sufficiently in order to meet our
Labilities as they fall due

Which part of Severn Trent s affected?
Growp-wile

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
{pages 26 and 27)

Investing respensibly for custanable groath

What does it mean for us?

We already provide signitivan’ funding but could be called upon to prowde riare money o reduce pension
deficisinour defined benefits schemes

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Following the Grexitvole, our main defined benefit pension scherre ha< seen asignificar growthn the
accourting value of hatsliies due to the fall nlong terminterest rates Volatle limanc al condilions are likely ‘o
raman for the foreseeable future The growthn the acesuntng defict has agverselyimpacted the heaareom
onscme of sur craditratas such as gearing, which are relewant for debt covenant and cradit ratings
purpeses It tse has areputatronat impar tthat ceuld have abeaning choinvestment and dhstrituticn dociaions

Wo have completed the process of iImmunising our bank sinancial covenants frors adver se movements in the
accourting deficit ga ning appr oval fram relevant banks and tha EurepeanInvestmen: Bark [ EIB ) We Rave
wer hedwith the ratings agencies te fecus enthe impact of cur o pair paysnenis encredit ratings, rather than
mevements in the accounting +slue of Lhe de -ail Importanily, xe have ag-eed cash repair paymeniswi hthe
Trustee untitthe neat Trenmal Valuation st 31 Mareh 2009 We have alsc complated, 2oth Trustee angres munt
andit #nal nllavcqand interest rale hedging and Inrodused doweside protectizn to the “Lnd s 2quity holdings
The Pension Requlator ~as confirrrad thal the March 2016 act_anizlvaluanonwill nol be subjecl tofurther
rovie s Haweoor the Regulater bas <tatcd th st it belivves that the curcent repair parind 12 2032, s verylong
and nthee.en cla oriher deteriorahion ndeficit deas <ot see an extansion o the recovery o'an end date an
appropriate s~tatien

Movementin net risk exposure

What does it mean far us?

Wemus® ensuce sutflog “Tagu dity s avallable tameet 2ur near ten ~ financ al cemmutments We have 2
sigmbentfurdingreque cmento AMBS o rand curicvest=ent programe and r2heanie matuning Jelby
Thi~is awell-contrclied risk, butitis unporiant that we mantaim these high standards te mitigate this risk

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Wril=: Breat may r—pact our gocess o -unding from the 718 a- attractive source of * nance, we have

cther scurces of funding we cancallupen In November 2315, we raised £471 muluen torough o LS Private
Placernent debt issue and m Novemnter 2015 to December 2017, we raised £900 rmillion through three sterting
bond insues Despite somemitalveletibity fellawing the Brext vote, global debt capital miarkets continue ts
deliver substantial levels of Liguidity

Sec cur Long-Term Viability Slaterent on pages 58 anid 59

Movement in net risk exposure

The Strategic report, as set out from page 1 through te page 45, has been approved by the Board

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

22 May 2018
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Governance

Governance report

Chairman’s introduction to governance

Leadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Charrman

The Board provides strong
leadership and support to the
business. All Directors have a
passion for the business and there
is a sense of “creating a legacy

for those who come after us”.

Manchester Square Partners
Board Effectivensss Report

Graph removed
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Dear Shareholder

! arn pleased to Intreduce our Governance report for 2018 on
pehall of your Board in accordance with the Aprit 2016 UK
Carporate Governance Code (the Cade ). This repart reflects
the themes of the Code and provides details on the activities and
governance processes of the Board and its Committees (and
refers you to other areas of the Annual Report and Accounts
where further relevant information can be found)

The Board has had a diverse agenda during the year from
addressing the challenges of the upcoming Ofwat Price Review
{PR19) without lasing focus on ather key strategic and operational
priorities, to ensuring that Dee Valley Water s operating effectivety
as a standalane, licensed business wathin the Group PR19 s a

key strategic item for the business that has required a robust
goverpance process to ensure the right level of debate and
oversight wathout allowing this topic to dominate the strategrc
landscape In summary, the Board's principal areas of forus

have been

* PR19,

e Customer service,

* Water quality,

* Environmental performance,

* Financing our businesses,

* Dee Valley integration, and

» Profitable growth of the non-regulated business.

Custamers continue ta be at the forefront of ur attention, as

our strategrc focus on such topics as delivering Upper Guartile
Sector Performance and Custorner Experience demonstrate
Custormer Delivery, Water Quality and Environmental
Performance have been the subject of regular performance
review’ iterms on the agenda. Financing has been addressed
through the continuing imiportant wark of the Treasury
Comnittes, through the Chiet binanaal Officer’s reqular repotts
to the Board and via specific finance related teis on the
agenda The cost of deot methodelogy for PR19 has been a key
constderation due to its wider impact for the business as a whole
[See Board activities on pages 76 and 77)

Alignment on strategy and clarity on individual roles have
allowed clear strategtc focus for the Board during the year, and
produced robust challenge where appropriate There 15 a positive
dynarme in the Boardroom but we are by no reans cormnplacent
and recogrise that there are still many challenges to tackle

We cantinue to foster a culture of ownershup, stewardshup and
always doing the right thing. sharing the wider company values
we pul our customers first, we are passionate about what we do,
we actwith integrity, we protect cur environment, and we are
Inspired ta create an awesome company



The Board has continued to keep the Group's risk
management and internal control systems under close
scruting during the year and believes the guality of risk
management and reporting, and in particular the risk
dentification, mitigation plans, business ownership and
tracking, are excellent and continue to evolve and improve

In respect of the Company’s stakeholders, there has been
oversight of, and a very active, engagement with shareholders,
regulators, customers, pension trustees, communities and
employees alike There have been regular communications
with shareholders and open tines of communication with

our requlators O-wat, CCW and the DWI In particular, the
Corporate Responsibility Comnmittee has overseen a broad
range of well received community initiatives [detalled in its
report on page 92) All the Board members have multiple
forrmal and informal opportunities to engage with custormers
and employees and are constantly impressed at the quality

of Severn Trent s people, wherever they work in the Graup

and whatever thair role Engagement scores from the annual
employee engagement questionnare are excellent and this 1s
mirrored in the Board's communication with employees at and
below management level

We continue to strive for comprehensive talent development
and succession planning at all levels of the business

Whilst much has been done in this respect and plans are

in place, with well regard to graduate and apprenticeships
programmes and strong external hiring and internal
premotions, we are keen to make further progress in
identifying, developing and progressing top talent through the
arganisation and making further improvements in respect

of management and leadership development The focus on
improving diversity remains strong and, whilst we have made
good progress on gender diversity in line with the Hampten-
Alexander Reviaw, we are looking to make further progress in
terms of wider diversity

Looking forward, Severn Trent has a strong unified Board
with the broad range of professional backgrounds, skills
and perspectives needed {o lake the Company into the next
requlatory pericd

Finally, on a persanal note, whilst | hope you find this

report provides insight inte governance within Severn Trenl,

| always welcome feedback if you feel there 1s more we could
doto enlighten shareholders We encourage participation

at our AGM and look forward to meeting with many of our
shareholders in July

Andrew Duff
Chairman

UK Corporate Governance Code
Compliance Statement

The version of the Corporate Governance Cede applicable to the current
reporting period s the Aprit 2016 UK Corporate Governance Cede {the
Caode’) The Code 15 avarlable on the Financial Reporting Councit’s [FRC
website www fre org uk)

We are pleased tc confirm that Severn Trent Plc was compliant with all
of t~& provisions set oul 'n the Code for the pericd under review

In Becember 2017, the FRC published proposals tor a revsed cade, which
we expectto apply lo cur financial year ending 31 March 2019, Lo reflect the
changing business environment and help in achieving the highest levels

of governance Asthe revised code s not vel [inalised, we are resarting
against the 2016 Code inthis repart but are tooking closety at the new
proposals and assessing wha* more we can do to al.gnw:tn best practice
princinles to turther engender trust in our business

inter~s of the principles of *he 2016 Code, you can find out mare
infarreation on the following pages

Leadership 68to 74
Deta ls of the Board are available { rcluding therr sk Ll set and

experience) and an o.erview of the governance structure,

distingu.shing between cadership by the Board and oy Excoutve
Managemert The diftening rates of the Charman, Execurve

Directors ard Non-Execatve Drectors is .50 set out

Effectiveness 80 to 82
Ar avervicw of the process for appointment, induction, and

evalaatien of the Directors s provided here and further

detail s set cut in pages 30ta 82 covering the werk of the

Nominations Comm ttee

Accountability 831089
The report of the Audit Comrmitiee details the corporate

reporting, sk management and internal control measures

that are cverseen by the SBcard

Remuneration %5t0 128
The Directors Reeruneration Report provides full details

an remuneration

Relations with shareholders G4 to 99

Details of the Graup s engagement with shareholders s set out
inthis section

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the Board of the Listed Company, Severn Trent Ple,

s the same as that of Severn Trent Water Limited This structure was
implemented in 2007 to make sure that the highest standaras of corporate
governance are applied at the regulated subsidiary tevel and to toster
greater visibility and supervision by the Severn Trent Ple Board

Severn Trent Water Limited complies with the Code and our regulator’s
Principles of Leadership and Governance to ensure the highest standards
of governance

Taking In*o account the Code and Ofwat s Principles of Leadership and
Goverrance, we have undergene a programme of change during the year in
Dee Valtey Water Limited and have apoainte d a majority of new independent
non-executive directors tosts Board Dee Valley Water Lirmited also
cornplies vath the Code to ensure the fughest standards of governance
Amore detaied explanation of the Governance Framowork and Carmpany
structurcs which apply to cach of aur regulatea subsidiaries can be fourd

1~ their respective Annual Reports, avarlable on their websites
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Gavernance

Board of Directors

l_eadership & Effectiveness

image removed

image removed

image removed

1 2. 3. 4,
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1. Andrew Duff BSc FEJ (59)
Appointed: Non-Executive Directar on 10 May
2010, Chairman on 20 July 2010
Membership: Chair

Skills, eompetence and experience:

Andrew's extenswve experience of international
and regulated business, strategic management
and customer service in high profile, dynamic
environments has equipped himwell for the role of
Chairman of the Group Andrew spent 16 years at
BP inmarketing, strategy and ol trading e joimed
National Power in 1998 and the Board of Innogy plc
uponits demerger from National Power in 2000
He played a leading role inuts restracturing and
transformatian through the opeming of competition
in energy markets culminating inits subsequent
sale to RWE m 2003 He became CEQ of the
successor Company and a member of the RWE
Group Executwe Commuttae until hug retirement

in 2010 He was a Non-Executive Director of
Wolseley ple from Juty 2004 until Novernber 2013
Andrew was appointed Non-Executive Deputy
Chairman of Elementrs ple on T April 2014 and
became Non-Executive Chairman of Elementrs
plc on 24 April 2014 He s the semor trustee of
Macrrullan Cancer Suppart and a trustee of the
Earth Trust

Other roles:

* Momber of the CBl President s Committee

¢ Trustee of Macrillan Cancer Support and
Earth Trust
= Fellow of the Energy Institute

Committee membership key

Audrt Committee

Corporate Responsibiity Commmittee
Executive Commuittee

Nomimations Committee

68 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

2. Qlivia Garfield BA {Hons] (42)
Appointed: Chief Executive on 11 Aprit 2014

Skills, competence and experience:

Olra fLv) brings tothe Board a wealth ot

expenence managing customer serwce delery

and complex infrastructur e and organisations

in a regulated environment Before joining

Severn Tre~t, Livwas Chref Cxecutive Officer

of Openreach part of the BT Group, where she

spearheaded and oversaw the commercial roll-out

of fibre broadband Lo two-th ros of the couniry

She joined BT in 2002 and held the pivotal roles

of Group Director of Strategy and Regutation,

Managing Director Commercial and Brands,

Global Services and UK Customer Services

Director From 1998 to 2002, Liv worked for

Accenture as a consultant mthe Communications

and High Tech Market Unit, designing and

implernenting business changs solutions acrass

anuinber ot indusli y sculors

Other roles:

« Member of The 30% Club

* Director of Water UK

o Member of Take Over Panel

« Director of Water Plus Limited - joint venture
with Lmited Utibities

Remuneration Comrmttec
Treasury Committee
Disclosure Cornrmittee

3. James Bowling BA [Hons) Econ,
ACA149)

Appointed: Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2015
Membership:

Skills, competence and experience;

Jarmnes s a chartered accouniant having staried
his career wth Tauche Ross and brings significant
hinarcial management, M&A and business
transformation expertise to the Board Prior to
joining Sovern Trent, James vias intenm Chief
Financal Officer ot Siwre ple, wher e he had been
since T009 first as Heaw of Grouo Reperting

and from 2008 as Group Financial Controller
Prior to joining Shire, James spent nine years at
Ford Mc or Company invarious finance roles of
increasing respansibility

4. John Coghlan BCorm, ACA [60)

Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director

on 23 May 2014

Membership: Chair Chair

Skills, competence and expenience:

Johnis a chartered accountant and has a vatuable

background n financial and gene-a. managament

across gvariety of sectors Currently Johns alsa

a Non-Executive Director and Audit Commuittoe

Chairman of Clarion Housing Associatron and

Associated British Ports Holdings Limited

Previously, Johnwas a Director of Exel ple for

11 yearsto 2004, whore hie was Deputy Chiof

Executve and Group Finance Director Since 2006,

John has been a Nan-Executive Director of

various publicly-quated and private equity-

owned companies

Otherroles:

* Chairman ot Freight Transport Association
Ireland Limited



Tenure and gender diversity

Gender diversity as at 31 March 2018

The graphics below show the tenure of the Non-Executive Directors over the short, medium and tong term, tagether with the
gender diversity across the Executive team, the full Beard, and amongst Non-Executive Directors See page 81 for gender
diversily across the rest of the Severn Trent Group.

Graph removed Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

5. Dame Angela Strank DBE, FRS,
FREng, CEng, FIChemE, DSc,

PhD i45)

Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 24 January 2014

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and experience
Angaia brings a wealth of strategic, technica: and
commercal experience to the Boarg Angelais
Head of Downstream Technalogy and Groun
Chief Scientist at BP ple Sne s a memoper of
the Downstream Executive Leadership Team
Angelaisresponsible for enabling deuvery of
the Downstrear strategee agenda through
the develeprent of differentiated technology
advan‘aga across the refining fue.s, lubricants
and petrochermcals businesses Since joining
BP in 1982, she has held many seniar leadership
roles around the world In business development,
commercial and technoiogy, including in 2012,
Vice President and Head of the Chief Executive’s
Qifice In 2010 Angetawas the winner of he UK
First Woman's Award in Saience and Technology
n recogrition of pioneering UK womenn
business and industry Her track record and
experience In strategy, operations, technology and
transfaormational change arc a complementary
additior te the Board's skill set in June 2017,
Angela was recognised in the Queen s Birthday
Honours List with the title Dame Commander of
the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire
(DBE] for services ta the Ol and Gas Industry and
encour aging wormen into STEM carcers
Other roles:
* Board Governor of The Uriversity
of Manchester
* BF Group plc - Chicf Scientist
* Mernbher of the Royal Society s Saence,
Industry & Trarslaticn Committee

6. The Hon. Philip Remnant

CBE FCAMA (63

Appornted: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 31 March 2014

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and experience:

Phulipis a semiar investment banker and brings
substantial advisory and regulatory experience
tothe Boara Achartered accountart, be s
Seniorindependent Director of Prucential plc and
Chairman of M&G Group Limited, Deputy Cha rman
of the Takeaver Panel, Senior Independent Dircctor
of UK Financial investrments Linited and Charrmar
of City of London Investrnent Trust plc Previously,
Ph lipwas Vice Chairman of Cred:t Suisse First
Boston Europe and Head of the UK Investment
Banking Department Philipwas Director Gener al of
the Takeover Fanel for two years between 2007 and
2003, and agairin 2010 He served onthe Board of
Northern Rock ple from 2008 to 2010 and from 2007
to 2012 was Chairman of the Shareholder Executive

Other roles

s Governor of Goodengugh Callege

e [irector and Trustee of St Paul s
Cathedral Foundation

7. Dominique Reiniche MBA [62]
Appointed Independent Non-Executive Director
on 20 July 2016

Membership:

Skills, competence and experience:

Dornirique has awealth of operational
cxperience 10 Europe and has internatioral
consumer markating and iInnovation cxpericnce
Damimigue 1s Independent Vice Chairman of
CHR Hansen Holdings A/S and also a Non-
Executive Director of Mond) plc and PayPal
[Europe] Dominigue started her career with
Procter & Gamble AG before moving to Keaft
Jacobs Suchard AG as Director of Marketing
and Strategy where she was also a member of
the Executive Cormmittes Domimigue previously
hield a number of senvor rotes at Coca-Cola
Enterprises and at Coca-Cofa Compary, including
President - Western Europe, President - BEurope
and Charman - Eurspe Until December 2015,
Dorminigque was aNon Exccutive Directar of
Pougeet-Caroon SA Untit Aprit 2017, Dormimegue
was a Nor-Exccutive Director of AXA SA

8. Kevin Beeston FCMA [35)

Appointed: Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director on 1 June 2016

Membership:

Skilis, competence and experience

Kevin has a wea'h of commerce al, financial

and h gh level ma~agernant expenienze

Kevirn s Chairman of Tay or Wimpey pic and
Elysiam Healthcare and also a Non-Executive
Director of The Football Asscaation Premier
League Limitad and Marston Corporate Limited
Previously, Kevin spent 25 years at Serco ple
where he held the roles of Finance Director
Crief Executive and finally Charran anul 2670
Kewnwas previously Charman of Domestic &
Genera' Limited and Partnerships in Care Limited,
Equiniti Group ple and a Non-Execut ve Director
of IMI plc

Director serving for
part of the year

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhil Oxon,
MBA (51]

Managing Director, Wholesale Operations
Directorship ceased on 31 December 2017
Emma stepped down from the Board on

31 Decemnber 2017, having becn a Direclor sirce
T Apri 2016 Sheremaned onthe Executive
Comruttee until 16 April 2018 and 1s due to lcave
Severn Trentin July 2018
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Governance

Executive Committee
| eadership & Effectiveness
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1. Olivia Garfield BA (Hons) (42
Appointed. Chief Executive on 11 April 2014
Please see full mography on page 68

2. James Bowling BA {Hons] Econ, ACA 149)
Appointed: Chief Financial Offrcer on 1 April 2015
Please see full tragraphy on page 48

3. Dr. Tony Baltance BSc (Hons), MA (Econl, PRD (53]
Appointed: Director, Strategy and Regulation on 25 July 2005
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Committee
Career and responsibilities.
Tony s extensive experience 1n utihy policy. regulation and stakeholder
engagement leaves fum deally pfaced ta lead the Carepany's strategic,
regulatory and external affairs wark Prior to joining Severn Trent, he held
the posts of Chiet Econonust for Ofwat, Oractor of Landon Econamucs and
Merector of Stene and Webster Cansultants
Other roles:
* Scriorindependent Director of the National Forest Company
« Member of Waler UK Council
+ Chairman of the Corporate Advisary Panel of the Regutatary

Policy Institute
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4. Sarah Bentley BSc [Hons), Managerent Science
with Computing (46)

Appointed- Chief Customer Officer in December 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Responsible for Custormer Retail and Network operations, Group Technology
and Transformation She previously worked for Accenture as Managing
Director of their £3 bilhion globat digital business focused on digital marketing,
mobility and analytics for customers, emnployees and the enterprise Prior to
Accenture, Sarah was CEOQ of Datapoint, an Alchemy backed company
delivering CRM services and Servor Vice President of eLoyalty, a global CRM
and marketing consultancy She was SWP of the European Business, led the
sales and operations ac tivity in North America and ran clLoyalty Ventures

L L C workingin Siicen Valley, Austin and New York

Gther roles:
« Twizzletwig Limited ~ Director and Secretary

5. Martin Kane BSc, CEng, CEnv, MICE, MIWEM,

FIW [65)

Appointed: Martin joined Severn Trent Water in 1975 and was appointed
Chief Engineer in July 2014

Member of the Executive Commitiee

Career and responsibilities.

He has held vanous senter roles giving him an extensive and unique
understanding of the design, construction and operation of water and waste
water treatrnent plants, water distrbution networks and sewerage systems
Martin was Dircctor of Custormner Relations, Severn Trent Ple, frorm May 2004
unit January 2012, and Chef Executive Oficer of Severn Trent Services unti
Suly 2074

Other roles:

* Member of the Boards of Ublities and Service Industries Traiming Linited
* Trustee of International Society for Trenchless Techriolagy

® Chairman, Pantan MclLeod Ltd

* Chawman of the Coventry and Warwickshire Growth Hub
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6. Bronagh Kennedy BA [Hons] [54)

Appointed: Group General Counsel and Company Secretary in June 2011
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Committee

Career and responsibilities

Branagh s a sclicior and was previously Group Corrpany Secretary and
Genera Counsel and HR Director at Mtchells & Butlers where sne worked
far 19 years Priorto that, she was a Senior Associate at Allen & Overy Sheisa
member aof the GC100 Greup and an Independent Nen-Execunive Directar and
Chairrman of the HR and Remureration Corrmittee of Britisn Canooing

7. Helen Miles CIMA [47)

Appointed: Group Commercial Director in November 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Helen joined Severn Trent in Noverrber 2014 as the Ch ef Commercaal
Officer and brings with her a breadt of commercial experience having
workegwithin requlated businesses and sectors across Telecoms, Leisure
and Bank ng As a member of the UK Board, Helen was instrumertal in
delivering HomeServe's future growth strategy and ensuring a sustainable,
custorrer-focused bus ness As an experienced finance profess onal, Helen
was previously Chief Fina~cial Officer for Open-each, part of BT Group plc,
and has extensive experience of delwvering majar business transformation
across the Group Prier to BT Group, Helen worked inavariety of sectors
and orgamisations such as Bass Taverns, Barclays Bank, Compass Group
and HSBC

8. Andy Smith BTech (Hons) (57)

Appeinted, Managing Director, Business Services in 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibitities-

Andy was appointed to the role ot MD Business Services onits creation in
2014 having previously been responsible for tne drinking water business wathin
Severn Trent Water Andy brings to the role a broad range of executive and
operationat expertise gained fram diverse scctars Currently, Andy:s alsc a
Non-Executive Director of Drpioma ple He has worked inthe UK and overseas
with global busiresses such as BP, Mars and Pepsi in both engineering, HR
and operatignal managemeniroles Previously, he has served as a member
cfthe Board at Severn Tre~t Ple ard at Boots Group ple

9. Neil Morrison Bsc [Hons), Chartered FCIPD [44)]

Appointed: Director of Human Resources in August 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Nel' jained Severn Trontin August 2017 3s a Director of Human Resaurces
Ner started a career in HR management . 1994 and for the subsequert

12 years he worked in avariety of HR roles watbin FTS= 100 cornpan es
includirg Rentokil Inha: and GUS [which latterly pecame Horme Retal

Grougl Before join ng Severn Trent, Neilwarked at Penguin Random House
taking resporsibiity for strategic people 1ssues across their publishing and

d stibution otfices m the UK, APAC, Ind & and South Africa He was one of be
ma nleads i heloing t steerand firalise the global merger between Kandom
House and Penguin Neilalso sits on the board cf the Chartered Insnitute of
Persornel and Development [CIPDI

10. Dr. James Jesic BEng [Hons), PhD, MIChemE,
CEng (39)

Appointed: Managing Director of Production on 1 December 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities.

James s a chartered chemical engineer whooined Severa Trent on its
graduate pregramene in 2003 and was appointed as Managing Director of
Production in 2017 During his time wath the business, James has had full
accoun’ability for the management of the operational multi-billion pound
asset base, being responsible for producing and supplying drinking water
and collecting and treating waste water for millions of customers across the
Midlands As part of that role, he has delivered industry-leading custamer
service performance, aswell as driving sector-leading environmental results
He has a PhD in Chermcal Engineering from the University of Birrmingham and
has attended Harvard Bus:ness School

Executives serving for part of the year

Evelyn Dickey BSc [Hons) [55)
Director of Human Resources

Evelyn stepped down from the Executive Cornmuittee on 31 Augast 2017 ater
11 years of service

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhit Oxon, MBA (321)
Sec paga &9
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Governance

Governance Framework
| eadership & Effectiveness

Board of Directors

Responsible and accountable for the long term success of the Severn Trent Group, ensuring Severn Trent delivers
the Group’s strategic objectives whilst operating to the highest standards of corporate governance in meeting its
obligations to all stakeholders

Board Committees

Nominations
Committee

Keeps the structure,
size, compasition and
succession needs

of the Board under
review and assists
the Board on conflicts
of interestand
independence issues

Read more on
pages 80 to 82

Audit Committee

Assists the Baard
indischarging its
responsibilities for
the integrity of the
Cornpany s financral
statements, the
assessment of

the effectiveness

of the systems of
Internal Control,
Risk Managernent
and scrutinises the
work of the internal

and External Auditars.

It aiso reviews

the adeguacy of the
Companys
whistleblowing
arrangements

Read more on
pages 83to 8%

Corporate
Responsibility
Committee
Provides guidance
and direction to the
Company s
Corporate
Responsibility

and Sustainability
programme
based on Severn
Trent s values and
reviews the Group's
non-inancial nsks
and opportunties

Read more on
pages 2110 93

Severn Trent Executive Committee ['STEC)

Uversees the developrnent and execution of Group strategy, with
accountabivty for achieving financial and operational performance

CEOQ - Liv Garfield

Delegated responsility for the development and implementation of strategy

and overall commercial objectives, and responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business and the communication of Board agreed

Remuneration
Committee

Determines the
Company s policy on
the remuneratron of
Executive Oirectors,
other members of the
Executive Commuttee
and the Chairman of
the Board

Read more an
pages 96 to 128

Treasury
Committee*

Provides qversight of
treasuryactivities in
implementing the
policies, funding

and treasury risk
management plan
including. the
measurementand
management of risks
n respect of nterest
rates, funding,
counterparty credit,
Ligquidity and
treasury operabons,
funding proposals,
relationship with
rating agencies, debt
inwestor relations,
bank relationship
management,

and treasury
internal contrals

Read more on
page 90

Executive Sub-Committee

Disclosure Committee

Executive Sub-Committee overseeing
Severn Trent's compliance with its disclosure
obligations, considering the matenality,
accuracy, reliability and timebiness of
information disclosed and assessment

objecives to employees

of assurance received.

» Matters Reserved to the Board * Board strat
Governance atiers Reserv oard strategy days Corporate
¢ Terms of Reference for * Traning
Framework Board Committees « Board Effechiveness Review Governance
Foundations » Charter of Expectatrans * Policies and procedures Code
* Doing the Right Thing - * Owersity/independence
the Severn Trent Way
* Group Authorisation Arrangements
* Conflicts of Interest review
Y Mambe smpottie YRast v Canittee me v des bFeadat Loonr e3uury 3 con Boa g uosit o
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The Beard 1s responsible to all stakeholders, including the
Cornpany’s shareholders, for the approval and delivery of the
Group s strategic objectives. |t mzakes sure that the necessary
financial, technical and human rescurces are in place for the
Company tc meet its objectives The Board leads the Group
within a framewaork of practical and effective controls which
enable risk to be assessed and managed

Respensibility for the development and implementation of the
Group's strategy and overall commercial objectives is delegated
to the Chief Executive who 1s supported by the Severn Trent
Executive Cemrnittee [ STEC]

In compliance with the Code, the Beard also delegates certain
roles and responsibilities to its various Committees, which
assist by focusing in detail on their particular areas, reperting
to the Board on decisions and actions they've taken, and making
any necessary recemmendations in ine with their Terms

of Reference

Charter of Expectations

The Severn Trent Charter of Expectations sets out clearly the
defined rotes of the Chairman, Chief Executive, Chiel I inanciat
Officer, Senior Independent Director and Non-Executive
Directors, the operation of the Board and Board Committees,
and also reflects the Board's responsibility for setting the tone of
the Group s culture, values and behaviour In accordance with the
Code, 1t sets out a clear division of responsibilities between the
roles of Chairman and CEO

The Charter of Expectations is reviewed annually, with the
last review undertaken in March 2018 It's also used to assist
In the ongoing assessment of the effectiveness of the Board
and its Committees and that of indmidual Directors [see
page 79 for further detalsl 1tis available on our website
[www severntrent com|

Matters Reserved to the Plc Board

The Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board sets out
the processes in place regarding the Board's tasks and
activities and the matters specifically reser ved for the
Board s decision making A copy 1s available on our website
[www severntrent com)

The Board has reserved the following matters, amongst others,
for its own consideration

s the Group s strategic and operating plans,

» tinancial reporting and controls,

* rmajor acquisitions and disposals,

* key Group policies, and

» Group Authorisation Arrangemants [ GAA

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference for each Board Committee are
reviewed annually, updated to take account of best practice,

and to reflect the requirements of the UK Corpor ate Governance
Code las revised frorn time to time],

The sub-comrnittee structure 1s detailed in the Governance
Framewaork on page 72 and key responsibilities are set out
on page 74

Conflicts

The Board formally considers conflicts ot interest at every
meeting, and reviews the authorisation of any potential conflicts
of interest every six months

Group Authorisation Arrangements

The GAA Is the frarmework thraugh which the Severn Trent Ple
Board authorises the right people, at the right level, to take
irnportant decisions to effectively control and manage legal,
financial and admimistrative decisions throughout the Group
These arrangements are reviewed annually, with the last review
undertaken in Apnit 2018

The flow of guthority 1s fraom the Severn Trent Ple Board to the
Chief Executive and the Severn Trent Executive Committee

In respect of certain deaisions, the delegated authority 1s subject
to an obligation to work with specialist business service areas
(such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance, Group Commercial and
General Counsell, which provides additional expertise and a
group-wide perspective

‘Doing the Right Thing - the Severn Trent Way’

Ir addition to the Charter of Expectations and Terms of
Reference for the Board, and the company-wide GAA, Severn
Trent also sets out the cultural tone expected of its workforce
through clearly defined values and standards of behaviour that
are expected from everyone who works for the Severn Trent
Group lIts Code of Conduct ‘Doing the Right Thing - the Severn
Trent Way™ has been rolled out across the Group in the form of
all-employee training programme, 1s integral to the induction
process and 1s continuously re-enforced by management to
make sure thal all of our people embody Severn Trent's values

* we put cur custormers first,

e we are passionate about what we do,

* we act with integrity,

* we protect our environment, and

» we are;nspired to create an awesome company

Our Code of Conduct 1s key to helping us achieve our vision
of being the miost trusted water cornpany by 2020,

We know that the right culture must be sat from the top

Our annual employee engagement survey, QUEST, 1s therefore
designed to provide us with actionable data in a clear and
comprehensive form, giving us a better understanding on what's
going well and what can be improved across the whole of our
business QUEST is carried out by an independent research
company to ensure the results are anonymeous and results are
reported to the Board

Policies, Standards and Procedures

In addition to our Code of Conduct, Severn Trent has an
additional 12 policies which apply to everyone who works for
the Severn Trent Group These policies have been designed to
help employees and contractors understand their role within
the Company and their responsibility to the Severn Trent
Group They also, in turn, cutiine the Group's responsibility to
the mdividual These policies are the strategic link between
the Severn Trent vision and how we manage our day-to-day
business, and are underpinned by specific company standards
and procedures
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities
Leadership & Effectiveness

Board composition, roles and attendance

Where Divectors have not been able to attend meetings, they have still recewved related papers in advance of the scheduled meeting
and any input they have provided has been considered

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year, and the key roles of individuals and their attendance 1s set out overleaf
For additienal information on the activitics of the Board, se¢ pages 76 and 77.

There were 11 additional ad hoc meetings of the Board or Commuttee of the Board convened throughout the year

Dhrector Responsimbiy
Charrman Andrew Duff « [.eads our unified Board and 1s respansible for its effectiveness.
* Setsagendas and ensure bmely dissermination of information to the Board, i consultation
wath CEQ, CFQ and Company Secretary
* Responsible for scrutinising the performance of the Executive Committee
» Faciitates contribution from our Chrectars
« Ensures effechive communication with our sharehotders and other stakeholders
CEQ L Garfield * Develops and implements the Group's strategy, as approved by the Board
* Responsible for the overall commercial objectives of the Group
* Pramotes and conducts Group affairs with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
corporate governance
* Sets the cutturat tone of the organisation
CFO James Bowling » Manages the Graup’s financial affairs.
* Supports the CEQin the implernentation and achievernent of the Group's strategic objectives
51D Kevin Beeston « Supports the Chairman in delivery of his objectives
* Alternztive contact for shareholders should they have a concern that 1s unresalved by the
Chairman, CEQ or CFQ
* Leads the appraisal of the Chairman s performance with the Non-Executive Directors
* Key role n succession planning for the Boar d, together with the Board Commmttees, Chanan,
and NEDs
NED John Coghtan ¢ Constructively challenge our Executive Directors in all areas
Dominigue * Monitor the delivery of strategy by the Executive Committee within the risk and control
Reirche framework set by the Board
Dame Angela = Satisfy themselves that internal controls are robust and that the Exterral Auditis
Strank undertaken properly
Philip Remnant ¢ Responsible for agreemng appropriate levels of remuneration for Executive Direclors.
» Key rote m successon planming for the Board, together with the Board Cormmittees, Chairman,
and SID.
Exacutive Emma FitzGerald « Respansible for the Group's wholesale business until 31 December 2017
Director {untt 3112171 .

Supported the CEQ in the implementation and achrevement of the Group s strategre objectives
until 31 December 2017
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Board attendance g
April 17 3
May 17
June 17 ——
July 17 N
Aug 17 g
Sept 17 -
Oct 17 ]
Nov 17 =
Gec 17 :
Jan 18 :
Feb 18 :
Mar 18

Board Meeting Audit Nerminations Remuneration Treasury CR
Director Attendance Commuttee ! Commitiee Comrmttee Cormmittee Comrnittee '
Andrew Duff W7 - 4f4 b6 - 213
Liv Garfield W7 - - - - 3/3
James Bowling 77 - - - 6/6 -
Kevin Beeston" 6/7 4/ 414 /6 - -
John Coghlan®™ 517 414 3/4 - b6 _
Dominigue Reiniche 7 - 4J4 - - 3/3
Dame Angela Strank 77 - 414 b6 - 3/3
Philip Remnant W7 B 34 afh b6 b/6 - _

Emma FitzGerald {untt 3112171 5/5 — — — —

Il includes the scheauled Beard meet ngs Seme additional meetings have beenrequired to cover specific matters threagnout the year
Il Kesin Beeston wie unable to attend a Beard meeting due to illness during the year

) John Coghlan was unable to attend a Beard and Committer mecting die to 2 hereayement

Committee membership key

Audit Committen Remuneration Cornmutten
Corporate Responsibility Committee Treasury Commuttee
Nominations Commistee Board
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities continued

L eadership & Effectiveness

Board activities

The 1able below sets out the main matters considered by the
Beard in 2017/18 at its scheduled Board meebings and the
updates covered as part of its Lunch and Learn and operational
site visit sessions The Board's agenda s ordinantly structured
as follows

» procedural matters hncluding Board Cornmittee reports),

e performance review including health and safety, operational,
customer and hinancial matters),

* sirategic items, and

= iterns for gpproval/neting lincluding the Company Secretary's
Update on governance, legal and regulatory issues]

This structure has been agreed to ensure that Matters Reserved
to the Board are addressed appropriately and that the Board's
time 1s spent effectively Strategic items are regularly presented
to the Board by senior managers within the business, giving

the Directors the opportunity to meet with key members of
management who report Iinto the Executive team Thrs also
assists the succession ptanning process

Board strategy days

In addition to formal meetings at which strategic matters are
regularly reviewed, in June 2017 the Board held a dedicated
strategy meeting along with the Executive Committee to consider
areas of future value creation across the Group and spent time
considering asset strategy and potenbal future disruptors,
regulatory strategy and growth strategies across our portfolio

of businesses For 2018, success of the PR1? plans are key,
therefore a good portion of the Board's strategy meeting 1s
scheduled to focus on this Over the medium tolong term it s
anticipated that opportunities and risks to the business will come
from emerging technologies such as aruftciat intelligence and
robohics so this will be on the agenda, together with mergers and
acquisitions and a discussion about our future people strategy

The format of each day involves a few topics being discussed
m-depth, with external speakers to challenge thinking and an
wteractive approach io each of the corversatons
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Summary Board Activities 20417/18

Overview

All Board meetings are a full day's agenda consisting of
Frocedural matiers, Perforrmance Reviews, Strategy, iterns
for approval/noting. Nuriher details are prowided below

Board Focus ~ Topics & Actions

Procedural matters

Agreeing minutes of last meeting, reviewing progress against
specific actions, Updates from the Chairman of each Board
Committee has been strategically moved to this early part of the
agenda to retlect the inpor tance of the Committees” activities.
See Committee reports on pages 80 to 93 for further details

Performance Reviews

Reviews are receved from the CEQ and CFO at every meeting
and from Directorates at reqular intervals There has been a
strong focus on Production, Custormer Delivery and Capital
Delvery & Comrmercial during the year. The financial reviews
have included consideration of the Annual Report and Accounts
and the pension scheme funding, in addition to budget and
dvidend approval Frorm 2018, separate operational reviews for
the Regulated Business and those for Business Services have
been introduced to better reflect how the Group's divisions operate

Strategy

Whitlst the following 1s not an exhaustive List of all the matters
the Board have considered during the financral year, it does
Indicate the key areas of actmity and hopefully prowide insight
into the sirategic workings of the Board:

Upper Quartie As part of its focus on achieving and
marmaining Upper Quartle retai, water and waste performance
as measured by Ofwat, the Board have reviewed a route map of
key milestones on outpuls $o it can monitor progress towards
achieving this aspiration

M&A Strategy The Board have continued to keep rmerger and
acguisition opportunities under review and gave more detaied
consyderation to this matter at wts Strategy Day

Bioresources Trading The Board have been considering the
opportunities created by the devetoprnent of this rnarket
Technology and potential investment opportunities have been
discussed and considered in move depth at s Strategy Oay

insourcing Opporiunities To address service issues, the
Board have considered proposals forinsourcing, explonng
atternative models and seeking practical worked examples
frorm management for specified issues and considering the
resources requwed (n each case

Water Resources Managerment Plan The Board have
challenged the prascribed methodology and drilled down in
terms of the assumptions, variances and scenarios n addiion
to simply testing alternative methadologies, applying the
expertise of those Board members who have the skills set

for such matters,

Dee Valley Water Limited Board Compesition: Further to
censultatian with Ofwat, the Board, inconsultation with
the Nomnatrons Committee, have considered the future
make-up of the Dee Valley Water Limited Board, appormnted
the Charmrman of this Board and appointed three new
independent Non-Executive Directors



Customer Service: Aswell as receiving updates on performance
at every meeting the Beard met with CCW for both England and
Wales to listen to its perspective on Customers views on Severn
Trent's performance

OSUK&I Update: Fallowing the transfer of customers to Water
Flus and the sale of its [talian and US businesses, the Board has
reviewed the operational effectiveness of its Business Services
operations in the UK and Ireland and the future structure of

this division of the business moving forward, commending
management on markedly improved customer satisfaction and
better performance It s keeping oppeortunities for growth and
the risk profile of each business unit under review.

PR19: This price review 1s a particulariy challenging area this
year [further detalls on pages 16 to 17) and the Board has
therefore spent a commensurate amount of time on 1t to enable
progressive scrutiny

Enterprise Risk Management [[ERM’] Update: The Board
receives six monthly updates on ERM risks Foliowing its
feedback to management, the Board now receives ‘Cost to
Target and Flightpath analysis an Board level risks, the former
providing confirmation that rnisk reductien actians have been
reflected in the budgeting process, business plans and long
range plans, and the latter mapping out the risk reduction over
time The combined effect of these enhancernents now provides
the Board with greater insight to enable reprioritisation of such
risks enabling more efficient risk reduction. Tne Board 1s atso
rolling out true cost of control approach across all ERM risks

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy: The Board recewved an
update and noted pleasing progress with the achievement of
certain important milestones during the year [see page 41 for
further information] but acknowledges there are still further
Issues to improve upon and the cultural challenge continues

Property Strategy: The Board considerad the new clear strategy
and approved the communication of property profits to the market
and the inclusion of property profits in future business targets

to reflect the vaiue ansing frorm that strategy in the Company's
share price

Review of Water Plus Performance: The Board receives six
monthly updates on Water Plus Whilst the business has been
competing well in the market, the Board keeps the performance
of Water Plus under close scrutiny

HomeServe Update: The Board has reviewed the HomeServe
affinity partnership,

Re-nationalisation Debate: The Board has been closely
following topical debate around the propesal by the Labour
Party in its May 2017 election manifesto to re-nationalise
utilities mcluding the water sector.

Water Quality: The Board met with the OWl and imvited 1t to give
feedback on the Company's water quality performance, bothin
terms of current performance and challenges for the next AMP

Business Security and Resilience Review: The Board have kept
abreast of progress during the year through its established
incident management steering group which continuatly reviews
and learns from incidents, both planned events and real
incidents |t receives reports which include a guide path showing
pragress against specified targets.

Cyber Security: Given the Cyber Security landscape continues
to evolve with an increasing level of activity and a number of

high profile incidents for other companies and government
departrments, the Board has received an update on the
Company's Cyber Security Roadmap during the year It noted
the scrutiny by the Natienal Cyber Security Centre, 1ts risk based
approach and investment prionities, and increased in-house
support and positive reviews by Defra and PwC

GDPR: The Board recognises that the implementation of GDPR
15 chattenging but through a considered update during the year
was reassured about what has to be dene by management
Inorder to prepare for it it has scheduled future updates to
reviaw progress

Innovation Investment Review: The Board reviewed the
work of the iInnovation team and the progress that has been
made to accelerate the pace of application in deploying value-
generating technology

{tems for approval/noting

This s a standing item an the agenda to meet the requirements
of the business in terms of approving matters such as

leases and land disposals, the alignment of water licences
iparticularly in ight of re-defining the English/Welsh boundaries
following the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Limited), and
setting tariff charges This item always includes the Company
Secretary’s Update to address regular reviews of governance
matlers [by way of exarmple see annual reviews shown below],
keep abreast of regulatory changes and obtain Board approvals
for specific matters reserved to the Board.

Annual Governance Reviews

s Oirectors’ conflicts of interest,

» Gifts and Hospitality Register,

» Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement,
s Board Diversity Palicy,

* Sharesave Invitation,

Board Evaluation Process,

* Board Committee Terms of Reference,
e Charter of Expectations,

* Matters Reserved to the Board,

Group Authorisation Arrangements, and

e Feedback from Institutional Shareholders

Lunch and Learn Sessions
The Board's time has been maximised by utilising the time spent
over lunch to conduct deep dives inte topics such as

» Investor Technology Day,

s Building an ethical culture,

* H52, update on route, programmes and costs,
* Nationalisation Defence Debate,

* Water Forum, and

Responding to customers inspiring the next generation
of water users
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Governance

Effectiveness
Leadership & Effectiveness

Term of office

The Board recognises the Code's recornmendation that Directors
serve a fixed term of appointment and considers plans for
orderly succession to the Board to maintam an appropriate
balance of skills and experience within the Company As such,
the Company maintains a clear framework of Non-Executive
Directar tenure and the skiil set that each Director provides
Indmidual Directors biographies can be found on pages 68 and
&9 Inaccordance with the Code, all the Directors witt retire at
this year's AGM and subrt themselves for reappomtment by
shareholders An overview of tenure for the Board is shown in the
table on page 67 Each ol the Non-Executive Directors seeking
reappointment at the AGM 1s cansidered by the Board ta be
independent in character and judgement.

Diversity

The Board and Nominations Committee are committed to
diversity Fernale representatton on the Board exceeds 30%

in respect of the main Board and is 40% on the Executive
Committee [see table on page 6] There is also a continual
focus on promoting wider diversity We helieve that our Company
should reflect our communities and custemers, and embrace

a diverse range of perspectives, experiences and expertise to
suppert our tong term viabilty and cormnmercial success

We are committed to developing our talent pipeline, to ensure

we have appropriate representation from rminority ethnic
candidates, as well as other relevant diverse groups. You can find
additional details an our progress and ambitions on page 81 of
ihe Norminations Comrmmuiitee report and details of diversity across
the Severn Trent Group on page 81,

Training and continuing professional
development

As well as Board agenda iterns, training sessions in relation to
speafic topics of interest that were presented to Directors during
the year are set out on page 77

The aim of the traming sessions is to continually refresh and
expand the Board's knowledge and skills to enable them to

fulfil they roles effectively on the Beard and its Commuttees and
contribute ta discussions on techrical and regulatory matters
The sessions alsa serve as an apportunity for the Board to
discuss strategy and risks with management below Executive
Committee level and gatn further insight inte our businesses and
managernent capabibty,

Directors’ resources

Anonline resource library and Continuing Professional
Development | CPD’] repository 1s available for use by the
Directors, which is conslantly reviewed and updated The library
includes a Corporate Governance Manual, a Results Centre and
Investor Relations section, Strategy Day materials and details of
Board tramning sessions It also contains a further reading section
which covers updates and gurdance on changes to tegistahon
and corporate governance best practice. The Direciors also have
access to professionat development provided by externat bodhes
and our advisers, CPO requirements were considerad, through
indidual performance review meetings between the Chairman
and each Oirector, as part of the externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review 1in 2017/18
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Induction programme

Whilst there have been no new appointments to the Board
of Severn Trent Plc during the year, there 1s an induction
prograrmme in place which can be tallored as applicable and
includes the following elements/details

¢ Ofwat pre-appointment process,

* Campany structure including regulatory overview
and performance,

« Company strategy,

* Key stakehotder retations including customers, suppliers,
regulators and service providers,

* Key operations and processes including operational areas and
key sies,

* Finanaial pertormance including analyst and investor opinron,

* Our people - including health, safety and wellbeing, talent
and succession, trade unions and an overview of our
Remuneration Policy,

* Group risk profile and ou approach to risk,

* Governance Framework,

+ Board calendar, effectiveness reviews and action plans, and
¢ Insight into key areas of focus for any speaific apporntment

We will continue te enhance the Board s induction process,
particutarly bearing in mind feedback from new appointees

The new Independent Non-Executive Directors of Dee Valley
Water Limited receved an approprate induction facilitated by
the Company Secretary covering the above topics, as well as a
tour of key operational sites to understand our water treatrment
and distributron processes, and the customer journey, in a live
environiment, as follows

* Water process ~ from ram to tap,
* Waste water process - from drain to river, and

» Customer journey - from moving into & new home to
moving out

Independence of NEDs

The independence of our Non-Executive Directors 1s formally
reviewed annually by the Nominations Commuttee, and as part
of the Board evaluation exercise The Norminations Committee
and Board constder that there are no business or other
arcumstances that are likely to affect the independence of any
Non-Executive Director and that all Non-Executive Directors
continue to dernonstrate independence The Board recognises
the Code's recornmendation that Directors serve a fixed term
of appointment and considers plans for orderly succession

to the Board to maintain an appropriate balance of skills and
experience within the Company Indnadual Director bingraphies
can be found on pages 68 and 49 In accardance with the Code,
all the Directors will retire at this year's AGM and submut
themselves for reappointment by shareholders Each of the
Non-Executive Directors seeking reappointment are considered
to be independent in jJudgement and character.



Board Evaluation
Leadership & Effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Board and of the Board's committees is
reviewed annually and progress 1s reviewed every six months

An independent externally facilitated review of the effectiveness
of the Beard is conducted every three years An externally
facilitated evaluation was therefore undertaken this year, the

last having taken place In 2014/15 Manchester Square Partners
[ MSP') who undertook the pravious review, were chosen

to facilitate the exercise to provide continuity and measure
progress aganst their prior review MSP has ne other connection
with the Company.

While the Board was functioning well at the time of the last
external review & number of areas were highlighted for attention.

* Strategy While there was alignment at a high level on the
strategic priorities there was more to be done on agreeing
the strategic opportunities to be pursued and the plans to
achieve these

Pace of change There was a need to ensure the pace of
change could be delivered in a sustainable way, with the
Board considering major change earlier in the process,

so as to be able to review over several meetings and provide
appropriate support and challenge

Mentoring Talent management and succession planning were
identified as needing further focus once the new Fxecutive
team was in place

»

Board Agenda Change suggested to provide more time
to discuss a range of strategic oppertunities and other key
ntiatives, whilst not losing focus on per formance and finance

MSP concluded that sigruficant progress had been made since
2014/15 and there had been a noticeable step change in the focus,
alignmant, contribution and effectiveness of the Board with well
planned and structured board agendas

Review dimensions

Strategy, challenges and risks, and values and cullure,

Role of the Board, Board dynamics and engagement,

Structure of the Board, its composition and succession planning,
Governance, execution and leadership

The process for the 2017/18 review 1s set out below

Stept MSP briefed by Chairman and Company Secretary and
attended the January Board Meeting in order to observe
the Board first hand, They were also provided with access
to prioryears’ Board and Committee papers and minutes
and details of the previous internat reviews and progress

updates to provide relevant background matenal

Step2 MSP conducted face-to-face interviews with each Director

and the General Counsel and Cormpany Secretary.

Step3 MSP produced a report seting out their findings
which they discussed with the Chairman and Senicr
Independent Director Details of their observations and
suggested focus areas are shown below, tagether with

the related actions arising frem the evaluation process

Step4  The Charman met with each of the Directors and the
General Counset and Company Secretary to discuss

the perforrmance of the Board and their individual
contrioutions The Semior Independent Director met with
the Nan-Executive Directors to discuss the performance
of the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors met to

discuss the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

Stepd MSPF'sreport discussed by the Norminations Committee
inits consideration of the re-election of Directors and
reported to the full Board atits meeting in April 2018,

together with a recemmendation by MSP

Stepb6  Six-monthly reviews of progress aganst

recornmendations in the report

MSP reported favourably against all dimensions to the 2017/18
review with noticeable alignment on strategy and areas of
potential challenges and risk Qverall, the Board functioned
extrermely well and in Ling wath first class corpor ate governance
There were only two areas requiring further development,

as follows

« Continuing to maintain focus on strategic, operational and
reputational priorities other than PR19, and
* Amore structured plan for succession planning and talent

development discussions at Nominations Committee and
the Board

Step 1
Briefing and
observation
Step5 Step 2
Presentation tep
to the Board and Face-to_-face
consideration interviews
by Mominations
Committee
Stepd Step 3
Individual MSP report
meetings with on findings

Chairman/SiD
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Governance

Nominations Committee report
|eadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

“A significant part of the
Committee’s work this year
has been in developing our
talent pipeline with a focus
on the need for diversity.”

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Attendance table

Meetings Max
Member of the Naminations Commitiee attended possible
Andrew Duff [Chairman] 4 4
JohnCoghten” "~~~ " " 73 i
Dominique Reiniche 4 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4
PhupRemnant & 4
Dame Angela Strank 4 4

il John Coghlan was unable tg attend 4 Comimittes roacting dug ta

a hereavernent
The members of the Committes in 2017/18 were the
Nan-Executive Directers of the Board Only members of the
Comrmittee have the rnight to attend Committee mestings
Other individuals such as the Chief Executive, members of
senior rhanagement, the Director of Human Resources and
external advisers may be invited to attend meetings as and
when appropriate
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Introduction

As Chatrman of the Nominations Commuttee, | am pleased

to introduce the report of the Nominations Commuttee which
details the role of the Cornmittee The pages that follow provide
additional detarls on the role of the Commuttee and the work it
has undertaken during the year

Throughout the year, increased focus continued to be given to

the Group’s succession and contingency planning and diversity
needs. Discussion centred on the importance of developing, and
malntarung, a diverse range of perspectives, skills, expernences
and expertise, essential to ensuring our long-terrm viability and
commercial success More inforrmation on our diversity imntiatives
can be found in the Strategic report on page 40

Other significant parts of the Committee's work this year have
been the evaluation of the Board, its Commuttees and Directors
and developing our talent pipetine for Directors and fugh
performing indwiduals below Board levelwith a focus on the
need for diversity The Committee also considered and approved
the appointment of three Independent Non-Executive Directors to
the Board of Dee Valley Water Limited

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Norninations Cornmittee responsibilities
The respansibibities of the Nominations Commitiee include

reviewing the structure, size and composition {including the
skills, knowledge, experience, availability and diversity) of

the Board,

reviewing the leadership needs of the Company, both Executive
and Non-Executive, at regular intervals,

reviewing the adeguacy of Board and Executive succession
planming in tha long and short term,

ensuring an effectiveness review of the Board, its Committees
and Directors are conducted annually,

recommending to the Board the appointment or reappoiniment
by shareholders of Directors at the AGM, in accordance with
the Code, and

carrying out an annugl review of the Cormpany policy on Board
tevel diversity.

The Nominations Comrmittee Terms of Reference, which were
updated in May 2018, can be found al www severntrent com



Nominations Committee activities

Diversity and succession planning

As highlighted earlier in the report, the Beard and Nominations
Committee continue to drive the agenda of diversity across the
Group and are proud of the progress made, especially in respect
of fermale representation on the Board and Executive Commuttee
{now at 37 5% and 40% respectivelyl A breakdown by gender

of the number of persens who were Directors of the Cornpany,
senior managers and other employees as at 31 March 2018 1s set
out below

The Board also remains fecused on promoting broader
diversity, and creating an inclusive culture in ine with the
recormnrmendations from the Parker and McGregor-Smith
reviews Adiverse organisation benefits from differences in
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender, sexual ornentation, religion, belief and age, as well as
culture and personality The Board 1s committed to building
on existing graduate, apprentice and leadership programmes
to embed inclusvity in our succession planning and talent
development work to strengthen our talent pipeline, with

an enhanced focus on ensuring appropriate representation
from munority ethnic candidates, as well as other relevant
diverse cohorts

The Board Diversity Policy (the Policy |, which1s approved
annually by the Board, was updated and approved by the Board
in Gctober 2017 The objective of the Policy 1s to develop a
pipeline of diverse high calibre candidates for Board level roles
The Narminations Committee reviews the Board's effectiveness
and composition each year and, in particular, considers the
balance of skills, experience and independence of the Board,

I accordance with the Policy It considers the benefits of all
aspects of diversity but without compromise as to the calibre
of Directors, when identifying candidates for appointment

The selection of candidates to join the Board will continue to be
rmade based on merit and the individual's ability to contribute to
the effectiveness of the Board, which in turn will be dependent
on the pool of candidates avallable To support this, we continue
only lo engage wilh executive scarch firms who have signed

up to the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and BAME
dwersity and best practice Diversity was a key consideration
for the Commuittee when nominating candidates to the Board of
Dee Valley Water Limited during the year Throughout the year,
focus also continued to be given to succession and contingency
planning, ncluding diversity needs Succession Planning 1s
reviewed annuatly by the Committee with discussion centred on
the importance of developing and maintaining a diverse range
of perspectives, skills, experiences and expertise, essential

to ensuring our long-term viability and commercial success
With great graduate and apprenticeships programmes, as well
as external hires and internal promotions, we are keento make
further progress in identifying, developing and progressing top
talent through the organisation, ensuring succession remains in
line with the Groups strategic needs.

Talent development

We cantinue to recogrise the importance of developing our
people and as such talent managerent remains a key topic of
discussion The Group's five year talent plan focuses on bunlding
both technical and leadership capability, and creating talent
prpelines for the future

We currently have a total of 73 graduates in traiming -

38 places were offered in 2016 and 35 1n 2017. We have

four entry programmes for graduates — Business Leadershig,
Finance, IS and Engineering Our placements programme
for undergraduates offers a range of summer and 12 month
placements across Engineering, Finance and the Visitor
Experience teams, with 21 opportunities hilled in 2017

We currently have 161 apprentices in traimng In 2017, we
launched four new Apprenticeship programmes within Finance,
Group Commercial, Project Management and Senior Network
Technicizn populations This means we now have nine active
Apprenticeship programmes, and we expect this to increase to
120 2018, which includes a degree level legal Apprenticeship and
a Higher Apprenticeship in HR

We have been a key partner in the developmeant and
implementation af the new water industry apprenticeships
standards through the Government’s Trailblazer inihative

Gender diversity
at 31 March 2018

Graph removed Graph removed Graph removed
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Severn Trent Board diversity figures
Terure [Years]
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Governance

Nominations Committee report continued

Leadership & Effectiveness

As one of the 13 firms making up the employer group we have
ensured that Severn Trent has been at the forefront of the
development of this new avenue for apprenticeships There are
now two Traitblazer prograrnmes being successfully delivered
across the industry for Water Process Technicians ['WPT') and
Utilites Engineering Techmician [UET ) and we currently offer
both of these Apprenticeship routes in partnership with our
learning pravider, the EEF Technoiogy College

Qurinnavative detivery madal far Trailblazer has allowed us to
design a programme that ensures high quality apprenticeship
traning delivered in just 24 months - significantly faster than
any previous schemes, as elsewhere in the industry this course
would take at teast 36 - 48 months for apprentices to complete,
and we are proud to have had the first four water industry
Traiblazer apprentices in the UK to complete the new standard
and qualify through the new assessment model

Evaluation of the Board

The effectiveness of the Board 15 rewiewed annually and an
independent extarnally facitated review of the effectiveness

of the Board s conducted every three years and conducted
according to the guidance set out in the Code The Board
therefore conducted an externally facilitated board effectiveness
evaluation this year, the last having taken place in 2015

This year, the Board evatuation was externally faciitated by
Manchester Square Partners with support from the Chairman
and Company Secretary The next externally facilitated review s
scheduled for 2021 Mere infermation on the Board evaluation
can be found on page 79 of the Governance report

The subsequent report prepared by Manchester Square
Partners was discussed by the Norminations Commuittee in

Progress against 2016/17 Action Plan

Its consideration of the re-election of Directors and it was also
the subject of a presentation to the Board

As part of the evaluation, full consideration was given to

the number of external posttians held by the Non-Executive
Directors We reviewed Directors’ other appomntments, including
the time commitment required for each, as part of the evaluation
exercise The cutcome of which 1s as foilows

Mumter of Lrstzd Chmpar ¥
Appomtriers

as Nar-Exetriive

Drrector irmiudiny

Savern Trent PI7)

MNarber of Lismed Compary
ARPOINTTcrS
45 Charman mcluding

Dicerar Sewedn Trert Ple]

Kewin Beeston 1

1

James Bowling

John Coghlan
Androw Duff

1]
1
0

oo

Emma FitzGerald - -
[Stepped Down
31 December 2017)

LivGarfield 0

=}

Dorminigue Reiniche 0

V\J\E\J

Phitip Rermnant 1

Dame Apgela Strank 0 |

As aresult of this review, the Commuttee did not identify any
Instances of overboarding and confirms that all individual
Director s have sufficient time to commit to their appeintment
asa Oirector of Severn Trent Plc

The full list of external appointments held by our Non-Executive
Drrectors can be found on pages 68 and 69

The areas identified for further focus and attention in the April 2017 Board Effectiveness Report to the Board were.

Area fos further ‘pous identfied

10 2016/17 internal review

Progress against areas for further focusident fed in 2017/18 incernal review

Seeking opportunibies to imprave
the ethnic diversity of the Board

Whilst there are currently no vacancies on the ST Plc and STW Boards, the recruitment w
of Dee Valley NEDs gave an opportunity to seek to improve the diversity of the Group's
NED population.

Succession planning for the
Execulive team

Neil Morrison has only recently taken up the role of HR Director but talent development
and succession planning will be an area of focus for um going forward The new role
of Production Manager on STEC also creates less of a big ‘step up In terms of senior
operational succession

Addional/more depth of content
on regutatory topies in director
induction material

The regulatory section of the induction material and the induchion programme will have
additbional face to face meetings vath the regulatory team, 3 and 6 months in, following
appointment John Ceghlan has alse kindly agreed to help provide support to any new
Director in this regard,

Irmproved communication of
Committee proceedings to
the Board

Committee meeting reports now take place at the beginning of every Board meeting giving
a greater opporturuty for non-members to ask questions or seek clarification,

Adistinct separation of strategy
days from Board meeting as

an oppertuntty to step back and
dhscuss, debate and interrogate

The recent strategy day was entirely different in format, offsite and with external speakers,
and recewed very pesitive feedback from NEDs

Further information 1s available within the Board Evaluation section on page 79
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Audit Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee continues
to focus on ensuring the
adequate mitigation of risks
faced by the Group.”

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Attendance table

Membe- of the Mestings Max
Aadit Commuttee attended possible
John Coghlan (Chairman 4 4
Philip Remnant 3 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4

In addition to the attendance set out above, Andrew Duff, the
CEQ, the CFQ, the Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financial
Controller and the External Auditor normally attend, by invitation,
all meetings of the Commuittee Other members of senior
rnanagement are also invited to atlend as appropriate

The Committee regularly holds private discussions with the Head
of Internal Audit and the External Auditor separately, without
Executive management present The Chairman regularly holds
separate one-to-cne meetings with the CFO, the Head of Internal
Audit and the External Auditor to betler understand any 1ssues or
areas for concern

Durirg 2017/18, the Commuttee held live addilional quarate
meetings convened at short notice

Introduction

As Chairman of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to introduce
the report of cur role and the work we have undertaken during
the year The pages that follow provide additianal detail on the
activibies and discussions of the Committee and provides an
overview of the significant 1ssues the Commitlee assessed and
steps taken to address any 1ssues identified

The Cornmuttee hias continued to play a key role in supporting the
Board in discharging its oversight responsitulities for the integrity
of the Company’s financial staterments and matiers relating to
the Group's system of internal cantrels and risk rmanagement

As such, thereis a continued focus on ensuring the adequate
mitigation of risks faced by the Group This report provides
additional detail of how we carried out our risk assessment
activities and you can read more about how we 1dentify and
rmanage risks on pages 57 and 58 of our Strategic report

Other significant pats of the Committee’s work this year

have included oversight of the relationship with our External
Auditor, Including the assessment o Its ongoing objectivity

and independence, overseeing the assurance of requlatory
returns made by Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley
Water Limited to Ofwat, oversight of the wholesale charges,

new connections charging, PR1? assurance framework,
customer QDI forecast, company monitering frarmework and
Water Resource Management Plan for both Severn Trent Water
Linrnited and Dee Valley Water Limited.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Audit Commuttee include

+ oversight of financial statements and accounting policies,
* review of risk management and internal controls,

» oversight of Internal and External Audit,

» review of the adequacy of the Group's precedures for
whistleblowing, reporting fraud and other inappropriate
behaviour, including reviewing reports of all altegations
at their meetings,

* review of the Financial Reporting Council [ FRC | reporting
requirements on Going Concern and Long-Term Viability
Statements, and

» reguiatory reporting obligations of our subsidiaries Severn
Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited

The Audit Committee Terms of Reference, which were updated
in March 2018, can be found at www severntrent.com
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Audit Committee activities
A surmmary of the matters considered at each meeting 1s set out below

Meeang

Mzters considercd

May 2017

Septernber 2017

November 2017

» Financial results 2016/17

* Severn Trent Plc Annual Reperct and Accounts 2016/17. including fair, balanced and understandable review

» Severn Trent Water Limited Annual Repart and Accounts 2016/17

# Regulatory Annual Performance Report and Annual Regulatory Compliance Staterneant for Severn Trent Water Limited
ana (ee Valley Water Lumited

* Regulatory Annual Performance Report assurance, including ODIs for Severn Trent Water Limited

= internal contrel and risk management effectiveness

« External Audit Deloitte year end final report

» Whistleblowing update

s Internal Audit half-year report

» Gifts and Hospitality Update

« External Audit 2017/18 plan and terms of engagement

¢ External Audit Review of non-audit fees

= Oraft Wholesale charges

« Enterprise Risk Management update

¢ Water Resource Management Plan for Severn Teent Water Lirnited and Dee Valley Water Limited
= Assurance Mapre design

« Whistleblowing update

* PR19 Assurance Framework

* Interim rosults

» External Audit Delortte half-year report

* Management Representation letters

* Regulatery Company Manitoring Framowork

= Report from the Disclosure Committec

e Severn Trent Water Limited Custerner QDI Forecast
» Water Resource Mapagement Plan

* Materal litigation and compliance update

» Whistleblowing update

Oecember 2017

January 2018

» Dee Valley Water Lirnited - Water Resources Mamagernent Plan
* Water Resources RCV Allocation for PR19
* New Caonnections Charging

* New Connectrons Charging

March 2018

« Finance Year end considerations and Long-Term Viability Statement update

= Regulatery Year end considerations, Annual Performance Report and Annual Compliance Statement
» Regulatory WICS Compliance Statement

» Eaternal Audt Effectiveness review

» Extornal Audit Non-audit fees policy and review of non-audit fecs

= Committee Terms of Reference

« Internal Audit 04 Update

 Internal Audit Plan 20718/1%

= Enterprise Risk Management update - Draft Principal Risks 2018 for the Annual Report
* Report from the Disclosure Committee

» Material litigation and legal compliance update

» Whistleblowing update

* Bribery and fraud prevention and detection

» Assurance Map update

* Accounting policies update

* Subsidiary Audit Exemptions

In addition to the matters censidered above, the Committee reviewed the proposed presentations to analysts in conjunction with the
draft results announcements for both the interim and full year results, applying particular attention to the tone of the announcements
and presentations to maintain consistency with the financial staternents. In reviewing the financial staternents, the Committee
recerves input from the Disclosure Committee, a sub-committee of the Executive Committee which 1s chaired by the CFO

In May 2018, the Audit Cormmitlee also reviewed the outcome of the process to conlirm that the Annual Report and Accounlts are
‘fair, balanced and understandable” The Disctosure Committee undertook a detailed review of the Annual Report and Accounts prior
to making a recommendation to the Board that it could make the fair, balanced and understandable statements contained in the
Directors’ Responsibilihes Statement on page 135
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Significant financial statement reporting issues

The Committee tooked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which required significant accounting judgements or
whel e there was estimation uncertamty These areas are explained in note 4 of the financial statements on page 152

The Committee receves detalled reports from both the CFO and the External Auditor an these areas and on any other matters

which they believe should be drawn to the attention of the Committee The Committee also reviews the draft of the External Auditor s
report on the financial statements, with particular reference to those matters reported as carrying risks of material misstaternent.
The Committec discusses the range of possible treatments both with rmanagement and with the Dxternal Auditor and satisfics itself
that the judgements made by managerment are robust and should be supperted. The significant 1ssues that the Committee considered

in 2017/18 were

fssue

How the 1ssue was addressed by the Committee

Going concet n basis far the linanaia statements and long-term
viabibity staterment

The Cormmuttec reviewed and challenged the ewdence and assumptions underpinning
the use of the going concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in making the
staternents in the Strategic report on gaing concern and long-termv-ability

Deterrmination of the orovision forimparment of trade recevables
n Severn Trent Water Limited

At 31 March 20°8, the provisaan in Sevorn Trent Water Limited s
financial stalements was £124 3 miuen and the charge for the
yearwas £23 0 ~illion

Severn Trent Water Lirmited has a statutery obligation to continue
ta suppty water and waste watcr servicos to custemears even
whentharoilis are urpa d Th sincreases the risk of bad dobts
In add tion it has & large and diverse cus.ome- base which
reqaires impairments against rrade recervabies to be assessed
ona systemalic bas s

The Committee cnallenged the changes made to the metnodology far ca’calating the
pravison during the year and critcally appraised management s explanatiens for
these changes

The Commettee considered the work performed by the Auditor and e conclusions
they reached regarding the adequacy of the provision

The Comrmuttes determned that no adjustrnznt to the aorounts recorded was
requred

Revenue recogritionin relation to the estimatian of metered
revenue from the new nor-household retail marketin Severn
Trent Water _imited

I the year ended 31 Macch 2018, Severn Trent Water Limted
recogrised £374 4 milionin revence from sa es to retailers
in the new non-household reta | market

On 1 April 2017, the non-household retaik market in England opened
to competition This enabled all non-household customers to
choose their water and waste water supplier although wholesale
services remained with the incumbent cormpanies Market Operator
Services Limited [ MOSL) was establshed te operate the market
and to provide data to wholesalers and retailers to allow settlernent
betweer market participants to take place MOSL provides data for
monthly settlemert periods based on actual meter readings and
estimations extrapolated from the last known meter read Thisis
an iterative pracess with subseguent settlement runs including
more actual readings for the same pericd Empirical observations
have shown that metered consumgption 1s consistently higher than
the previous estimates

The Committes does nol consider thal there is a sig~ ficant risk of a mate- al
adjustment in resoecl of lhis estimate in the next finanz al year because the
estimated amcunt s not matenal Nevertheless, the Commuttee considered this to
be a sign:' can ss.e because the systems and processes are new and the amounts
recogn.sed are subject to management judgement

Tnec Committee reviewced tne process for calculating the metered revenue cstimata
from mon-houserold retailers and considered the reasonableness of the estrmates
inthe light of emerging trends and the experience of other market participants

The Committee scrutinised management s evidence suppo tng s udgermeans
and examined the data from the underlying cvidence The Commuttee discussed
the Auditor s work and theinr conclusions.

The Comrmittee determined that the approach taken by management was
reasanable and that na adjustment was required fo the amo nts recognised
inthe financial stalements

The proposed classificalion of costs between operating expenaiture
and capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water Limited

Severn Trent Water Limired has a sigrificant capital programme
that includes projects made up of a combination of expenditure
and activities, some of which are recognised as property, plant and
equipment and some of which are recogrnised as operating costs
For most of the expenditure this distmction 1s clear but there (s an
element where subjective judgements are required to determine
the appropriate accounting treatment

The Commrmittee considered the apelization of the Group s accounting policies in
relation to capital expenditure during the year

The Committee enguired of rmanagement whether the policies had been applied
cansistently from year to year and sought explanatian for the increase in amounts
caprtalised The Cormrmittee considered the results of the Auditor s work ana
discussed the conclusions with the Auditor

Ihe Committee determined that ne adjustment to the amounts recorded
was reguired
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Issue How the issue was addressed by the Commities
Deterrination of the amount of the Group s retirement benefit The Comnmittec scrutinised the assumptions underlying the valuation of the
obligations obligations, nating and prebing assumptions that were not in ine with their

expectations The Comrmittee consider ed whether the assurnptions taken
as a whole were appropriate, taking account the work of the Auditor and the
benchmark information grovided by them

AL 21 March 2018, pet retrrement benefi- obligations amount ng to
£519 8 million were recognised

The net cbligation recogmised on the balance sheet s the difference
between the fair value of the schemes’ assets at the balance sheet
dare and lhe present value of the benefits axpected ro be paid to
members of the schemes This regquires assumptions to be made
regarding expected age of retirernent and longewty of membpers
future inflatior rates and increases to benefits. It1s also necessary
to deterrmming an appropriate discount rate to calculate the present
value of the estimated gross cbtigations Management takes advice
from external qualified actuar.es whe perform the calcolation

of the present value of the benefits based o~ lhe assumptions

set by management

The Committee considered that the assumptions were reasonable and that
no adjustment was required to the draft firancial staternerts

For all of the matters described above the Committee concluded that the treatrment adopted in the Group financial stalemenls
was appropnate

Internal control over financiat reporting

The Group has established procedures for exercrsing contrel and managing nsk in relation to financial reporting and preparation

of consolidated financial statements including

* the tormulation and comrmunication of Group accounting pobicies which are reguiarly updated for developrmentsin IFRS and other
reporting requirements,

* specfication of a set of financal controls that all of the Group's operating businesses are required to implernent as a rrinimum,

s arange of systern, transactional and management over sight controls embedded into ow fimanciel processes,

¢ deployment of a group-wide consolidation system with controls to restrict access and maintain integrity of data,

s recruitment training and developmient of appropriately qualified and experienced financial reporting personnel,

» oversight by the Disclosure Commuttee of the Group's compliance with its disclosure obligations, and

* monthly reviews by the Board of financial reports from the Group's operating businesses

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

The Committee s performance was considered and reviewed as part of the annual review of the Board and its Commuittees,
details of which can be found on page 79

I he Board is satisfied that the Committee meinbers bring a wide 1 ange and depth of finanuial and commercial experience across
varieus industiles and that all member s have cormpetence relevant to regulated and/or utilties businesses as well as signihcant
recent and relevant financial experience.

Internal and External Audit

Internal Audit and internal controls

Internal Audit1s anindependent assurance funchion available to the Board, Audit Comrmttee and all tevets of management

The Internal Audit function s supported by a co-sourcing partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers The arrangement 1s reviewed annually
and the Committee behieves this structure adds value, through greater access to specific areas of expertise, increased abiity to

scale up operations, and the ability to challenge management independently. Co-source specialists will continue to bring expertise

to support the team and delivery of the audit plan where relevant During the year, and following a meeting with the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, a new Head of Internal Audit was appomted This appointment complemented planned changes te the Internal Audit
team to help deliver third line assurance for PR19 and other regulatory activities, without compromising the delivery of the 2018/1%
audit plan.

86 Severn Trent Ple Annuoat Report and Accounts 2018



The role of Internal Audtt 1s to provide assurance that the Group's
risk management and intermal control systems are well designed
and operate effectively and that any corrective action 1s taken in
a timely manner Each year, Internal Audit develops an annual
risk-based audit plan for approval by the Audit Cornrittee and
Performance Dashboards to enable onward monitoring of the
plan’s execution The Audit Committee challenges the Audit
plan. specifically whether the key risk areas dentified as part

of the Enterprise Risk Management process are being audited
with appropriate frequency and depth, and also by bringing

an extaernal view of risks the Company may be exposed to

The Performance Dashboards summarise the performance of
the Internal Audit function aver the year against key measures
and are reviewed by the Committee twice a year Following the
completion of each planned audi, the Internal Audit function
seeks feedback frormn management which 1s reported through
the Performance Dashboards and assessedin turn by the Audit
Committee twice a year The effectiveness of the controls over
financial reporting 1s alsv imonitor ed by the Audit Cormmittee,
which receives regular reports of the testing conducted by the
External Auditor

The Audit Committee 1s confident that, where any failings or
weaknasses are identified in the course of its review of internal
control systems, management puts in place robust actions to
address these on a imely basis Aninternal control system can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as 1t1s designed to ranage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives To ensure continued efficiency, an external review of
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function will be carried out
in October 2018

External Auditor

Annually, the Cormnmittee reviews the External Auditor s audit
plan and reviews and assesses information provided by them
cenfirming their iIndependence and objectmity wathin the

context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional
standards Deloitte contributes a further independent perspective
on certain aspects of the Company's financial control systems
anising frorm its work, and reperts both to the Board and the
Audit Committee

Following a format tender process in 2015/14, Deloitte LLP were
reappointed as Auditor at the 2016 AGM The senior statutory
Auditor, Kari Hale, has overseen the audit of the Severn Trent
Group since 2015/16 The Company intends to put the External
Audit out to tender at least as often as s required by applicable
law, rules, regulations and best practice in ine with the
Competition and Markets Authonity and EU requirements for
rnandatory tendering and rotation of the audit firm Under current
regulations the External Audit must be put out to tender by 2025
and Deloitte will not be able to participate The Company has
complied with the provisions of the CMA Audit Urder during the
[Inancial year.

The Committee considers the effectiveness of the Externat
Auditor every year and, further to Deloitte’'s reappointment,

a full effectiveness review was conducted during this year.

The raview involved assessment of the Auditor by the Committee
and key Executives and evaluation of whether the Auditor meets
minmum standards of qualification, iIndependence, expertise,
effectiveness and communication

Based on our consideration of the responses to the effectiveness
review the Cornmittee remains satisfied with the etficiency and
effectiveness of the audit

Non-audit fees

The Company has approved a formal policy on the provision of
ncn-audit services aimed at safeguarding and supporting the
Independence and objectivity of the External Auditor The policy
sets outf the approach to be taken by the Group when using the
services of the External Auditor, including requiring that certain
services provided by the External Auditor are pre-approved by
the Commuttee or its Chairman and separately sets out those
non-audit services which are prohibited, since the independence
of the External Auditor could be threatened

The process for approving all non-audit work provided by our
Auditor 1s overseen by the Committee in order to safeguard the
objectivity and independeance of the Auditor Prior tc approval,
consideration s given to whether 1t 15 1In the interests of the
Company that the services are purchased from Delaitte rather
than another supplier Where Deloitte have been chosen, this
IS as a result of their detailed knowledge of our business and
understanding of our ndustry as well as demonstrating that
they have the necessary expertise and capahility io underlake
the work cost-effectively

The policy was revised in early 2016, ahead of new EU regulations
coming inte force in June 2016, to provide that non-audit fees

and ndependence of our Auditor would continue to be subject to
ongoing review In light of thase rules The current policy, which
was reviewed by the Comrittee during the year, continues to
compty with the EU regulations and requires approval by the
Committee or its Chairman if a non-audit service provided by the
Auditor 1s expected to cost more than £100,600 The policy alse
prohibits aggregate fees from non-audit services in excess of
70% of the audit fee for the year

Non-audit services where the External Auditor may be used
include audit-related services required by statute or regulation,
services related to fraud, Corporate Responsibility report reviews
and regulatory support
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

During the year, Deloitte received £558,000 in fees for work relating to the audit services they provide to the Group Non-audit related
work undertaken by Deloitte amounted to fees of £201,000 this year, which amounts to 36% of the total audit fees paid to them
Fees pad to Deloitte are set out in note 7 of the financial statements on page 157, but details of significant non-audit wark undertaken

are set out below

Maturs of sornze Reasor sor Ozbon o o appantmer: FresiE 2090
Audit related assurance services
Interim review Thrs work s akinto an audit and is expected to be performed by the £54
Exiernal Auditor The same safeguards that apply 1o the External Audit
also appuy to this work
Assurance of regulatory returns Audit of sections 1 and 7 of Dee Valley Water Uirted s and Severn Trent £65
Water Lineted s Anaual Perfarmance Reparts s closely related to the
External Auditor s statutory audit work and the two assignments are
performed in parallet
Reporting under Grodp financing documents These documents require reports from the Auditar €49
€148

Subtotal
Qther agsurance services

Assurancen connection with regulatory
reports to Dfwat

Agreed-upen procedures relating to sechon 4 of Dee Valley Water Limited s £19
and Severn Trent Water Lirnited s Annual Performance Reports and Sovern
Trent Water Limited's wholesale scheme of charges

Othor assurance
Subtotat

clg
£33

Total 2017/18 non-audit fees

£201

I approving these non-audit fees, the Committee considered the
overall ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees and, given the scope
of work, considered that Delortte was best placed to perform
these services

Regulated subsidiaries

The regulated activties carmed out by Severn Trent Water Limited
and Oee Vatley Water Limited also require annual reporting
submissions to Qfwat which are reviewed by the Commitiee

They inctude an annuat subrmission on their regulatory
performance and obligations known as the Annual Performance
Report, together with a Cornpliance Staternent and a statement
to underpin the custorner charges made by each subsicary

In Novernber 2017, the Committee reviewed the statement of
risks, strengths and weaknesses and draft assurance plans for
Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, which
i1s a reguirement of Ofwat’s Company Monttoring Framework
These docurnents set out the process, timeline and assurance
framework in place fer information published for customers and
other stakeholders, including the Annual Performance Report

For each of Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water
Lirmited, Delaitte provides an audit spinion on the regulatary
{inanciat reporting and price control segmentation sections of
the respective Annual Performance Reporis, and assurance

of certain aspects of additional regulatory information thatis
included The respective Annual Performance Reports also
prowvide an overall picture of performance, covering many
aspects which are not financial including pet formance agamst
commitrnents and ODIs for each of Severn Trent Water Lirmited
and Dee Valley Water Limited Both Severn Trent Water Lirnited
and Dee Valley Water Lirnited appoint independent engineering
consultants, Jacobs and Black & Veatch respectively, 1o report
and provide assurance on those aspects. The Committee
recetves reports from Jacobs and Delortte on thair work for
Severn Trent Water Limited, and Black & Veatch and Deloitte for
Dee Valley Water Limited, as part of its review of the respective
Annual Performance Reports
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Risk management

The Audit Commuttee reviews the processes for, and outputs
from, the Group s Enterprise Risk Management [[ERM’] process,
through which our principal rishs and related controls are
identilied. The Commuittee also reviews Lhe effectiveness of the
risk management system an behalf of the Board and keeps under
review ways in which to enhance the control and assurance
arrangements The Committee recewves half-yearly reports from
the Head of Risk detailing the significant risks and uncertaintres
faced by the Group, an assessment of the effectiveness of
controls over each of those risks and an action plan to improve
controls where this has been assessed as necessary

To further enhance the clanty of reporting and insight that can
be gained from this ERM information nisk fhghtpaths are now
reported to the Audit Cemmittee. The fightpaths graphically
demonstrate the level of risk the Group faces and the trmeline
for the key nsk mitigation steps to manage the risk to the target
position This buitds upon the estabhished reporting dashboard
for the Group's sigruficant msks. The fugnpaths and the reporting
dashboard help to faciitate a more thorough review of the
target nsk positions considering nsk appetite and whether
improvernent actions to achieve these are on target with the
correct prioritisation in place

The Board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing
process foridentifying, evaluating and managing the principal
risks and uncertamnties faced by the Group have been in place
for the year to 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report,
which 1s in accardance with the Code and Guidance on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and
Business Reporting September 2014 {the Guidance’) A risk
identification and horizon scanning update was provided to the
Board in March 2018. During its review of nisk management
during the year, the Board explicitly considered the target
pasition for sigruficant nsks and whether target nisk pasitions
are appropriate and canfirmed that suitable hmescales had been
agreed far reaching them



Risk management governance process
The Group's risk management governance process is based on the three lines of defence model and s scrutinised by the Audit
Cormmittee, through delegated authority from the Severn Trent Plc Board

Policy oversight
GAA | Doingthe Right Thing | Group policies
Risk tolerance Risk appetite
BOARD
Report
Delegated authority ERMreports
Internal Audit
AUDIT COMMITTEE Whistleblowing
Bribery and fraud
Third line of defence - Internal Audit
Independent review anc aversight by Interna” Audit, which ndeoenaently
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group s risk maragement
conrol and gqovernance pProcesses
Second line of defence - management/ERM team
Inform Business units are monitered by management and the ERM team which inform
and raonitors and provide assurance, on compliance with Group policies and and
improve procedures The ERM team reports to the Audit Cormmittze and Board on prioritise

the ERM process, principa risks and re'a*ed controls

First line of defence - line management/risk champions

Line managernant accauntability for compliance with Group policies, Doing
the Right Thing and GAA Risk champions w thin cach business unitidentify,
catiate and report risk data to the ERM team

OVERSIGHT
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Governance

Treasury Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee has focused
on the ensuring that the Group
has sufficient ongoing liquidity
to meet the committed funding
requirements of its regulated
and non-regulated businesses,
provided through a sustainable,
resilient financial structure”.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Treasury Committes

Attendance table

Mamber of the Meetings Max
Treasury Committee attended possible
John Coghlan 3 6
Philip Remnant 6 b
James Bowling 6 &

The members of the Comraittee in 2017/18 are shown above
The Group Treasurer is also a member of the Committee, but not
a member of the Board of Directors

The Treasury Committee Terms of Reference were updated in
March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com

Only members of the Comrmitiee have the right to attend
Committee meetings [n addition to the attendance set cut above,
Andrew Duff, Kevin Beeston, the Group Commercial Director and
the Group Financial Controller normally attend, by invitation, all
meetings of the Committee Other individuals may be invited to
attend meetings as and when appropriate

To ensure that the Company's treasury pracltices are in Line with
best practice, the Commuttiee has access to adwce from advisers
Evercore are independent advisers to the Committee, with ne
other connection to the Company, and provide regular market
updates to the Committee. The Commuttee 1s satisfied that the
advice 1t receives is objective and independent

During 2017/18, the Commuttee held ane additienal quorate
meeting convened at short notice

Q0 severnTrant Pic Anruat Report and Accounts 2018

Introduction

As Chairman of the Treasury Committee, | am pleased to
introduce this report which detalls the role of the Committee and
the important work it has undertaken during the year

The Committee has continued to play a key role in supporting the
Board in monitoning performance aganst the Group's approved
tregsury policy and annual treasury plan, reviewing in detail the
Group s funding reguirerments and providing oversight of the
Group's key financing risks and opportunities.

John Coghlan
Chairrnan of the Treasury Comnmuttee

Treasury Committee Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Treasury Cornrmittee include

oversight of treasury activities in implermenting approved
treasury policies,

oversight of nterest rate and inflation risk management
strategies In particular, the monitoring of the impact

of changes in forecastinterest rates and infiation on
Group earnings,

oversight of the Group s funding strategy,

monitoning the Group's exposure to financial insttution
credit risk,

monitoring the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk,

monttoring the Group's exposure to hinancial iguidity risk,
* receiving updates on general financial market movements, and
* oversight of treasury internal controls

Key areas of Focus in 2017/18

The Comrnittee provides Board oversight of the Group's key
financing risks and opportunities.

Sormne key areas of discussion for the Cormmittee during
2017/18 included

* the impact of prevailing economic conditions on the accurate
ferecasting of long-term interest rates and associated interest
rale and inflation risk managernent policy,

* the impact of Brexit on existing and tuture scurces of funding

for the Group's businesses,

the intraduction of CPI-linked debt into the Group's debt mix,

analysis of Ofwat s proposed PR19 cost of debt methodology,

including an early view of the rmpacts of a number of scenarios
on the Company s credit metrics going forward, and

* the review of the Group’s European Medium Term Note
Programme and approval for bonds to be 1ssued pursuant
to that Programme during the year



Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report

Stakehotder Engagement

Image removed

“Acting in a socially and
environmentally responsible
manner is embedded in our
Group strategy, and this year,
we are reporting our performance
against our CR Framework
as part of our annual Group
performance reporting”.

Dame Angela Strank
Chairrman of the Corparate Responsibitity Committee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Corparate Responsibility Committee attended possible
Dame Angela Strank (Chairman) 3 3
Andrew Duff z 3
Dominigue Reiniche 3 3
Liv Garfield 3 3

In addition to the attendance set out above, the Cornpany
Secretary normatlly attends, by invitation, all meetings of the
Committee Other members of senior management, including
the Head of Internal Audit, and subject matter experts are also
tnvited to attend as appropriate

Introduction

As Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility [CR'} Commuttee,

I am pleased to introduce this report which detalls the role

of the Committee and the important woerk tt has undertaken
during the year The Cormmittee has continued to play & key role
in supporting the Board, menitering performance against our
Corporate Responsibility Framework, reviewing in detail our CR
commitments including several GDls and providing an oversight
of the Group s key non-financial risks and cpportunilies

Dame Angela Strank
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Cornmittee

Corporate Responsibility Committee
responsibilities

The respensibilities of the Corporate Responsibility
Commuttee include

» development of the Corporate Responsibility Framework
and metrics,

» regularly receiving and reviewing reports on pregress agamst
our Corporate Responsibility Framework,

s consideration of our Code of Conduct and associated Group
policies for recommendation to the Boare Particular focus
includes the prowision of a healthy and safe working
environment for employees and contractors, human
rights [including Modern Slavery] and employee diversity
and inclusion,

s review of our environmental performance standards and
commitiments, and

¢ the promotion of socially responsible values and standards
that relate to the social and economic community inwhich
the Company operates.

The Corporate Responsibility Committee Terms of
Reference, which were updated in April 2018, can be found at
www severntrent com

Our Corporate Responsibility Framework

Our Corporate Responsibility Framework 1s ambitious, broad
ranging and underpinned by stretching targets, to ensure we are
delivering the commitrents expected of a leading sccially and
environmentally respensible business Acting in a responsible
manner 15 Integral to supporting our purpese of serving our
communities and customers, burlding a lasting water legacy
and achieving our vision to be the most trusted water company
by 2020

We hold ourselves to account against eur CR Framework and
agreed metrics through an effective performance management
system Our CR performance is embedded within the
organisation, with ODls embedded in the large majority of our
CR metrics, demonstrating we are focusing onissues of uprmost
importance to our customers

Performance against the CR Framework 1s reported on a
quarterly basis to the Committee, and externally on an annual
basis through cur Annual Report and Accounts, through

our website and through selected environmental, social and
governance indices Our employees’ reward s directly linked
to our CR performance, with custormer 0Dls, health and safety
and our key CR metrics contributing to the bonus which our
employees receive We believe that by focusing on the 1ssues
most impartant to our custorners, our CR Frarnework has the
right focus, and we are proud that we have again been accredited
by FTSE4Good
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Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report continued

Stakeholder Engagement

Key areas of focus for 2017/18

The Commuttee provides Board oversight of our CR strategy and
our performance aganst our CR Framework The Committee
regularty reviews reputational nsks, non-financial Internal Audit
reports, whistleblowing allegations and reviews in detail key
topics agamnst our CR Frarmework Sorme key areas of discussion
and review during 201718 included

» Our goal zero mind-set for serious pollutions, &s a key indicator
of our environmental ieadership Rewviewing our performance
and plan for continuous improvernant.

Our atnbtion to make aur region the most water efficient in the
UK., Reviewing progress against our comritment to emnpower
our custerners to save 25 rmilbion litres a day (Mid) and future
challenges we need to consider

Delivering our ambttion for our vulnerable customers
Reviewmng performance against qur comrmitment to support
50,000 customers who struggle ta pay thew bill and customer
resear chinto developing our next five year plan to ensure we
lead at supporting customers in vulnerable crrcumstances,
both in termis of accessibility and service

L3

Qur approach to catchment management and taking a
catchment based approach Reviewing our performance
agamst our AMPS catchment ambitions and demonsirating
the benefits of develaping a vision for catchments across the
Severn Trent region in collaboration with farmers

Qur zera tolerance approach to modern slavery and our plans
to take all reasonable efforts to eradicate modern slavery
within both our business and our supply cham

Qur approach to whistleblowing Reviewing the effectiveness of
our whistleblowing procedures to ensure we provide adequate
suppaort for both the whistleblower and training for the
investigating managers

Ambition Qne
We will make our region the most
water efficient in the UK

Corporate Responsibility Committee activities
A summary of some of the matters considered at each meeting
15 set out betow:

July 2017

» Quarterly Corporate Responstbiity performance report

¢ Thedentrfication and management of pobitrcal risk

e Demonstrating enwirenynental leadership - a Deep Dive on
Pollubion Performance’

* Anti-Stavery and Human Trafficking Staternent 2017 Update
» Whistleblowing Report

Novemnber 2017

» Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance report

¢ Decp Dive Water Cfficiency

» Deep Dive Helpif you struggle

s Whistleblowing Report

January 2018

¢ Corporate Responsibility Update 2018

e Deep Dive Catchment Managerment and the Catchment
Based Approach

* Oeep Owe Supporting our Colleagues” Mental Wellbeing

¢ Review of Whistleblowing policy and procedures

* Whistleblowing Report

April 2018

* Quarterly Corporate Responstbility performance report

* Deep Dive Cornrnumty Champions - employee volunteering
* Internal Audit aigned with CR Framework

* Whistleblowing Report

o Anti-Slavery and Human Trathcking Statement 2018 — Update

Ambition Twe
We will play a teading role to help make
our region’s rivers even healthier

Values

1
We puit our customers first

We are passionate

3
We act with integrity

about what we do

4
We protect our envirenment
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We are inspired to create
an awesome company



Human rights

We are committed to protecting the human nights of cur
employees and contractors as we have clearly set out in cur Code
of Canduct, ‘Daing the Right Thing” We have a responsibility to
understand our potential Impact on human rights and to mitigate
or elirninate any potentially negative impacts Whilst not having a
specific human rights policy, we have Group policies on Human
Resources, Anti Bnibery and Anti-Fraud, Whistleblowing ['Speak
Upland Procurement These policies are, in turn, supported by

a broader range of polictes to support key human rights,

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

We will not candone the use of child tabour and forced labour
under any circumstances Our highest risk s through our
supply chain Therefore we work with our suppliers to ensure
they operate to the same standards we set ourselves, and we
have also been working closely with our suppliers to ensure
they understand the risks invelved In their own supply chains
All suppliers are required to sign up and operate in line with our
Code of Conduct, which clearly states our zero tolerance, and 1s
built into our procurement tender process as part of the pre-
gualification guestionnaie template We encourage all suppliers,
irrespective of turnover, to make a madern slavery and human
trafficking statement that they do not tolerate modern slavery
and human trafficking in their businesses,

Freedom of association and collective
bargaining

We recognise the night of all employees to Freedom of
Association and Collective Bargaining We seek to promote
co-operation between employees, our rmanagement team and
recognised trade unions We meet with our trade unions on a
quarterly basis at the Company forum and see mutual benefit
in sharing information with our colleagues and seeking their
feedback and suggestions We believe this fosters a cormmaon
understanding of business needs and helps to deliver joint
solutiens aimed at making our business successful We alsc
believe that the Company forum provides a suitable cpportunity
for engagement with the whole workforce to ensure workforce
views are taken into account

Whistleblowing

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to ralse concerns at
work in the first instance through their Line manager. or senior
management, however, we recognise that employees may find
this difficult under certam arcumstances 1f this tmight be the
case, employees are encouraged to use our confidential and
independent whistleblowing helpline or email service, cperated
by Safecall, an independent company that specialises in handling
concerns at work The service is avallable internationally and
Safecal!l provides a translation service, atlowing any employee
to access it, wherever they are i the world All investigations
are carried out Independently of direct Line management and
the findings are reported directly through to the Audit and CR
Cormnmmittees This year we reviewed the effectiveness of our
whistleblowing procedures to ensure we offer suitable support
to both the whistleblowers and also the investigating managers.

‘Doing The Right Thing - The Severn Trent Way’

Every day our employees have to rmake choices about what they
do and how they do it Most of the time 1t is clear what the right
thing to do 1s, whether it 1s about doing what 1s safe, daing the
right thing for our custorners, doing what is right ethically and
what 1s right legally But there are always going to be times when
the situation isn't completely clear, and that's where our Code of
Conduct ‘Doing the Right Thing' cornes in [t details the values
we work by and explains who we are, what we stand for and how
we work [t also tells our customers, Investors and busness
partners that they can trust and rely on us These principles apply
to everyone in tha Group, no matter where in the world they are
based or what they da It clearly sets out the standards we need
to follow 1IN our day-to-day activities This remains an essential
part of cur ermployee induction and last year we introduced an
e-learning module for all employees to ensure they understand
their personal responsibibties

Prevention and detection of bribery
and corruption

Our Group financiat crime policy prohibits bribery. corruption
and fraud i all our business dealings, regardless of the country
or culture within which we work This year we have also updated
our policy 1o take inte account the new tax evasion offences
Employees identified as high risk, through a risk review for all
Group employees, are required te undertake an online training
maodule and test to ensure awareness of and compliance with
anti-bribery and corruption The Audit Committee carries out an
annual review of aur systems and controls to detect and prevent
bribery and corruption

Responsible business practices are anintegral part of our
business strategy and so this year, rather than having a
separate CR Report within our Annual Report and Accounts,
we have integrated our performance throughout the report
to reflect the importance of its embedded nature.

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 93

ot g ’

BIURUIBA0G

SR e aurn | Aoy | <A S PITHE 1 10

U LG I N



Governance

Investor relations
Stakehotder Engagement

Primary investor events

May 2017 London Roadshow

May 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow

May 2017 US Roadshow S
June 2017 Geneva & Zurich Roadshow

June 2017 BAML Utilities & Renewables Conference
June 2017 Exane European CEQ Conference

June 2017 RBC Reverse Roadshow B
July 2017 Scott Harns Roadshow

September 2017 lnvestor Site Visit

September 2017 Citi Reverse Readshow

Septemnber 2017 Morgan Stanley Power and Utility Summit
September 2017 Bernstein 5trategic Decisions Conference
Novernber 2017 London Roadshow

November 2017 US/Canada Roadshow

Novermnber 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow -
Novernber 2017 Geneva Roadshow

January 2018 Citi European Utitiies Conference
February 2018 London Roadshow

March 2018 US Roadshow

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The Beard recognises the importance of representing and
promoting the interests of its shareholders and that it is
accountable to shareholders for the performance and activities
of the Company Various mechanmisms have been put in place to
ensure it remans in touch with key activities and developments,
including
* monthly update reports on the key shareholder engagement
activities carrted out by the Executive Cormnmitteg and the
Investor Relations team,

* 2 monthly report of aur shaceholder register, outlining the
significant buyers and sellers of Severn Trent Plc shares, and

* regular summaries of sector research notes. allowing the
Board to understand the key opinions being communicated
to investors by sell-side analysts

Retail shareholder engagement strategy

The Baoard has an active shareholder engagement strategy,
the rmamn elements of which are set out below.

The Annual Report and Accounts 1s the princtpal means of
communicating with shareholders The Group has adopted
e-communcations as an alternative method of sending company
information Follewing a consultation with shargholders in March
2017, a sigmficant majority of shareholders, 85% elect to view
and download the Annual Report online, whilst 15% continue to
receive a hard copy The next consultation will take place in 2019

Our website contamns an archive of Annual Reports together with
other information relevant to mvestors, including comprehensive
share price information, financial resulis, Company news and a
financial calendar. The Company offers a Dividend Reinvestment
Plan [ DRIP’|, details of which are available on our website and
the wabsite of Equinit, our registrar
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Additional investor engagement

Presentations are made to sharehalders and oty analysts
following the release of the halt-year and full-year resulis
Furthermare, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
regularly meet shareholders during the year.

The Chairman and Senior Independent Director also offer to meet
with our largest shareholders without the Executive Directors
once every year and are available to meet with investors at any
other time upon request

In line with the Code, we recognise that the Board has overall
responsibiity for ensuring that a sabisfactory dislegue wath
shareholders takes place The Chairman, Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer report shareholder views on Severn Trent
to the Board at least quarterly

A clear Investor Relations strategy has been documented

and agreed by the Board. This sets out the Investor Relations
team’s approach to identification of, and engagement with, the
Company s shareholders, sell-side anatysts and debt investors

2017/18 engagement

During 2017/18. the key topics for our investors have been a
combination of company specific, performance-orientated
factors and broader regulatory and pobtical factors

At 3 company level, conversations with our investors have largely
focused on our performance agamst the three key requiatory
autperformance levers of customer Outcome Delivery Incentives
{ODIs), Totex and financing In par ticular, questions have been
targeted on how the outperformance to date has been achieved,
whal areas have received specific attention and what scope there
15 for further improvernent Investors have also been interested
in opportunities for further growth in our regulatory capital

value [ RCV'], the performance of our non-regulated busmess,

in particular our renewable energy activitias, and the potential for
further merger and acquisttion activity In the sector We are also
seeing an increased level of interest m our approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility

Broader factors impacting Severn Trent and the water sector
have played a more significant part in investor conversations this
year. In particular, the increased regulatory news flow relating

to PR19 [the price review process which will set prices for AMP7,
the regulatory period for 2020-25] and the inclusion in the
Labour Party’s 2017 election manifesto of a policy 1o renationatise
certain sectors, including the water sector, have dominated
recent conversations

Regarding PR19, there were two key announcernents from Ofwat,
in July and Decernber 2017, in which it set out its rmethodology
that helped shape the regulatory frarnework for AMP7 and gave
clear gudance on how cormpanies can outperform The focus
from investors has been on how these changes will impact
Severn Trent and how well the Company s pasiticned to benefit
from the sharpened incentive regime

The renationalisation debate has been at the forefront of
investors’ minds since the general etection in June 2017

In particular, they have sought to understand the lkelhood of
it happening, should the Labour Party win the next general
election, and what the success story of the industry has been
since privatisation,



Looking ahead to 2018/19

We have already established a structured programme of investor
engagement for 2018/19, incorporating roadshows to many of the
key locations where our shareholder base are located, including
L.ondon, Edinburgh and North America. We have also confirmed
attendance at a number of industry conferences

We expect the PR1? process to be the key theme for investors
throughout 2018/19 with several key milestones in the process

Tax Strategy

We are committed to managing our tax affairs in a responsible
manner This means paying the rnight amount of tax at the right
time In compliance with UK tax rules and acting in accordance
with the values set out in our Corpaorate Responsibility
Framework References to tax include taxes that we incur
[corporation tax, business rates, employer s NIC, VAT and
various environmental taxes) as well as taxes that we administer
and collect on HMRC s behalf [PAYE and employee’s NIC)

Our approach to tax

Our approach to tax 1s overseen by the Severn Trent Plc Board
and 1s governed by the following key principles

¢ We will manage our tax a*fairs responsibly, Ina manner
consistent with our vision to be the most trusted water
company by 2020,

* We will not undertake aggressive tax planning
or any planring not otherwise in support of
business requirements,

* We will make use of wadely claimed incentives that
Government has chosen to make available to encourage
investment, and

* We will maintain an open, transparent and collaborative
relationship with HMRC consistent with maintaining our
good working relationship

The effective management of our tax affairs s in the best
Interests of custerners as it helps to keep our bills as low
as possible

Tax Governance

Responsibility for tax governance sits with the Chief Financial
Officer, wath oversight frorn the Beard and Audit Commities
and day-to-day support from a team of qualified in-house

tax prefessionals

In accordance with Group risk management procedures,
tax risks are recorded and monitored throughout the year
if a material uncertainty s identified, external advice may
be sought to ensure that our interpretation of the relevant
UK tax rules 1s appropriate We may also seek to resclve
an uncertain tax position directly wath HMRC before a tax
return is filed, in accordance with HMRC s framework for
co-operative compliance

Any significant tax risk 1s reported to, and overseen by,
the Group s Audit Camrrittee, who alsc receive tax status
updates as part of the interim and year end financiat
reporting programimes

of being reached, including the subrnission of company business

plans to Ofwat in September 2018 and the initial assessment of

business plans by Ofwat in January 2019 The dialogue wath our
shareholders on the risk of renationalisation will be mantained

At a company level, the focus will Likely remain on our ability to
sutperform the regulatory incentive mechanmisms of customer
0Dls, Totex and financing.

Relationship with HMRC

In mamtaming a good working relationship with HMRC, we
seek to ensure that HMRC are kept up to date with business
developrnents, including any comrmercial transactions with
potentially significant tax implications Where queries arise,
these are managed on the basis of full disclosure We will
make representations to, and consult with, HMRC on issues
that could adversely affect investrment in UK infrastructure
ar our custamers’ bills

Non-UK operations

Substantially all of the Group s revenues and profits are
generated in the UK and are subject to UK tax Details of
the Group's averseas subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are set
out below

* Severn Trent Response Lirmited 15 a 60% owned subsidiary
company operating in Ireland It designs, builds, operates
and maintains water infrastructure assetsinlreland and s
subject to Irish tax

¢ Lyralnsurance Guernsey Limited and Derwent Insurance
Limited are wholly owned subsidiary companies
incorporated in Guernsey and Gibraltar respectively
They were established to provide insurance services to the
Group Both companies are subject to the UK Controlled
Foreign Company ([CFCl rules and therefore the Group
incurs tax at the UK Corporation Tax rate on their profits

* Severn Trent Holdings SA 15 a wholly owned subsidiary
cempany Incorporated m Belgium It was the holding
company for businesses that the Group previously owned
in Belgium Following the disposal of those businesses the
holding company was retainad to deal with a number of
legacy legal 1ssues These 1ssues have now been resolved
and the Group is considering options for Liguidating the
company This company is subject to Belgian tax

» Severn Trent Africa (Ptyl Ltd 1s a dormant company
incorporated in South Africa It has no impact on the
Group's tax

Scope

This Tax Strategy covers the period ended 31 March 2018
and applies to Severn Trent Plc and 1ts UK subsidiary
undertakings 1t1s published in compliance with the Finance
Act 2016 requirement for targe businesses to publish their
tax strategy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report
Remuneration

Image removed

Phitip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the
Company’s policy on the rernuneration of Executive Direclors.,
other members of the Executive Cornrmitiee and the Charrrnan
of the Board The Commitiee determines the total rermuneration
packages and contractual terms and conditions for these
indraduals The policy framework for remunerating all senior
executive managers 1s consistent with the approach taken far
Executive Directors The Committee alsa provides oversight of
all-employee reward, for example the annual bonus scheme,
and reviews the cascade and alignment of reward throughout
the Group

The Remuneration Commtttee Terms of Reference weare updated
in March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com

Contents Page

Chairman’s Staternent 96

At a Glance 101

Erployment at Severn Trent 108

Annual Repart an Remuneration na

Remuneration Policy 120

Term Definition

AMP I ve year Asset Management Plan

Customer ODIs  Outcome Delivery Incentives which are
mmportant 1o custorners

FD Frnal Determination of price controls set by
Dfwat for every hive year AMP period

LTIP Long Term Incentive Plan

PBIT Proftt Before Interest and Taxation

RoRCV Return on Requlatory Capttal Value

RoRE Return on Regulated Equity

SIM Service Incentive Mechanism

Totex Total Expenditure ([Capital Expenditure +
Operational Expenditure]

ua Upper Quartile performance compared
with peers

WaSCs Water and Sewerage Compantes
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholder,

Our performance

As a Remuneration Committee we are focused on ensuring
that the reward our Executive Directors receive reflects the
performance of the Company and rermnains proportionate

to the overall employee base and to the returns recerved by
shareholders, We are mindful of the external focus on executive
pay and the need to ensure both fairness and transparency.
challenging ourselves to make sure that we only reward for
detivering for our customers and communites The Committee
scrutmses performance targets to ensure that there 1s atways
an appropiiate ink between pei formance and reward.

This1s why we are particutarly proud to be UG for our custorner
satisfaction performance commitrnents, achieving fourth
positionmin the utitties sector on the insttute of Customer
service’'s UK Customer Service Index and, whitst our SIM
performance remans below our end of AMP target, we continue
ta focus time and energy on dring further improvement

Through irvesting responsibly for sustamable growth, we have
locked in a further £100 mitlion of Totex effioencies, taking our
gross efficiencies for AMPS to F870 mullion Taking account

of our £220 mullion total reinvestment plans, our net total
outperformance versus our FD s £240 mullion, of which half
will be shared with our custorners through lower bills in AMP7
We are proud that we continue to have the lowest combined
bills in Britain and moreover we exceeded our commitment to
help 50,000 of our most vulnerable customers with their bills
In addition, strong financial performance continues, delivering
RoRE of 11 5% calculated in ling with the Ofwat measure
10.6% on the Severn Trent RoRE measure/,

Across a large number of our customer ODI measures we have
performed well and we are particularly proud of our continuing
performance i waste water measures We also know that

we can do maore in areas such as supply interruptions and in
the last year management has reorganised the busmess to
deliver greater focus on areas which we want toimprove for
our custorners. We have achieved a customer ODI reward of
F80 2 mitlion, up from £ 47.4 muliion on the previous year.

As a large regrenal business and employer we are always
conscious of the positive impact our performance can play in
the communities that we serve Qur environmental leadership
has led us to improve % 86 hectares as we progress towards our
2020 target. We have supported over 40% of our employees to
volunteer in their local area and, when it comes to employment,
we are proud to have had our work to irnprove sociat robitity
recognised in the first social mobility index.



Remuneration for the year under review

Overali, the business has continued to perform strongly in
2017/18 against a set of stretching annual bonus targets, which
required the delivery of improvements across all areas, whilst
navigating a number of challenging headwinds Respecuve bonus
outturns were 72 54% of salary for each of the CEO and CFQ,

out of a maximurn annual bonus opportunity of 120% of salary.

LTIP awards based on RoRE over the three years to

31 March 2018 will vestin full for the CEQ and the CFQ This s
representative of outstanding performance in custormer ODIs,
financing and Totex

There is a detalted breakdown on pages 111 to 114 of the targets
set and the payments under the annual benus and LTIP

The new Remuneration Policy

The Company's current Remuneration Policy was approved by
9799% of shareholders at the 2015 AGM The votes in favour

for the implementation of the Policy demonstrated through

the annual votes on the Directors remuneration report were

98 26% in 2016 and 97 30% in 2017 Given this tevel of shareholder
support and the Committee s view that the current Remuneration
Policy remains largely approprate, the new Remuneration Policy
1s evolutionary rather than revolutionary

The Company 1s proposing to put the new Remuneration Policy
to shareholders for a binding vate at the AGM on 18 July 2018
Once approved, this Policy will operate for up to three years

Aim of the new Remuneration Policy and link
to our strategy

The Company’'s new Remuneration Policy focuses on delivering
business pricrities through a framework designed to promaote
the long-term success of Severn Trent and remains aligned with
the interests of customers, shareholders and the communities
which we serve The Committee has endeavoured to construct a
policy which has a far and competitive approach to pay and which
ensures that as a company we can attract and retain the best
people with the skills to run this essential service efficiently and
effectively for cur customers

At the heart of our business 15 ensuring the service and
experience we provide meets the needs of our customers

We believe that the long-term success of our business should be
aligned with this goal As such, we positively welcome Ofwat's
message that customers must be at the heart of AMP7 business
plans. To reflect this, at least 28% of annual bonus will continue
to relate to custorner ODls and custormer experience, which

we know are the measures that matter most to them, and to
customer expenence

Within the LTIP, we have selected RoRE as our measure for 2018
LTIP awards RoRE measures our success over three years in
arange of areas, one being the all-important custormer O0Is,
and we believe that RoRE continues to be the most appropriate
reasure In terms of our tong-term success

Shareholder consuttation

During the year, we embarked on an extensive shareholder
consultation exercise with our largest shareheolders and
representative bodies on our new Remuneration Poticy

We contacted our 30 largest shareholders representing
over 50% of curissued share capital, as well as Glass Lewis,
The Investment Association and 1S5, te consult on proposed
changes to our policy The praposed changes discussed with
shareholders were

* Changing the annual bonus opporturity frorm 120% to 150% of
salary for both the CEO and CFO,

¢ Changing the LTIP opportunity from 150% to 200% of salary for
the CEQ and 100% to 150% of salary for the CFO,

e Recalibrating the current stretch target as target and
introducing a new stretch target of UQ performance,

¢ Introducing a twa year post-vesting holding period for new
awards under the LTIF which will centinue to aperate post
cessation of employment,

* Increasing the minimurm shareholding requirement from
200% to 300% of salary for the CEO and 150% to 200% of salary
for the CFO, and

Reducing the maximum pansion contribution to 15% of salary,
in line with the general waerkforce, for new Executive Directors

The feedback and responses received on the proposed changes
were positive and supportive overall of the Committee s
approach Having listened carefully to that feedback, we decided
not to progress with the increase in the bonus opportunity

This recegnised & preference from a number of shareholders
that any quantum increase be provided through the LTIP

The table fellowing this letter sets out full details of the
Commitiee s rationale for the proposed changes ta the current
policy, shareholder feedback during the consultation and the
final position r eached.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Wider workforce considerations and our
approach to fairness

Through being a successful business we can create good

Jobs inour cornmumty and vatue for colleagues by offering a
competitive total reward package Thisincludes a bonus for

all. flexible benefits and a market-leading defined contribution
penston scheme as well as a cornpetitive salary We are inthe
unusual posthon in our sector that soaat mobibity 15 weakn
many of the areas in which we operate, so we believe we have

a role to Invest well to butd secure ernployment opportunities
and create fulfilhng careers for our colleagues. Over half of our
employees have joined from areas of lower socal mobility and
benefit not just hnanoalty, bul from our training, developrment
and career opportunittes

We recognise the centralimpartance of all of our teams in
delivering success which 1s why one of our five key strategic goals
15 to create an awesome place to work for them We understand
that this will mean different things to different people and seek
ta create a working environment which enables everyone to
contribute fully and be the tbest they can be. Our annual ermployee
engagement survey shows a significant increase in overall
engagement of six percentage ponts

The Commuittee and management are commitied to fair pay
across the organisatron We continue to see drversity and
mclusion as central to everything we do and we are pleased

to report a relatively low mean gender pay gap of 2.4%

To ensure the voice of our employees ts heard, we have an active
Company employee forum which meets every quarter to discuss
business challenges and opportunities The forum 1s chaired
ointly by a member of the Executive Commuttee and the Trade
Unions Members mclude representatives from HR, joint Trade
Unions and employees from our ather business area employee
forums The ohjectives of the Company employee forum are to

» Involve employees by sharing inforrnation on the future of our
business and the water industry,

» Wark together onssues that affect our employees, and

o Work in partnership to deliver better salutions ta improve the
way we work.
During 201718, the CED discussed with the Company emptoyee
forum the performance of the business, key financral information
and ideas for efficiencies. We have already taken steps to utilise
further this forumn tine with the draft FRC UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Chairman has attended his Hirst meeting
and will be attending on an annual hasis to share views and seek
feedback to ensure the Board is able to constder the views of
employees n its decision making.
More information relating to the wider workforce can be found
on page 108.
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Board changes

Emma FitzGerald was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2016
and stepped down on 31 December 2017 following the successful
cempletion of the restructuring of the wholesale operating
rmodet Detaits of Emma s remuneration relating to her time on
the Board, during 2017, are contained within this report

Structure of the report

This year, we include a comprehensive explanation of our
proposed Remuneration Policy which watl be put to shareholders
for approval at the 2018 AGM Thus can be found after the Annual
Repart on Remuneration section starting on page 120

! am grateful for the ime and input shareholders and their
representative bodies have given us throughout the engagemeant
process [trust that we can rely on your vote in support of our
approach to remuneration and the proposed Remuneration
FPoticy ¥ you would bike Lo thscuss any aspect of this report,
I'would be happy to hear from you You can contact me

through Bronagh Kennedy, Company Secretary and Group
General Counsel

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Commnttee



The table below sets oul full details of the Committee s rationale for the proposed changes to the current Policy, sharehoelder feedback
during the consultation and the final position reached

Majerity view of

Key points Lommittee’s rationate shareholders consulted Final prepesais
Increasein The Committee s rat:onale was as follaws Shareholders were Based on this feedback, the
guantum + The Executive Directors were ingxpericnced at the time the current Policy supportive of thaincrease  Committee determined to
was inlroduced and Incentive levels reflecled this The Commutiee believes 1N quantum for longer make increases o the LTIP
that the Executive Directors are now fully empedded in the business term performance quantum only
and over the past three years they have performed successfully in therr measured through the The propased policy sets
roles, demonstrating an exceptional level of comrmitment in executing the LTIF While in general sut the following maximum
business st ategv for the benefit of cur shareholder s, customers and the shareholders were also annual LTIP grants (current
wider community, supportive of a proposed policy in brackets)
« The Committes wants to provide an appropriate level of incentive Increase to the annual « CEO 200% of salary (1509,
opportunity to deliver a competitive total remuneration package that bonus maxirrums, tt’were * CF0 150% of salary [100%)]
rctains and motivates a truly cxceptional management team for the Waaa‘joncem atou It shauld be notad that
rest of this AM= and inlo the nexL, Increasing the bonus the increase in the LTIP
* The Committee 1s keen ta ensure that there s an appropriate level of oppartunity in the current 5 aL
pprop in addition opporturity has been
Imcentive apportu~ Ly in the remuneratior Lo reflec .he creater focus of enviranment in 3 ) accompan.ed by an increase
Cfwat onthe relative pertormance of WaSCs and tne tcugner regulatory ingeneral the preference in the stretch of the
ot shareholders was for
cortext during AMP7, and Sr ImCrease 1M ANl performance conditions
* It shoulg be noted that even with tre proposcd inar ease in quanturm the tollic f;eus-ed Dn“,hz LTIP lsee belowl
total reuneration avadable to the Company s Executive Directorsis
arcurd the mediar for the FTSE 51-150, the Comnrittee s main external
reference po nt See page 104 for further detals
Type of LTIP Tne Commrittec propescd RoRE as the scle performance cond tion for the Durngtne corsaltation Given the strong level of
performance  LT'P [as 15 the case for the current policy] The Committee s ratisnale was a narrher of different sharenclder support the
conditien as follows performance measares Committes deterruned to
* RoRE 15 a holistic measurement of porformance requiring managerent were discussed with proceed with its proposal
ta focus on pertormance across a range of arcas such as Tatex, customer  sharePolgers Howover to retan RoRe as the
ODIs and hinancing which help measure lang-ta m suzcess w thin the on engagement woth the pe-formance cond tion
business Therefore whlst it1sasingle measure delivering the ReRE Cormrritice the goneral farthe LTIP
porformance requires the Executive Directors te deliver ona number vigw of sharcholders was
of Company KPI=, and that RoRE was the key
* RoRE is the prima=y measu~e used by Ofwat 10 measure the performance long terrm metric for the
ofthe Company and other WaSCs In addition, Ofwat calculates and ranks ~ ComMpany and appropriate
RoRE -or the WasCs giving an indepenaently vertfied and comparable asthe sole performance
value for the Company condition for the LTIP
Calibration The Commitice proposed a new calibration of the RoRE targets for 2018 Shareholders supported Given the strong level of
of LTIP LT'P grants e The introduction of a shaceholder support the
performance QL RsRe Cot . comparative glement to Committee determined to
condition brent old 1 D N R A, ReRE. and proceed with its proposed
- Galrry “ySalery " Zaltty o« Thne increased calibration of the RoRE
N3 harge ML Charge T | 1an i1 performance performance condition
CED 375% 150% 200%  stretch requiredto for the 2018 L TP awards.
CFO 250, 100% 150m,  carn the additonal accompanied by an

The Committee 1s setting these targets for tne 2018 LTIP grant The

Comrmettee will review the targets in 2079 as two years of the performance

period will te 1n the new AMPY

Current maximumvasting 12014 and 2017 awards] occurs for 1 39x FD

[778% return)

The Committee wants te ensure that any addstional incentive oppertunity

car anly be earned through even mor e stretching performance The

raticnale for the use of the UQ comparisan against other WaSCs s that

« [t ensures full vesting 1s only achicved for b0 cormparative performance
At the pamt of AMP change over 1tis difficult te set an absol te targe’ ror
Ua performance, and

* |t al'gns with the Company s aspirations to rermaimn an UQ perfermer

INCeNtive opoortunity

increasce in the stretch
of the perfarmance
conditiors
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Majartty view of

Key points Committee’s rationale shareholders consulted Final proposals
Addition of The Commuttee s rationale was to provide further alignment vath Thts change was Introduction of a twa
holding period sharehotders’ interests and to brirg the LTIF mto bne with best practice universally supported yoar holding period post
to the LTIP by sha-enolders vesting for Executive
Directors which will
continue to operate post
— cessatian of employment
Increasein The Committee s rationale was to provide further alignment with This change was Increase n requirement
the minimum  shareholders’ interests unversally supported » CEO 300% of salary
shareholding by shareholders [200% current), and

Requirement

« CFO 200% of salary
1150%, current)

Reduction in The Commuttee s rationale was to align pension contribution guantum for This change was
maximuirn new Executive Directors wath pension contribution for the wider worktorce universally supperted
pension by shareholders

contribution

No change for current
Executive Directors

New apoointmenis wi'
have a maximurm pension
contribution of 15% of
salary [25% current]
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At a Glance

Shareholders approved Severn Trent's Remuneration Policy at the 2015 AGM (set out in fuil in the 2075 Annual Report] As highlighted
tast year, and In line with regulations, Severn Trent 1s now seeking shareholder approval for a new Remuneration Policy at the 2018
AGM, after which the new Remuneration Policy will come into effect and govern pay arrangements for our Executive Directors for the
next three years

The following section sets out our remuneration framework, how our previous Remuneration Policy was applied in 2017/18 and how
the Committee intends to implerment the propesed Remuneration Policy in 2018/19

2017/18 Remuneration outcomes

Single figure remuneration 2017/18

Thes table shows how the successful delivery of our strategy has flowed through to the rewards provided to our Executive Directors
The table and chart below provide @ summary total single figure of remuneration for 2017/18 We note that Emma FitzGerald
(Managing Director, Wholesale Operations] stepped down from the Board in December 2017 The ‘At a Glance” section contains
remuneration for the CEC and CFO only The full explanatory notes for each elermnent of remuneration are detalled on page 110in the
Annual Report on Remuneration

Graph removed

Annual Total
Executive Salary Benefits bonus LTiP Pension Qther 2017118
Directers Year (£'000)" [£°000) (£, 000) [£°000) [£'000] (£'000] (£ 000}
CED 201718 6877 177 5010 706 & 1718 - 20843
CFO 2017/18 4142 187 3019 278 3 1035 - 1116 4

Nl Salartes are shuwn befure tme deduchon of bene' ts purchasad through the Company s salary sacrim €2 schema
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual bonus scheme 2017/18
An annuat bonus of 72 54% of satary far each of the CEO and CFQ was awarded Further details are set out on page 111 1in the Annual
Report on Rermnuneration

Thresheld Target Maxmmum Outceme
(0% payablel 50% payablel {100% payablel Weighting achieved
STWPBIT £515 8m £529 2m £5426m £7% 21%

Actual €527 6m
Custorner ODls £13m £23m £33m 20% 20%

Actual {80 2m
Business Services PBIT £35 ém £36 b £376m ek 0%

Actual £38 Tm

Health and safety az0 014 01z €% 2%
Actual 017
Customer experence 15% 20% Wﬁ”f_—uﬂu 2% o
Actual 17 20%
Personal performance Detals on pm_— 7% 4% - CEQ
4% - CFO

[} Measurs g as number of tost ime incidents doaded by numbr of haur - workad multipled by 100 000

il Measured as the percentage reduc tion in camplamts

LTIP 2015/18
The 2015 LTIP vested at 100% of maximum Further information 1s provided on page 114 in the Annual Report on Remuner ation

Veorg ~J" reme

“hresbetd Mexirr — o ouldward
{77 payutl.| ") paybitc] CEO CrD
RoRE - measured FD 129 100% 100%
as multipte of
Ofwal FD Actual 179x

102 severn Teem Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



Link between long-term performance and the remuneration outcomes

The charts below show our customer 0D and RoRE performance since the beginning of the current AMP This strong sustained level
of performance has informed the level of reward recewed by our Executive Directors and our employees through the company-wide

bonus scherme, which is inked to the same performance measures

Graph removed

[ OO grass I lax

i Calrulatad in arcentaare with Ot at masroda.coy UQ datanot ,et svaillable fartha carrent year

Remuneration principles

The remuneration principles which underpin our policy support our strategic priorities, align our interests with those of custormers
and inform the decisions made by the Commuttee in relation to executive pay Our core remuneration principles are as follows

Simplizity

Rolgerrie

OEpre-wr g

Carperne

The Rerqureration Palicy should
support iransearency in terms

cf design and communication to
internal and external stakeholders

Reward will be relevant to our
busiress goals and objectives,

and be affordabls

Remunegration outcomes

shoutd m rror the custermer,
sharceholder, cmployee and w.der
stakeholder expericrce

The Remuneration Pohcy should
clearly Unk individual pay outcomes
to corporate results

Performance measures arg
targets for incentive plans wall
b2 objeclively dete-~wned

The Remuncration Policy shauld
support pstential changes in
busincss priontics over time

Rernureraton will be aligred

to support the nterests of

our sharerolde~s

The Remuneration Policy sheuld
provide opporturity which is
competitive agairst companies
of a similar size and complexity
wth a strong ermphasis on
variable elements
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Strategic alignment of remuneration

The Committee believes itis important that for Executive Directors, and semior management, a significant proportion of the
remuneration package i1s performance-related and that performance conditions applying to incentive arrangements support the
delivery of the Company's strategy thraugh our five strategic prionities The following table sets out how each of these are reflected
in the annual bonus and LTIP

Drive operational

Embead customers excellence and investing
atthe heart of continuaus respansibly for Lhange themarket Create anawesame
Strategic prioritres what we do ir Y sl ble growth  forthe better place to work

Annual bonus PBIT
Customer ODis

Health and safety

Custamer experience

Persanal objectives
LTI RoRE

Summary of Remuneration Policy, propased amendments and implementation in 2018/19
Shareholders approved the Rernuneration Policy at the AGMin 2015 (97 99% voted wn favour] As such, the Company 1s requured to seek
approval for the new policy at the 2018 AGM The table below sets out an overview of the key areas of the policy and summarises how
the Commuttee 1s proposing to implement the policy 1n 2018/19 Full details of the proposed policy can be found on pages 120 to 128
The Commuttee believes that the fundamental architecture of the Executive Directors’ remuneration package s appropriate but we
have made a number of evolutionary changes to the previaus Rermuneratian Policy ta reflect the development of the Campany, aur
Executive Directors and the latest corporate gavernance best practice,
» Pension contrbutions for any new Executive Directors will be capped at 15% of salary in line with other employees,
» Tha maxirmur LTIP award opporturnity witl be increased to 200% of salary for an additional stretch performance of UG,
« Atwo year holding period will apply following the vesting of LTIP awards for the Executive Oirectors [this holding period will continue
post cessation of employment], and
 The rimimum shareholding requirement will be increased to 300% of salary for the CEQ and 200% of salary for other
Executve Directors
The diagram below lllustrates the balance of pay and time period of each element of the preposed Remuneration Policy
for Fxecutve Directors

Total pay Year 1 Year 2 - Year3 Year 4 Year §

Fixed pay Salary
Benefits,
Fixed pay Pensian

Annual Bonus 50% tn shares

{Malus and clawback 50% n cash 3-year delerral perrod
provisions applyl Nofirther performance condiions

LTIP
. Up to 200% salary
(Malus and clawback B-year performance pertod

provisions apply)

2-year halding periad
No further perforfance conditions

The Company’s Remuneration Policy rernains to atiract, retain and motivate its leaders and to ensure they are focused on delivering
business prionties withm a framework designed to promote the long term success of Severn Trent, aligned with shareholder
interests The table below sets out the key components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration package, including the proposed
changes from the current Remuneration Policy aleng with rationale Further information regarding the proposed Remuneration
Policy 15 set put on pages 120 to 128 of this report
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Elerment and Link

Key features

How we will
implement the proposed

tostrategy of current Policy Policy change Palicy n 2018/19
Salary » Salames for individual Executive No change A salaryincrease of Z 5% witl be appled at
To recrut and reward Directors are reviewed annually the salary review date From | July 2018,
Executive Directors of a oy the Commuttee and narmally take Executive Director salaries will be
suitable calibre for the role effect from 1 July « CEO - £708,000
and duties required » To the extent that increases are « CFO - £426,600
proposed, these will not be higher than These rises are lower than the general
the average increase for employees ermployee salary increase
Benefits » Travalue of benelits1s based on the No change Normal company benefit provision

To provide competitive
hanafits mthe market to
enable the recrutment
and retention of
Executive Diectors

costto the Company and there 1s
no pre-determined maximum Lirmit
The range and value ¢f the benefits
offered s reviewed peniodically

Pension

To provide pension
arrangements comparatle
with similar comparnies in
the market to enable the
recruitment and retecntion
cf Executive Direcors

» A defi~ed contr.bution scheme and/or
cash supplementin Liea of pension

s Max.mum pension con'ribution of 29%
of salary

s For current Executive
Directors, the maximum
pension contribution v il
remain at 25% of salary

= Ferfuture appointrients,
the maximum pensinn
contribution will be capped at
“5%, of salary Thisisin ling
with the level proviced to the
wider workforce

Executive Director pens on arrangements for

2018/19 are as follows
* CE0 - 25% of salary
« CFO - 25% of salary

Annual bonus

To encourage impraved
linanzial and operatro-a
performance and align

the interests of Executive
Directors witn sharcholders
through the partial deferral
of payment in shares

o Maxirmam award of 120% of salary

= Therewll be no paymen: made for
threshold performance

* 5070 of total borus geterred into shares
for three years (witn the value of any
dividends to be rolled up and paid
cnvestingl

* 50% of maximum will be paid for target
perfermance and 100% of maxirmum
will be paid for stretch periormance

* Matus and clawback provisions apply

No change

The ‘atlowing max mum opportunities will

anplyin 201819

«CEO 120% of salary

o CFO - 120% of salary

The we ghtrgs of performance measures
in the annual bonus will be as ollows

= Regulated Water and Wasie Water PBIT - 47

* Business Services PBIT - 107

¢ Custorner ODIs - 20%

¢ Health & safety - 8%

s Customer expenence - 8%

* Personal objectives - 7%

The Committee considers the forward-

locking targets to be commeraially sensitive

but full drsclosure of the targets and

performance outcorne will be set cut in the
year ¢ remuneration report sctrng out the

bonus outcomes

LTIP

To encour age strong and
sustained improvernents
infina~cial pertormance,
in line wath the Cormpany s
strategy and long term
sharehalder returns

» Maximum award of 150%. of salary

* Awards arc granted annually and are
subject to a three year performance
condition being RoRE

* Malus and clawback provisions apply

+ Increase :n maximum award
opportunity to 200% of salary
s The Commuttee will
cnsure that the increased
oppartunitys reflected in the
level of challenge in the LTIP
targets and has introduced
a stretch target based on
UQ performance
» Introduction of a two year
holding periad past-vesting
which will conttnue to
operate post cessation
of employrnent

The following grant levcls will apply 0 2018/19

* CEG - 200% of salary
¢ CFO - 150% of salary

RoRE will remain the sole LTIS perfarmance
condition, with the addition of a stretch target

RoRE is calculaled as profit afte - tax iplus

ncentives earned inthe year] dvided by the
average equity propertion of our regulatary

caprtal vatue, as prescribed by Ofwat

Sen page 99 for details of the RoRE target
for .he Z0IBLTIF awa~ds

Shareholding requirement
To encourage strang
shareholder alignment

and interests of Executive
Directors with the rest of
thewasrikforce

» The CEO s expected to buitd ana
maintain a holding of shares to the value
of 200% of salary, and other Exccutive
Directors 150% of salary

Exccutive Directors arc expected to
retain all of the net of tax number of
shares they recerve through the LTIP
and deferred share bonus until the

shai chclding requirernent has been met

-

* [ncrease in minimigm
shareholding reguirement to
300% ot salary for the CEQ
and 200% of satary far other
Executive Directors

e Other terms of
the sharehalding
requircment reman

Applicaton of the new
shzreholding regquirereni
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Cur policy quantum compared with peers
The following table shows the relative position of target total compensation under the proposed policy for cur Executive Directors
compared with the FTSE 51-150

Graph removed

When we set the rerauneration for the Executive Directors, one of the facters the Commuttee considers ts the relevant market for
Executive Directors, which we believa is the FTSE 51-150, and the size of the Company compared with these peers The Company is
around the median by market capitalisation and the proposed target wotal compensation has been set broadly in ling with this position

Shareholding requirement

The minimum shareholding reguirement for Executive Directors 1s set out below, 1t must be built up aver a five year period and then
subsequently held The table below sets out the current share interests of the Executive Directors taking into account shares which
are owned outright or vested, shares which are unvested and shares which are subject to performance

Graph removed

i1l Represents benelicially owned shares as wel as shares hel2in trust as part of the annuasl bonus dafe-red <hare awards [of wh ch 50¢ dequcted to cover
statutory dedu- ians)

(Wl Represents the 2016 and 2017 LTIP awards which arc subject to perfermance
Calculated using the closing share price on 31 March 2018 of £18.44

The CEQ has exceeded the shareholding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 200% of salary and the CFO)s close to exceeding
the shareholding requirernent applicable In 2017/18 ol 150% of salary
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Overall link to remuneration and equity of the Executive Directors

As a Committee we want to incentivise Executive Directors to take a long term, sustainable view of the performance of the Company
That 15 why when we look at the remuneration paid in the year we also lock at the total equity they hold in relation to the performance
of the Company The ability of Exacutive Directors to lose and gain, dependent on share price performance, can have a matenal impact
on therr total remuneration and 1s a central focus of cur Rermmuneration Policy

The following table sets out the single higure for 2017/18, the number of shares beneficially ewned by the Executive Director at the
beginning and end of the financial year and the impact on the value of these shares taking the opening price and closing price for

the year

Valye of shares Value of shares
2017/18 Shares held Shares held at start of year at end of year Difference
Single Figure at start of year atend of year [£ 000s]" {£'000s)™ 1£'000s]
CEO 2084 3 75127 103,274 £17895 £1904 4 + 114 7
CFO 1116 & 15,263 23 4464 L2636 £4327 +£6%1

'l Based on 3 closing shars price on 31 March 2017 of £23 62
4

nlBasedonaclo-mag sharcpricesndi March 20180 €15 4

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees [audited]
From 1 April 20718, Non-Executive Director fees were increased by 3% from £53.450 to £55,100 and the Chairman s fee was increased
by 2 h% from £280,500 to £287,600 These increases are in line with the general employee salary increase

The current lee tevels and these for the future financial year are set out in the table below

Fees Fees Increase

2018119 2017/18 %

Charmans fee £2874600 £280,500 2 5%

Feepaidto all Nan-Executive Directors £55,10C €53 450 a0
Supplementary fees -

- Senigr Independent Drrector £10,000 C1C,608 002,

- Audit Committes Cnairman £15,000 £15,000 00%

- Remuncration Committec Chairman - £15 080 €15,000 00%

- Corporato Responsioility Committee Charrman £13,000 €13.000 00%

- Treasury Committee Chairrran £15,000 £15000 00%

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors normally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of therr letters
of appaintment are Kevin Beeston {1 June 2019), Dominique Reiruche [20 July 2019) John Coghlan [23 May 2020}, Andrew Duff
(% May 2019], Philip Remnant [31 March 2020} and Dame Angela Strank [24 January 2020). However, all of the Directors are
subject to annual appointment or reappointment at the AGM
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Employment at Severn Trent

We recognise the central importance of all of our teams in delivering success and as such we seek o create an inclusive working
environment, reward our ermnployees in a fair and equitable manner and prowde fulfilling careers We do this by praviding all our

employees with

Item

Details

Market compelitive pay

Qur approach s to position ourselves as a market median paver, balancing competitive pay for employees with responsible
use of aur customers maney Employees wha are not an a traming rate of pay [such as apprentices! recewve at least the
voluntary Living Wage We alsa closely monitar the rates of pay of peaple who are trainuing with ys to make sure they
remain far and competitive Our 2018 Apprentice starung rate s £14 924 and 2018 Graduate starhog rate s £26,500

Sharing in success

Flexbiity

Kn opportunity to save
forthe future

We want our emnployees to share in our success and pur ati-employee bonus plan s based on Comnpany performance,
ensuring all ernployees are aligned with the same measures and rewarded for achueving our key objectives Forthisyear
the bonus paid out (964 to BB 5% of our frontline employees in Severn Trent Water Lirmited and Oee Valley Water Limited
Those who were not eligible were now stacters after the beginnung of January 2018

1% of pur people are actve participanis in our Sharesave scheme which gives empioyces a chance to save up to £500 per
inanth over by ee of five yeat s, with the oplion to buy Severn Trecit Ple shares at a discounied ate al the ena of the oes od

We provide a flexible benelits scheme Tor all, which we believe 15 amongs* tne best i the industry Including insurance
ard nealth cover wi'h ~elan and childcare vouchers, it1s designed ta supporl a positive work-1 Te balance

45, of our people croose tolailor tre rbenefits via our flexiole benefits scheme saving a comeined *otal of ££20.000
on everylhing from ever yday essentials (o holrdays and wxuries through our employee discount partnerships

We know many of our col eagues wan' .o be aole to save for Lherr (utut e securily We ofler a markel leading deflined
cantribution pension scheme and dauble any contributions that employees make (up to a maxmum of 15% of salaryl
regardless of level or seriority When colleagues got clozer to retirement, we provide education and suppert to help plan
for the next stage of therr lives

We arc proud that 98% of aur peopte are members of the pension scheme and 57% pay contributions above the statutory
minimum 3%

Building a career

As a majar regional emiployer, we recognise the importance of equipping our colleagues with the skitls for new and the
future Our focus s onboth leadership and technical development across the whole orgarmisation

We suppart the development of colleagues at all stages of their career, from foundation apprenticeships and graduate
entrants, througn to higher level apgrenticeships and Masters degrees Jur aimiis to ensure that every emplovee feels
campelent and confidenl i therr everyday wark

Diversity and inclusion

Qur employees tell us we are doing well on dversity and wneclusion, through great scores in our employee tngagement
survey bulwe know there are opportuniies to ref.ect beller the demographics of our region

We are recogmsed for leading performance m the S T5E 100 for warnen's representation at Board and Executive
Comrmttee Llevel and our mean gender pay gap for tne year was just 2 4%

This year we have also taunched our manopausce awareness programme, supported by our Trades Unions

Our apprenticeship scheme has a Black, Asian and Mingrity Ethrie | BAME | representation of 9 6% and this is 15 3%
fa- our graduate scheme

Investing in the community

Our education and work experience pragrammes now actrvely facus on the areas of lowest secial mobibity in our region
We already have a strong track record of creating jobs 1n these areas, with over half of our employees from areas sutlined
by the Social Mobility Commuission, but we want to do maore

Qur ernployee voluntecring pragramme gives all employees two paid days per year to participate in voluntary work

i~ our comrnunity. This year saw participat.on number s increase (o 40%

Diversity and inclusion policies
We canfinue ta focus on long term impravernent thraugh our diversity and inclusion pelicies

Developing role models

Woe believe that strong role models inspire maore junior employees and demonstrate an inclusive culture to
potential candidates We are leading the way on semor leader gender diversity, placing us ahead of many of
our industry peers

Reflecting the communities we serve We have increased aur programmce of school career events aver the last two years, hefping to broaden the

Changing the way we recruit

range of studen‘s who are aware of Severn Trenl and the career apportunities we affer

During 2016, we moved to a strengths-based interwiow process for our graduate and apprentice posiions
This s helping us to understand the polential of each candiaate and remeve bias throughout the process
We want (o allract candidates who share the same passion about the water industry and understand the
needs of the communi'ies we serve

Breaking down stereotypes

We are making progress in attracting morce diverse candidates into rotes that require science, technology,
engineering and mathematics { STEM ) backgrounds By taking part in engineering initiatives aimed at women,
includimg National Wemen in Engineering Day, we are raising our profile among prospective applicants

The challenge 10 increase dwersity in these areas is langer term and we will continue to face a challenge

to recrult temale ernpioyees I we do not receive a sufiicient level of applications to these roles
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Gender Pay Gap Reporting

We reported cur Gender Pay Gap in Novernber 2017 in line with statutory requiremnents  The data was based on 5 April 2017 and
showed a mean gap of 2 4% and a median gap of 14 6% The relatively low mean gap 1s predorminately due to our senior gender
diversity The higher median gap 1s representative of occupational segregation We have a large number of operational roles which
attract shift, on-call and stand-by allowances, and these roles are principally held by men

By way of comparison, the average rean and medtan gaps for those WoCs and WaSCs that have reported data1s 11 9%
and 15 3% respectively

Our full Gender Pay Gap report can be found on www.severntrent com
Alignment of pay throughout Severn Trent

The Comrnittee 1s keen that remuneration decisions are made in the context of the cascade of reward structures throughout
the business, shown in the diagr am below

Executive Senior
Element of pay CEOD Board Committee Management Management  Wider workferce

Salary

Annual bonus [alt employees aligned
ta the same measures]

LTIP

Fension

Bere'ts

ul Apropsrticn ot this pop st parbiapate i the LTIP by anaaal imatatizo

Percentage change in the remuneration of the CED

The table below shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the CEQ between the current and previous financial
year compared with that of the average employee The Cornmittee looks to ensure that the approach to fair pay s implemented in
practice throughout the Company

CEO [£'600) Average per employee [£'000]

2017/18 PR “oLihargs 2017/18 T e 7 L Clarge

- Salary 690.6 5770 2% 30.5 229 28,
- Be-etils 177 180 -1 7%, 0.4 04 0%
- Bonus 501.0 46158 -18 6% 1.8 20 -11%

Il The sataryt guies shown dre vased on full trme eguivalen. compar sons
(n} The benehts iigures include car allowance and "emilv level prvate meamcal mscorance for semo and middle managers
il The figures shown are reflective of any borus earned duri~yg the respective financial year 3onuses a e pard ir the following June

liv] The averaae pay increase for the wider warktorce during the year was 2°

The Commuttee has elected to use the average earnings per employee as this avaids the distortions that can occur to the Company s
total wage bill as a result of movements in the number of emplayees The comparater group used 1s Severn Trent employees
in tho UK as this s where the vast majonity of employces are based.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Report on Remuneration and the Annual Statement will be put to an adwisory shareholder vote at the Annual General
Meeting on 18 July 2018 The mformation on pages 110 to 119 1s audited

Total single figure of remuneration (audited]

The total single figure of remuneration table below sets out the remuneration received by the Directors for 2017/18 lor for
performance peniads ending in 2017/18 10 respect of the long term incentves) and, for the purpases af comparisen, for 2018/17
Where necessary, further expianations of the values provided are included below This table and the explanatory notes below this
table have been audited

Year ending 31 March 2018 Yerrendir g 3 March 207
Salary Annual Salary Arp el
Executive andfees Benefts bonus LTIP  Pension Other Total andizes  Henedits bor s LTI Peraiar Other Tutal
Directors [€0001"  1€000)"  [E'000)  [£'Q00)™  [E000) [E'000)"' [€ 000) 1€ 030) L3 fEu07 £ 407t [€.430) 1€ 2241 It JW)
Lv Garfield 687.2 1.7 501.0 706.6 171.8 - 2,084.3 4737 180 41h 8§ P48 1 168 4 - 24240
James Bowiing a14.2 18.7 301.9 2783 103.5 - 116 4060 198 3687 3158 1015 - 12118
Emma
FitzGerald 302.4 131 2098 2713 75.6 - 872.2 3959 176 360 2 3243 990 - 11970
Salary Annual Salary Arrasl

Non-Executive andfees Bepefits bonus LTIP  Pension Other Total endfoes Reoodrs bur.as LTI Pergim Ocer Tuta!
Directors (£°000) (€000 (£°000) (E'000! (€'o60)  {£'000) (€ 000) i 0Nl €012 1Lyl €040 1€ 030 L 07t [£ 1071
Androw Duff
[Charrman] 280.5 - - - - - 280.5 2750 - - - - - 2750
John Caghlan 83.5 - - - - - 83.5 &7 4 - - - - - &7 4
Phitip Rernnant 685 - - - - - 68.5 67 4 - - - - - 67 4
Kevin Beeston 635 - - - - - 835 507 - - - - - 507
Dominique
Roniche 53.5 A e 53.5 366 . ) o 366
Dame Angeta
Strank 64.5 - - - - - 66.5 615 - - - - - 415

1] Salaries are shown belore the dequstions of benelits purchased hrough the Company & salary saunifice acheme, sUch 4= pension cur rbulions via salary sacnibice
- thus s consictent with the approach taken lact year

Il Benefirs imclude s car allowance of 15,000 p a |, famely level private medicat insurance lile assurance wor ih six tes salar y anc partieipalien nan ncdpacity
pene s sche~ g

(] The annual bonus s pard 0 cash and S0 i shares with the porticn deferred inte ~hares subject to an ydditional holding pericd of throe years with no further
f ! QL
performance conditions attached

] This retates to the ve sting et the 20115 LTIP which s based gn RaRE peclarmance ovar the three yoar period to 31 Mars £ 2018 The value of the uhares has baen
estunated usmg the average share price for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 March 2018 nf £18 49

i The Executive Directors pension provisior s equal 1o 25% of salary No Executive Direclors accrued benefits under any delined contribunian pens.an plans during
the year or have participated 'n a detined banefits scheme while an Executrve Director

[vi]  This relates to the vesting of the third (ranche of James Bowling s and the secend tranche of Ernma FrzGersld s Recruitment Award The performance condrtion
for thesc awards was the same as for the 2005 LTIP grant, which was based en RoRE performance over tha three year peried 1o 31 March 2018 The awards vected
al 100k and Ihe hgures shown have been updaled (e reflact therr actual share price on vesting [F22 371

[wn] This figure relales e taxable expenses rolating to travel

Twin] Stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2017 Anrounts for Emma FrizGerald arc pro rated for the periad in whie h she was gn Exccutive Directer with one
ex ephion of the vesting of the 2015 LTIF award
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Salary for 2017/18 [audited)

Salaries for indwvidual Executive Directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and normally take effect from 1 July

The Cormmittee considered the Executive Directors pay review in July 2017 in light of pay review budgets across the Group

As aresult, the Commuttee determined that the salaries for the Executive Directors wouid increase by 2% 1n 2017/18, in line with
the average increase that applied to the general UK workfarce For 2018/19, a 2 5% increase to salaries for Executive Directers
has been agreed, lower than the average increase that will apply to the general UK waorkforce

Salary Salary Percentage

01/07/2017 01/0%2018 Increase

CEO E£690,600 £708,000 2 5%
CFQ £416,200 £426,600 25%

Benefits for 2017/18 (audited}

The value of benefits 1s based on the cost to the Company and there 1s ne pre-determined rmaximum himit. The range and value of
the benefits offered is reviewed periodically In line with our Remuneration Policy outlined on page 121, we show below the benefits
received by the individual Executive Directors in the year, and their typical annual value where possible

Typical annual value 2017/18

Typical annual value 2016/17 Percentage increase

Carallowance £15.000 £15,000 0%
Private medical nsurance L3500 £1,500 0%
Life assurance Uptoéx salarynmmn T Upto 6xsalary . C¥%
Persanal accident cover As per the group wade pelicy As par tne group-vade pol.cy 0%,
Bicnnial health screering T £620 per health screen £4620 per health screen 0%
Incazacity serefits Worth 50% o* salary for a period of Wartn 507, of salacy fo-a perod of 0%

five years [subjec’ to g.a'ifving criter a

five yeas |subject to quatdying crizenal

Annual bonus outturn for 2017/18 [audited)

Annual bonus performance s measured over a single financial year against a range of financial and non-financial targets and aganst
personal objectives The maximum bonus opportunity was 120% of salary An annual bonus was awarded of 72 54% of salary for each
o' the CEO and CFQ., and 68 94% of salary for the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations The table below shows a surnmary of the

metrics and targets which were used to determine the annual bonus awards

Threshoid Target Maximum Quicome
0% payable} {50% payable) {100% payable) Weighting achieved
STWFBIT £575 8m £52972m £542 &6m L%, 1%
Actual £527 6m
Custorrer Q0ls £13m £23m £33m 20% 20%
- %
Actual £802m U7 MDWO 30
Business Services P8IT  £35 ém £36 &m £376m 10% 0%
Actual £387m
Health and safety 020 016 117 8% 2%
Actual 017
Customrer experience 159 20% 25% 8 2%
Actual 1720%
Persanal performance Detalls on pages 112 and 113 794 4% - CEQ
&% - CFO
3% - MDD WO
Il Measured as number of lost time inmidents dinded by number of huurs worked omultipbied by 100,090

1] Measured as the percentage reduction in compleamts
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Despite a pariod with some significant operational challenges and 3 difficult vear on bad debt, we have contrued to make good
progress in managing our underlying cost base te absorb these and other cost pressures to end the year delivering PBIT of

£527 6 million in STW [before property profitsl Our customer QDI rewards of £80.2 miilion were underpinned by significant
improvements mn internal and externat sewer flooding, and sustained performance on Category 3 pollutions with a gross performance
onwaste of 109 million However, this was offset by the impact of aperational incidents on water measures such as supply
interruptions, which resulted in a net penalty of £29 millian This year the Comrittee agreed to include an additional measure

to drive improvement in customer experience, targeting a 20% reduction in written complaints,

in the last few months we have seen a significant improvernent In performance driven by a significant improverment in billings related
complaints, with these learnings being rolled out acress cur other teams The result of these improvements is represanted by a 17 2%
reduction for the year We set ourselves bold targets to improve the safety of our employees this year and, although we still incurred
18 Ltls, this represents a 23% year onyear improvement, resulting in our best ever year and the lowest LT rate in the sector in
England Business Services has had a particutarly strong year, benefittng from a new contract with plumbing and drainage insurers
that cortnbuted significantly to both revenue and PBIT.

Personal chjectives for the Executive Directors are linked to our strategic framework which will move us towards our ambition to be
the most trusted water company Objecuves were shared across the team with each Executive Director leading on the areas which

best align with their accountabibiies and expertise
As poted on page 111, the achievement of the persenal objectives for each of the Executive Directors was as follows 6%, 6% and 3%
for the CEO, CFO and Manaygig On ector, Wholesale Uper ations, respectively.

The tabie below sets out performance outcomes for each Executive Director n relation to their specific personal objectives

CEO

Performance
Objective Achivity Key actuevements in 2017/18 autcome
Embed customers at » Deliver a step change In customer experience » Conducted detaled customer research study Partly met
the heart of all we do * Support fimancia ty vulnerable customers Focused efforts an resolving issues more rapidly
* Berecognised as a U Wholesaler Customer complaints down &%
« Provide an industry leading New *» 38 000 customers have received financiat
Connections oxperience help with therr bills through relaunched Big
Differance scheme 50,000 vutnerable customers
suppaorted overall
» Achieved Tst and 2nd place in Qfwat’s water and
waste rankings respectively for new cannections
* UQ for UK Customer Service Index for 2017/18
Drive operational * Be UQinwater and waste s UK Business Services profit increased ana US Fully met
exceltence and + Develop the profitabi ity ana growth of the Business business sold
centinueus Services operations » Held & staff roadshow o capture and share 1deas
innevation * Jelwer a sustainable pipeling and process around innavatian and mpeavement
for innovation » Exceptional waste custorner 001 perfarmance
Invest responsibly for  « On track delivery of AMPS plans ta deliver growth » Delivery of addrtional £100million Totex savings Partly met
sustamnable growth and reduce risk « Completed integration of Dee Valley into
« Integrale and deliver henefits fram the acquisition the business
of Dee Valley * Advancod in realigring boundaries along
* Setup Severn Trent and Water Plus tor success in national borders
new business rotail market *» \Water Plus maintaining its share of a
grawing market
Change the market ¢ Clear PR1? plan in place that evidences gur * Strong position to subrmit by September 2018 Frilly rmet
for the better leading status » Created a standalane Bloresources team
¢ Produce campelling case forinvestment at PR19 identifying opoortunities for operaling efficiencies
« Design andimplerment the Bloresources change » Collaborated with Thames Water and United
programme and business model Utilities to publish thought leadership dacument
¢ Be seen as the water sector’s thought leaders
Create an awesome s Improve salety programme * Lost Time Injury frequency rate decreased by 23% Fully met

place to work

* Detiver 5% uplift in 2mployee engagernent scores
* Sirve 1o continue 10 mprove diversity and inclusion

* Emnployee engagement increased by 6%

* Increase in the number of BAME' ernployees
on graduate programme

* Launched key inclusion iitiatives such as ‘Dying to
work charter and menopause educatron
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CFO

Parformance
Dbjective Activity Key achievements in 2017/18 outcome
Embed customers at » improve insurance approach to third party damage * Compteted the review and implemented Fully met
the heart of all we do dertifiad improvements
Drive operational » Suppart the business ta identify and achieve » |dentilied C100 mettion of efficiencies to be Fu'ly met
excellence and cost etfliciencies reinvested into the business
continuous * Continue Lhe evalulion of finance, miternal audit and * ERM Champions and coordinators operate
innovation enterprise risk functions throughout the business
* Reduce the downside risk to pension * Significantly reduced pension rish through
scherne Liability imptemented hedging strategy and
« Finance plan in place for key remaining maturities finencngactions
Invest responsibly for  « Build and deploy new risk based interest * Generated 38% of cnergy needs from Partly met
sustainable growth rmanagement policy renewable sources
* Support the Energy and Rencwables
growth strategy
* Delver target M&A strategy
Change the market = Support regulatory hnance in PR1% and = Created a standalone B oresources team Fully met
for the better Broresources plan ide~tifying apportunities for eperating efficiencies
Create an awesome * Delver changs invisible Hea th and Safety o LTl rateirnprovement Fuliy rmet
place to work ‘cadership with afocus or rrentalwellbe ng « Improvement of 5% im Finance Smployee
» Ozl ver bet'er engagement ana diversity in finance Engagement pe-formance
MD, WO
Perfermance
Objective Activity Key achievemnents in 2017/18 outcome
Embed customersat  # Improvement in custorer experience and delivev * Exceptiona’ waste custormer G0 performance Partly met
the heartof all we do of customer strategy
# Be recognised as a UQ Whalesaler
Drive gperational » Be UQinwater and wasre * Ganad provsional EA 4* status Partly met
excellence and * Provide environrzntal leadership * Strong progress rrade on mnavation
continuous * Deliver 1C innovatior projects
innovation _
Invest responsibly for  « On track delivery of the AMPA plan to deliver growth = Delwery of Totex savings Partly met
sustainable growth ana reduce risk * Delivery of Water Resources Management Plan
e [n egrate and deliver berefis fro v the acgu sition « Completed integration of Dee Valley into
of Dee Valiey the husiness
Change the market « Clear PR1? plar n place that evidences our leading » Strong position to submit by September 2018 Partly met
for the better status and investmoent case » Created a standalone Bioresources team
» Design and implement the Bioresources change identifying oppertunities fo- operating effiziencies
prograrnme and busimess madel
* Be seen as the water sector s thought leadars
Create an awesome ¢ Deliver change inwvisible Health and Safety * LTI rate improvement of 234 and streng Partly met

place towork

leadership, with a focus on mental wellbeirg
= Deliver 5% uplift n empioyee engagement scores

» Progress our talent agenda, including BAVE
talent agenda

* Contribute to resolve the top 10 campany srritants

supply chain performance sustainad
» Whotesale employee engagement increased by 8%
* External recogmition of graduate and apprentice
programre and increase of 13% in number of
‘BAME employecs on graduate programme
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

LTIP awards vesting in relation to performance in 2017/18 {audited)
The table below shows the outcome of LTIP awards which had performance penads ended 31 March 2018 The LTIP based on RoRE
over the three years to 31 March 2018 will vestin full This s representative of outstanding performance in custorer ODs, financing

and Totex
™MD, Wo
CEQoutcome  CFGqutcome autcome
Threshold FD Maximum  (vestingas% (vestingas% {vestngas %
(25% payable] {100% payable] of award) cf award] of award]
RoRE - measured against T 129x 100% 100% 106%:
multiple of Ofwat FD
Actual 179x
Value of
End of resultant
Number of performance % award Number of award
Executive Award type Grantdate sharesgranted period vesting  sharesvesting £000s"" Vesting date
CEQ 2015 LTIP 15/07/15 37.808 31/0318 1009, 37808 £705 6 15/0718
CFO 2015 LTIP 15/07/15 14,890 31/03/18 100% 14890 £278 3 15/07/18'
MO Wholesale Operations 2015 LTIP 15/G7/15 14 518 31/03/18 100% 14,518 £2713 15/07:18

il T~e RoRF caleulation .sedtor | TIPs differs s 1ghtiv from that used in the annual performarce report, wh ch uses the Ofwat definition The { TI® measure seeks to
agn hetter our | TIP larnets to acthal cas~ flows and agamst a clearly definad targel In this measure, financinq outpertarmance 15 based on actual gearing rather
than the rohional capita situtufe ana comoares our co%s' of debt aqainst “he allowance i the Dfwal Financial Madel 1tincludes proins/ osses associated with land

sales, miscellanesus activilies and the impact of the whelesale revenue furccasting ing entive mechamsm

in Based on the average s~are arice over the hng' three months of the perlor—ance perod |£18 ¢%) as the awards will not be releaseq until alter the end o’ the

close period

LTIP vesting

The chart below seis oul a breakdown of the LTIP awards for \he Executive Directors in 2017 and 2018 and shows the face value of the

awards and share price growth, if applicable

Graph removed
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted during the year {audited)
The table below sets out details of the Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards as at 31 March 2018.

Percentage
Maximum vesting at Exercise End of Vesting/ Awards granted during the year
number of threshold price perfermance exercise

Executive Award type shares”  performance {pence) pericd dateh! Basis of award Face value £060 Nates

Liv Garfield 2015 LTIP 37808 25% - 31/03/18 15/07/18 - - Ell
2015ABS 7668 - - 31/03/15 29/06/18 - - (d]
2015 SAYE 1136 - 1,584 - May-18 - - le]
2016 LTIP 46,115 25% - 31/03/19 21/06/19 ib)
2016 ABS 16.260 - - 31/03/16 28/06/19 (d]
2017 LTiP 42383 25% - 31/03/20 20/06/20 150% of salary £1,0155 [c]
2017 ABS 12,850 - - 31/03/17 28/06/20 Deferred bonus £307% [d]
2018 SAYE 1.08% - 1652 - May-21 - - lel
Total 147,309

James Bowling 2015 LT:P 14,890 25 31/03/18 15/07/18 - - la}
2016 LT-P 18,529 25% - 31/03/19 21/06/19 (b)
2016 ABS 7.634 - - 3140344 28/06%39 d]
2016 SAYE 1044 - 1724 - May-19 - (o]
2007 LTiP 17,028 Z5% - 31/03/20 20/06/20 100 % of salary £40810 lci
2017 ABS 7693 - - 31/03/17 28/€6;20 Deferred bonus £184 3 (d)

. Total 48,818 o

Emma FitzGerald"™ 2015LTIP 14 518 25% 31/03/°8 15/07/18 - - 3,
2018 LTIP 14,453 25% - 31/03/19 21/06/19 - o}
20146 ABS T2 - - 31702014 28/06/1% &I
2017 LTIP 13,282 25% o 3032t 20/06/20 80% of salary £2182 )
2017 ABS 7918 - - 31,0317 28406720 Deferred bonus £1801 )
Total 56,881

Nt Addsonal deidend egurvatent shares may be released eohere proeded v the ule s

(] fewards that are duetovest inaclose peoiod will be released as seon as prartizable atter the end of the closs percd

ll See pags 117 for detals on Emma FitzGerald s 2018 and 2007 Anrual Bonus Scheme and LTIP awards on cussation ot errpleyment

a) 2015 LTIP award

|

1073y e 2y

DIUEUIDAOD

TR I U TVATITIATIE AW F SRR & PR g 70 )

UOLLCLIG)I 330,03

The 2015 awards are subject to a RoRE performance condition measured over three financial years Average RoRRE performance
15 compared with the baseline RoRC figure set by Ofwatin our 1. 25% of the award will vest il average RoRE maltches the baseline
figure of 5 5%, increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1 29 imes [equivalent to 7.29%}.

The 2015 LTIP awards were granted on 15 July 2015 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £21 49
[being the average price over the preceding three days]

b) 2016 LTIP award

The 2016 awards are subject to o KeRE pertormance condition reasured over three fimancial years. Average RoRE performance

1s compared with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our FU 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of 5 65%, Increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for cutperforming the basetine by 1.3% times (equivalent to 7.86%].

The 2014 LTIP awards were granted on 21 June 2016 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £21 59
[being the average price over the preceding three daysg!

¢) 2017 LTIP award (awards granted during the year)

The 2017 awards are subject to 2 ReRE performance condition measured over three financial years. Average RoRE performance
15 cormpared with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our FD 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of 5 65%, Increasing on a str aight- ine basis to full vesting for cutperforming the baseline by 1.39 times (equivalent to 7.86%)

The 2017 LTIP awards were granted on 20 June 2017 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 94
lbeing the average price over the preceding three days)

d} Deferred shares under the annual bonus scheme lawards granted during the year)

Each year, 50% of an Executive Director’s annual bonus s deferred in shares for three years The awards are granted in the form of
deferred shares The 2017 award relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2016/17 The awards were granted on 28 June 2017
The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 94 [being the average price over the preceding three days)
The deferrad shares relating to the annual bonus for 2017/18 will be granted in June 2018
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

] Save As You Earn [SAYE]
The Executive Oirectors, in common with all eligible UK employees, are entitled to participate i the Company's HMRC tax-advantaged
SAYE Scheme

Exterpal directorships

Emma FrzGerald was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of DCC Ple in Decermnber 2016 and, in respact of her appointment fer the
year ended 31 March 2018, she was pard fees of £49,601 (converted from EUR using the exchange rate of 1 EUR = £0.88], which she
retained (this covers the period to December 2017)

Liv Garfield was appointed a rember of the Takeover Panelin Noverber 2017. In respect of her appointment for the year ended
31 March 2018 she was paud fees at £5,000 which she retainad.

Directors’ shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests (audited]

The Campany operates shareholding requirements under which Executive Directors are expected to bulld and mamtain a
sharenolding in the Company of 200% of salary for the CED and 150% of salary for the CFO Detalls of the current shareholdings of the
Directors and whether Executive Directors have met the shareholding requirements are set out below

The Committee believes that it 1s an essential part of the Company’s Remuneration Policy that Executive Directors became matertal
shareholders The retention and build-up of equity 1s important in a long term business such as Severn Trent as 1t encourages
decisions to be made on a long term sustainable basis for the benefit of customers and shareholders.

The CEQ has exceeded the shareholding requirement applicable i 2017/18 of 200% of salary and the CFO 1s close to exceeding the
shareholding requirement applicable m 2017/18 of 150% of salary

Graph removed

Interests i shares as at 31 March 2018

Outstanding scheme interests

LTIPand Deferred shares % Shareheolding
Recruitment  under the annual SAYE guideline
Director Beneficially owhed Awards bonus options Total achieved"
Kewin Beeston 2,244 - - - 2244 -
Domunigue Raiche 400 - - - 400 -
John Coghlan 2,670 - - - 2,670 -
Andrew Duff 8184 - - - 8,184 -
Phulip Rernnant 1949 - - - 1969 -
Dame Angela Strank 459 - - - 459 -
v Garlald 103,274 126,306 T 38,778 2,225 270,583 163%
Jarnes Bowling 23,464 50,447 V1.32%7 1044 92,2827 95%
Emma FitzGerald ! 25 941 42,253 14,678 - 82,827 120%

[l The share price used 1o cawculate the percentage of the sharehoiding guidelne achieved was £18 44 (as al 31 March 20°8] The guideline frigures include unvested ABS
shar s (50% deducted to Laver statutery deductions)

[l As at 31 December 2017

Shares counting towards achievemnent of the guideline include beneficially owned shares including shares held by connected
persons) and the net of tax value of deferred shares under the annual bonus since they are not subject to performance cond:tions
The Executive Directors are expected to retain all shares receved through the vesting of any incentive schemes (after the settlement
of any tax LUability] until the shareholding requirements are met

There has been no change in the Directors’ interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company between those set out above
and 22 May 2018,
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Payments for loss of office and to past Directors {audited)

Emma FitzGerald

Background

In advance of PR1% the Company has reshaped the wholesale business to create three teams Customer Detivery, Capitat Delivery
and Commeraial, and Productien.

The reorganisation has resulted in changes to the role of the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations, held by Emma FitzGerald

As a consequence, following the transition of her responsibiliies, Ernma stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2017 and witl
leave the Company on 31 July 2018 During the period between her stepping down as Managing Director, Wholesale Operations and
leaving the Company, she 1s facusing on developing the Company's management and integration of disruptive innovation.

Ernma was appointed tc the Board on 7 April 2016 During this time, she led the wholesale business and played a key role in helping
the Company achieve its success during the first half of the AMP.

On the basis that Emma s role as Managing Director, Wholesale Operations will no longer exist in its current form, the Committee has
determined under the loss of office policy under the approved Remuneration Policy to treat her as a good leaver

Remuneration
As Ermma remains an employee of the Company, she will be paid her salary, benefits and pension for the period to 31 July 2018,
ona monthly basis, Far clarity, no pay in Lieu of notice will be paid after she ceases employment with the Company

Frnma was employed for the full financial year and, therefore, will recerve an annual banus of 68.94% of salary in relation te 2017/18,
based cn performance against the relevant targets [set out on page 113] The Committee has determined ta pay the bonus in

cash because under the Rernuneration Policy and the rules of the deferred annual bonus plan deferred share awards would vest
on cessation of employment and. given the short period between the determination of the bonus for the year and her departure,

it 15 administr atively simpler, No bonus will be paid te Ernma for 2018/19 and Emma will not receive an LTIP award for 2018/19

All urvested and unexercised awards will be treated in accordance with the applicable plan rutes and our loss of offize policy

Unvested shares held under the deferred annual bonus plan will be released on cessation of employment, and remain subject
to malus and clawback provisions. The table below sets out detalls of Frnma'’s unvested deferred annual bonus plan shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date Number of shares
2016 ABS 28 June 2016 31 July 2018 71z
2017 ABS 28 june 2017 30 July 2018 7516

Emma’s unvested LTIP awards will vest in bine with the erdinary vesting dates, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance
conditions Emma’s awards witt be pro-rated up to the end of her employment on 31 July 2018 These awards will continue to be
subject to malus and clawback provisions The table below sets cut details of Emma s unvested LTIP awards

Maximum number of shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date capable of vesting"
2016 LTIP 21 June 2016 21 June 2019 11,243
N7 LTIP 21 June 2017 20 June 2020 5895

11 Time pre rating apphied in accardance aith the LTIP rares fram the start of the relevant performance period up fo the date of cessation of employrmont 131 July 2018]
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Total shareholder return chart and total remuneration of the CEO
This graph shows the value at 31 March 2018 of £100 invested in Severn Trent Plc on 1 Aprit 2009 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 100 index The FTSE 100 was chosen as the comparator index because the Company i1s a constituent of that

index, The intermediate pomts show the value at the interventng financial year ends

The figure of remuneration for the CLO over the last mine financial years 1s shown in the table below The annual bonus payout and
LTIP vesting tevel as a percentage of the rmaximum cpportunity 1s alsc shown

Graph removed

Remuneration of the CEQ

Year ending 31 March

L 210 o AU A2 203 2 I.'; - 2 - PR _}'T 7 ZIE
Ty Tty Yy Wy Tty Liw Liv L Liv

£en We oy W Wiy W ay Wray Goarbeld Garfie o Gatld Garfield
Tatal remuncration
EUUO] 10270 9498 12441 16353 1.818 4 219746 2,493 6 24507 2084 3
Annual bonus
[% of maximurn) 515% 43 2% 451% 82 4% 78 7% 52 0% 88 2% 75 8% 72 54%.
LTIPvesting
(% of cnaxnnaim] $03% Q0% 28 4% 57 5% 100 0%, 100 0% 100 0% 100 0% 100.0%
SMPvesting
% of maximurm) IN/A N/A N7A, 78 0% b4 3% N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Relative importance of the spend on pay

ndarab pag

@
The table below shows the expenditure of the Company on staff costs against dividends paid to shareholders for both the current and 3
prior financial periods, and the percentage change between the two periods g
2018 207 "2 Crarge
Staff costs [Em) ! 2881 2671 79%
Dividends (£m} 197.0 190 4 35%
[l Staft Josts rram cantinuing eperaligns
Statement of implementation of the Policy in 2018/19 g
See pages 12010 126 £
Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its advisers %
The Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the Company's policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors, ather =
members of the Executive Commuttee and the Chairman of the Board The Committee determines the tolal remuneration packages £
and contractual terms and conditions for these individuals The Policy framewaork for remunerating all senier executive managers z
Is conststent with the approach taken for Executive Directors The Committee also provides oversight of ati-employee reward, ’
for example the annual bonus scheme, and reviews cascade and alignment of reward throughout the organisation.
The Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference were updated in March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com 9
a4
The members of the Committee are listed in the table below. All are independent Non-Executive Directors, as defined under the Code, z
with the exception of the Company Chairman who was independent on tus appomtment During the year ended 31 March 2018, the :
Committee met seven times to discuss key remuneration 1ssues anising, the review and operation of the Cormpany s Remuneratien z
Policy and market updates by its advisers p
Remuneration Committee member Attendance in 2017/18 é
Bhizp Rerrrant iCharman) 77 7
Andrew Duff o o _ R
Kewr Beeston 7
Darme Angela Strank 77

The Committee members have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be decided The CEQ,
Directer of Human Resources and by invitation the Head of Economic Regulation and Reward & Pensions Manager also attended
the Commuttee meetings to provide advice and respond Lo specific questions Such attendances specifically excluded any matter
concerning ther own remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Commuttee

To ensure that the Company's remuneration practices are in Line with best practice, the Cormmittee has access to advice from
advisers PricewaterhouseCoopers [[Pw( ] are independent advisers to the Committee Fees for advice provided to the Committee
during the year were £170,500 excluding VAT to PwC [2016/17 £48,000 paid to PwC and £24,674 paid to NBS) Separate teams within
PwC also provided unrelated tax consulting, pensions, and other assurance and advisory services during the year PwC s one of
the founding members of the Rernuneration Cansultants Group Code of Canduct and adheres to this Code inits dealings with the
Committee, The Committee reviews the appointment of its advisers annually and 1s satisfied that the advice it receves is objective
and independent

Staterment of shareholder voting at the 2017 AGM
Al last year s AGM, the Directors’ remuneration report received the following votes from shareholders

Resolution Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
Approve Directors remuneration report 142,422,030 3,948,456 1351934
(97 307 2 70%]

The Committee has taken into account the strong suppoart from sharehotders for the current Remuneration Policy and its
implementation in proposing the new Remuneration Policy, which 1s an evelution of the current policy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Remuneration Policy

Development of Palicy report

The Comrmttee sets the Remuneration Policy for Executive Birectors and other semor executives, taking mto account the Company's
strategic objectives over both the short and the long term and the external market The Cormnmittes addresses the need 1o balance
risk and reward The Committee monitors the variable pay arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an emphasis on tong
term and sustainable performance. The Commuttee believes that the incentive plans are appropriately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the Executives so that the long term performance of the
business is not compromised by the pursuit of shart term value. The plans incorporate a range of internal and external performance

metrics, meastnng bath oper atisnal and financial per formance aver differing and overlapping performance pericds, providing a
rounded assessment of overall Cormpany performance

Linkage to all-employee pay

The Committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangements in the workforce generally as we recognise that all our people
play an impaortant role n the success of the Company Severn Trent (s commutted to creating an inclusive working envirenment and
to rewarding our employees throughout the organisation in a fair manner in making decisions on executive pay, the Committee
considers wider workforce remuneration and condihions to ensure that they are aligned on an ongeing basis We bebeve that
employees throughout the Company should be able to share in the success of the Company The annual bonus scheme is cascaded
throughout the orgarisation and all employees may participate in the HMRC tax-advantaged Save As You Earn { SAYE'] scheme

As part of our comrmitment to fairness, we have a section In this report [see page 108] which sets out more infarmation on our wider
workforee pay conditions, our Gender Pay statistics and our diversity imtiatives Whilst we recognise there s always an opportuntty
toimprove in retation (o these issues, we believe that transparency 1s an important first step.

Shareholder views

The Committee engages proactively with the Company’s major sharshalders and 1s commutted to maintairning an open dralogue

The Cornmuttee reviews any feedback recewed from shareholders as a result of the AGM process Committee members are available
to answer guestions at the AGM and throughout the rest of the year The Commmittes takes into consideration the latest views of
investar bodies and ther representatives, including the investment Association, the Pension and Lifeirne Savings Association and
proxy advice agencies such as Institutional Shareholder Services

Salary

Purpose and link to strategy: To recruit and reward Executive Directors of a sutable calibre for the role and duties required

Operd 1o inelading perarmiare me ey

MaximamopLar oy

Saberanve charges rom Policy agieed
at 27 aAGM ond raarale

« Salaries for individual Executive Directors
arg reviewed gnnually by the Committoe and
normally take effect from 1 July

e Sglaries are set with reference to mdividual

performance, cxperience and contribution,

together with developments in the relevant
cmployment market thaving regard to similar

roles in publicly quoted companies of a

comparable sizel, Cornpany performance,

affordability, the wider economic enviranment
and mternal relatrvities

in addition, when the Commuttee deternunes

a benchmarking exercise is appropriate it will

also consider salaries within the ranges paid

by the companies in the cornparator groups
used for rermuneratron benchmarkng

The Commuttee intends to review the

comparators perodically and may add

or remaove comparnes from the Group as

it considers appropriate Any changes

to the comparator groups will be set out

in the section headed Implernentation

of Remuneration Policy, in the following

financial year,

»

1 20 Severn Trent Pl Annual Report and Accounts 2018

» Details of the current salary levels far the
Executive Directors are set out in the Anrntual
Report on Rernuneration on page 110

» Anyincrease to Executive Directors salaries

wilt generally be no fugher than the average

increase for the UK workforce However,

a higher Increase may be proposed in

the event of a role change or promation,

or i other excepliznal circumstances,

The Company, where appropriate, may set

salary levels below the market reference

salary at the time of appointment, with the
mtentien ot bringing the salary levels in

tine with the market as the individual gains

the relevant experience In such cases,

subseguent increases in salary may be
higher than the gencral rises tor employees
untit the target positioning 1s achieved

No changes



Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy: lo provide competitive benefits in the market to enable the recrutment and retention of

Executive Directors

Qperziar Incladiryperferrarce mse s}

Maxiaum cppar ary

Substertve charges rom Pol sy egreed
ol 2170 ABM and rauorale

« Acar allowance, family level private medical
insurance, Life assurance, personal accident
insurance, health screening, an incapacity
hene! ts schame and sther naidental benelits
and expenses

» The Cammittee recogrises the need to

maintam sa table texibility in the benefis

provided to ensure it 1s able to support

the abjectrve of attracting and retaining

personnel in order to deliver the Group

sirategy. Therefore, additional berefits such
as relocation, disturbanze and expatriate
allowances and tax equalisation may be paid
as approoriate

Directors well be reimbursed for any

reasanakle business expenses ircurred .n

the course of their dutios, inc'uding the tax

payable therean

Pension

* The value of benefits 1s based onthe cost to
the Company and thereas no pre-deterrmined
maxirnur Lmit The range and value of the
benelis oflered 1s ~eviewed periodically

No changes

Purpose and link to strategy: To provide pension arrangemeants comparable with similar companies in the market to enable the

recruitrment and retention of Executive Directors

Qpsraion Iv=ledie Jpeearmurae me r sl

Morar Cppe et am,

subs crmive berges o PLlicy agreet
STIYTAGM ord relerale

* The Campany raintains a definec contribution
scheme and/or cash supplement in bieu
of pension

* For current Executive Directors, the
company contribution to a pension scherme
and/or cash allowancewill beuptoa
maxir-um of 25% of salary

s Forany new recruit, the cortrnbation will be
up to a maximum of 15% of salary

* No change for current Executive Directors
New appontrments will have a maximum
pension contribution of 13% of satary
(25 of salary currentlyl

= This change aligns pens.or contribution
quantum for new Exacutive Birectors with
pension cantribution for the wider workforce
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Annual boenus

Purpose and link to strategy: 1o encow age improved hnancial aind operational per formance and align the interests of Executive
Owectars with shareholders through the partial defecral of payment in shares,

Opera ar (wzlading periurmaroe mensf

Maxirna oppurtuey

Suberarive charges Tom Palicyagee d
at Z913AGM urd ratiorale

» Banuses are hased an financiad, nparahional
customer and personal performance over
aperfo-mance period of one finanaial
year No more than 20% of the bonus will
relate to personal contribution for any
Executive Director

® 50% af the bonus 15 paid i cash and 50% 0
shares which vest after three years [with the
vatue of any dividends ta be rolted up and paid
onvesting) There are no further performance
targets on the deferred amount

» The perfermance measures and targets
for the annual bonus are selected annuoally
to align wrth the business strategy and the
key drivers of performance set under the
regulatory framework The annual weighting
of the bonus between the vanous metrics and
personal contribution may vary depending on
the key priorities of the business for the year
ahead Robust and demanding targets are set
taking into account the operating environment
and priorties, market expectations and the
business plan far the year ahead

* The Cormmuttee 15 of the opinton that grven
the commercial sensitivity arising m relation
to the dela'led fina "ciautarge.s used for the
tonus, disclosing procise targets for the
Ptlan in advance would not be 1n sharehelder
interests Thereforc, pertormance targets
and perforrmance achieved will be published
at the end of the pertormance period so
sharcholders can fully assess the basts forany
pay-outs under the Plan

= Malus and clawback mechanisms also apply
to allow the recoupment within three years of
thg payment of the cash banus or the grant
ot deteired sraresin the event of hinancial
rmisstatemnent, errorin the calculation or
gross misconduct

« Any exercise of discretion by the Committee
will be communicated to shareholders
in full inthe following year™s Direciors’
Remuneration Report

= Cessation of emplayment and change of
control provisions apply as s¢t out i the notes
to the Policy table
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¢ The maximum annual bonus payment
will equal 120% of salary for maxirnum
performance For threshold performance,
0 of masimum opportunity will be paid.
Ontarget performanee 50% of maximum
opportunity will be paid
+ The Comnmittee will aperate all incentive
plans according to the rules of each
respectrve plan and the discretions cantained
therein The discretions cover aspects
such as the brming of grant and vesting of
awards determining the size of the award
{subject to ihe policy limits] the treatrnent
of leavers, retrospective adjustment of
awards [e g for anghtsissue, a corperate
restructuning or for special dividends) and in
exceptional circymstances, the discretion to
adjust proviously set targets for anincentive
award if events happen which cause the
Commuttee to determine that it would be
appropriate to do so Inexerciging such
discretrons, the Committee will take into
account generally accepted market practice,
best practice guidelines, the provisions of the
Listing Rules and the Company s approved
Remuneratron Policy
* Inexceptional circumstances the Committee
retarns the discretion to
al Chango the perfarmance measuros and
targets and the waighting attached to the
performance measures and targets part
way through a performance year it there
s asignificant and vaterial evenl which
causes the Committee to believe the
original measures, weightings and targets
are no tonger appropriate, and
b} Make downward or upward adjustrients
to the ameunt of bonus earned resutting
fram the application of the pertarmance
measures, if the Committec believe
that the banus outcornes are not a tair
angd accurale relection of business
performance

Nao changes



LTIP

Purpose and link to strategy: lo encourage strong and sustamed improverments in iinancial per formance, i line with the
Company's strategy and long term shareholder returns

Opcrzor ncludirg perfarmarce mic r1zsl

MEXIP T ¢ PO UnIy

Subsroreve thar ges from Prlicy agreed
4,21 2 AGM ardtanuorale

* Awards arc granted annually and will be
subject to one ar mere performance conditions
which will be assessed over three years

* Atwo year holding period will apply following
the three year vesting penod for LTIP Awards
granted to the Executive Directors

¢ Currently, LTIP awards require the Company s

RoRE to outperform the target set outin

Otwat's Final Determination A sliding scale

of targets 1s set Different targets and/or

performance measures may be set for future

L7IP awards to refiec’ e business stratagy

and regulatory framework operating at

thai time

Using ReRE to assess long term perfarmanrce

reflects the focos of Ofwat in AM=6 a~d s

consistent with our aim Lo delive- efficient

returns to shareholders RoRE measures tha
returns fatter tax and interest] that companies

Pave earncd by reference to the notional

regulated equity where requ ated equityis

calculated from the RCV and notianal net debt

The Commitiee belioves that the use of RoRE

provides a strong alignrment betwecn the long

terr lingcial and operational per-ormance
ofthe Group and the rewara delivered

to maragement

No rmaterial change will be made to the type

ot perfermance cond tions without pror

sharchalder consultation

The value of dividends paid on the shares

cormpaising the award will be rolled up and

patd chvesting The award may be structured
as a conditional share award (awards may a.so
be settled n cashin certan corcumstances)

Malus and ciawback mechanismis apply to
allow the recoupment of incentive awards
within three years of vesting in the event of
financial ~isslatemne-t, an errorin calculaling
the level of vesting or gross negligence, fraud
or gross misconduct

Cessatior of ernployment and change of
control provisions apply as set outin the nates
to tne Policy table

All-employee share plans

» Maximurn imit 1s 200% of satary Up to 25% of
an award may vest for threshold performance
« The Committee wilt review the targets before
eachgrant to ensure they remain appropriate
The Commmittee may change the balance of
the measure, or use different measures for
subsequent awards, as appropriate
* The Comrnittee will operate all incentive plans
according to the rules of each respective
plan and the discretinns contaned theren
The discretions cover aspects such as
the iming of grant and vesting of awards,
deterrmiming the size of the award subject to
the poticy imits], the treatment of leavers,
reirospective adjustment of awards (e g
for ar.ghtsissue, a corporate restructuring
or for special dvidends) and 10 exceptiona:
circumstances, the discretion to adjust
previcusly se* targets for anincentive award it
events happen which cause the Committee to
determ ne that it would be appropriate to do so
Inexercising such dscretions, the Committee
will take into account generally accepted
market practice, best practice gu-delines,
tre provisrons of the Listing Rules and the
Company s approved Remuneration Policy
* |ncxceptional circumstances the Coemmittee
retains the discretion to
al Change the perfarmance measures and
targets and the weighting attached to the
perfarmance measuares and targets part
way through a perfermance year if there
15 a significant and ralerial event which

causes the Committec to believe the oniging’

measures, weightings and targets are no
longer appropniate, and

bl Make downward or upward adjustments
to the amount earned resulting trom the
application of the pertormance reasures,
if the Committee believes that tre | TIP
outcomes are not a farr and accurate
refleclion o” bus ness perrormance

Ir add-tion, for any awards to vest, the

Commitlee must be sabshed that there has been

no comprormise to the commeraia: pract:ces
or operational standards of the Group If the
Commutles s not =o satisf ed, trer ke vesting
percentage may be scaled back as appropriate
[including to 0%}

Increase in maximum LTIF opportunity

» CEQ - 200% of salary [currently 150%)

o CFQ - 150%, of salary [currently 1009%]

The Comrittee will ensure that the increased
oppor'uniys rellected in the levet of challenge
inthe LTIP targets and has introduced a stretch
target based on UQ performance

The Committee s rationale for increasing the
maximum LTIP opportunity 1s as follows

= The Executive Directors were inexperienced at
the time the current Policy was introduced and
incentve leve.s reflected this The Committee
believes that the Executive Directors are now
fully eribedded in the business and aver the past
threg years they have performed successfully in
thairroles, demonstrating an excepticnal lavel of
commi‘ment in executing the bus ress strategy
lor *he bhenehit of our shar choiders custorne:s
and thewider commurnity The Cemmittes
wants to provide an appropriate level of

incent ve oppartunity to deliver a competit ve
totsl rerruneration pacxage that retaing and
motivates a truly exceptional managernent team
for the ~esl of '~ s AMP and inta ' e ~exL.

The Carmnerittee 1s keen to ensure tnat there s
an appropriate level of incentwe opportunity in
the remuner atien to retlect the greater tocus

ot Ofwat on the relative performance of water
carmpanies and the tougher regulatory context
duaring AMP7

Intraduction ot a two year holding periog
whichwll continue to operate post cessation

of empioyment to enhance long term al gnmen:
between sharehalders, customers and
executive s Interests

Purpose and link to strategy: Tc encourage widespread employee share ownership to enable employees to share in the success
of the business, and to align their interests with those of shareholders

Qpatzqer inctudirg pertormar o me rcs)

Mo eppar-urey

Sabu o wecForgesfrom Policy agreed
ated JAGM andrasoralo

s The Exccutive Directors arc able to participate
in HMRC tax advantaged all-employce
share plans on the same terms as other
eligible employees

* Tne maximum Limits under the plans are as
set by HMRC

Nao changes
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Goverpance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Shareholding requirements
Purpose and link to strategy: To encourage strong shareholder alignment

Substanie chat ges rom Prlicy agreey
at 2073 AGM and retionale

Increase in minimum sharehoiding requirement

Operater irchuding perfarmar co miztries) Maxienar cpporamty

» The Company opcrates sharehotding nfa
requirernents under which Executive * CEQ - 300% of salary [currently 200%!}
Directors are expected to build and maintain « GFO - 200% of satary [currently 150%)

a shareho ding in the Company The Comrmuittee considers that higher shareholder '
» The CEQ s expected to buld and mantan

a holding of shares to the value of 300% of requwremegtswrn ensure greater long term

alignment between the shareholders and
5?“’1\’- and other Executive Directors 200% Exceutive Directars 1n the Light of the higher
of salary

quantum of LTIP awards

o Executive Directors are expected to retain all

of the net of tax number of shares they receve

through the LTIP and deferred share honus

until the shareholding requirements have

been met
+ The Comnittee refams the discretion to

increase the sharehoidings regquirements

as appropriate

External directorships

Executive Directors are permitied o take on external nen-executive directorships, thaugh normally only one other appomntment,

to bring a further external perspective to the Group and help in the development of key individuals’ experience In order to avoid any
conflicts of interest, all appointments are subject to the approval of the Nominations Comrmittee Executive Directors are perrmitted
to retain the fees arising from appointments

Approach te recruitment and promotion

The Company s approach is for the remuneration of any new Director to be assessed in ine with the principles applied to the Executive
Directors The Commuttee is mindful that it washes to avaid paying more than 1t considers necessary to secure a preferred candidate
with the appropriate calibre and experience needed for the role In setting the rermuneration for new recruits, the Commuittee will have
regard to guidelines and sharehaolder sentiment regarding one-off or enhanced short term or lang term incentive payments as well as

gmang cansideration to the appropriateness of any performance measures associated with an award

Item

Polcy

Salary, Benefits
and Pension

Annual Bonus

LTIP

» These will be setin Ling with the Palicy for existing Exccutive Directors

* Maxrmum annual participation will be set in ine with the Corppany's Policy for existing Exccutrve Directors and witl not exceed
120% of salary .
* Maxrmum annual participation will be set in ine with the Company's Policy for existing Executive Dircctors and witl not exceed
200%: of salary

Marmum Yarable
Remuneration

‘Buyout’ of Incentives
forterted on cessation
of employment

Relocation Policies

internal promotions

* The maximum vanable remuneration which may be granted 1s 320% of salary

* Where the Committee determines that the individual circumslances of recruitment yushifies the prowision of a buyout, the
equivalent value of any incentives that will be forfeited on cessation of an Executive Director's previous employment will be
calculated taking into account the following the proportion of the performance period completed on the date of the Executive
Director s cessation of employment, the performance conditions attached to the vesting of these incentives and the lkelihood
ol them being satisfied, and any other terms and condition having a material effect on thawr value Vtapsed value |

« The Commuttee may then grant up ta the same value as the lapsed value, where possible, under the Company s incentive plans
To the extent that 1t was not possible or practical to provide the buyaut within the terms of the Company's existing incentive plans,
a bespoke arrangement would be uscd

«Ininstances where the new Fxecutive Director 1s required to relocate or spend stgntficant tme away from hisfher narmal
residence, the Carmpany may provide one-off compensation to reilect the cosl of relocation fer the Executive Director The level
of the relocation package will be assessed on a case-by-case basis but will take into consideration any cost of ving differences/
housing allowance, disturbance allowances and schooling

* In the case of an internal appointment, any vartable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role would be allowead to pay aut
accordmag to the terms onwhich it was oniginatly granted These would be disclosed to sharcholders in the remuneration report
for the relevant financia year

The Company's Policy when setting fees for the appomntment of new Non-Executive Directars s to apply the policy which applies
to current Non-Fxecutive Directors, which 1s set out on page 127.
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Service contracts for Executive Directors

Name Date of service contract Nature of contract Notice period Termination payments
LivGarf eld 160414 Rolling 12 months Payments for loss of oflice ccmprise 3
James Bowling 010415 rmaxirnurn of 12 months salary and benefits anly

Copies of the service contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company s registered oftice during nor mal business hours

Policy on Payments for Loss of Office
The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for Executive Directors are shown in the table below, together with
detalls of the treatment on cessation of employment No changes from Lhe 2015 Policy are proposed.

Elgment Treatment on Cessation of Employment

General The Commutten will honour Executive Directors contractual entitlements Service contracts do not contain liguidated
damages clauses Ita contractis to be termmnated, the Cormmittee will deterrnine such mitigation as it considers fair
and reasonable ir cach case There are no contractaal asrangernents that would guarantee a pension witn lrmited or no
abatement on severance or early retirement There s no agreerment between the Company and its Directors or employees
providing “or compensation for loss of office or employment that cocurs becsuse of atakeover tid The Committee
reserves the right tz make additional payments where such paymenis are made 1n good fathir discharge ofan exsting
legat abligaton lar by way of damages for breach of such an obfigatron), or by way of settlement ar corrpromise of any
claim anisinain cennecuan with the termination of an Executive Director s affice or employment

Salary, Benefits and Pension These wll be pa d over the notice period The Company nas d scret'on to make a lump sum payment n licy
Annual Bonus Good L caver Reason Other Reason L
Cash Anards Performance cend-hions will be measured at the Nao bonus wall ke payatle for year of cessation

bonus measarement date Boruswill norrally
be pro-rated for the periad worked during the
linanc alyear

Dizeret on

The Commettee has the following elements of discretion

¢ Todetermine that an Executive Director s a good leaver s the Commuttes s intentign to use th s discretion orly in
crcumstances where there s an appraopriate pus.ness case woich will be explained in futl to sharcholders,

« To determine wnether to pro-rate the bonus to time The Remnaneration Comrnittee s normeal polcy is to pro-rate for
time It .sthe Corrrmittee s intenticn only to use discretion not to pro-rate in arcumstances where there1s an appropriate
business case, based on the circamstances of the Executive Directer s geparture Use of discretan wall be explained in
full to sharcholders, and

* Tha bonus would be pand a1 the same time as for the other Executive Directors and. if the Execut.ve has teft ernployment
by that date, it rmay be paid solely in cash

Annual Bonus Good Leaver Reason Other Reason
Deterred Share Awards All subsisting deferred share awards will vest All subsisting deterred share awards wall vest or the dealing day
on the dealing day after such termination after such termination with the exception of summrary, dismissal of

the participant when any deferred share award held by the individual
shall lapse immedtately on such termination

Discretion

The Commuttee has the following elements of discretion

* To determine that an Executive Director 1s a good leaver Itis the Commuttee s intention to use Lhis discretion only in
crcumstances where there 15 an appropriate business case which witt be explained in tull to shareholders

* Tovest deferred shares at the end of the original deferral period or at the date of cessation The Committes will make
lhiz determinaticn depe~dirg on the typ= of gooe leaver reason resulting in the cessation, anc

s To determine whether to pro-rate the maximum number of shares to the time from the date of grant to tne date of
cessation The Comrnittee s normal poticy s nat to pro-rate awards for tme The Committec vall determine wnether
ar not to pra rato where there is an appropriate business case based on the circumstancos of the Executive Director s
departure Use of discretion will be explaimed in full to shareheolders

Il Good leave s arz defnes unuer tre Annual Honus Schorme Rules and the LD Hy o5 as an iedividuol whose employtnentis termmicated by the Com pany asaresu L of
mpury ill-headh ar disability redundane y ceretirement in each casc as detarmined by the Commuttee] ar whase emoloymont terrminates sutnmaticaly by ros e of
theirdeath  Ac stated above, the Committee alsc retains an crerall discreton to detertmine that anindividual s a good leaver
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Element Treatrnent on Cessation of Employment
LTIP Good Leaver Reason Other Reason
Pro-raied to trhe and performance in respect Lapse of any urvested LTIP awards

of eath subsisting LTI award

Discretion

The Cormmittee has the following elements of discretion

* To deterrrine that an Executive Chrector s a good leaver (tis the Committec's intention to use this discretion anly in
crrcumstances where there is an appropriate business case which will be explained in full to shareholders,

» To determine 1o pay cash inLeu of shares,

+ To measure performance over the original performance pertod or at the date of cessation The Committee will make this
deterrination depending or the type of good leaver reason resulting in the cessation,

* To determine whether to vest shares at the end of the priginat performance period or at the date of cessation
The Commuittee will make this determination depending on the type of good leaver reason resu'ting i the cessatian, and

= Tadeterruine whether to pro rate the mawmurn number of shares to the bime fram the stact of the perfarmance peroad
to the date of cessation The Cammuttee s normal policy 1s to pro-rate awards for time In Grcumstances where there
15 an appropriale business case based an the circumstantes of the Fxecutive Dirertor s departure the Com vittee inay
wse discretion and nef pro-rate Use of discretion vall be explained in fult to shareholders

Holding periods Where cessation of employment occurs during any holding period the LTIP award will continue as normal However, the
Cernmittee retains discretion to allow the award to vest when cessation of employment gccurs m certann circumstances,
such as

s Where the reason for departure s death, disability or ill-health,

« Where there are extenuating facters which impact at the hime of departure (such as unforeseen changes to persanal
arcumstances], of

« Any other reason, permitted by Commuttee in its absolute discretion in any parbicular case, except where terrmnation
15 for disheonesty, fraud, rmscanduct or other oreumstances jeshfying summary d s~ussal bn which cases ihis very
lkely any outstanming LTIP awards would lapse on cessalion regar dless)

Other Thare are no other historcal contractual provisions ather than those set out above

Ll Goou leaver s ara defined unaer (he Avnual Beeus Schare Rules and the LHP Ry e as an individual whose ainployment s ternyrated by the Cenpany as ateou Lot
wyney, it -haalth o disabibty eodundancy or cetirament in vach case, as determemaed by the Camnnuttes] of wehese smployment wepun it s autaenale ally by reasan 2f
thear death Ax stated abowe the Comnuttec alsoretans an overall descreton ta detes mine that an mdivrdual is 9 geod leaver

Qutplacement services and rermbursement of tegal costs may be provided where appropriate. Any statutory entittements or sums
ta settle or compromise claims in connection with a termination would be paid as necessary Outstanding savings/awards under the
SAYE and the legacy Share Incentive Plan would be transferred in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by HMRC
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Change of control

The change of centrol policy for the new Remuneration Policy 1s set out below No changes o 2015 Policy are proposed

Element Purpose and link to strategy

COperation

Annual Bonus

Pro-rated to ime and performance to the date of the

The Committee has discretion regarding whetherto pro rate the

Cash Awards the change of control fformula included in rules] bonus to time The Commuttee s normal policy 1s that it will pro-rate

Year of the Change the bonus for time In aircurnstances where there s an appropriate

of Control business case, the Cornmittee may use discretion and not pro-rate
Use of discretion will be explained to sharehalders

Annual Bonus Subsisting deferred share awards witl vest on a change The Cornmittee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the

Ueferred Share Awards  of control

awards to time The Committee’s normal policy is that it will not pro-
rate awards for time The Cammittee will make this determination
depending on the circumstances of the change of controt

LmiP The number of shares subject to subsisting LTIP awards

will vest on a change of control pro-rated to time

and performance The holding pericg witt not apply or

change of control

The Commuttec has discretron regarding whether to pro-rate the

LTIF awards to time The Comrmittes’s normal polcy is that it wall
pro-rate the LTIP awards for time tn circumstances where there s
an appropniate business case, the Committec may use discretion and
not pro-rate Use of discretion will be explained in fuli to sharehotders
Shares supject to a holding poriod witl vest on change of contral

Chairman and Nen-Executive Directors

The Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors, other than the Chairman, is determined by the Chairman and Executive
Directors The fee for the Chairman is determined by the Remuneration Commuttee [without the Chairman present] No changes

to the 2015 Policy are proposed.

Purpese and Link

Element to strategy Qperation

Maximum Oppertunity

Feo Torecrait and retam
MNon-BExecutive
Directors of a suitaole
cahbre for the role
and duties required

Board fee witr additioral fecs paid for the Semior Independert Director and
charrmansh.p of the Bearg Corrmittecs The Chairman secenes a total

fee in respect of his Board duties Fees are pad manthly Dwrectors will be
reimbursed for any reasonable busiress experses incurred in the coarse
of thei~ dulies including the tax payabie thereo~

The fees for the Nor Execut ve D rectors and Charrman are set taking inta
accountthe tire commitrent of the role and market rates in comparacle

Detals of the current tee levels
farthe Directars are se* out inthe
Annual Reportun Remuneration
an page 110

The fee levels are set subject to
the rmaximum Limits set out in the
Arucles of Associahon

companics The fees are narmally reviewed annually [bat not necessarily

increased) eftective from 1 April

The Company ~etains the flexibilily to pay fees ror the membership

ol committees

In exceptional circumstances, fees may alsa be paxd for additisnal tme
spent on the Company s business outside nermal duties
Non-Exacutive Directors do not particpate inany vanable remuneration

aTrecelve any olher benefils

Non-Executive Directors normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead, Non-Executive Directors
are engaged by letters of appointment which are terminable by either party with ne notice period and no compensation in the event
of such termination, other than acerued fees and expenses All Direclors are subject to annual appointment or reappointment

at the AGM.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Application of the Remuneration Policy

The charts betow provide an illustration of what could be receved hy each of the Executive Directors under the new Remuneration

Policy for 2018/19 These charts are illustrative as the actual value will depend on business performance in the year 2018/19 (for the
annuat bonusl and in the three year period to 2020/2021 (for the LTIP], as well as share price performance to the date of the vesting
of the share element of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP awards in 2021,

The on-target and maximurm scenaros include an addiional bar which shows the impact of share price growth aver the relevant
performance pericd to show how the package value is aligned to sharehoiders We have used share price growth of 3% p a for on
target performance and 10%p a for maximumn performance It1s a key part of our Remuneration Policy to align interests of the
Executive Directors and shareholders through the provision of a substantial element of rernuneration in shares Increases in the
value of reimuneration through an increase in share price are evidence of the direct link betweert the interests of the two.

Graph removed

Note Mirimum pay s hixed pay only [ & salary « benehits + censiont Un-tatget pay includes hxed pay, 2. of the rmawrrum bonos fegqua 10 60% of salary for botht' e
€0 and the CFO) and 30 vesling of the LTTP awards [with gr ant tevels ol 200% o satary lar the CEO and T5y”" ol salary for the LFOT Maximum pay 1 cludes hixed pay
and assurmes 100% vesting of oth the annual bonus and the LTIP awards Al ameunts have been counded to the nearast €1,000 Salacy levols bufuch are the base an
which olher elements o' the package are calculated] are based on those applying at 7 July 20 8 The vatue of taxgble beneiits 15 the costof pravid ng those benelrtsin
the year ended 31 March 2008 The Drer utive Drectors are alse permitted to parbiapate in HMRC tax advantaged all-employee share plans, on the same lerms as othar
€luphle employees, bul they have been axcluded from the above graph for cunplioty

Philip Remnant
Chawman of the Rernuneration Cormimitiee

22 May 2018
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited Group
financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018,

The performance review of the Company can be found within the
Strategic report from the inside cover to page 65 This provides
detailed mformation relating to the Group, its business model and
strategy, the operation of its businesses, future developrments
and the results and financial position for the year ended 31 March
2018 The Governance Report set out on pages 6610 12815
incorporated by reference into this report and, accordingly,
should be read as parl of this report

Details of the Group’s policy on addressing the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set cut in the nisk
management section on pages 597 to &3

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group s to treat and provide water
and rermave waste water in the UK and treland

Details of the principal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are shown 1n
note 19 and 47 ta the financial statements on pages 168 and

195 respactively

Areas of operation

During the course of 2017/18, the Group had activities and
operationsinthe UK and Ireland On 3 July 2017, the Group
announced the sale of its operations in the United States

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the Directors currently serving on the Board are
set out on pages 68 and 69

All of the Directors, with the exception of Emma FitzGerald, will
be offering themselves for appaintment or reappaintment at the
Annual General Meeting [AGM'], as set cut in the Governance
Reporton page 78

Details of Directors’ service contracts are set out In the Directors’
remuneraticn report on page 125 Theinterests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company are shown on page 116 of that
report The Board has a documented process in place in respect
of conflicts

Insurance and indemnities

The Company maintains Directors” and Officers’ hability
insurance in respect of legal action that right be brought against
its Directors and Officers. As permitted by the Company's
Articles of Association [the Articies’], and to the extent permitted
by law, the Company imdemnifies each of its Directors and

other Officers of the Group against certain Labllities that

may be incurred as a result of their pasitions with the Group

The indemnity was in force throughout the tenure of each
Director during the last financial year, and 1s currently in force

Severn Trent Plc does not have in place any indemnities for the
benefit of the External Auditer

Employees

The average number of employees within the Group s shown
in note 9 to the financial statements on page 157

Severn Trent Plc believes a diverse and inclusive workforce 1s a
key factor i heing a successful business Through our Diversity
and Equat Opportunities Policy, the Company seeks to ensure
that every employee, without exception, 1s treated equatly and
fairly and that all emplcyees are aware of their responsibilities
This means more than ensuring we don't discriminate in any
way - we want to create and mantain a culture open te a
diverse population

We are an equal opportunsties employer and welcome
applications from all individuals, including those with a disability
We are fully commutted to supporting applications made by
disabled persons, and make reasonable adjustments to therr
environment where possible [having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities) We are also responsive to the needs of
our employeas As such, should any employee become disabled
during their tirme with us, we will actively re-tram that employee
and make reasonable adjustments to their environment where
possible, norder to keep them in employment with us

All our training, promoticn and career development processes
are in place for all our employees to access, regardless of their
gender, race, age or disability The provision of occupational
health programmes s of crucial importance to Severn Trent with
the aim of keeping our ernployees fit, healthy and well, including
an employee assistance programme

Employee engagement

We continuously engage with aur employees in a number of ways
to accommaodate different working patterns This includes

¢ all poople briefings, Team Talk

* corpeorate communications events and roadshows held by
functions across the Company,

a dedicated intranet, ‘Streamline’,

online news portal and weekly roundup, Pipeline News',

an active employee social media presence, Yarmmer,
» conference calls and email,

leadership cngagement channels ~ Chief Executive’'s weekly
blog, sentor management monthly wisibility programme and
quarterly events,

s Company forum, and

s regular meetings with Unions

Detaits of the financial and economic factors affecting the
performance of the Company are shared with all employees
at the appropriate ime using the methods listed above,

We provide opportunities for employees to give their feedback to
the Company in a nurnber of ways, from tearn or shift meetings
and annual employee satisfaction surveys
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Governarice

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

The Company s keen to encourage greater emnployee involvement
n the Group's performance through share owinership To belp
align employees interests with the success of the Company s
performance, we cperate an HMRC approved all-employee

plan, the Severn Trent Sharesave Scherne ['Sharesave), which 1s
offered to UK employees on an annual basis

Over 70% of Severn Trent's UK ermnployees participate in the
Sharesave scherne, with the average participant contributing
£142 each month

During the year, the Company has remained within s headroom
Lirruts for the 1ssue of new shares far share plans as sef out in the
rules of the above plan

Research and development

innovative use of existing and ermerging technologies will
continue to be crucial ta the successful development of new
products and processes for the Group and our products must
continue to deliver value for customers

Expenditure on research and development is set cut in note 7
to the financlal staterments on page 156.

internal controls

Further details of our internal control framework can be found
i1 the Audit Committee report on page 86,

Treasury management

The disclosures reguired under the European Umon ('EU | Fair
Value Directive inrelation to the use of linancial instrurments by
the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial statements
on pages 176 to 177, Further details on our Treasury Policy and
management are set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s review
on page 5h.

Post balance sheet events

Detalls of post balance sheet events are set out iIn note 44 to the
Group financial statements on page 191,

Dividends

An intenim dividend of 34 63 pence per Ordinary Share was paid
on b January 2018, The Directors recommend a final dividend
of 5192 pence per Ordinary Share to be paid an 20 July 2018 to
shareholders on the register on 15 June 2018 This would bring
the total divmdend for 2017/18 to 86 55 pence per Ordinary Share
{2016/17 8150 penice) The payment of the finat dividend 1s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

Dividend Policy

We have enhanced our Dividend Policy for the period 2015-2020,
with effect from 2017/18, and will now Increase the dividend by
growth of at least RPY +£% each year This replaced the previous
Duadend Policy of annual growth of the dvidend at no tess than
RPI until March 2020
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The Didend Policy reflects our strong cperational delivery
and financizt performance, white ensuring that our bills are
affardable far all gur custarmers. When deterrnirung the policy
the Board considered various scenarios and sensitivities, and
reviewed the impact of adverse changes in inflation and interest
rates on key metrigs The Board believes that the Dividend
Poticy 1s cormmensurate with a sustainable invesiment grade
credit rating

Capital structure

Details of the Company s issued share capital and of the
movements during the year are shown in note 10 to the Cormpany
financial slatements on page 202 The Company has one class

of Qrdinary Shares which carries no night to fured iIncome, '
Each share carnies the night to one vote at General Meetings of

the Company The issued nominal value of the Ordinary Shares

15 100% of the total 1ssued normimal value ot all shar e caprtal

There are no speafic restrictions on the size of a holding not on
the transter of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisiens of the Articles and prevailing tegistation The Directors
are naot aware of any agreements between holders of the
Cornpany s shares that may result i restnictions on the transfer
of securties or on voling rights

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements on pages 184 to 186. For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Dwnarship Trust, the Trustee
abstans from voting

No person has any special rights of control over the Company s
share capital and all issued shares are fully pad

With regard to the appamtment and replacement of Directors,
the Company is governed by its Articles, the Code, the
Cormpartes Act 2006 and related legislation The Articles

may be amended by Special Resolution of the shareholders

The powers of Directors are described in the Severn Trent Ple
Board Governance document which can be found on our website,
the Articles and the Gavernance report an page 73

Under the Articles, the Directars have authority to allot Qrdinary
Shares, subject to the aggregate nominat amaunt lmit set at the
2017 AGM

Change of control

There are a nurnber of agreements that take effect after, or
terrunate upon, a change of control of the Company, such as
commercal contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans None of these are
considered to be sigmitcantin terms of their likely impact on
the business of the Group as a whole There are no agreements
between the Company and tts Directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment
because of a takeover bid



Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified in

accordance with Chapter b of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the following major shareholdings

Percentage of

No of Ordinary Shares voting rights and

Name of holder of 97'/ peach issued share capital
BtackRack, Inc 18,425,671 78%
Rreef Real Estate 10,248,946 4 34%
Aberdeen Standard

Investments 9 308,469 3 94%
Legal & Generat

Investment

Management 8226,287 348%
Maple-Brown Abbott 7835714 332%
Lazard Asset

Managemenit 7335575 310%

As at 77 May 7018, the Company had been notified of tne
following holdings of voting rights in the Grdinary Share capital
of the Cormpany BlackRock, Inc 18,297,775 shares (7 74%),

Rreef Real Estate 9.988,240 shares [4 23%], Aberdeen Standard
Investments 8 944,474 shares (3 79%], Legal & General
Investment Managerent 8,533,601 shares (3 61%}, Maple-Brown
Abbott 8,004,760 shares 3 41]%, Lazard Asset Management
10,424,261 shares [4 41%]

The percentage of voling rights detailed above was calculated
at the ime of the relevant disclosures were made \n accordance
with Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was given authority at its AGMin 2017 to make
market purchases of Ordinary Shares up to a maximum number
of 23,603,888 Ordinary Shares During the year, no Crdinary
Shares have been repurchased

Authority will again be sought from shareholders at this year s
AGM to purchase up to a maxmum of 23,677,393 Ordinary Shares

The Directors believe that it 1s desirable to have the general
authority to buy back the Company s Ordinary Shares 1n order to
provide maximum flexibility in the management of the Group's
capital resources However, the authority would only be used «f
the Board was satisfied at the time that to do so would be in the
best interests of shareholders

Contributions for political and charitable
purposes

Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted
to £81.947 (2017 £312,588] Donations are given to chartties
whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the
respenstble use of water resources and waste water services
which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships

In addition, we provide denations to employee nominated
charities through a matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schemes We are atso committed to supporting
WaterAid, the UK’s only majer charity dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world's
poorest countries

Severn Trent’s policy I1s not to make any donations for potstical
purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingly, neither Severn Trent Pl
nor its subsidiaries made any political denatiens or incurred
political expenditure in the financial year under review.

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elechons and
Referendurns Act 2000 [the relevant provisions of which

are now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2004,
shareholder authority is required for political donaticns to be
rnade or political expenditure to be incurred by the Company
or any of s subsidiaries in the EU and disclosure of any such
payment must be made in the Annual Report and Accounts
The legislation gives a wide defimition of what constitutes politicat
donations and pelitical expenditure including sponsorship,
subscripticns, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees
fulfiling public duties and support for bodies representing the
business community In policy review or reform The Company
has therefore obtained imited authonity from shareholders
as a precadtionary measure to allow the Company to continue
supporting the commurity and such organisations without
inadvertently breaching the legislation

At the 2017 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authority to
make political donations or to incur poliical expenditure in the
EU [which would not ordinarily be regarded as political donations|
up to an aggregate annual imit of £150,000 for the Company and
its subsidiaries Pursuant to those authorities, during the year
ended 31 March 2018 the Group inctrred costs of EmiLt (2017 £nil)
Those authorities will expire at the 2018 AGM and, in Line with
market practice to renew the authorities on an annual basis,

the Board has decided to put forward a reselution to this year s
AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to pelitical
organisations and to incur poliical expenditure up te a rmaximurm
aggregate of £160,000 p a As permitted under the Companies
Act 2006, this resolution also covers any political donations
made or political expenditure incurred by any subsidiaries of

the Company
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

We reduce our carbon footprint

The UK 15 playing a leading partin reducing carbon emissions We want to play our part in reducing ourimpact by reducing our
carbon emussions As the majonity of our carbon emissions are driven by our use of energy, managing carbon means managing costs
We therefore aim to reduce carbon emissions and increase our generation of renewable energy

We are achieving bath of these aims, and this year we have seen another reduction in overall carbon emissions We've seen a
consistent reduction since 2002 when we began publicly reporting on our greenhouse gas emissions We have held the Carbon Trust
Standard since 2009 in recognition of this achicverment and we ve been recertified to 2019,

Graph removed

The Carbon Trust Standard recognises our cansistent emissions reductions and effective carbon management processes and we
scored in the top quartile of companies We continue ta report to the Carbon Disclosure Project | COP' each year which means

our cimate change information is publicly accessible CDP request information about climate change from companies on behalf

of investors and score each company on the quality and completeness of ther responses

During this year, we again increased renewable energy generation and across Severn Trent we now generate an equivalent of 38%

of Severn Trent Water Limited's electricity needs. We continue to lead the UK water industry, with an am of building on thrs position
by generating the equivalent of 50% of cur electricity needs by 2020

We plan to continue to reduce our operational emissions by reducing our energy use and increase aur renewable energy generation,
mainly within Business Services Pursuing these measures will continue to reduce our key sources of ermissions, reduce our reliance
on the electricity grid and bring financial benefits for our customers and investors

Report on greenhouse gas emissions

Thrs i1s the fifth year Severn Trent has been required to report greenhouse gas ({GHG'] emissions in the Directors’ report

Severn Trent 1s cornmutted to reducing its GHG emissions For Severn Trent Water Limited, which accounts far 99% of our total Group
emissions, we have been publicly reporting on our emissions since 2002 In that time we have reduced our emissions by baing maore
energy efficient and generating moere renewable energy

Gur GHG efmussions are reported in tonnes of carbon dioxide eguivatent [tCO.e), for the period 1 Aprit 2017 10 31 March 2018

Our total net enissions have fallen again this year, due to gur increased generation of renewable energy, a reduction in the ermissions-
Intensity of UK grid electricity and reduced fuel and process ermissions The sale of our US business has reduced our emissions
outside the UK

The GHG data we report is reported mnternally during the year to the Corporate Responsibility Committee and to the Board We have
subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance by Jacobs,
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Severn Trent Plc Direct Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions [tC0ze] 2013/14 2014115 2015/1¢ 2016117 201718

Emissions from combustion of fuel and operatian of facilities (Scope 1) 132,535 132 406 134,584 138131 134,307
Emissions from electricity purchased for own use (Scope 2) 330,679 3577566 337028 294,426 279.3%3
Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 463214 490,163 471,612 432 557 413,700
Em ssions benefit of the renewable energy we expert including

biometha-e experled for which we hold areer gas cerlificates) 21,672 38,878 45,085 42069 45,333
Total Annual Net Operational Emissicns 441 542 451,285 426,027 390,488 348,367
Annual GHG intensity ratio (tCO2/unit) 20M3/14 2014/15 2615/16 201617 201718
Operational GHG emissions of Severn Trent per £m turnover 248 6 2552 2347 2140 2174

Our approach to reporting 1s based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard and we have included only
emissions from the assets which we own and operate and which we can directly influence and reduce, known as the financial contraol
boundary. In accordance with the reporting regulations, we have not reported on emissions we can influence, but which we are not
responsible for, referred to as indirect emissions We have used the location based methodalogy rather than the more recently-
introduced ‘market-based rethod to account for use of grid electricity in order to ensure consistency with previous years

Forthe appointed UK Water businesses Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, we have calculated our emissions
using the ‘Carbon accounting in the UK Water industry methodology for estimating operatianal emissions, Version 12° (released April
2018) Thisis a peer-reviewed calculation tool developed and used by all the major water comparnies in the UK [t1s updated each year
to inctude the latest available emussions factors For Severn Trent Services, we have used the latest Defra emissions factors which
include the relevant conversion factors for overseas electricity

aiday sibapen g

FIUBUIBADG

SEVERN TRENT WATER ONLY -

Operationat Greenhouse Gas Emissions [tCOze] 2013/14 201415 2015/16 20156/17 2017/18
Scope § Emissions [Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities) 123,840 122,282 126009 128584 130 662
Scope 2 Emissions [Electricity purchased for own use] 333721 357701 340,484 298872 264,290
Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 457651 479983 466,693 427456 394 957
Em s ons benefit of lre renewable energy we expart [includ:ng c.ogas

for which we hold greer gas certlicates] 18,638 24,247 24,887 22,790 27474
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 439023 455735 441 606 404,665 367475

Supplier payment policy

Individual operating comparties within the Group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with regard to the payment
of their suppliers, in accordance with the Prompt Payment Code [ PPC’] The companies agree terms and conditions under which
business transactions with suppliers are conducted It 1s Group policy that provided a supplier s complying with the relevant terms
and condilions, including the prompt and complete submission of all specified decumentation, payment will be made in accordance
with agreed terms It1s also Group policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment will take place when business
15 agreed

Relevant audit information
The Directers confirm that
* sofar as each of thern 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s Auditor 1s unaware, and

* each of them has taken zll the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company s Auditor 1s aware of that mfermation

This contirmation 1s given and should be inter preted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Cormpanies Act 2006

External Auditor

Having carried out a review of their effectiveness during the year, details of which can be found in the Audit Committee report on
page 87, the Audit Cormnmittee has recomnmended to the Board the reappointment of Deloitte LLF. The reappointment and a resotution
to that effect wili be on the agenda at the AGM Delaitte LLP indicated their willingness to centinue as Auditor The Audit Committee
will also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of the Board
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The informauon required to be disclosed by Listing Rule 98 4R
can be located in the following pages of this Annual Report
and Accounts

Section Information to be included Location

() A statement of the amount  Page 158
of interest capitalised

[4) Detalls of long term Page 123
incentive schernes

(8] Section 71n relation to Pages 195t0 194
subsidiary undertakings

12, 15). (6], Not applicable

.19)-114)

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures required by law relating to the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions are included in the Directors’ report
on pages 137 and 133

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited

Separate Annual Performance Reports for each of Severn Trent
Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited are prepared and
provided to Ofwat Copes will be avalable an our website or

on request to the Company Secretary There is no charge for
these publications

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at the Ricoh Arena,
Phoenix Way, Coventry, CV6 6GE at Vlam on Wednesday 18 July
2018 The notice convening the meeting, together with details of
the business to be considered and explanatory notes for each
resplution, 1s distributed separately to shareholders s also
available on our website

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Caunsel and Campany Secretary

22 May 2018
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Other disclosures

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial

staternents for cach financial year. Under that law the Directors

are reguired to prepare the Group financial statements i
accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards
[IFRSs | as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Practice (United Kingderm Accounting
Standards and applicable law] including FRS101 'Reduced

Disclosure Framework” Under company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the

profit or {oss of the Company for that period,

In preparing the parent company financial statements,

the Directors are required to

s select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

* make judgerments and accounting estimates that are
reascnable and prudent,

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

prepare the financial staterments on the Going Concern basis
unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

In preparing the Group financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

» properly select and apply accounting policies,
 presentinformation, including accounting policies, in @

manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

provide additional disclesures when compliance with the
specific requirements In IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions an the entity's financial position
and financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a Going Concern

The Directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime
the financial position of the Cormpany and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and

ntegrity of the corporate and financial nformation included

on the Company’s website Leagislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissermination of financial staterents may differ
from legisiation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility Statement
Each of the Directors confirm that to the best of therr knowledge

s the financial statements, prepared In accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,

the Strategic reportincludes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the pasition of the
Company and the undertakings included in the cansolidation
taken as a whole, tegether wath a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face, and

the Annual Report and financial stalements, taken as a
whote, are {air, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s position and performance, business model
and strategy

This Responsibility Statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 22 May 2018 and 1s signed on its behalf by

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
22 May 2018
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Group financial statements

independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc

Repaort on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion

« the financial stalements give a true and faw view of the state of the group s and of the parent company s alfairs as at 31 Marchk 2018 and of the group's profit
for the year then ended,

the group firancia staternents have been proper'y prepared in acceraance with International Finarcial Reporting Standards IFRSs] 25 agopted by the
European Urion,

* lhe parent company financ al slatements have been properly prepared i accordance writh Uatea Kingdem Gererally Accepted Accaunting Praclice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework | and

the financial stalernents have been prepared ir accordance with *ne requirements of the Companies Ac' 2006 and, as regards the group financial
staternents, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Wa have audiled the financial statements of Severn Trent Ple [the pare-t campany ! and its suas dianies (the group lwnch camprise

*

the consobdated incorne staternent,
the consolidated and parent cormpany statements of comprehcnsive iIncame,

.

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in cguity,

the consolidated and parent company balance shests,
the Lonsebdeted as™ low statement, anid
the rela‘ed noles to the consolidated financial stalemen.s 1 lo 47 a~d the related notes lo Lhe parenl company financial statements * 1o 18

.

The financia reporling framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group Iinancial statements 15 applizable law and IFRSs a5 agopled by the
European Union The financia. reporting framework that has been appl ed in the preparaton of the pa-ert company firancial staternents 1s applizable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework  [United Kingdoem Generally Accepted Accounting Practicel

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [UK] (ISAs [UK]) and applicable law Dur responsibiitics under those
standards are further described in the auditor s respansibilities for the audit of *~e inancial starements section of sur report

We are independent of the group a~d the parer 2company in accordance with Lthe ethical requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the finanaial
slatements in the UK, including the FRC s Ethical Standard as applied to Usred public inter st ent Lies, and we have fulfilled our o'rer ethical 1espensibititres
inaccordance w th these requirements We contirm that the nan-audit services prehibited by the FRC s Ethical Standard were not provided (o the group or
the parent company

Wo believe that the aud tevidence we have oble ned is sutficient ana appropriale Lo prowde a basis far aur apuevan

Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit matiers that we ideni fied in the current year were
» Accuracy ob wholesale revenue tor non-household customers in the new water market,
+ Valuation of the provisian for trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited,
« Valuatio= of lhe group’s reliremant bene’it abligations, and
+ Coassificatio. and valuation of capital expend.dure in Severn Trept Water Limited

Within this1eport, any new key audit matters are identified with  and any key audit matters which are the same as the
prior year are identified with

Materiality Ihe mmaleniality that we used tor the group financial statements was (18 million (2017 £18 imillion) which was dete nmed
on the basrs of profit befare tax, gans/losses on hinanualirstruments and exceptional Hems

Scoping Qur audit scomng has resulted 'n over 93% of ine group s net operating assets and profit before lax beng subect to
audd testing

Significant changes The group dispased of its Operating Services (US] business on 30 June 2017 and therefore it has not been subject to a

in our approach coinponent auditfor the year ended 31 March 2018 Ther e have been no other significant changes to our scoping approach

Conclusions relating to geing concern, principal risks and viability statement

Going concern

We have reviewed the directors stalementin nole 2a to the fmancial statements and page 59 of the Strategic repart about whether they consider ed 1l
approoriate to adopt ihe going cor cern basis of accourting in prepaning ther and their identificalion of any materal uncertaintigs to the group s and
company s abiliiy to contimue to do so over a penod of at least twelve months b orn the date of approval of the financial statements

We are requrred to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to 1n relation to that staternent required by Listing Rule 98 6R(3]
and report I the statement s materially iInconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters,
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Principal risks and viability statement

Based sclely on reading the directors statements and considering whether they were cansistent with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the gudit,

including the knowledge obtained in the evaluation of the directors assessment of the group s and the company s ability te continue as a g ng concern,

we are required lo stale whe.he~we have anything material ta add or draw attent an to inrelation to

s the disclosures on pages 60 to 65 that describe the principal risks and exptain how they are being managed or ritigated,

+ the directors confirmation on page 60 that they Fave carr ed out a robust asuwessment of the principal risks facing the group, including thase tha waould
threaten its business model, future performance, selvency or liquidity, or

the directors” explanation on pages 58 and 5% as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what period they have done so and why they
consider that period to be appropriate, and their sta®erment as towhether they have a reasonable expectation that the grouo will be able to continuein
operation and meet its baimlities as they fall due over the perod of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to eny necessary
qualifizations or assumptions

We are alse required to report whether the directors statement retating to the prospects of the group requred by Listing Rule 9 8 6Ri3) 1s matersally
inconsistent with our knowledge abtaned in the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matlers are those mat ers trat, .0 oor prolessionsl |.dgemenl, were of rost significance 1~ cur audit of “re “inancial sta’ements o’ the current

period ang include the most significant assessed risks of malenal ~isstaterment (whether or not due o traudi that we identified These matters included

thase wrich had the greatest ettect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of rescurces in the aad t, and directing the offorts of tne engagement team

These matters were addressed n the context of our audit of Lhe financia statemen's as a wha'e, a~d nfarmisg our apinion thergor, and we da not provide a

separate opinign on these mattecs

The following key audit matters from the prior yea-bave rot been inc'uded in the currert year

* revenue recognition in reqation tothe estimat on of unbrlled meteced roevenue in Severn Trent Water Limited on the basis that the difference berween the
aount accued and subsequentiy billed has consistently represented approximately 17 of the accrued ncome over a number of consecutwe years, anc

* thevaluaticn of carrent ano deterred tax balances following the settler-ent of cper enqu res with HMRC in the prioryear

Accuracy of wholesale revenue for non-household customers in the new water market

Key audit matter description On 1 Apnil 2017 the now water retal market openea in England, allovang el gibic non-heouschold customers the
oppor wnly lo choose theim water retarler for the firs* rime Market Oper ator Services _irmitad [ MOSL "was esabl o7 e
to facilitate the switching of cus*omers, and also 1o pravide a service to settle accounts botween water wholesalers and
retaiters Severn Trent Water s a whaolesaler Management have recorded manual adjustments to revenue comparad
to the infarmation provided by MOSL < Core Mar«et Operating System | CMOS

Non-household revenue for the year ended 31 March 201815 €371 4 rulbion as disclosed on page 85

The ey aud t matter has been focussed on whetner manual adjustments made to revenuc ace accurate Due to the igh
levet of judgement involved, we hawve determined that there was a potental for fraud through possible maniputation of
this balance

The Aud.t Comi tee also considered this as a significenlissue as discussed in lhe Augit Comruttee Recort on page 85

How the scope of our We have challenged the assurngtions applied and the integrity of management s calcutation of the adjustments by
auditresponded to the performing the following
key audit matter -

evaluated the design and -mplementation of key contrels over the adjustments to revenue,
= understoed and audited recenciling items between volume and revenue recorded by Severn Trent Water Limited and
the informa®ion prowvided by CMOS, specifically recalcula ng “~e extrapolation based on settlementrepcrtst ece ved,

¢ inquired as tc whethe- any Market Operator disputes or Market Arrangement Code disputes are open at the year end
date which could indicate that revenue has been incorrectly recorded,

reviewed and challenged the information used to build up the model by conssdening the accuracy and completeness of
the source data used for calculating the adjustments,

L3

tested the completeness of adjustments by reference to operational data, and

* penchrarked the direction of the adjustment across the industry and rmade direct erquiries of manager-ent of the
Group’s joint venture, WaterPlus, of adjustments being recorded by them

Key observations We are salisiied that management s man.a adjustments to revenue are apprepriale
Valuation of the prowision far trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter description Aproportion of Severn Trent Water Limited s custemers de not or cannot pay thair bills which results in the need for
previsions to be made for nan-payment of the customer balance Managerment makes estimatos regarding future cash
collection when calculating the bad debt provision

The valae at the provision for trade recevables in Severn Trent Water at 31 March 2018 15 £124 5 moillion of the total
provision of 7290 mellion [31 March 2017 £125 4 mull on of the 12tal prowssion of £130 & rullion) in note 21

Prosisions are made against Severn Trent Water Limited s trade recevables based on hestorical cxperierce of levels of
recavery frorm accounts in particutar agemng categeries The key audit matter has been focuscd on the determination o
the ageing of trade receivacles balances as this determines the level of provisioning to be recorded and the historical
cash collection rates applied to the aged debt Duc to the hugh level of judgement involved, vwe have deterrninad that there
was a potential far fraud th-ough possible rmanipulation of this balance

The Audit Commutlee aiso considered this as a significant issue as discussed in the Audit Cemittee Report on page 85.
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

How the scope of our We challenged and tested tha :nfermation used to deterrmine the bac debt provision by considering cash collection
audit responded to perfprmance against tuslorical trends and the level of baa debt charges aver tme Speclically, we analysed the actual
the key audit matter experience of slow paying custormners in the period using data analytics to consider the collection of debtors that were

previcusly m each aged category We have also

cvaluated the design and implernentation of kev management review controls over the bad debt modet and
managernant < bad debt paper,

reconciled the debtor agewng for cach debt category used in the bad debt provimion modet using source data from
Severn Trent s customer billing systemn,

audited the information used in calculating the bad debt pravisian to assess whether it was updated for current cash
collection performance,

assessed and audited the rationale for changes to the basis of estrmation where changes were madc to the bad debt
caleulation inthe current year to reflect histanical cash collection patterns for debts with certain charactenstics,

compai ed and assessed the pay~ent profile and level of bad debt orov s10n with those established i~
provious periods,

considered whether the provtsion appropriately covered any exposure irherent in the accrued income elerment of the
debtor balarce,

deptoyed our spreadsheet analyser tool to idennify anomalies in the bad debt model for further consideration, and

considercd whether any of the changes to the estimation in the year represented changes in accounting policy or
material errar, which required reassessment of the histonical position

Key observations We are satished tha “he assurnphons applied im asseszing "ne mpairment of irade rece vables and e ca culation of
the agewrn of trade recewvable are appropriale and no addittanal provisian was wenl’ ed [rom the avd twark performedd

Yaluation of the group’s retirement benefit obligations

Key audit matter description This s an area involving significant est mation because the process 1s corplex and requires management after taking
advice from iher actuarial advisers ‘o make a number of assumptior s concerring I~e discount rate, inflation and
pension increases, and the langowity of cureent pensioners in arder to determine the value of the scheme’s Labilitics
The key audit matter s rocused on the valuation of the pension scheme babililies and the appropriateness of the
actuanal assurnpuons that are used Lo caleolale i, specifically w th reerence o the d scount rate

The group s retirement benefit obligation at 31 March 201815 {5198 million (31 March 2017 £574.6 rrillian] as per nole 28
Retired Benelil Schemes

The Audit Commi‘tee alse considered this as a sigrilicant 1ssue as discussed in the Auait Commiltee Reporl on page 86
Ma~agemnent nasincluded this as s key source of estimation uncertainty in note 4 1o the financia siaterments

How the scope of our We have challenged the assumptions applied by performing the follawing procedures
audit responited 1o the
key audit matter

¢ ovaluated the design and implementation of key controls and with support from the pension specalists withim our
audit team we challerged the assumptions used In tne calculat on of the pension scheme defizit as detated ir note 28,
spec fically challenging the discount rate wath reference to comparable markel and other thira party cata, and

* asseosed whather there had been any changes in the methodology to determine the assumptions since the prior year

Key observations We ar e satishied thal managemen s assumotions 10 (~e va'uation of the retn ement benefil ebligation, including discount
rates, are appropriate and withun a reasonable range

Classification and valuation of capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter description Severn Trent Water Lirnited has a substantial capitat programme which has been agreed with the regulator [ Ofwat’)
and therefore incars significant expenditure n redation to the developrent and maintenance of both infrastructure and
non-tnfrastructure assets

Property, plant and equiprment (PPE] additions m Severn Trent Water Lirmited were £663 2 miltion of the tofal additions
of £691 2 million disclosed in note 18 [E541 5 mullion of £583 ¢ mullian at 31 March 2017)

Expenditure inrelation to increasing the capacity ar enhancing the network s treated as capital expenditure Captal
projects may contain a combination of enhancement and maintenance activity which are not distinet and therefore there
18 a key audit matter that PPE s valued incorrectly as a resull of items of operating exoerditure bemg imisclassibied.
Due to the level of judgerment involved, we have determined that there was a potential for fraud through possible
rraniputation of this patance

The Audt Commi*iee also considered ifns a significantissue as d scussed in the Audit Comnitllee Report on page 85
Managermnent has included this as a crihzal judgement 10 note 4 ta the linancial statements

How the scope of our We perforrned the following procedures o respond to the key audit matter
audit responded to the

= » we assessed ihe group s capitalisation policy Lo deterrrine cornpliance with retevant accounting standards,
key audit matter

= wr evaluated the design and implementation and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the application of
the policy to expenditure incurred on projects within the group's capital programme durning the year,

.

for a sample of capital projects, we assessed the application of the capitalisation policy (o the costs incurred by
understanding the intial business case for the project and ensuring that it had been approved by the relevant capital
programme board, and

* we agreed a sarmple of costs to third party invorces and assessed whether the split between capital and operating
expenditure was aligned to the original approved business plan

Key observations We are salisfied tha' the valuation and clasel’ cation of assets caprtalised in the year 1s appropriate
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Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the rmagnit.de of missiatement in the financial staterments that makes it prabable that the econaric decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would he changed or influenred. We use materiality both in planning the scope of cur audit wark and in evaluating the resulls of
curwork

Based on our proressienal jJucgement, we determi~ed materiality for the financia: statements as a whele as follows

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £18 rrullion (2017 £18 mullion] £16 2 mullion (2017 £16 2 million]
Basis for determining materiality Approximately 5 6% (2017 approximately 5 7% of 3 0% of net assets 2017 3 0%} capped to 90%
profit befare tax, gans/losses on financal instruments of gro.o mate- abity
and exceplional items
Rationate for the Asin 2017 probtbefore tax, gainsflosses on fmancia The parent company dogs ~of trade or exist tor profil
benchmark applied instruments and exceptional items has been used in order  generating purpeses so materiality has been determined
to focus on the group s undertying trading performance using net assets

corsistent with the group’s internal and external reporting

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we woutd report
to the Committee al audit differences in excess of £750,000
[2017 £750,000] tor the group as well as differences below
tha! threshold tha!, \n ourview, warranted reparting on
gualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Committes
AN e 25 .me malters that weidentificd whan assessing
the nverall presentat on of the financia' staterments

Graph removed

An averview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtain rg an understanding of the group and its envirarment, inzluding group-wide controls, and assessing trerisks of
material misstaternen: a® the group levet

Regulated Watcr and Waste Water 1s primarnily compnsed of Severn Trent Water L mited and Dee Valley Water Lirnited which were subject to a full scope
audit using a materiality of £15m and £0 4mn respectvely We have audited a further 10 componerts using indivigual statutory materialities which range
trom C44 000 te £9.0600,000 Operating Services USwas d sposed on 30 June 201/ contnibuting LA2 1 rullion i revenue and prafit beforeartorest and tax of
£ 4millon and was subject to analytical review

This represents over 0% (2017 over $0%] of the group s net cperating assels and pro® t before tax, gans/iosses an financal Insiruments

and exceptionalitems

Wa also testad the consolidation process and carriec out analytical procedures ‘o confirm our conclusio~ nal thers were o significant risks of material

m sstatement of the aggregated financiat mformation of the rermaining compenents not subject to full scope avdit procedures

Our scoping is consistent wrth the prior year except that Water Plus Lirmited, Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurance Guernscy Limited have not been
audited by separate component teamsin 2018 They are subject to avdit procedures performed by the Group audit team

Other information

The directors are respansible for the other infermation The other information comprises the infarmation included in the annual report, cther than the

financial stalements ana our auditor s report thereon

Owr opimion on the fi-ancial steternents does not cover e other mtormation and, except to the extent o herwise explicitly stated i our report, we do not

express any form of assurance concluson thereon

In comnectionwith our audit of the inancia stalements, our respensibility s to read the other information and, in doirg sa, consider wnether Lhe other

In orma.ionis materally iInconsistent witn t~e (inanciai stalements or our knowledge obtained n the audit or citherwise appears Lo be materially misslated.

It we identify such material ncorsistencies or apparent material misstatements we are required to determine whether there is a rnatenial misstatement in

the inancia stalements or a material misstatemenrt o the other infarmation If based o~ the work we have performed, we conclude tha' there s a malerial

risstatement of this other informatien, we are required to report that fact

Irhis cantext, matlers that we are speaificatlly required Lc reportl Lo yosu as uncorrected maleria m sslatements o' the other infarmalicn include wrere we

conclude that

* Fair, balanced a-d . ~de-slandable - the stalement give~ py the directors that they consider the annual repert and financial slaterments ta<en as a who'e
15 fair, balanced and understandable and prowides rhe information necessary for shareholders to assess the group s position and pertormance, basiness
model and strategy, 15 matenally inconsistent with aur knowledge obtamed in the audit, or

« Audit commitioe reporting - the soction describing the work of the Audit Coramittee docs nat appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
Audit Committee, o

» Dhrectors statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors staterment regusred under the Listing Rules
rela nglothe compary s complianze wir tne UK Corpora‘e Governance Code containing pravisions specified for review oy the aud to-in accardarce with
[ 1sting Rule © 8 10R(2} do not properly disclose a departurs from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explaned mare fully mthe Dicectars respansibilities statement, the diractars are responsible for *ne preparation of the finanaial ataternents and {ar
being catisfied thar r~ey give a t-ue and fairview, and for such internal contral as lhe directors delermmne 1s necessary ta enable the preparation af finanoial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the inancia statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group s and the parent company s abitily ta continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to Liquidate the
group orthe parent company or to ceasce operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtan reasonable assura ~ce about whether the [Inanuial stale-renrs as a whole are free trom natenial misstatement, w-ether due to
fraud or error, and to1ssue an auditor's report that inctudes our opinton Reasopable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, butis not a gquarantec that an
audit conducted i accordance with [SAs [UK) will always detect a matenal misstaternent when it exists Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are
considered materialf individually or i~ rre aggregate, they covu'd reasonanly be expecied toinfluence lhe economic decisians of users "aken on the bass af
these fmancial staternents

Afurther description of ourresponsic Llies far the aud L of the financial stalements 15 locates on the Financia Reporng Council 5 website at
www fre org uk/auditorsresponsibilitics This description forms part of our auditor s report

Use of our report

This reportis rmade solely to the cormpany s mombers, as a body, in accordance with Chaptor 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has peen
undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are requered to state to themin an guditor s repart and for ne other purpose
To the fullest extent peretted by law, we do not accept o assume responsiility to anyone other than the company and the company s members as a bady,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinrons we have formed

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Qpinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In dur apinvon the part of the Directors’ remuncration report to be audited has been properly ptepared in accordance with the Companics Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

» lheinformation given in the Stralegic repor and tre Directors repart tor the limancial year for which the fi~arcial slatements are prepared 15 consisten
wi'n1-e [inanciat slaterments, and

» the Strategic report and the Direciors report have been prepared in aceordance with apphicable legs! regui erments

I the Light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and thar environment obtaned in the course of the audit we have nat
rdentificd any maleral misslatements in the strategre repot tor tre aireclars *eport, )

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting recerds

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, i our apimion

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require far our audit, or

» adequate accaunting records have ot been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our avdit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

* the parent company finan<at siatements are not in agreement wilh the accounting records and returns
We have nothing to repart in respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are also required ta report if 1n our apinion certan disclosures af directars remuneration have not been made or the part
of the Directors remuneration report to be gudited 15 not in agreement with the accounting records and roturns

We have nothing to repartin respect of these matters.
Other matters

Auditor tenure

We were appomted by the Company alils annual general mealing on 26 July 2005 Lo audit Lhe inancial statements of the Corpany for Lhe year ending
31 March 2006 and subsequenl inancial periods Following a compelilive lender process, we were reappointed as auditor of the Company for the year
anding 31 March 2016 and subsequent (inancial periods

Our total uninterrupted period of engagement is 13 years, covering pericds from our inital appointment through to the year ending 31 March 2018

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit commitiee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional repoart to the Audit Committee we are reduired ta provide in accordance with 1SAs UK.

Kari Hale, ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor
Lendon, United Kingdom

22 May 2018
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Turnover

2018 2017
[restated|
Notes £m £m

5.6 1.6%4.1 1,635 0

Operating costs before exceptional items

7 1,153.1) 0N79)

163 by e

FIURLLIADG

Exceptional items 8 {12.6) 16 6
Total operating costs 1,165.7) {1,301 3]
Profit before mterest, tax and exceptional items 5 541.0 5201
Exceptional stems 8 12.6) 16 6
Profit before interest and tax 528.4 5367 g
Finance income 10 67.7 7272 §
Finance costs 1 (287.2) (277 3] g
Net finance costs (219.5) (205 1) ¥
Net losses on financial instruments 12 (6.7) (18] )
Share of net profit/{loss] of juint ventures accounted for using the eguity imethod 19 0.2 (18 é
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 3280 §
Current tax 12 (32.9) (36 3] -
Deferredtax L 12 (29.0) (22 4] E:
Exceptional tax 13 - 522 i‘:’j
Taxatcon on profiton ordinary activities 13 {61.9] [6 5] )
Profit for the year from continuing operations 240.5 3215 =
Profit far the year from discontinued operations 39 13.2 211 :
Profit for the year 253.7 342 6 §
Attributable to: =
Owners of the company o 253.7 342 8 =
Non-controlling interests - 02 1
253.7 3426 B
Earnings per share =
2018 017
jrestared)
pence pence
From continuing operations
Basic 15 102.2 136 8
Diluted 15 1019 136 2
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 15 107.8 1459
Diluted 15 107.5 145 3
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Group financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
£m &m
Profit for the year 253.7 3426
Other comprehensive income/(loss]
Items thal will not be reclassified (o the income statement
Net actuarial gain/lloss] 291 3112
Tax on net actuanal gain/loss (7.6) 56 3
Delferred tax arising on change of rate - 131]
21.5 (258 0)
[terms that nay be reclassified 1o the mcome staternent
Gams/(losses) on cash flow hedges 5.8 (80}
Deferred tax on gains/losses on cash flow hedges (1.0] 13
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement 8.2 29
Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement 1.4) (0 4]
Exchange movement on translation of overseas results and net assets (1.8 57
Cumulative exchange gains taken to the income statement (29.8) 28
119.8 18]
Other comprehensive income/floss) for the year 1.7 {259 8)
Total comprehensive income for the year 255.4 328
Attributable to:
Owners of the cornpany 255.4 831
Non-cantrolling interests - 03
255.4 828
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2016

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Other

reserves

£m

116 5

Total
equity
£m

10185

Profit for the year

3426

Losses an cash flow hedges

3 0}

(80|

Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges

13

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
incame statement

29

29

Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement

[04])

10 4]

Exchange movement on translation of overseas
results and net assets

53

52

Cumulative exchange gans transferred to
mcome statement

(2 8]

(28]

Net actuarial losses

(3112)

Tax on net actuarial losses

56 3

Deferred tax arising from rate change

(37)

Transfer net of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income/lloss] for the year

828

Share options and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares i1ssued

51

-value of employees services

572

Current tax on share based payments

08

Deferred tax on share based payments

01

Dispesat of non-controlling interest

08

Dividends pad

(190 4)

AL 31 March 2017

9233

Profit for the year

2537

Gains on cash flow hedges

a8

Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges

(10)

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
Income statement

82

82

Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement

{14}

f14]

Exchange movement on translation of overseas
results and net assets

&)

(18]

Curmulative exchange gains transferred to
income statement

1298

(29 8)

Net actuarial gains

297

Tax on net actuanal gains

[7 6]

Transfer between reserves

120]

Total comprehensive [lossl/income for the year

(28 8)

255 4

Share options and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares (ssued

56

- value of employees services

69

Current tax on share based payments

08

Deferred tax on share based payments

3

Dwidends paid

(1970)

At 31 March 2018

§3.0

993.7
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Group financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwall 16 62.2 810
Other intangible assets 17 88.4 809
Property. plant and equipment 18 8,471.9 8116 4
Interests injoint ventures 19 7.6 374
Derivative linancial instruments 20 35.0 670
Trade and other recewvables 21 181.3 381
Retrernent benehit surplus 28 18.2 98
8,895.6 8,450 6

Current assets
inventory 18.5 162
Trade and other recevables 21 456.4 5178
Current tax recervable - 73
Derivative hnancial instruments 20 0.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 511 [

526.2 5859
Current liabilities
Borrowings 23 {308.7) (559 4]
Derwative financial instrurments 25 - 10 &)
Trade and other payahles 26 (462.6) 14519}
Current tax payable {8.6} -
Provisions for Labtities 29 [40.6) 175

(820.5 [1.0294]
Net current liabilities (2943} {443 5}
Non-current liabilities
Barrowings 23 (5,259.1) 14,719 6|
Derwative iinancigLinstruments 25 1116.0) 1841
Trade and other payables 26 {1,009.4} 1955 7
Deferred tax 27 (674.4) 623 7)
Retirement benefit obligations 8 {538.00 584 4)
Provisions for liabilities 29 (16.7) (16 31

{7.607.6) (70838

Net assets 993.7 9233
Equity
Called up share capital 30 2351 2347
Share premium 31 177 Nnz2s
Other ceserves 32 93.0 1218
Retained earnings 5479 4543

993.7 9233

Total equity

Signed on behalf of the Board who approved the accounts on 22 May 2018

Andrew Duff James Bowting
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company Number 023466619
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2018

7018 a7
Notes Em m

Cash generated from operations 40 773.3 8510
Taxreceived 40 86 206
Tax pard 40 {14.5) 142 &)
Net cash generated from operating activities 764.8 8292
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of subsidranes net of cash acquired 0.2z W7
Investments in associates and joimt ventures - 135}
Purchases of praperty, plant and equipment T 608.5) (5192
Purchases of intangible assets and goodwill - (27.3) (221
Contributions and grants recerved 36.8 395
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes and other businesses net of cash disposed 25.1 5.1
Proceeds on dispasal of business 1o joint venture net of cash disposed o - N0 8
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 8.0 75
Net loans agvanced to joint ventures [26.6) 1050}
Proceeds an matunty of forward cantract e - - 43
Interest received B 6.4 T4
Net cash from investing aciivities {586.3) (7G15]
Cash flow from financing activities .
interest paid (183.4) (172 4]
inlerest element of inance lease paymenis - 15.1) |5 8l
Dwidends pad to shareholders of the parent - o {197.0 [19G 4!
Repayments of borrowings e 1552.6} {276 2]
Repayments of obligations under finance leases L (1.81 {19
New loans raised 789.2 498 0
issues of shares 5.4 51
Swap termination payment (40.0} -
Net cash ftow from financing activities (185.1) 142 4)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (4.6 [14.7)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year b6 352
Effect of foreign exchange rates (18] 41
Net cash and cash equivatents at end of year 38.5 bbb
Cash and cash equivalents 347 258
Bank overdrafts 12.6) -
Short term deposits 16.4 1338
Net cash and rash equivalents at end of year 385 4 b
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements

Far the year ended 31 March 2018

1 General information

The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are
described in the segmental anatysis innote 5

Severn Trent Plc is a company incarporated and domuailed in the
United Kingdorn. The address of 1its registered office 1s shown on
the back of the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts.

Severn Trent Ple is isted on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

al Basis of preparation

The financial statements for the group and the parent company
have been prepared on the gaing concarn bass (see strategic
report on page 59 under the hustonical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
batilities at fawr value.

[f) Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with international Finanoial Reporting Standards
(IFRS |, International Accounting Standards [1AST and IFRIC
nterpr atations 1ssued and effective and ratified by the buropean
Union as at 31 March 2018

lif) Parent company financial statements

The parent company hnancial statements have been prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
cornply wath the Campanias Act 2006 The company meets the
defrntion of a qualifying entity as defined in FRS 100 Application
of Financial Reporting Requirements, accordingly the comparny
has elected to apply FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework .

Therefore the recognition and measurerment requirements of
FU-adopted IFRS have been applied, with amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The
L arge and Medwm-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 [Si 2008/410) as the parent company
financial statements are Camparues Act 2006 accounts,

As permitted by FRS 107, the parent company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exernpiions available under

that standard in relation to statement of cash flows, share
based payment, financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certam
assets, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets

and related party transactions Where reguired, equivalent
disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no
profit or loss account or cash flow statement 1s presented for
the parent company The profit for the year is disclosed in the
statement of cornprehensive income, the statement of changes
i equity and the balance sheet.

Severn Trent Plc ts a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
{'the partnership’], which is registered in Scotland As the
partnership1s included in the consolidated accounts, the parent
company has taken advantage of the exernption conferred by
Regulation 7 of The Partner ship [Accounts) Regulations 2008
trom the reguirements of Regulations 4 ta 4.
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The key accounting policies for the group and the parent
company are sef out below and have been applied consistently
Differences in the accounting poticies applied in the
cansclidated and the parent company financial statements are
descniped below

{11} Prior year restatement

Prior year figures in the cansolidated income statement,
related notes and alternative performance measures in note
46 have been restated to present separately amounts relating
to operations Lassihied as discontmued i the current year,
For details, see note 39

bl Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stalerments include the results

of Severn Trent Plc and its subsidiaries and joint ventures
Results are included from the date of acquisition orincorporation
and excluded from the date of disposat

Subsidiaries are conscbdated where the group has the power
to control a subsidiary,

Jomt venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity
basis where the group exercised Jjoint control under 2
contractuat arrangement

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are
identified separately from the group’s equity. Non-controliing
interests cansist of the amount of those nterests at the date
of the original busingss combination and the non-controlling
interests’ share of changes in equity since that date

Transactions between the company and s subsidiaries have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not included within
the group financial statements.

¢} Revenue recognition

Revenue includes turnover and intecest incame

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration receivable,
excluding value added tax, trade discounts and ntercompany
sales, in the ordinary course of business for goods and

services provided

Turnover s not recogrised until the service has been providad to
the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have either
been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on the
customer’s behalf, title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mams water
and waste water charges unhilled at the year end The accrualis
estimated using a defined methodology based upen a measure
of unbuled water consumed by tariff, which 1s calculated from
historicat biting inforrmation.

Intarast income 1s accruad on a time basis by reference o the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicabte

d} Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are income or expendrure, which indwidually
or if of a stmilar type, in aggregate should, in the opinion of

the directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature f

the financial statements are to give a true and farr view, In this
context, materiality 1s assessed at the segmant level



2 Accounting policies continued

e} Taxation

Current tax payable s based on taxable profit for the year and s
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation1s prowded in full on taxable temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities

and their carrying amounts in the financial staternents.,
Deferred taxation s measured on a non-discounted basis using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expectad toc apply
when the retated deferred mcome tax asset s realised or the
deferred tax babibity is settled

Adeferred tax asset 15 only recogrised to the extent it is probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avadable i the future to
utilise it

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a
{egally enforceable mght to set off current tax assets against
current tax abilites

1) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
constderation over the fair value of the net assets acquired,
Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidianes is included

in intangible assats, whitst goodwill ansing on acguisition

of agsociates or joint ventures s included in interests in
associates or joint ventures respectively 1f an acquisihon

gives nse to negative goodwll this 1s credited directly to the
income statement Fair vatue adjustments based on provisionat
estimates are amended within ane year of the acquisition,

if required. with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill.

Goodwill arsing on all acqusitions prior to T Aprd 1998 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
against reserves Following the disposal of the US Operating
Services business an 30 June 2017, all acquisitons prior to

1 Apnil 1998 that were included in goodwill have now been sold
Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisitions of subsidanes after
31 March 1998 1s treated as an intangible fixed asset.

Goodwill 15 tested for impairment 1 accordance wath the policy
set out in note 2 k] below and carnied at cost less accumnulated
impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to the cash-generating
unit that derives beneht from the goodwill for imparrment
testing purnoses

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating umt and all or
part of that umt1s disposed of, the associated goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of that operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g} Other intangible non-current assets

Intangtble assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost
Following initial recagmition, fimte bfe intangible assets are
amortised on a strarght-tne basis over their estimated useful
economic Lives as follows

Years
3-10
2-20

Software
Dther assets

Arnortsation charged on intangible assets s taken to the iIncome
statemnent through operating costs

Finite Lfe intangibie assets are reviewed for impairment where
indicators of impairment exist {see 2 ki balow]

intangible assets with mdefinite useful lives are carned at cosl less
accumulated impairment losses Such assets are reviewed for
imparment at least annuatly and where indications of imparrment
exist in accordance with the palicy set aut i note 2 k] helow

Development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset
and wriiten oft over its expected useful economic ife where the
following criteria are met

e itistechmcally feasible to create and make the asset available
for use or cale,

» there are adequate resources available to complete the
developrment and to use or sell the assel,

¢ there 1s the intenton and ability to use or sell the asset,

* 1tis probable that the asset created will generate future
econommic benefits, and

e the developmeni costs can be measured rebably
Research expenditure (s expensed when s incurred

h) Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in trdding and preparing for contracts are
expensed as incurred except where it 1s probable that the
contract will be awarded, n which case they are recognised
as a prapayment which 1s written off 1o the income slaterment
over the ife of the contract

The group assesses that it1s probable that a contract will be
awardad when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no signilicant impediments to the award
of the confract

i} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s held at cost {or at deemed cost
for infrastructure assets on transition to {FRS] less accumulated
depreciation and impairment Expenditure on praperty, plant
and equipment relating to research and development projects

1s capitatised and depreciated over the expected useful bfe of
those assels

The casts of like-for-Uke replacement of infrastructure
components are recognised in the incame staterent as they
anise Expenditure which results in enhancements to the
operating capabiity of the infrastructure networks is capiialised

Where tems of propearty, plant and equipment are transferred

ta the group from customers or developers, the fair value of the
asset transferred 1s recognised in the balance shee! Fair value
15 determined based on estimated depreciated replacement

cost Where the transfer isin exchange for connection ic the
network and there is no further chhigation, the corresponding
credit1s recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer
is considerad to be linked to the pravision of ongoing services
the correspondmg credit 1s recardad in deferred income and
released to operating costs aver the expected useful lives of the
relatad assets

Where assets take a substantiat period of time to get ready lor
their intended use, the borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of these assels are added
to their cost
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued

il Praperty, plant and equipment continued

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated, ustng the
straight-line methed, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful hife, with the exception of treehold land which
is not depreciated Assets in the course of construction are not
depreciated untit commissioned

The estimated useful lives are:

Years
Infrastructure assets o
Imnpounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducis 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers o 158-700
Qther assets e
Bulldings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mohile plant Z2-15

jl Leased assets

Leases where the group obtains assets which transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
group are treated as finance leases The lower of the far value
of the leased asset or the present value of the rinimum lease
payments 1s capitalised as an asset with a corresponding bability
representing the obhigation to the lessor Lease payments are
treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge,
the capttal element reduces the abligation to the lessor and
lhe linance charge s wrilten off to the income slatement at a
constant rate over the period of the lease in proportion to the
capitat armount outstanding Depreciation ts charged over the
shorter of the estimated useful lfe and the lease period

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership rernam with the (essor are classified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
on a straight-lne basis aver the term of the lease Leases of land
are normally treated as operating leases, unless awnership s
transferred to the group at the end of the iease

k) impairment of non-current assets

if the recoverable amount of goodwill, anitem of property, plant
and equipment, or any other non-current asset 1s estimated to be
less thanits carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
15 reduced to its recaverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent trom othet assets, the
group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
urit to which the asset belongs Recoverable amount s the
igher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value in use

at the date the impairment review s undertaken Fairvalue less
costs to sell represents the amaount obtamnable from the sale of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knawledgeable
and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value in use
represents the present vatue of future cash flows expected to be
dertved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the group's cost of capital
adjusied for the nsk profites of mdividuat businesses.
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Goodwitl 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews
are alse carnied out if thereis an indication that animpairment
rmay have occurred, ar, where otherwise required, to ensure
that non-current assets are not carried above their estimated
recoverable amounts

Impairments are recogrused i the income statement.

1} Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions received in respect of non-current
assets, meluding certan charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released to operating costs over the
useful econormic life of those nen-current assets.

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related casts are recognised
N operating costs n the period that they become recewable,

m]} Parent company investments

The parent company recognises investments in subsidiary
undertakmgs at historneat cost

Afterinttial recognition at cost [beng the tarr value of the
consideration paidl, investments which are classified as held
for trading or avarable for sale are measured at far value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the incorme statemeant or
equity respectively When an avalable far sale investment s
dispased of or imparred, the gam ar loss previously recognised
mreserves is taken to the income staternent

nl Loans receivable

Loans recevable are measured ai fair velue on inmal recogninion,
lessissue fee income receved After imtial recogmihon, loans
recevable are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method wherahy interest and issue fee
income are credited to the income statement and added to the
carrying value of leans receivabie at a constant rate in proportion
to the toan armount outstanding

o] Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at fair value on imtial
recognition !f there s objective evidence that the assetis
impaired, it 1s written down to its recoverable amount and

the irrecoverable amount 1s recognised as an expense in
operating costs

Trade recetvables that are assessad not to be impaired
individually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference
to the group s coltectron experience for receivables of similar age
of charactenstics

pl Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional right to receive cash from
a government body in exchange for constructing or upgrading a

public sector asset, the amaunts recevable are recognised as a
financial asset In prepayments and accrued income.

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recogrised on a strarght-line basts, befare adjusting for expected
inflahon, over the Ufe of the conlracl.



2 Accounting policies continued
g} Retiremnent benefits

(i} Defined benefit schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scherne assets and defined benefit pension scheme babilities
is recorded on the balance sheet as a retiremeant benefit asset
or abligation

Defined benefit pensian scheme assets are measured at fawr value
using tid price for assets with quoted prices For scheme assets
with no quoted price, the fair value 1s derived by using quotations
from independent third parties or by using applicable valuation
technugues at the end of each regorting peniod, Defined benefit
pension scheme latwlities are measured at the balance sheet date
by anindependent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate
honds of equivalent term and currency ta the tability

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service In the

year, 15 Incinded in operating costs Net finance costis calculated

by applying the discount rate used for the scheme lizbilities to the

net obligation

Changes in the retirement benefit obligation that arise from

» differences between the return on scheme assets and interest
income included in the income statement,

* actuariat gains and losses from experience adjustments, and

* changes i demographic or financial assumptions,

are classified as remeasurements, charged or credited to

other cormnprehensive Income and recorded in the statement of

comprehansive iIncome in the period in which they arise

There 15 no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging

the net defined beneht cost to participating group companies,

Therefore, the parent recogmises a charge in the income

staterment which is equat to the contributions payable in the year

The net defined beneht cost for these schemes s recogrised by

the sponsoring employers, Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee

Valley Group Limited

[ii} Defined contribution schemes

Contributions to defined contribution pension schermes are charged
to the income statement in the pertod inwhich they fall due

r] Provisions

Provisions are recognsed where

¢ there s a present obligation as a result of a past event,

* tt43 probable that there will be an sutllow of economic benetits
io settle this obligation, and

» arelable estirnate of this amount can be made

Insurance provisions are recognised for claims nobfied and for
claims incurred but which have not yot been notilied, based on
adwvice from the group’s iIndependent insurance advisers,
Provisiens are discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the lability where
the effect 1s material

s) Purchase of own shares

Where market purchases of Severn Trent ordinary shares are
made through an obligaling contract, a Lability far the present
value of the redernphion armount 1s recogmised and charged to

retained earnings. Payments for the purchase of shares are
charged to the liabitity when made

Shares held by the Severn Trent Ernployes Share Ownership Trust
which have not vested unconditionally by the balance sheet date are
deducted from shareholders funds unt! such ime as they vest

t§ Borrowings

The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged item
1n a fair value hedge 1s set out 1n note 2 u),

All ather borrowings arz inilially recognised at fair value less
issue casls Afterinmal recegrebion, borrowangs are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method whareby interest and issue costs are charged to the
income statermnent and added to the carrying value of borrowings
at a constant rate in proporhon to the capital amount outstanding

index-linked debtis adjusted for changes in the relevantinflation
index and changes in value are charged to finance costs,

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are transiated
to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date
Exchange gains orlesses resulting from this are credited
or charged to gains/tosses on hnancial nstruments.,

u) Derivative financial instruments

Dervative financial instrumenis are stated at fair value, including
accrued interest Fairvalue 1s determined using the methodology
described i note 34 a) The accounting policy for changas in fair
value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument The varous accounting policies are described below

Interest recevable or payable in respect of denvative hnanciat
instruments i< included in finance income or costs.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Gains or losses arising on remeasurement of derivative financial
instruments that are not dessgnated as hedging instrurments
are recognised in gains/losses on financial instruments in the
income statement

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The group uses dervative linancial instruments such as cross
currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge its rsks assocated with foreign currency and
interest rate fluctuations

At the inception of each hedge relabonship, the group documents

+ the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged tem,

+ its nisk managernent objectives and strategy for undertaking
the hedge transaction, and

* the results of tests to determine whether the hedging
instrument 1s expected to be highly effective in offsetiing
changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropratel of the
hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of

the hedge on an ongaing basis

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument

expires, 1$ sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for

hedge accounting
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued
u) Derivative financial instruments conbnued

Fair value hedges

Where 3 loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationstup
it1s rereasured for changes in far vatue of the hedged nsk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses baing recognised in
gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement.
The gawn or loss on the corresponding hedging instrument 1s
also taken to gains/losses on financial nstruments i the income
stalement so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset the
gain or loss on the hedged item.

if hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the far value adjustment
ansing frorn the nedged risk on the hedged tern1s amortised to
the iIncome statement over the anticipated remaining lfe of the
hedged item

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or less on the hedging instrument thats
determmed to be an effective hedge s recognised i equity and
the ineffective parton rs charged to gains/losses on financial
instruments in the income statement When the gamn or loss from
the hedged underlying transaction is recognised in the income
statement, the gams or losses on the hedging mstrument that
have previcusly been recogmsed in eguity are recycled through
gans/losses on financial instruments i the income staterment

If hedge accounting 1s discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss
on the hedging instrument previously recagnised mn equity s held
in equrty until the forecast transaction oeceurs, or transferred to
gains/losses on financial instruments in the income staterment
if the forecast transaction 1s ne longer expected to occur

From this point the derivative is accounied for in the same

way as derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

If the hedging instrurnent 1s terminated, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are held in equity until either
the forecast transaction occurs of the forecast transaction 1s
no tenger expected to occur.

Embedded derivatives

Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its

cash flows to vary in a similar way to a derivative financial

instrument, that part of the contract 1s considered ta he an

embedded denvative.

Ernbedded derwatives are separated from the contract and

measured at fawr value with gains and losses taken ta the jncome

staternent if

*» the risks and characteristics of the embedded dervative are
nat closely related to those of the contract, and

* the contract 1s not carried at fair value with gains and losses
reported in the income statement

In all other cases ermnbedded derivatives are accounied for in ine

with the accounting policy for the contract as a whole

v) Share based paymenis

The group operates a number of equrty settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fairvalue of the
employee services received n exchange for the grant s
recagnised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant.
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The fair value of employee services is determuned by reference
to the fair vatue of the awards granted, calculated using

an appropiate pricing model, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting condittons The number of awards that

are expected lo vest takes into account non-market vesting
conditions inctuding, where appropriate, continuing employment
by the group The charge 15 adjusted to reflect shares that do rot
vest as a result of failing to meet a non-market condtion.

Share hased cormpensation plans are satisfied in shares of

the parent company. Where the fair value of the awards s

not recharged to participating group companes, the parent
company records the fair value of the awards as an ncrease in its
investrent in the subsidiary The investrment 1s adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a result of tailing to meet a non-market
based condition

wl Cash flow statement

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include highly bgquid investments that are readuly
canvertible to known amauats of cash and which are subgect
to an insignificant risk of change in value Such imvestments
are normatly those with less than three months maturity from
the date of acquisition and tnclude cash and bank balances and
investments in lgurd funds

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayable
on demand

Interest pad in the cash {low staternent includes amounts
charged to the income statement and amounts included in the
cost of property, plant and equipment

x) Net debt

Net debt comprises borrawings including remeasurements
for changes in far value of amounts in faw value hedging
retabonships, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the
sterling lability of foreign currency borrowings iwhether hedge
accounted or not], net cash and cash equivalents, and loans to
joint ventures

yl Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings
are translated into sterting, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling during the year

The net investments 1n overseas subsidiary undertakings are
transigted into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year
end Exchange differences arising are treated as movements In
equity On dispasal of a fereign currency denominated subsidiary,
the deferred cumulative amoeunt recognised in equity since

T Aprit 2004 relating to that entity 1s recognised in the income
statement under the transitional rule ot IFRS 1 First-time
Adoptlion of International Financial Reporting Standards’

Foreign currency denormmated assets and abiities of the
cormpany and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the
relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at
the yearend Any exchange differences so arising are dealt with
through the income staternent.



2 Accounting policies continued

y) Foreign currency continued

Foreign currency transactions ansing guring the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the
date of the transaction All gains and losses on exchange arising
during the year are dealt wath through the income statement

z) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale
Whera an asset or group of assets (a disposal groupl 1s avaitable
forimrmediate sale and the sale is highly probable and expected
to occun within one year then the disposal group is classified as
held for sale. The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the
carrying amount and fair value less costs to setl. Depreciation s
not charged on such assets

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can
be clearly distinguished operationally and for iinancial reporting
purposes, from the rast of the group {a companent], has been
disposed of or classified as held for sale, and it

s represents a separate major bne of business or geographical
area of operations; or

15 part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of & separate
major hine of business or geographical area of operations, or

» 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,
then the compoenent 1s classified as a discontinued operation

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements

The group has adopted all amendments to standards with an
effective date relevant ta this year end with no material impact
onits results, assets or labilities Ali other accounting policies
have been applied consistently

At the balance sheet date, the fallowing Standards and
Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Finanoial Instruments affects the measurerment and
disclosure of financial instruments with effect from 1 April
2018. The group does not anticipate that the classification of
its financial assets and Labilities will change significantly as a
result of the adaption of IFRS 9. The group does not propose to
retrospechvely apply the hedge accounting cntena of IFRS 9

to hedging relationships established underiAS 37 accounting
Existing hedges that qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39
are expected to continue o gualify for hedge accounting under
IFRS 9. For new hedges established following adoption of IFRS 9,
the group will determine on a case-by-case basts whether to
apply the hedge accounting provisions of IFRS 7.

Provisions against trade receivables are calculated under the
current accounting policy using historical collection information
and losses expected as a result of futura events are not
recognised Under IFRS 9 the group will recagnise a provision
for the ifetime expected credit losses for trade recevables
However, the group does not expect the bad debt charge or
provision to be materiatly different as a result

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with custormers’ aftects the
measurement and recogniion of revenue with effect from 1 Apnit
2018 The group has performed animpact analysis for each of its
business segments and the expected impact on the results and
financial position are set out below.

Regulated Water and Waste Water

There will be no change to the timing of recognition of revenue
from charges for water or waste water services Thisis by far the
most significant source of the group’'s revenue, making up 93%
of group turnover 1n 2017/18.

IFRS 15 requires that revenue s recognised 1f it 1s probable that
twill be receved The group is under a statutory obligation to
maintain water services to domeshic properties within the areas
defined mits water sunply licences. As a result, the group might
provide water and/or sewerage services to customers who are
untikely to pay for these services Under [FRS 15, such revenue
15 not recogrised However, there 1s no readily identifiable group
of customers where it 1s pot Likely, at the point of biltling, that the
revenue witl be collected

The group alse receives incorne under the Water Industry Act
1991 as a result of providing new connechions to 1ts existing
netwark The group’s current treatrment for this income is to
treat it as a contribution to the related expenditure, recegnise
1t as deferred income on the balance shest and credit it to the
Income statement af the same Ume as the depreciation of

the cost. No change to this treatment 1s anticipated as a resutt
of the adoption of IFRS 15

Business Services

The Operating Services business operates under a series of
bespoke contracts with speaific performance obligations,

The group has applied the methodology set outin IFRS 1510
each of these contracts in order to dentify differences from the
current accounting policy, The mast sigrificant differences arose
inrelation to the group s contract to provide water and waste
water services to the Mimistry of Defence | MOD ] The group
atts as the service provider under the MOD Project Aquatrine
Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,292 sites across
England covering the eastern sea border and from Lancashire
1n the North West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract, the group mantains and upgrades the MoD
infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water
and waste water Both the operating services and maintenance
and upgrade services are charged under a velumetric tanff,
along with standing charges, which are adjusted with inflation
as agreed m the contract,

The current accounting policy for this contract 1s to recognise
revenue billed under the volumetnic tantf at the point of billing
The expected costs for the upgrade services are recogmsed on
a straight-line basis, before adjusting for expected inflation, over
the life of the contract The resulting asset is recognised as a
financial asset in accordance with IFRIC 12

Under tFRS 15, the expected revenue over the tife of the contract
will be allocated ta the performance obligations under the
following headings

¢ operating and maintaining the MOD infrastructure assets,
» upgrading the MOD infrastructure assets;

« administrating the services recewed from statutory water and
sewerage undertakers, and

administrating billing services of the MOD's commernial and
Non Base Dependent {NBO | custormers
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued ;

For the year ended 31 March 2018

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements continued

Business Services continued

Costs of upgrade services recogmised as a fimanciat asset at

31 March 2017 amounting to approximately £30 million will be
written off ta reserves on transition to IFRS 15 and revenue that
had not been recogrused under the extsting accaunting poticy
amounting to approximately £35 rilbon will be credited to
reserves if IFRS 15 had been applied in 2017/18 revenue woutd
have been approximately £1 milion higher and operating costs
would have been approximately £3 mitlion higher

IFRS 16 Leases’ sets out the principtes for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract, i e, the customer | lessea ] and the supplier
['lessor] and will be effective for the group from 1 April 2019
The impact on the results or net assets of the group or company
of the changes to the standard has not yet been guantfied n
detail but this is not expected to be sigmficant because the group
does not hold a significant value of operating leases

There are no sther standards and interpretations in issue but not
yet adopted that the directors anticipate will have a material effect
on the reported income or net assets of the group

4 Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies,

the group 15 regurred to make certain judgements, estimates
and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the
mformation avalable Although these estimates are based on
rmanagerment’s best knowledge of the armount, event or actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates

During the year, management reassessed the significant
estimates and cricat judgements and resolved that the
following were no tonger considered to be critical judgements
or significant estimates

i) Tax provisions

Followng the exceptional current tax credit in the prior year
ansing from agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several
pror years, and the group's disposal of almaost all of its overseas
operating subsidiaries, management ne longer considers there
to be significant risk of a material adjustrment to tax provisions in
the next year.

il Goodwill arising on acquisition of Dee Valiey Water

As set outin note 38, the fair values attributed ta the assets
and liabilities acquired on the acquision of Dee Valley Water
have been hinalised in the year, and thercfore there will not
be a materal adjustment to this balance in the next year,

iii) Unbilled revenue

The estimated consumption for customers with water meters (s
regularly cornpared to actual consumption data The difference
between estimated and actual consurnphion histarically has not
been ratenal. Hence unbilled revenue is no longer considerad

to be a key source of estimation uncertamty.
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iv) Provision tor impairment of trada receivables

Prowisions are made agarmst Severn Trent Water's trade
recevanles based on historical experience of levels of recovery
frorm accounts ina particular ageing category As the provision
and the charge 1n the Income statement have not fluctuated
signtficantly over the past few years, it1s unlikely that there would
be a change in assumptions that would lead to a material change
i the carrying amount of trade recewables Management has
therefore concluded that provision for irmpairment of trade
receivables is no longer considerad tc be a key source of
estimatian uncertamty

v} Provisions for other liabilities and charges

In previous years, this area was disclosed as a significant
judgement Managernent has taken note of the FRC's thematic
review of reporting judgerents and estimates, which

sels oul that this 1s an estimate rather than a judgement
Management has assessed the risk of material change to this
balance mn the next year and cancluded that it is not stgnificant,

a) Critical accounting judgements

il Classification of costs between operating expenditure

and capital expenditure

Severn Trent Water's business involves significant construction
and engineering projects. Assessing the classification of

costs incurred on such projects between capital expenditure
and operating expenditure requtres judgements te be made
The judgements are made based on objective criteria that that
group has developed to facilitate the cansistent applicatton of its
accounting polictes

bl Sources of estimation uncertainty

il Depreciation and carrying amounts of property,

ptant and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying
value for property, piant and equipment requires eshimates to be
rade of the useful lives of the assets The estimates are based
on engineering data and the group’s experience of similar assets
Details are set outin note 211 A five year change in the average
remaining useful lves of property, plant and equipment would
resutt in a £35 mitlion change 1in the depreciation charge

ii} Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group's retirement benefit
obhigabians and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptions ta be made concarning long term interest rates,
mflation and longewity of curtent and futut e pensioners
Changes in these assumptions could significantly impact the
amount of the obligations or the cost of prowiding such benehits
The group makes assumptions concerning these matters with
the assistance of advice from independant qualifted actuaries.
Details of the assumptions made and associated sensitivities are
set outin note 28 to the financial statements.



5 Segmental analysis
The group I1s organised into twa main business segments.

Regulated Water and Waste Water includes the wholesale water and waste water activities of Severn Trent Water Limited, its retail
services to domestic customers, and Dee Valley Water Limited

Business Services includes the group’s Operating Services businesses in the UK & Ireland and the group’s regulated and non-
regulated Renewable Energy business

On 15 February 2017, the group completed the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Group Limited This business has been included in the
Regulated Water and Waste Water segment with effect frem that date Further details of the acquisition are set out in note 38

The disposals of the group’s Operating Services businesses in ftaly and the USA were completed on 23 February 2017 and 30 June
2077 respectively. These businesses have been classified as discontinued operations. The prior year segrmental results have been
restated to present the [talian and US Operating Services businesses as discontinued operations as set out in the stock market
announcerment dated 19 July 2017

The disposal of the group s non-househeld retail business o the newly created Water Plus joint venture with United Utilities was also
classified as a discontinued operation in the prior year. This transaction was completed on 1 June 2016.

The Severn Trent Executive Committee [ STEC |1s considered to be the group s chief operating decision maker The reports provided to
STEC include segmental information prepared on the basis described abeve Details of Regulated Water and Waste Water s operatians
are described on pages 34 to 41 of the Strategic Review and those of Business Services an pages 47 and 43

Results from interests in joint ventures are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC

The measure of profit or loss that 1s reparted to STEC for the segments 1s underlying PBIT A segmental analysis of sales and
underlying PBIT 15 presented below

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, assets and lisbilities in accordance with group
accounting policies These are eliminated on consolidation

a) Segmental resuits

208 207
reclat. dl

Regulated Requlated
Water ane Business Waterand Business
Waste Water Services Waste Water Services
£m £m tm Em
External turnover 1,574.1 119.9 192746 1098
Inter-segment turnover 0.5 18.8 12 186
Total turnover 1,574.6 138.7 1,528 8 128 4
Profit betore interest, tax and exceptional items 514.9 36.0 4947 322
Exceptional items [see note 8) (11.1) {1.8) 26 4 06
Profit before interest and tax 503.8 34.2 5211 328

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items is stated after:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 300.7 7.7 2994 67
Amortisation of Intangible assets 19.8 0.7 174 03
[Profit}/loss on disposal of fixed assets (5.0) - 08 -
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5 Segmental analysis continued

al Segmental results continued
The repartable segments’ turnaver 1s reconciled to group turnover as follows

2018 2017

[restaterd]

£m £Em

Regutated Water and Waste Water 1,574.6 15288
Business Services 138.7 1284
Carparate and other 2.0 472
Consolidahion adjustments [28.2) [25 4]
1,694.1 16380

Included i revenues of Regulated Water and Waste Water of £1 574 6 mullion (2017 €1,528 8 mitlion) 5 £354 9 mullion
(2017 £3175 milon! which arose from sales to Water Plus Select Limited No other single custormer contributed 10% or more
to the group’s revenue for erther 2018 or 2017

Segmental underlying PBIT is reconciled to the group’s profit before tax as follows

2018 2017
Irestatod)
fm {m
Regulated Water and Wasle Water 514.9 4947
Business Services - 380 3272
Corporate and other 2.7) i6 0]
Consolidation adjustments (0.2 (08
Profi before interest, tax and exceptional ilems 5410 5201
Excephional items
Regulated Water and Waste Water h T 1.1 76 4
Business Services i1.8) Db
Corporate and other o 0.3 (10°4)
Met finance costs {219.5) (2051
Net losses on fnancial instruments (6.7 18l
Share of piofit/lioss] of joint ventures 0.2 (18]
Profit on ordinary activities hefore taxation 302.4 3280

The group’s treasury and tax affars are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax departments Finance costs are managed
on & group basis and hence interest income and costs are not reported at the segmental level. Tax is not reported ta STEC on a
segmental basis

bl Segmental capital employed
Separate segmental analyses of assets and Uablities are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STEC
on a segmental basis is capital employed, as shown below

2018 2017
Regulated Requlaled

Water and Business Waler and Business

Waste Water Services Waste Water Servicos

m £m £m £m

Operating assets 8,900.8 196.6 8,477 1 2131
Goodwill 63.5 - 673 149
Interests in jont ventures - 37%.6 - 374
Segrent assets 89643 234.2 8,544 4 2654
Segment aperating kabilites (1,957.6) AR (19709 (359
Capital employed 7,006.7 192.3 68735 2095

Operating assets comprise other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, retirement benefit surpluses, inventory and trade
and other recewvables.

Operating babibilies comprise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions,
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5 Segmental analysis continued o
b} Segmental capital employed continued g
The Business Services capital employed at 31 March 2017 includes £31 3 milhion in respect of Operating Services US, which was sold =
on 30 June 2017
The reportable segments assets are reconciled to the group s total assets as follows
2018 207
£m £m
Segment assets _ @
Regulated Water and Waste Water B964.3 B L4k 4 g
Business Services 234.2 2654 EY
Corporate and other 60.5 406 a
Other financial assels 87.3 1té :,I
Loan receivable from joint venture _ 135.6 108 6 g
Current tax recevable L - 73 2
Consotidation adjustments (60.1) 141 4]
Total assets 9.421.8 7036 5 c
The consolidation adjustments cornprise elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets E
The reportable segments Labilities are reconciled to the group’s total liabilities as follows 5
2018 2117 ¢
£€m £m T
Segment liabilities z
Regulated Water and Waste Waler [1.957.6) [12709) z
Business Services [41.9] {59 —
Corporale and other {74.4) [67 5) 5
Other financial liabilities (5.683.4]  (5.4637) :
Current tax {8.6) - :
Deferred tax (674.3) (6237) =
Consolidation adjustments 12.3 685
Total liabilities (8,428.11 (2,113 2
The consclidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group creditars _
The following table shows the additions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
2018 2017
Regulated Regulated
Waterand Business Watar and Business
Wastle Waler Services Waste Water Seryices
£m €m Em £m
Other intangible assets ) 25.6 2.8 261 42
Property, plant and equipment 580.4 10.1 b4l 5 418
c) Geographical areas
The group s sales from continuing cperations were derived from the following countries
2018 2017
[restated]
Em £m
UK 1,689.8 1,632 1
Other - - 43 59
1,694.1 1,638 0
The group's nen-current assets [excluding financizl instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets] were
located in the following countries
2018 2017
E£m Em
Uk L 8,841.4 83454
Us - 282
8,841.4 83738
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Greup financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
Forthe year ended 31 March 2018

6 Revenue
2018 2007
restatedl
£m tm
Water and waste water services 1,574.1 15276
Gther services 28.8 305
Service concession arrangements 498 44 5
Energy sales and related incentive payments 41.64 354
Turhover 1,694.1 1,6380
interest recervable 5.7 04

1,699.8 16384

7 Net operating costs

2018 2017
- S _ [rectated!
Before Before
exceptional Exceplional £ xceplianal Exreptional

casts casts Tatal crsle costs Tetal

£m £m £m £m £ Cm

Wages and salaries 237.2 0.6 2378 2185 - 2185
Social security costs 23.2 - 23.2 216 - 216
Pensian costs 208 18.3) 126 209 (16 &) 43
Share based payments 4.9 - 69 61 - 61
Total employee cosis 2881 {7.71 2804 787} {16 6) 2505
Power , 79.2 - 79.2 04 - 70 4
Carbon Reduchon Commitment 5.9 - 5% 43 - 63
Raw materials and consumables o 55.1 - 551 511 -m(_ a1l
Rates 82.4 - 82.4 785 - 78 5
Charge for bad and doubtful debts - 25.8 - 25.8 211 - 211
Services charges 34.3 ~ 34.3 331 - 331
Depreciation of tangtble fixed assets 308.2 16.8 325.0 305¢ - 3059
Amartisation of intangible fixed assets 20.5 - 20.5 178 - 178
Hired and cantracted services 2277 35 231.2 2249 - 2249

Operating lease rentals

- land and butdings 0.4 - 0.6 08 - 08
- other 1.1 - 1.1 D4 - U4
Hire of plant and machinery 5.5 - 5.5 39 - 39
Research and development expenditure 2.1 - 2.1 22 - 22
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets {7.3) - (7.3) 15 0] - (50)
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - - 0 ¢ - [0 &)
Exchange losses/(gains] 11 - 11 (31 - 31
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 135.2 - 135.2 1362 - 1362
Ofwat bcence fees 3.6 - 3.4 36 - 36
Other operating costs 44.5 - 445 403 - 403
Other operating ncome 13.0 - 13.0) 41 - i4 1)
1,310.6 12.6 1,323.2 1,250 8 (16 6] 12342

Release from deferred credits (14.3) - [14.3) (139 - [139)
Own work capitalised (143.2) - (143.2] 1150} - M90]
1,153.1 12.6 1,165.7 11179 [16 8] 11013

fFurther details of exceptional costs are given in note 8
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7 Net operating costs continued
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors

2018 m7
£m {m
Fees payable to the company s auditors for
- the audit of the comipany s annual accounts 0.2 02
- the audit of the company’s subsidiary accounts 0.4 05
Total audit fees 0.6 07
Fees payable to the company s auditors and their associates for other services to the group
- audit related assurance services 0.1 01
- gther services relating to taxation - 01
- other assurance services 0.1 03
Total non-audit fees 0.2 08

Detalls of directors remuneration are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 96 to 128,

Other assurance services include certain agreed upon procedures performed by Delortte in connection with Severn Trent Water's

regulatory reporting reguirements to Ofwat

Details of the group policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services and how auditor independence and objectity are
safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee report on pages 87 and 88 No services were provided pursuant to contingent

fee arrangements

8 Exceptional items before tax

2018 Nk
iretaied|
£m En,
Regqulated Water and Waste Water ~
Profit en disposal of fixed assets T - 110
Gain ansing on pension exchange arrangement 7.7 154
Restructuring costs {18.8 -
i11.11 264
Business Services
Gain arising on pension exchange arrangement 0.3 gé
Restructuring costs 2.1] -
{1.8) D&
Corporate and other
Ebrmination of intra-group profit en disposal of iixed assets - 10
Gatn arising on pension exchange arrangement 0.3 046
0.3 (104)
(12.6) 166
Exceptional tax s disctosed in note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees Iincluding executive directors) during the year
__ W 2017
Continwny  Discentinued
Continuing  Discontinued cperatinng cperaticns Total
operations operations Total Irestated] [reatated] [rostated]
number number number number rumber nurnber
By type of business -
Regulated Water and Waste Water o o 5660 ~ 5640 5,273 2 3275
Business Services - 596 368 964 585 1564 2,149
Carporate and other T B B 9 ~ ? 11 ~ 11
6,265 368 6,633 5.869 1566 7435
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

10 Finance income

2018 2007
[rextated]
tm £m
Interest Income earned on bank deposits 05 02
Other financial mcame 5.2 a2
Total interest receivable 57 U4
Interest income on defined benefil scheime assets 62.0 718
677 722

11 Finance costs
2018 2017
fm Em
interest expense charged on L o o
Bank loans and overdrafts - T 19.2 227
Dtherloans o 183.4 167 4
Finance leases 4.4 47
Total borrowing costs o L 2070 1943
Other financial expenses 2.7 03
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme labilities T 775 827
287.2 2773

Borrowing costs of £26 7 mithon {2017 €18 & mutlion] incurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest
rate of 3 89% (2017 394%] Tax retiet of £5 0 mullion {2017 £3 7 million] was claimed on these costs which was credited to the income
statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £4 5 million [2017 £3 2 mitlion]

12 Net losses on financial instruments

2018 2007
fm [N

[Less)/gamn an swaps used as hedging watrurnents  fale value hedges . L (1.1 176
Loss anising on debt in fair value hedges - 16 9
Exchange gain/lloss) on other ioans 12.7 nii)
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity 8.2 {29]
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges o 1.4 101)
[Less)/gain arsing on swaps where hedge accounting is not applied (12.6) 111
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on debt 11 05

6.7 8

The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 34
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13 Taxation
al Analysis of tax charge in the year

2018 2m7
Irestated)
Before
exceptional [ xe eptional
bax tax Tetal
£m Em Ern Em
Current tax at 19% (2017: 20%)
Current year ’ 36.8 473 - 473
Prior years 13.9) (10 [16 4] 127 4)
Total current tax 329 363 (16 4] 169
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Current year 21.4 i6 4 - 16 4
Prioryears 7.6 60 40 00
Exceptional credit from rate change - - (398) [39 8]
Total deferred tax 29.0 22 4 (35 8] 13 4]
61.9 587 (52 2] 65

The total tax charge for the year was £61 9 million (2017 £6 5 mullion)

The current tax charge before exceptional tax was £32 9 milion [2017 £36 3 mitlion] In 2017, the exceptional current tax credit of
£16 4 million arose primarily from adjustrments following agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several pricr years

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29.0 million [2017 £22 4 rullion] In 2017, there was an exceptional deferred tax
credit of £35 8 mullion ansing from agreeing a number of prior year tax items with HMRC and a reduction in the carporation tax rate,

enacted in that year, to 17% with effect from 2020
bl Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The tax expense for the year s higher (2017 lower] than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2017 20%]

The differences are explained below

2018 2017

[restated;

£m Crrt

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% [2017 20%) 57.5 636
Tax effect of depreciation on non-gualifying assets 18 37
Other permanent differences 1.4 [14]
Current year impact of rate change (2.5) (37]
Adjustments in respect of prior years 37 (17 4]
Exceptional deferred tax credit arising from rate change - 1398)
Total tax charge 61.9 55
2018 2007

irestated|

£m £m

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2017 20%) 57.5 656
Tax effect of depreciation on non-gualifying assets 1.8 32
Other permanent differences 1.4 {14)
Tax effect of accelerated capital allowances 19.7) 132
Other tirming differences 14.2) [ 9]
Adjustrments in respect of prior years 13.9) 127 4]
Total current tax charge 329 199
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
ror the year ended 31 March 2018

13 Taxation continued

c) Tax charged/lcredited] directly to other comprehensive incame or equity
In addition to the amount charged to the incore statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/{credited) to other
comprehensive INncome or equity

2018 2017
£m £
Current tax
Tax on share based paymenls (0.8 o8l
Tax an pension contributions 0 excess of income statement charge 9.3 (141
Yotal current tax credited to other comprehensive income or equity 10.1) [149)
Deferred tax o
Tax an actuarial gan/ioss 169 422!
Tax on cash flow hedges T 1.0 {13}
Tax on share based paymenls ] 1.3 0
Tax on transfers to the income statement o 1.4 04
Effect of change in tax rate T - 31
Total deferred tax charged/lcredited) to other comprehensive income or equity 20.4 {401
14 Dividends
Arnounts recognised as distributions to owners of the company i the penod
2018 2017
pence per share £m perce pershare tm
Final deadend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2014] o 48.90 115.2 4840 140
intersm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 {2017) 34.63 81.8 32 60 764
Total dividends paid 83.53 197.0 8100 190 4

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 5192 122.7

The proposed linal devidend 1s subject o approval by sharehalders al the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a
babiity in these financial staternents

15 Earnings per share

a} Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in1ssue during the year, excluding treasury shares and those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust, which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings par share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares

Basic and dituted earmngs per share from continumg and discontmued operations are calculated on the besis of profit from continuing
and discontinued operations attributable to the equity holders of the company

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based an the following data

lil Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

2018 2017

Iresiated)

£m Ermr

Profit for the periad attrbutable to owners of the cornpany 253.7 3428

Adjusted for profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the ?ompany [see note 39] 3.2 (213

Profit for the period from continuing operations attnibulable to owners of the company 240.5 3215

{ii) Number of shares

2018 017

m m

Waighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 235.3 2359
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

- share options and LTIPs e T B 08 10

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 2361 2360
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15 Earnings per share continued
b) Underlying earnings per share

2018 017

Irestatedl

pence pence

Urderlying basic earmings per share 121.0 1157
Underlying diluted earnings per share 120.6 1152

Underlying earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exclude the effects of deferred tax, exceptional
tax, losses on financiat instruments, currenl lax related to losses on financial instruments, exceptional items and current tax

related ta exceplional items. The direclors consider that Lhe adjusted figures provide a useful additionat indicator of performance.
The denominators used tn the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as those used in the
unadjusted figures set out above.

The adjustments to earnings that are made in calculating underlying earnings per share are as follows

2018 2m7
irestated|
£m Em
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share fram continuing operations 240.5 3215
Adjustments for e
- exceptional tems before tax 12.6 [16 &)
- current tax related to exceptionat items 0.7 ]
- net losses on financial iInstruments T 6.7 18
— current tax on net losses on financial nstruments (3.3 [4 9]
- excepticnal current tax T - {16 4]
- deferred tax 29.0 (13 4]
Earnings far the purpose of underlying basic and diluted earnings per share 284.8 2719
16 Goodwill
2018 207
£m £m
Cost
A1 April 810 182
Acquisitron of subsidiary - 660
Disposal of subsidiaries [14.4) (5 4)
Exchange adjustments (0.6) 22
Additional consideratien in respect of acquisttion 0.2 -
Adjustment to provisional fair values on acquisition [note 38) (4.0 -
At 31 March 62.2 810

Goodwillis allocated to the group’s cash-generating urits [CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment
A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU 1s presented below

2018 207

£m £m

Dee Valley Waler 62.2 660
Operating Services U - 150
62.2 8tk

Dee Valley Water also has an intangible asset wath indefimite useful life amounting ta £4,3 million (2317 i),

The group has reviewed the carrying value of goodwill for impairment in accordance with the policy stated in note 2 k] The carrying
value of the Dee Vatley Water CGU was determined on the basis of value in use in the current and prior years The Operating Services
US CGU was sotd on 30 June 2017

The value in use calculation for the Dee Valloy Water CGU s based on the most recenl iInancial projections available for the business,
which cover the remainder of the current AMP period to 2020 and the following AMP period, which runs to 31 March 2025 As a
regulated water company, Dec Valley Water s revenues and costs are significantly influenced by the regulatary settlement for each
AMP period so management considers it appropriate for the detailed projections to be coterrninous with the AMP period
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

16 Goodwill continued

The net cash flows for the current AMP period are based on existing operations and Dee Valley Water's business plan, adusted for
the synergies ansing from the acguisiiion by Severn Trent, to the extent that they will be realised in Dee Valley Water The nat cash

flows in the following AMP penod have been reduced to reflect the lower weighted average cost of capital proposed by Ofwat inits
PR19 methodology

The key assumptions underlying these projections are

Key assumption %o
Discount rate 63
RPlinflaton e 30
CPl inflation 20
Growth rate i the period beyond the detailled prajections 25

The discount rate was an estimate for the weighted average cost of capital at the year end date based on the market rate for the cost
of debt and the cost of equity included in the Dee Valley Water Final Determination for AMPS adjusted to tzke account of risks already
reflected in the cash flows for AMP7 and beyond. This post-tax rate was converted to the equivalent pre-tax rate discount rate above,
Inflation has been included i the detailed projections at 3% and 2% for RPY and CP! respectively based on the Bark of England s
target rate for CPI

Cash flows beyond the end of the seven year period are extrapolated using an assumption of zero real growth and an estmate of 2.5%
for long-term inflation (combination of CP and RPJ)

The value in use for the CGU exceeded tte carrying value by £15 6 mullion The value in use 15 most sensitive to the assumption relating
to the growth rate outside the five year period If the growth rate assumption were reduced to 2 2% this would cause the CGU's
carrying arncunt to exceed its recoverable amount under the revised assumption

17 Other intangible assets

Computer software Caputalised
Internally develapment Instrument of
generated Purchased costs and patents appointment Total
Em £m £€m €m £m

Cost
At T April 2016 1889 1045 135 - 306 9
Additions 147 145 i1 - 303
Disposals 1 02 07 - i30)
Dispesals of subsidaries - (0 - - 50
Exchange adjustments 02 10 - - 12
ALY Aprit 2017 2027 1138 139 - 3304
Additions 98 182 04 - 284
Disposals [07) - {15 - 22
Adjustment to provisional fair values [note 38} - - - 43 43
Disposals of subsidiares - {72 - - (72
Exchange adjustments 01 oY - - {0 2)
At 31 March 2018 211.7 124.7 12.8 4.3 353.5
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2016 (159 1] [63 0} [12 &) - {234 7]
Amortisation for the year 77 (10 8 [0a - (193]
Disposals 07 03 a7 - 17
Disposals of subsidianes - 36 - - 36
Exchange adjustments 101) 07) - - f08g)
At TAprit 2017 1168 2) 170 6) 127 - 1249 5
Amortisation for the year 180] {12 &} 071) - {207
Disposals 0é - - - 06
ispasals of subswdiaries - 43 - - 43
Exchange adjustments - 07 - - 02
At 31 March 2018 1173.6) i78.7) 12.8) - (265.1)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 38.1 44.0 - 4.3 88.4
At 31 March 2017 347 432 12 - 809
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18 Property, plant and equipment

viadar wboeagg

RENIcREL L Y]

Land and Infrastructure  Fixed plant and Moveable Assets under
buildings assets equipment plant construction Total
Em Em £m €m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2014 31680 49399 3.7881 670 945 2 12,508 2
Additions 155 737 12 4 17 480 6 2839
Transfers on commissicning 134 4 399 2147 63 (395 3 -
Disposals 57) 07] (24 7) (38 - 134 9} 2
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 08 614 643 - - 126 5 £
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 14 7} - - [4 7] H
Exchange adjustments - - 272 27 - 49 “3_,
At 1 Apri 2017 _ 33130 5142 4,052 3 739 6305 131839 g
Additions 71 60 5 16 4 09 404 3 69172 §
Transfers on commissioning o 694 5272 1365 44 (242 5] - Z
Disposals (20 03 [12 4] 12 9] (08 118 4]
Adjustment to provisional fair values [note 38) - 0! - - - 08 Y
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - {15 2] (192 - 344) 2
Reclassifications 13 0] 65 (107} 03l 75 ~ <
Exchange adjustments - - 09 {12 - 21 &
At 31 March 2018 3,386.5 5,233.9 4,166.0 55.6 979.0 13,821.0 i
Depreciation o s
At 1 April 2016 1,119 5) 1,254 5] [2.358 0 A - (4,789 &] ;
Charge for the year (81 2] {42 6] (178 1} 59 - el
Disposals 37 02 234 35 - 308 g
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 35 - - 35 -
Exchange adjustments - - (14 (20 - 34l S
At 1 Apri 2017 11970 1,298 9) (2.520 6 (510} - 15,067 5; é
Charge for the year {84 5 (315 (188 0) (4 8) - (308 8) )
Disposals 17 - 129 27 - 173
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 102 148 - 250
Reclassifications 41 (15] 30 04 - - —
Exceptional depreciation 10 1) - [6 7l - - (16 8)
Exchange adjustments - - 07 10 - 17
At 31 March 2018 (1,285.8] (1,331.9) (2,694.5] (36.9) - (5,349.1]
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 2,100.7 3,202.0 1,471.5 18.7 979.0 8,471.9
At 31 March 2017 211610 3.8153 15317 229 6305 8,116 4

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases

infrastructure  Fixed plantand
assels equipment Total
£€m £m fm
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 115.8 6.4 122.2
At 31 March 2017 118 8 07 1290

The depreciation charge for 2018 includes £16 8 million (2017 €5 0 rmillion] in respect of the write off of redundant plant

and equipment
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2013

19 Interests in joint ventures
Particulars of the group’s principal joint venture undertaking at 31 March 2018 were

Proportion of ownership
Name Type Countryof incorparation Ctlass of share capital held interest

Water Plus Limned Jointventure Great Britain Ordinary B 50%

The results and net assets of the principal joint venture are shown below

Interests injoint venture

2018 2017

£m £m

Group's share of carrying vatue 7.6 374
Group's share of profit and comprehensive income 0.2 18

All results are from continuing eperations in both the current and preceding year.

As at 31 March 7018 and 2017 the joint venture did not have any significant contingent Liabilities to which the group was exposed and
the group td not have any significant contingent babities in relation to 1ts imerests in the joint venture The group had ne capital
cormnmtrments in retation to s interests in the joini venture at 31 March 2018 or 2017

The company has given guarantees in favour of Water Plus Limited in respect of the joint venture s liabilities to wholesalers in the
Open Water market and its loan from Severn Trent Water Limited The guarantee in respect of labilities to wholesalers s capped at
£42 5 million (2017 £42 5 mitlion] and the guarantees for the Severn Trent Water loan 1s for the amount due

The registered office of Water Plus 1s Two Smithfield, .eonard Coates Way, Stoke-on-Trent, ST1 4FD.
20 Categories of financial assets

2018 017
Notes £m £m
Fair value through profit and loss o
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 58 236
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 11.4 236
17.2 472
Dervatives designated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps - fair value hedges 18.7 198
Energy hedges - cash flow hedges 0.3 -
19.0 198
Total derivative financial assets 36.2 670
Loans and receivables {including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade recevables 21 191.0 2142
Loan recewvable from joint venture 21 135.6 1084
Short term deposits 22 16.4 188
Cash ai bark and in hand 22 347 258
Total loans and receivables 3777 367 4
Total financial assets 4139 434 4
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current assets .
Dervative financial assets 36.0 670
Loan recewable from joint venture 135.6 90
171.4 7643
Current assets
Denvative hnanoal assets 0.2 -
Trade and cther receivables 191.0 2142
Loan recewvable from joint venture - 996
Cash and cash equivalents 51.1 446
242.3 3584
413.9 434 4
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21 Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
£m Em
Current assets
Trade receivables 3200 3447
Bad debl provision {129.0} 1305
Net trade receivables 191.0 21472
QOther amounts recewable o 387 385
Prepayments 15.5 57
Accrued income M2 1598
Loan receivable from joint venture - 996
456.4 5178
Non-current assets
Other amounts recenvable - L 1.5 -
Prepayments 13.1 214
Amounts recevable from service concession arrangements o L 3 277
Loan recelvable from joint venture T 135.6 20
181.3 581
6377 5759
The carrying values of trade and other recewables are reasonable approximations of their fair values
Doubtful debts provision
Movemnents on the doubtful debts provision were as follows
2018 20V
£m £m
At April 130.5 1269
Charge for bad and doubtful debts {continuing and discontinued operations| 273 719
Acquisttion of Dee Valley Water - 28
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking (1,2 -
Amounts written oft during the year [27.6) 21
At 31 March 129.0 1305
The aged analysis ot recewables that are speuhically provided for s as foliows
2018 20
£m Ern
Up 1o 90 days 05 10
?1 - 345 days 1.2 63
1~ 2years - 5.2 28
Z~3years 2.5 39
More than 3 years 5.6 69
15.0 209

Acollective provision 1s recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been made.

This is calculated based on wstorical expenence of levels of recovery,
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

21 Trade and other receivables continued

The aged analysis of recewvables that were overdue at the reporting date but not individually prowded for 15 as follows

2018 2017
£m L
Up to 90 days 43.6 56 6
71 - 365 days 80.0 858
1-2years 57.5 572
2 -3years 4.7 321
More than 3years 77.4 480
299.2 3027
The amounts above are reconcied to gross and net debtors in the table below
2018 2017
Gross Proviston Net Cross Provisicn Net
£€m £m £m E£m m £m
Mot due 5.8 - 5.8 211 - 21 T
Overdue 1ot speuifically provided 2992 (114.0) 185.2 3027 [109 &) 1931
Qverdue and specifically provided 15.0 {15.0) - 209 {209)
320.0 (129.01 191.0 344 7 (130 5! 2142
Credit risk
Trade receivabies

Credit control policies and procedures are deterrmined at the individual business unit level By far the most sigruficant business unit
of the group 1s Severn Trent Water Lirnited, which represents 93% of group turnover and 21% of net trade recevables Severn Trent

Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and waste water services to customers within its region Therefore there 1s no
cancentration of credit sk with respect to its trade receivables from these services and the credit quality of its customer base

reflacts the wealth and prosper ity of all of the domestic househoids within its region.

Water Plus

tn the current and prior year, the group’s jomt venture, Water Plus, was the largest retatler for non-domestic customers in the Severn

Trent region The trade recewables and amounts shown as loans recevable from (ot ventures are disclosed within the related

pariies note 45

22 Cash and cash equivatents

2018 017

£m m

Cash at bank and in hand 347 258
Short term deposits 16.4 188
511 4d 4

Short term bank deposits are held as securty deposits for insurance obligations, which are not available for use by the group
In addition, £2 8 rmullian {2017, £10 O mullion] of cash at bank and in hand 15 restricted for use on the Minsstry of Qefence contract

and s not avarlable for use by the group.

1 66 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



23 Borrowings

2018 2017
£m £
Current liabilities
Bank averdralt 12.6 -
Bank loans 2879 15172
Other lcans 5.3 4061
Finance leases 29 21
308.7 5594
Non-current babibities
Bank loans 229.5 9221
Other loans 4,218.6 36839
Finance leases 111.0 1136
5,259.1 47196
5,567.8 52790
24 Finance leases
Obtigations under finance leases are as follows
2018 Hiule
£m £rr
Within 1year - &5 &1
1-2vyears 7.0 65
2-5years 243 228
After more than Syears 1131 1219
Gross abligations under hinance leases 150.9 1571
Less future finance charges 137.0} (414
Present value of lease obligations 113.9 HEN
Net obligations under finance leases falt due as follows
2018 2017
£m £
Within 1 year 29 21
i ~2years . 3.2 2?6
2 -5Syears 13.7 15
After more than 5years 941 995
Included in non-current liabilibes 111.0 1136
113.%9 1157

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 14 years at 3t March 2018 Interest terms are set at the inception of the
leases The leases bear hxed interest at 3 weighted average rate of 5.34% 12017 5.34%). The lease obligations are secured against

the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or matenal renowal or purchase options. The torms of the finance leases do not

impose restrnction on dividend payments, addibonal debt or further leasing
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

25 Categories of financial liabilities

2018 27
Motes £m £
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 98.8 1632
Inflation swaps - not hedge accounted 2.8 -
101.6 1632
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 13.6 207
Energy hedges - cash flow hedges 0.8 08
16.4 215
Total derivative financial liabilities 116.0 184 7
Cther financial liabilities
Borrowings 23 5,567.8 52790
Trade payables %4 . wswa
Total other financiat liabilities 5,586.7 53030
Total financial liabilities 5,702.7 54877
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current liabilities
Dervative financral biabities 1160 1841
Borrowings 5.25%.1 47194
5,375.1 49037
Current labilities
Dearvative financial Labihities o - dé
Borrowings :—‘ 3087 594
Trade payables S 18.9 240
327.4 584 0
5,702.7 5,4877
26 Trade and other payables
2018 2017
£m £m
Current liabilities
Jrade payables 18.9 240
Social security and other taxes 49 58
Other payables 216 135
Deferred income 14.9 122
Accruals 400.3 396 4
462.6 4519
Non-current liabilities
Accruals 0.4 21
Deferred ncarne 1,009.0 953 6
1,009.4 755 7
1,472.0 1,407 6
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27 Deferred tax

An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group 1s set out below

Retirernent Fairvalue
Accelerated tax benefit of financiat
depreciation obligations instruments Other Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 7662 (55 8) 151 6] 59 6647
Reclassification - 155 - {15 5} -
Charge/{credt] to mcome 233 - 32 01 264
[Crediti/charge to ncorne arsing from rate change [42 5) - 22 05 1398
Acqutred through business combination 1ng 17 - 1 125
Credit to equity - lazy 09 0i 1432
Charge to equity arising from rate change - 21 10 - 31
At TApriL 2617 758 ¢ (78 7] (461 (10 4] 6237
Charge/lcredit] to income 245 i03) 16 32 290
Charge for adjustments to provisional fair values 01 - - 10 1
Charge to equity - 67 Z4 13 206
At 31 March 2018 783.5 (62.1) 1421 14.9) b74.4

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more than 12 months,

are as follows

2018 207

£m Em

Deferred tax assat ) {1091} {135 2}
Deferred tax Lability 7835 7589
b674.4 6237

2B Retirement benefit schemes

a) Defined benefit pension schemes
(i} Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK. The Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the Severn
Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme closed o future acerual on 31 March 2015, while the Dee Valley Water Limited Section of the
Water Companies Pension Scheme, which (s a sectionabised schieme, currently remains open to accruat The defined benefit pensian
schemes cover increases 1n accrued benefits arsing from inflation and pension increases Therr assets are hetd in separate funds
admnistered by trustees The trustees are required to actin the best interests of the schernes’ beneficiaries. A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme1s carried out on heha!f of the trustees at triennial intervals by anindependent pr ofessionally gualified
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitied to retirement benefits calculated by reference to therr
pensionable service and pensionable salary history, with inflationary pension increases applying in Uine with the scheme rules.

The UK defined beneftt pension schemes and the dates of therlast campleted format actuariat valuations as at the accounting date

are as follows

Severn Trent Pension Scherne (STPS)*

Date of iast farmal actuanal valuation

31 March 2016

Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scherme [STMIPS]

Water Companies Pension Scheme - Dee Valley Water Limited Section [BYWS)

31 March 2016
31 March 2017

" The S12515 by far the bargest of he group s UK devined benelit scnermes comurising over Y00 af the group s gver all defined Lenelt obligat ans
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
liil Amnount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s abligations under the defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017
£€m £m
Fair value of assets 2,339.8 23528
Present value of the defined benefit obligations {2.859.6} {2927 4)
{519.8) {574 &)

Presented on the balance sheet as:
Retwement benefit obligation ~ funded schemes in surplus 18.2 98
Retrrement benefit obligatron - funded schemes in defrait 529.3) (5739
Retirernent benefit obligation - unfunded schemes T 8.7) [i0 5)
Retirernent benefit obligation - tatal (538.0 (584 4]
Net retirement benefit obligation 1519.8) 1574 6}
2018 2017
STPS, STMIPS, and OYWS £€m €m

Fair value of scheme assets

Equities 360.4 914 3
Dwersified growth funds 53 53
Giits - 4246
Corporatebonds 825.7 670 8
Liahility drrven investment funds (LDI] e 7834 424
Property T - 180.7 1749
Ermergng mackels mulh-asssts funds. 39 33
High-peld bonds - - - - - 3.4 33
Hedge funds . 0.6 12
Cash 176.7 124 5
2,3398 2,352 8

The majority of the assets have quoted prices in active markets, but there are a small proportion of the equity and LDI investments
which are unguated
Mavements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows

2018 2017

im £rn

Fairvalue at 1 April 2,352.8 20398
Interest income on scheme assets 62.0 718
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 35.2 332
Contributions from scheme membeis 0.1 -
Return on plan assets [excluding amounts included in finance tncome] (1.3] 2274
Scherme admintstration costs {1.8) {3 3)
Benefits paid (107.2) (872}
Acauwasition of Dee Vailey Water - 709
Farr value at 31 March 2,3398 23528
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued

[ii) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under the defined benefit pension schemes continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit cbligations ware as follows

nedirobo Ly !

RRNLIEYRNLY) }

2018 2017

£rn {m

Present value at 1 Apnl (2,927.4) 2,345 3)
Service cost {0.5] - o
Excepfional past service credit B T 8.3 173 £
Contributions from scheme members 10.1) -~ z
Actuarial gains arising from changes indemograpficassumptiens 26 166 g
Actuarial gains/llosses) arising from changes in finanoal assumptions b9 [470 4) %
Actuarial gains/llosses] arising from experience adjustments 19 {84 8j 5

Benefits poid 107.2 87.2
Acquisition of Dee Valley Water N - {61 1] 5
Present value at 31 March [2,85%.6) 129274 %

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a nurnber of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted
by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Prowvision for such benefits amounting to £8 7 rillion (2017, £10.5 multion) s mcluded as an
unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation.

The group has assessed thaf1s has an unconditional right to a refund of any surplus assets in each of the Schemes foltowing
settlement of all obligations to scheme rmembers and therefore the surplus in DYWS has been recogrsed in full

[iii) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017

£m L

Amounts credited te operating costs

Current service cost {0.5) -

Exceptional past service credit 8.3 173

Schemne administration costs 11.8) {33]
6.0 140

Amounts charged to finance costs

Interest cost - {77.5) {82 7]

Amounts credited to finance income

interest incorme on scheme assets 2.0 718

Total amount [charged)/credited to the incame statement (9.51 31

The actual return on scherne assets was a gain of £60 7 mitlion {2017 gain of £299 4 million)
Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income

(ivl Actuarial risk factors
L he Schetnes typreally expose the group to actuartal risks such as vestment risk, inflation risk and lungewity risk,

Investment risk

The group's contributions to the Schemes are based on actuarnial calculahions which make assumptions about the returns expecled
fram the Schemes’ investments |f the investmeants underperform these assumptions n the tong term then the group may need to
make addihenal contributions to the Schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits,

Each plan s investment strategy seeks to balanca the level of investrnent return sought with the airn of reducing volatility and risk

In undertaking this approach, reference i1s made to both the matunty of liabies and the funding level of that plan A number of further
strategies are ermployed to manage underlying risks, including tability matching asset st ategies, dwversification of asset portfolios
and interest rate hedging

Currently the ptan has a balanced approach to investment in eguity securities, debt instrumerits and real estates Due to the long term
nature of the plan Uabilities, the Trustees consider it appropriate to invest a portion of the plan assets in equity securities and 1n real
estate to leverage the return generated by the fund

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 1 71

AUANY JAL, () I CURTE T Ppa P )



Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued
al Defined henefit pension schemes continued

liv) Actuarial risk factors continuad

Inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the Schemes are Unked toinflation measured by the RPlor CPI | subjecttc caps The group's
contributions to the Schemes are based on assurnptions about the future level of inflabion. If inflation is higher than the levels
assumed in the actuaral calculations then the group may need to make additional contributtons to the Schermes it order to fund
the payment of accrued benefirs,

The Schemes use Liability Driven Investment ['LON ] within the asset portfolios to hedge aganst the value of babilies changing as a
result of movernents in long-terim mterest rate and inflation expectations, Tins structure allows the Scheres to both hedge aganst
these risks and retamn capital tnvestment in assets that are expected to generate higher returns

Langevity risk

The group's contributions to the Schemes are based en assumptions about the lte expectancy of Scherne members after retirement
{f Scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuaral calculations then the graup may need to make additienal contributions
1o the Schernes inorder to fund the payrment of accrued benefits.

[v} Actuarial assumptions
The major financial assumptions used in the accounting valuatian of the obligations far the STPS, which represents by far the largest
defined benefit abligation for the group, were as tollows

zo? 2617
Price in{lation - RP! o L 3.1 31
Price inftation - CP) 2.1 21
Discount rate _ ) T - 2.7 27
Pension mcreases in payment o L 34 3}
Pension increases in deferment a1 31

The assumption for price inflation s derived from the difference between the vields on langer term fixed rate gilts and on

mdex-inked glts.

In setting aur discount rate, we construct a yield curve Short-dated yields are taken from market rates for AA carporate bonds Lang-
dated yields for the curve are based on the average yreld available on all long-dated AA corporate bonds We project the expected cash
flows of the schemes and adopt a single equivalent cash flow weighted discount rate based on this constructed yield curve,

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the tatest trienmial funding valuations The mortality assumptions adopted at
the year end for accounting purpeses and the life expectancies at age 45 implied by the assumphons are as follows for the STPS.

2018 M7

Men Wamen Men Wumen
Mortality table used S2NMA S2NFA S2NMA S2NFA
Mortaiity table compared with standard table 5% 99% 95% 79%
Mortality projections CM4 2017 CMI 2017 CMi 2016 CM! 2016
Future iImprovement per annum 1.0% 1.0% 10% 10%
Remaming life expectancy for members currently aged 65 lyears) 2.4 24.1 725 241
Remaining Life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 lyears) 23.4 25.3 2386 253

The calculation of the scheme abligations s sensitive to the actuarial assumptions and tn particutar to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price inflation {capped, where relevant] and mortality. The following table summarizes the estimated impact on the
group’s cbligations from changes to key actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
(v) Actuarial assumptions continued

Assumpticn Change in assumption tmpact on disclosed ebligations
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% p.a. Decrease/increase by £48 million
Price inflation” Increase/decrease by 01% p a. Increase/decrease by £43 million
Martality’ Increase in life expectancy by 1year Increase by £107 million

1 Acha~ge in discourlrate s kely 0 occur a5 3 result of changes in bend yield ano as such woulz be expeclad to be o'(sel to a signifizant degree by a change in the
vatue of the bond assets held by the plans

2 Treproected impact resulting from a change in RPlrellects Lthe underlying =liecl on penstons in payment, pensions in Zelerre ~tand resullanl increagses n
s3iary assumplicns

3 Teechange naussumpt enis eased on trienmial s =luat ons and reflecs the fact that life expecta=cyra es are expectad “oincrease

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particular ly between the disceunt rate and price inflation The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships Alse, in practice any movement in obligations anising from
assumption changes are Likely to be accompanied by movements in asset values - and so the impact on the accounting deticit may
be lower than the impact on the obligations shown above

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been ralculated using the projected

unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
Liability recognised In the balance sheet

Ivil Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit cbligation at the end of the year (s 17 years for STPS and STMiPS (2017 20 years) and 16 years for
DVWS (2017 17 years)

The most recent completed formal triennial actuanial valuations and funding agreerments were carried out as at 31 March 2016 for the
STPS and STMIPS schemes and 31 March 2017 for DVWS As a result of the STPS and STMIPS actuanal valuations, deficit reduction
contributions of £25 millien were paid in the year ended 31 March 2017 and £10 muillion for each of the subsequent financial years
ending 31 March 201% were agreed Payments of £8 million per annum through an asset-backed funding arrangement will continue
to 31 March 2032 Further inflation-linked payments of £15 million per annurm ar e being matde through an additional asset-backed
funding ar rangerment, with payments having started in the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and continuing to 31 March 2031
These contributions will cease earlier should & subsequent valuation of the STPS show that these contributions are no longer needed

b) Defined contribution pension schemes
The group also operates the Severn Trent Group Personal Pension, a defined coniribution scheme, for certain of its UK employees

Dee Valley Water operates two defined contribution pension schemes, naither of which were matenalin either the current ar
prior year

The total cost charged to operating costs of £20 3 million [2017 restated £20 % miltion) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. As at 31 March 2018, no contributions (2017 £2.2 million)
in respect of the current reporting period were owed to the schemes
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 20138

29 Provisions

Restructuring insurance Other Total

£m €m €m €m

At 1 Aprt 2017 - AR 122 338
Charged 0 mcome statement 08 b4 144 218
Utilisation of provision e . - {47 07 (5 4)
Unwinding of discount - - 11 1
At 31 March 2018 08 233 272 51.3
2218 212?7

m m

Included in:

Current Liabilities o T 40.6 175
Non-current labilities 0.7 163
51.3 338

The restr uctuning provision reflects costs to be incurred m respect of cotonutted restructuring progranunes. | he associated outflows
are estimated to arise aver a pertod of up to two years from the balance sheet date

Insurance includes provisions in respect of Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited, captive nsurance
compantes, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the group, and insurance deductions in Severn Trent Water Limited
The assocrated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet date

Other pravisions include provisions for dilapidations, commeraial disputes, either from continuing or discontinued operations,
and potential environmenial clarns. The associated outflows are estimated to anise pver a perrod up to 1 years frorm the
balance sheet date.

30 Share capital

2018 017
£m £m

Total issued and fully paid share capital
240,222 617 ordinary shares of 97 /iap [2017 239.793915] 2351 2347
At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3.948,599 were heid (2017 4,080,964)

Changes n share capital were as follows-

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97/sp
At April 2016 239.344,614 2343
Shares 1ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 443,301 04
At 1Aprl 2017 239793915 2347
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 428,702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 2351
31 Share premium
208 2017
£m m
At 1 Apnt 125 68
Share premium arrsing on issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme T 5.2 57
At 31 March 1177 1125

1 74 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



32 Other reserves

Capitat
redemption Translation Hedging

reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprit2016 1571 379 178 3] 165
Total comprehensive income for the year - 25 28 53
At 1Aprd 2007 1571 404 757} 1218
Total comprehensive [lossl/income for the year - [314] 16 98]
Transfer to retained earnings - 17 0) - 15 0]
At 31 March 2018 1571 - (64.1) 93.0

The captal redernption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidiaries

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly Lo equity under the hedge accounting provisions

of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

33 Capital management
The group s principal objectives in managing capital are

¢ to access a broad range of sources of finance to abtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need

for continued availability,

* to manage exposure to movements ininterest rates (o provide an appropriate degree of certainty as toits cost of funds,

s to minimise exposure to counterparty credit risk,

* to provide the group with an appropriate degree of certainty as toits foreign exchange exposure,

« to maintain an nvestment grade credit rating, and

= to maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure,

The group seeks te achieve a balance of long-term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best

possible economic cost The group moniters future funding requirernents and credit market conditions to ensure continued availability

of funds

The group has continued to maintain exposure to low floaling interest rates, which comprises 26% of our gross debt portfolio at the
balance sheet date, with a further 26% of index-linked debt and 48% of fixed rate debt

The group's dividend policy is a key tool in achieving its capital management objectives This policy 1s reviewed and updated in line
with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alia, the planned investment programme, the
appropriate gearing level achieving a balance between an efficient cost of capital and retaining an investment grade credit rating and
delivering an attractive and sustamable return to shareholders The board has decidad to set the 2017/18 dradend at 86 55 pence, an
increase of & 2% compared to the total dividend for 2016/17 of 81 50 pence Our policy 15 to grow the dividend annually at no less than

RP! plus 4% until March 2020
The group s capital at 31 March was,

2018 2017

£m £m

Net cash and cash eguivalents 38.5 44 6
Bank loans (1,217.4) (1,073 3]
Other loans {4,223.9] 14,090 0)
Financeleases - 13.59] (115 7)
Cross currency swaps 24.5 434
Loans due from joint ventures 135.6 108 &
Net debt o e o L (5,356.6) (5082 4]
Equity attributable to owners of the company 1993.7) 1923 3)
Total capital (6,350.3]) (4005 7)
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

34 Fair values of financial instruments

al Fair value measurements

The valuation techniques that the group applies in determining the fair values of its financial Instruments an & recurring basis are
described below The techriques are classified under the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 which categorises valuation technigues into
Levels 1 - 3based on the degree to which the fair value 15 observable The group's valuation techniques include Levels 2 and 3 given

the wide range of financial instrurnents betow.

2018 2017
€m £ Valuation technigues and key inputs
Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 245 434 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates from
observable yield curves atthe year end and contract interest rates
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties,
The currency cash flows are translated at spot rate.
Interest rate swaps Oiscounted cash flow
Assets 1.4 236  Fufure cash flows are estumaled based on forward interest rates from
Liabilities {112.4 183 9] observable yield curves at the year end and contract interesi rates
discounted at a rate Lhal reflects the credit risk of counterparties
Energy swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 0.3 ~ Future cash flows are estimated based on forward electricity prices from
Liabilities {0.81 108) observable indices at the year end and contract prices discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
Inflation swaps Discounted cash Hiow
Liabilities 12.8) - Future cash flows on the RP1 leg of the instruments are estimaled based

on observable forward inflation indices

Future cash flows on the CPlleg of the instruments are estimated based
on the future expacted differential between RPland CPI

Both legs are discounted uging observable swap rates at the year end,
at a rate that retlects the credit risk of counterparties This is considered
lo be a Level 3valuation technigue
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34 Fair values of financial instruments continued

bl Comparison of fair values of financial instruments with their carrying amounts
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term depasits, bank overdrafts, loans recewvable from jormt
ventures, trade recesvables and trade payables approximate therr fair values The carrying values and estimated fair values of other

financiat instruments are set out below

2018 2017

Carrying valve Fair valye Carryng vatue Fourvalue

£m £€m Err Crr

Floating rate debt

Bank loans 9171 218.4 774 3 7820
Currency bonds 38.2 38.2 401 401
Fioating rate notes 147.7 153.0 1477 156 4
1,103.0 1,109.8 9441 9785
Fixed rate debt B - L
Bank loans - 185.3 185.0 1844 184 4
Sterling bonds 2,357.0 2,700.2 2.2572 274672
Fixed rate notes - 3434 347.6 3552 3974
Other loans 5.3 53 67 -
Finance leases T T 1139 1225 1157 1305
3,004.9 3,350.6 29212 3,487 4
Index-linked debt o
Bank loans - I 1 1249 g s 1267
Sterling bonds R %21 2,057.1 11958 20621
Other loans - 88.2 87.1 873 873
1,447.3 2,268 13937 22771

5,555.2 6,739.5 52790 6,7230

The above classihcation does not take into account the impact of unhedged interest rate swaps or cross Lurrency swaps
Freed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices, which is a Level 2 valuation technigue

index-linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered ta be a reliable indicator of fair vatue
Therefore. these bands are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates derived from observed market prices
jor a sample of bonds, which s a Level 7 valuation technigue.

Farrvalues of the other debt Instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models, winch s a Level 2
valuation techruque

35 Risks arising from financiat instruments

The group’s activities expose It to a variety of financial risks

« rnarket sk including interest rate nisk, exchange rate risk and other price risk],
* cradit risk,

* Lqurdity risk; and

* inflation risk

The group's overall risk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial rnarkets and seeks to reduce potental
adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position

Financtal risks are managed by a central treasury department | Group Treasury’} under policies approved by the board of directars
The board has established a Treasury Cornmittee to rmonitor treasury activities and ta facilitate imely responses to changes in
marke! canditions when necessary. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial nisks in close cooperation with the
group's operaling units. The board deflines witten principles for overall msk management, as well as wnillen policies covering specific
areas such as exchange rate risk, rderest rate risk, credit risk and the use of derwvative and non-dervative hnancial instruments,

The group’s policy 1s that dervative financial instruments are not held for irading but may be used to mihgate the group's exposure

to hinancial risk The types of dertvative instrurments held and the related risks are described below.

Interest rate swaps are held to manage the group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates Further details are set outin
section aj (i and note 36 b] (i,

Cross currency swaps are held lo mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate moverments on amounts borrowed in foraign
currencies Further details are set out in section a) il and 36 a) 1)
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Group hinancial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
Energy swaps are held to mitigate the group s expesure ta changes in electricity prices Further details are provided in note 34 b il below

Severn Trent Water, the group’s most significant business unil, operates under a requlatary environment where its prices are linked
to inflation measured by RPL. In order to mitigate the risks to cash flow and earmings arising from fluctuations in RPY, the group holds
debtinstruments where the principal repayable and interest cost 1s inked to RP|

a) Market risk
The group 1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates. The nature of these risks and the steps
that the group has taken to manage them are described below

(i} Interest rate risk

The group’s incorne and its operating cash flaws are substantally indepsndent of changes in market intecest rates. The group’s
interest rate risk anses from long-term borrowings

Bor rowings issued at vanable rates expose the group to the risk of adverse cash flow impacts frorm no eases in mterest rates,
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of interest costs above the market rate when interest rates decrease

The group's policy 1s to mantain 40% to 70% of its interest bearing habhiities n fixed rate instrurnents during AMPS. In measuring
this metnc, managernent makes adpustrnenis te the carrying vatue of debt to better reftect the amount that interest 1s calculated on,
Detatls of the adjustments made are set out below

2018 2017

£m m

Net debt jnote 40) e 5,356.6 5,082 4
Cash and cash equivalents 511 44 6
Loan recevable from jointventure o T 135.6 108 6
E&Errency swaps included in net debt at fair vatue \ﬁ*ﬁﬂ_ﬁé 24.5 434
Fair value hedge accounting adjustments - __ﬁﬁYm T T T T T B4l (319
Exchange on currency debt not hedge accounted 18.5) i212)
Inlerest-hearing financial Labilities 5528.9 5,226 3

The group rmanages its cash flow interest rate risk by borrowing at fixed or mdex-linked rates or by using mter est rate swaps

Under these swaps the group recewves variable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by eference to the agreed
notional principal amounts. In practice the swaps are settled by transferring the net amount These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrowings from variable rates to fixed rates. The group has entered into a series of these Interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments beyond 2030

Tha following tables show analyses of the group’s interest hearng financial habilities by type of interest. Debt whuch s hedged by
interest rate swaps or cross currency swapsis included in the categeory after taking account of the rmpact of the swap Debt raised n
foreign curcencies has been included at the nottonal sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding crass currency swap stnce
this s the arnount that 1s exposed to changes ininterest rates

Valuation adjustments that do not smpact the amount on which interest 1s calculated, such as fair value hedge accounting adjustments,
are excluded from this analysis

The not principst amount of unhedged swaps 1s shown as an adjustment to floating rate and lixed rale debt to demonstrate the impact
of the swaps on the armaunt of Labilities bearing fixed interest.

Floating Fixed index-
rate rate tinked Total
2018 £m £m £m Em
QOverdrafts {12 6} - - (12 4]
Bank toans {%171) [185 3} 1115 0) 11.2174)
Other loans {167 8] [2,6850) 1,332 3] (4,184 9]
Finance leases - 113 9] - 113 9]
11,097.3) 12,984.2) 11,447.3) 15,528.9)
Impact of swaps nat malched against specific dabl instruments (349 8} 3494 - -
interest bearing financial babilties ,446.9 [2,634.6) 11.447.3] {5,528.9)
Proportion of imterest bearing financiat isbibibes that are fixed 48%
Weghted average interest rate of fixed debt 4.30%
Weighted average period for which interest is fixed lyears) 8.8
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
a) Market risk continued
(i} Interest rate risk continued

Flaating Fxed Index-
rate rate boked Tetal

20 L Em im £m
Bankicans (776 3 (186 4] (110 6] (1,073 3)
Other loans 1167 4) 12,586 4] 11,283 3] 14,0373
Finance leases ~ ins 7 - 1157

(943 9] [2.858 5] (1.3939) {5,226 3]
Irnpact of swaps not matched against specific debt instruments {205 3) 2053 - -
interest bearing financial babiities (1149 2} {2683 2] {1,393 91 (5,226 31
Proportion of interest beanng financial labibties that are fixed 51% -
Weighted average interesl rate of fixed debt 5 16%
Werghted average period tor which interestis fixed [years) 92

Lovdar b e ’

2P 3n e '

Interest rate swaps not hedge accountad

The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flaw or fair value hedges. This has led to a credit

of £79 rmutlion (2017 charge of £3 3 million] in the income statement

Average contract fixed iterest rate Notionat principal amount Fairvalue
2018 2017 2518 2017 zgt8 2017
“ i £m €m £m £m
Pay fixed rate interest

5-10years 5.06 506 (300.00 {450 0 [65.8] {125 3}
10 ~ 20 years 5.46 545 (73.7) 168 1) 132.6) [378]
5.16 51 (373.7) 15181 {98.2) 11631

Receive fixed rate interest
5-10years 3.36 334 225.0 750 i1.4 58
10 - 20 years 275 292 400.0 5500 10.6) 178
3.01 297 625.0 625 0 10.8 234
251.3 1069 {B7.4) (139 5]

interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity after tax of the group’'s profits, cash flow and equity, including the impact on dervative financial instruments, to

changes ininterest rates at 31 Marchis as follows

2018 2017

1.3% -10% 100 -10%

£m £m £m L

Profitor loss o {£7.71 539 (36 1] 543
Cash Hlow o [11.5) 1n.s g8 ig 8
Equity (477 53.9 (36 1) 543

(it) Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s hedged, the group’s business does not involve significant exposure to fereign
exchange transactions Substantially all of the group’s profils and net assets anse from Severn Trent Water, which has very limited
and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the sensitivity of the group’s results to changes in exchange rates

15 not malerial.

Certain of the group s subsidiaries enter into transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the operation
Exchange risks relating to such aperations are not material but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward exchange

contracts to buy or sell currency These contracts led to a charge of Enil (2017 charge of £0 1 mullion] in the Income staternent

in order to meet 1ts objective of accessing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt denominated in currencies
other than sterling. In order to ritigate the group's exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, cross currency swaps were entered into at
the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the praceeds into sterting debt bearing interest based on LIBOR.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
a) Market risk continued

lii) Exchange rate risk continued

Where the terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the swaps are expected to be
effective hedges, hence the swaps have been accounted for as fair value hedges The notional value and fair value of these swaps

is shown in note 36 al.

The group also has cross currency swaps with a sterling value of £98 3 millien (2017 £98 3 mitlion] which are not accounted for as
fatr value hedges Econormucally these swaps act to mitigate the exchange rate risk of debt within the group which is denominated n
foreign currency, but they do not achveve hedge accounting under the sinct criteria of 145 3% This has led o a charge of €177 mittion
12617 credit of £13 1 rillion] iIn the iIncome statement whrch 1s partly offset by the exchange gain of £12 7 million [2017 exchange loss
of £15 4 mllion] on the underlying debit.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures arising from currency borrowings are stmmarised in the tables below These show,
in the relevant currency, the amount bory cwed and the notional principal of the related swap or forward contract The net position
shows the group's exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to s currency borrowngs

Euro US dollar Yen
2018 £m %$m ¥hn
Borrowings by currency (20 2] (1500l 20
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedqge accounted - 1500 -
Net currency exposure {0.3) - -

Eure LS dellar Yon
2Mm7 £m sm ¥hn
Borrowings by currency (201 (150 0] (20]
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge gecounted - 1500 -
Net currency exposure 03 - -
b Credit risk

Operatiohally the group has no sigmficant concantrations of credi risk. It has pobicies i place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit hustory, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, whase
operating lcences oblige them to supply domestic customners evenin cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided against
accounts recevable and moverments on the provision during the year are disclosed in note 21

Cash deposits and dervative contracts are only placed with bigh credit guality financiabinshtutions, which have been approved by the
board Group Treasury monitors the credit quality of the approved financiat institutions and the bist of financial institutions that may be
used s approved annually by the board, The group has palicies that lmut the amount of credit expasure to any one financialinstitution.

Credit risk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit imits of authorised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows

Creditlimit Amount deposited

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m {m £m fm

ALA - 50 - V2
Double Arange 105.0 160 0 - 18
Singte A range 650.0 6259 ni 138
Triple B range 10.0 100 5.3 20
765.0 7400 16.4 158

The fair vatues of derwative assets anatysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows

Derivative assets

2018 2017

£m £m

Double Arange - - 08
Single A range 36.2 66 2
36.2 570
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

¢l Liguidity risk

i) Committed facilities

Prudent bquidily management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained: adequate comnutted facilittes to be available, and

the abibty to close out market positions. Group Treasury manages hqudity and flexibility 10 funding by morstoring forecast and actual
cash ftows and the maturity profrle of financral assets and babrlities, and by keeptng committed credit Uines avalable

At the balance sheet date the group had cornrmitted undrawn borrowing facihties expinng as follows

2018 2017
£m Erri
2 - byears 710.0 1,000 0

(if) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments
The following tables show the estimaied cash fiows that will anise from the group's non-derwvative net financial lablies.

The infarmation presented 1s based on the earliest date on which the group can be requred to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flows including principat and interest.

interest and inflation assurnptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date

Payments

on financial

2018 Floating rate Fixed rate Index-iinked  Trade payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £€m £m
Withinlyear B4 360 1278 18 9] 1494.1)
1-2years (10 3] me (29 4] - {155.8}
2-years 14131 {982 &1 {325 7] - 1.349.6)
5~ 10years 1785 3] 11,333 6 1999 - (2,318.8)
10 - 15 years B 152 7, 11,054 0) 1436 2] - [1,544.9)
15 - 20 years _ - 140 9) 1390 - (1993
20 - 25 years - (298 8] (1677] - {466.5]
25 - 3 years - - 1199 2) - (199.2)
30 - 35 years - - (4497 - 1649.7)
35 ~40years - ~ [2,273 &) - (2,273.6)
40 - 45 years - - el - (1,068.1]
45~ 50 years - - {374 2) - [374.2)
Total (1,201.0 {3.984.0] {5,890.5] (18.91 (11,094.4}
Receipts

Loans due Cashand fram

from jaint Trade shortterm financial

venlures recevables deposits assets

Undiscounted amounts receivable: Em £m £m £m

Within 1year ~ 1210 511 242.1
1~2years 126 3 - ~ 1263
-~ 10 years 125 - - 12.5
Total 138.8 191.0 511 380.9
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

c) Liquidity risk continued
lii] Cash flows from nen-derivative financial instruments continued

Paymients
o financial
2017 Floating rate Frred rate Index-linked  Trade payables habliies
Urrdiscounted amounts payable £ m m £m tm
Within 1 year {1607} {5387) {25 4) (24 0] (748 8]
1-2years 14 (1087 126 6) - 1146 9)
?-Syears (47 1) {469 8] 84 6} - [59¢ 5]
5-10years 17650 2) {1,383 4) 1440 2] - 12573 8]
10 - 15 years 1123} Lnag {3471 - (1,563 4}
15 - 20 years - 1609 (2213 - (2822)
20 - 25 years - {310 9! (1603 - {471 2]
25 - 30 years . _ - - (19G 1) - o
30 - 35 years - - {643 2] - (6432
35 - 40years o - o - - 1,226 5] - (1,226 5]
40 - 45 years - - {2.G6897) - {20897
45~ 50years - - 1365 0) - 1365 0]
Tatal 10769 (3982 4) (5,820 0] (240 (10,903 3]
Ret eipts
Loans due Cash and from
fromm gt Trate chorttarm financial
Vet e rerpabiles doposte a5-ets
Undi=c ounted amaunts recenvable Lm Cin £m fin
Within 1 year - 99 6 2142 446 3584
5- 1D vyears 125 - - 125
Total 21 2142 44 & 3709

Index-linked debt ncludes loans with maturities up to 50 years The principal is revalued at fixed intervals and is inked to movernents
inthe RPI Interest payments are made biannually hased on the revalued principal The princpal repayment equals the revalued
armount at matunity. The payments included in the table above are estirmates bascd on the forward inflahan rates pubbshed by the
Bank of England at the balance sheet date

{iii Cash flows from derivative financialinstruments

The following tables show the eshimated cash flows that will anse from the group’s derivative fimancial instruments The tables

are based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/{outflows] on the dervative financial instruments that settie on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows/loutflows] on those dervatives that require gross settlernent When the arnount payable or recewable 15
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates derived from
the forward curves existing at the balance sheet date, Actual amounis may be sigruficantly different from those indicated below,

Dervative liablites Derwvative assets

Cross currency swaps

Interest Enerqy Inftation Interest Energy Cash Cash
rate swaps swaps swaps rate swaps swaps receipts payments Total
2018 £€m £m £m £m £m £m fm fm
Within 1 year {149 - - 51 02 A 02 87
1-2years [i4 3) - - 17 - 1 163 (118
2-5years [475) {08} 07 35 01 34 [ 1) {422)
5- 10 Years i35 8] - 08 39 - 233 130 [208]
10 - 15 Years 130 - 16 - - 175 18 81 27
15 - 20 years - - 67 - - - - (671
{125.5) {0.8) {8.3) 14.2 0.3 46.4 i23.4) 929
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continuec
¢l Liquidity risk continued
liii) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments continued

Dervatve Labilities Derivative assets

Cro=s currency swaps

Interest Energy Intereat Cash Casn
rate swaps SWaps ratc swaps receipts payments Total
2017 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 175 4] 02 69 11 [02) (17 8]
1 -Z7years (249 i0 5] 62 11 [0 2) (18 3)
2 -hyears (73 4) [0 3) 131 34 {08 (58 0)
5-10Years [61 &) - 43 239 137 (46 8)
10- 15 Years (116) - t6 4) 181 (%) (89)
(196 9l (10 241 474 [233) (149 5)

d Inflation risk

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, cperates under a regulatory envircnment where 1ts prices are Linked
ta inflation measured by RPLL Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposed te changes in RPL In erder to mitigate and
partially offset this risk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt whech pays interest at a fixed coupon based on a principal amount that
Is adjusted for the change in RP} during the life of the debt instrument [Index-lUnked debt ] The amount of index-lnked debt at the
balance sheet date 1s shown in section a) (1] Interest rate risk, and the estimated future cash flows retating to this debt are shown
msection ¢] (0 Cash flows from non-derwvative financial instruments.

Ofwat has announced its plans to move towards an economiz regulatory model Linked to inflation measured on the CPIH index over
a period of ime In anticipation of this the group has entered into CPI/RPI swaps with a notional value of £150 million at 31 March 2018
in order to mitigate the risk of divergence between inflation measured by CPIH and that measured by RPL

Inftation rate sensitivity analysis

The finance cost of the group’s Index-linked debt instruments varies with changes in RP| rather than interast rates The sensitivity
at 31 March of the greup’s profit and equity to changes in RPJ 15 set out in the following table This analysis relates to financial
Instruments only and excludes any RPlimpact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatary Capital Value, or accaunting

tar defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017

+10% -1.0% +16G-. 1

£m £m £m fm

Prafit or loss 11.7) n7 12 12
Equity 11.7) 11.7 112 112

36 Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates.
Hedge accounting 1s adopted for such instruments where the criteria set out in 1AS 3% are met

a) Fair value hedges

li) Cross currency swaps

The group raises debt denorninated in currencies cther than sterling Cress currency swaps are enlered into at the time that the debt
15 drawn down to swap the proceeds inte sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in order toc mitigate the group’s exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations Where the terms of the recewvable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the
swaps are expected to be effective hedges

At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges were as fallows

Netional principal amount o Fair value

2018 2517 2018 2017

£m fm £m £m

Euro 11.4 114 10.4 16 4
Yen B 8.5 85 8.3 94
19.9 179 18.7 198
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

36 Hedge accounting continued

b] Cash flow hedges

(i) Interest rate swaps

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixad and {loating
interest rate amounts catculated on agreed notional principat amounts Such contracis enable the group to ramigate the nsk of
changtng mterest rates on future cash flow exposures arising from issued variable rate debt. Where tha hedge 1s expacted to be
highty effective these interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below-

Average contractfixed interest rate Notronat principal amount o Fair value

2018 207 2018 2017 2018 2017

Period to maturity % “ £m £ £m £m
5~ 1years o 2.63 170 135.2 500 lge) __lin
10 - 20years 1.83 214 298.0 384 4 15.0 {15 6)
2.08 209 433.2 434 4 13.6) 1207

tii) Energy swaps
The group has entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and market
prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2020

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash Hlow hedges are surnmarised below

- Ayerage contract price Notional contracted amount . Fai value

28 2017 2018 2017 2018 207

Period to maturity £/MWh Limwh Mwh MWh £Em i
Less than 1 year 47.6 436 43,680 66,272 Q.2 (G 2]
1-2years _ 48.6 485 21,955 205,296 - 108
2 -Hyears 40.5 486 547,460 21955 07 {01
41.3 474 413,095 293,523 (0.51 28]

37 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the period, the group recognised total
expenses of £6 9 million (2017 £6 1 mdbion) related to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price during the period was £21 252017 £22 98]

At 371 March 2018, there were no options exercisable (2017 nonel under any of the share based remuneration schemes

al Long Term Incentive Plans {'LTIPs')

Under the Long Term Incentve Plan | LTIP |, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff.
Awards are subject to performance condiions and continued employment throughout the vesting period Awards have been
previously made on different hases to Severn Trent Ple and Severn Trent Water ermployees [the [ TIP] and to Severn Trent Services
employees [the ‘Services LTIF')

Awards made under the LTIP

The 2014 LTIF awards were subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Vaiue n excess of the level
included n the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting period The 2015, 2014 and 2017 LTIP awards are
subject to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return on Regutated Equity in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water
AMPS business plan over a three year vesting pertod It has been assumed that performance agamst the LTIP nan-market conditions
will be 100% (2017 100%)

Awards made under the Services LTIP
Awards were subject to achievernent of turnover and profit targets over the three year period from the financiat year that the awards
were granted. [n 2017 it was assumed that performance against the Services LTIP would be 0%
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37 Share based payments continued

aj Long Term incentive Plans {'LTIPsl continued

Awards outstanding
Detalls of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out betow.,

___ Numberotawards
LTIP Services LTIP
Opening at 1 Aprit 2016 475,878 33,864
Granted during the year 195,415 -
Vested during the year (132,697} -
Lapsad during the year (21,1221 {33.864)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2017 SV7474 -
Granted during the year - 203,035 -
Vested during the year {139,829 -
Lapsed during the year 131,906) ~
Qutstanding at 31 March 2018 548,774 -
Details of LTP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows
Normat date Number of awards
Date of grant of vesting 2018 2017
July 2014 o - 2017 - 153,724
July 2015 o - 2018 160,028 168,335
July 2016 2019 188,131 195,415
July 2017 2020 200,615 -
548,774 517,474

Details of the basis of the LTIP scheme are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 96 to 128

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the night to purchase ordinary shares n the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a period of three or five years.

Options outstanding
Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

oplions price

Outstanding at TAprii 2016 - 2,858,611 1492p
Gramed during the year 868,764 16630
Forferted during the year (71733 1579
Cancetled during the year {92,095 1,636p
Exercised during the year o i449,301) 1,226p
Lapsed during the year (8,241 1.3%6p
Dulstanding at 1 April 2017 L o 3,106,607 1.572p
Granted during theyear - o _ 1087376 1,65Zp
Forferted during the year - o [46,775] 1,636p
Cancelled during the year - [134,768) 1,665p
Exercised during the year - - e _ lazs702) 1.3846p
Lapsed durning the year {8,867) 1,367p
Outstanding at 31 March 2018 3,574,931 1,625p
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37 Share based payments continued
b] Employee Sharesave Scheme continued

Options outstanding continued
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

MNumber of awards

Normal date Option
Date of grant of exercise price 2018 2417
January 2012 2017 W - 38 344
January 2013 o 2016 or 2018 1.241p 110,447 112,840
January 2014 2017 or 2019 1,331p 151,528 489937
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1.584p 846,002 883.839
January 20146 2019 or 2021 1\724p 621971 668,413
January 2017 20200r 2022 1663p 781782 843,212
January 2018 2021 or 2023 1.652p 1,063,201 -

3574931 3.106,407

¢} Share Matching Plan ('SMP']

Under the SMP members of STEC may receve matchung share awards over those shares which had been acquired under the
deferred share component of the annuat bonus scheme Matching shares rmay be awarded at 8 maximum ratio of one matching share
tor every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penied No matching shares have been awarded in the current year
Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51 - 150 by
market capitabisation in the FTSE Index lexcluding nvestrent trusts)

The nurmber of shares subject to an award will increase o reflect dundends paid through the performance period on the basis of
such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration
Commuttee determines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the parhcipant cematns in employment at the
end of the performance period

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 April 2016 o 27413
Cancelled dunng the year {24,682]
Vested during the year (2,931

Outstanding at 31 March 2017 and 2018 -

d} Fair value calculations
The fair values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the Black Scholes method
The principal assumptions and data are set out balow.

_ - 1 2017

LTP SAYE LTiP SAYE

3year scheme 5year scheme Tyuar seheme 8§ y@dr scheme

Share price at grant date (pence) 2,341 2138 2,138 2,236 2222 2222
Option life lyears)] 3 35 5.5 3 34 55
Vesting period fyears) 3 3 5 3 3 5
Expected valatility (%] 18.2 18.2 18.2 182 182 182
Expected dividend yreld (%) 4 41 4.1 37 a7 37
Risk free rate (%} nfa 0.5 08 nfa g1 05
Fairvalue per share Ipence) 2,328 375 351 2224 407 429

Expected volatility is measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share aphions
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share price movements

The sk iree rate s derived from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options
The dwidend yield is calculated using the expected drvidend for the year divided by the share price at the date of grant
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38 Acquisitions

0On 15 February 2017 Severn Trent Water Limited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Dee Valley Group Lirnited comprising
all subsidiaries including the regulated water cornpany Dee Valley Water Limited This acquisiion was made threugh a scheme of
arrangement including cash consideration of £79.0 million and the issue of loan notes with a value of £5 2 millien

The acquisttron was accounted for using the acquisition methad Goodwill of £66 0 million was capitatised atinbutable to the
aniicipated future synergies and outperformance arising as a result of the acquisition The goodwillvalyation was based on
management’s best estimates of the fair values of the assets and babilibies acquired Given the proxmity to the year end, full detailed
fair vatue exercises were not able to be campleted before the approval of the financial staternents far the year ended 3t March 2017.

The fair value exercises were cormpleted in the current year and resulted in the revisions to the prowistonal fair values as set outin the
fottowing table

|

[ISNAEIT

aotda

ERRLNTRINT]

£m
Goodwill recogrused at T April 2017 hased on provisional fair vatues - 66.0
Additional consideration in respect of acquisition 0.2
Adjustments to pravisional fair values for
- Recognition of Dee Valley Water Limited s Instrument of Appaintment 14.3)
- Revisions to estirnated fair value of property. plant and equipment (0.8
- Deferred tax ob changes in fair value 11
Goodwill recognised at 31 March 2018 based on finat fair values 62.2

Detalls of the adjustments made to the provisional fairvalues are set out below

Dee Valley Water Lirnited hotds an Instrument of Appointment as a water undertaker under the Water Act 1989 issued by the Secretary
of State far Wales ithe Licencel. The Licence has no fixed term and requires 25 years notice of termination Under the Licence, Oce
Valley Water Lirnited has an excluswve night to supply water to housebold and non-household customers within a geographic area
defined in the Licence. On 23 March 2018 Ofwat announced that it had agreed to vary the terms of the Licence with effect from 1 Juty
2018 to amend the geographic area to include those parts of Wales previously served by Severn Treni Water and to exclude certain
parts of England previously served by Dee Valley Water

Water undertakers are subject to a framework of economic regulation operated by the Water Services Regulation Authority [Cfwat)
Undar this framework, water undertakers are pernttad to set wholesale tarifts that would enable an etficent company te earn a
post-lax return on a notional amount known as the Regulatory Capital Value [(RCV] They are also allowed to earn a net margin on
their retail costs Ofwat sets the post-tax return at a rate that it considers to be the weighted average cost of capital for companies
operating In the sector based on an assumed gearing level Therefore the Licence. together with the net eperating assets, enables
Dee Valley Water Limited to garn post-tax returns with a net present value equivatent to the RCV plus a net return on retall activities.
To determine the fair value of the licence we have taken the RCV at 31 March 2017 from Ofwat's Final Price Caontrol Determination
published in December 2014 adjusted to current prices at the acquisition date, added an allowance for the value of the Retall business
and comparad this with the fair value of the operating assets acquired This resulted i a vatuation of £4 3 mithan for the Licence

The goodwill acqurred represents future outperfarmance of the regulatory settlement and synergies ansing from the combination of
the group’s reqgulated water businesses

See note 16 for the recancitiation of goodwill recognised for the group

39 Discontinued operations

Operating Services US and italy

The disposal of the group s US busmess (Operating Services, US], which formed part of the Business Services segment, to US
nvestors PPC Enterprises LLC and Alston Capital Partrers LLC was completed on 30 June 2017 The group disposed of the Operating
Services busimess m ltaly, which farmed part of the Business Services segment, on 23 February 2017 to Acea S PA

The classification of thesg businesses as discontinued operations requires judgements as to whether they repr esent a separate major
line of business or geagraphical area The Operating Services ftaly business was sold on 23 February 2017 At that point the process

to dispose of the Operating Services US business was underway, as part of a single coordinated plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services businesses However, at that point the disposal of the Operating Services US business was not considered (o be ighly
probable because the sale process was not sufficiently advanced

Onits own, Operating Services {taly was not considered to be a major Line of business or geogr aphical area and 5ot was not classified
as a disconiinued operation i the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2077,

Following the disposal of Operating Services US on 30 June 2017, the groun had compteted its plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services business. It reassessed the classificabion of these businesses and reclassified them as discontinued operations

Priar period figures in the consolidated income stalement and related notes have been restaled Lo present separately amounts
relating to discontinued operations
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

39 Discontinued operations continued

Water Plus joint venture

Gn 1 March 2016 the group announced 1ts intention, subject 1o approvat from the Compatition and Markets Authority [CMAY), to enter
1nto a joint venture with Unrted Utilities PLC to compete in the non-household water and waste water ratail markets 1n England and
Scotland On 3 May 2016 the CMA announced approval of the joint venture. On this date the group determined that completion of

the proposed transaction became highly probable and the non-household retall business was classified as a disposal group and &
discontinued operation with effect frorn this date. On 31 May 2016 the group transferred Severn Trent Water's non-household retaild
business to Savern Trent Setect Limited and on 1 June it exchanged the entire share capital of Severn Trent Setect Lirmited for 50%
of the share capital of Water Plus Limited

During the year, the remaimng batance on the non-household retail recewatile amounts that were retained when that business was
transferred to Water Plus were written off An addrtional £15 million was charged to operating costs in discontinued operations in
respect of this

The results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the income staternent and comprise

2018 2617
— frestated|
MNen-
Gperating Narn- Operating Operating houschold
Services US househald Services U5 Services ltaly retanl
{3 months) retail Total 112 tmenths| {10 manths! {2 manthist Total
€m £m £m m £m £ frm
Turnover 421 - 421 160 4 208 660 24772
Total operaling costs i40.7) (1.5) [42.2) 1156 0] 120 2) 167 3) (243 5)
{Lossl/prafit before interest and tax 1.4 (1.5 (0.1 44 06 [at 37
WNet finance income - - 09 02 - 11
(Loss)/profit before tax 1.4 _ s 0.1 53 N8 (13 48
Attributable iax expense - 0.3 03 (1) - 03 {03
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 13.0 - 13.0 - 20 14 6 166
Protit/lloss) for the year 14.4 1.2} 13.2 47 28 136 211
Attributable to: o
Owners of the company 14.4 11.2) 1.2 47 30 136 213
Nen-controlling interests - - - - 02 ~ 02
V4.4 (1.2} 13.2 47 28 136 211

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations are as follows.

2018 2017
{restatedd
Profit Weighted Piofit Weighted
attributabte to average atlributable to average
owners of the number of Pershare ownars of the numper ¢i Per ehare
company shares amount Lempany “nares amuount
£m ™ pENCE £y Il pene
Bastc earnings per share 13.2 2353 5.6 213 2350 91
Diluted earnings per share 13.2 2361 5.6 213 2360 70
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39 Discontinued operations continued
The net assets of the business at the date of disposal were

2018 27
Operating Operating  Mon-hcusehiold
Services US Services Maly retail
£m £ £
Goodwill 14.4 20 -
Other intangible assets o 29 14 -
Property. plant and equipment b 12 -
Investrments - 47 -
Inventories 0.6 75 T
Trade and cther recevables o 28.2 13 0é
Cash and bank balances - 2.9 15 35
Trade and other payables 9.9} 150 (05l
Borrowings N - 39 -~
Prowsions for habiliies o - 123 ~
455 79 36
Attributable to:
Owners of the company L 455 71 36
Non-controlling interest - 08 -
45.5 79 34
The net gain on disposals is calculated as follows
Dperating Operatag Nor-hoysehotd
Services US SEnve es laly retal
£m £m £m
Consideration 47.8 7Y 259
Net assets attributable to owners of the comnpary [45.5) 171} 136)
23 08 219
Tax on gan on disposat 6.7 - -
Disposal costs and provisions on disposal B 8.4 11 8} (73
Foreign exchange gain recycled from reserves 29.8 28 -
Net gain on disposal 13.0 20 14 6
The net cash ftows anising from the disposal groups were as follows
2018 2017
_ o Iresrared]
Operating Operating Gperaung  Non-househald
Services US Services Us St rwces aly retail
{3 months) 12 nicnthef [0 menths) L2 months) Tatal
£m £m £ atd £m
Net cash flows atiributable o
- Operating activiies 1.9 51 - 071 29 73
- Investing activities (0.6} (37 04 - {33
- Finanong actvihes - i) i1 135! (3 5)
13 03 08 10 4) 03
The net cash flows arising from disposals were
Operating Operatng - Non hou=ehild
Services US Servees ftaly ratall
£€m £rn Lrn
Congideration recewed in cash and cash equivatents 39.3 03 =
Setilement of Intercompany loans o B o - 6 =
Disposal costs paid in cash and cash equvalents o e e 73
Cash and bank balances disposed of 19.9) 115 [35)
24.8 48 (10 8}
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

40 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash ftows
2018 2m7
Irectated)
fm Em
Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 528.4 5367
Profit before interest and tax frorn discontinued operations 13.6 206
Profit before interest and tax 542.0 5573
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprnent 308.8 3088
Amortisation of ntangible assets 20.8 19.3
Pension service credit 17.8) i173)
Defined henefil pension scheme adminustration costs 1.8 33
Defined benefit pension scheme contributions i35.2} 33 2)
Share based payment charge 89 &1
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assels o . | 501
Exceptional depreciation - praperty, plani and equipment B 16.8 -
Profit on disposal of businesses o o {13.7) 117 2}
Deferred income rnavement (14.3) (139
Provistons charged to the income siatement o 13.8 165
Utilisation of provisions for Labilites (5.4] 10 5]
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital B27.2 814z
Increase in inventoary e 2.9 {13
lIncrease)/decrease in amounts recevable e 158.4) __ 603
Increase/[decrease] in amounts payable 7.4 {22 2]
Cash generated from operations - e - 773.3 8510
Tax received - o o - o 8.0 206
Tax pad 114.5) 142 4]
766.8 8292

Net cash generated from operating activities

b} Non-cash transactions

Mo additions to property, plant and equipment during the year were hinanced by new finance leases [2017 ml). Assets transferred from

developers at no cost were recognised at their fair value of £35 & million (2017 £57 4 milbion)

] Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from iters classibed as exceptional in the income statement

2018 2017
£m frr
Costs of Penston Exchange Arrangement - a7
d} Reconciliation of movermnent in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt
Net cash Cross Loans due
and cash Bank Qther Finance currency from jeint
equivalents loans loans leases swaps ventures Net debt
im £m £m £m Em £&m Em
At 1 April 2017 446 11,072 3] 4,090.0} (1157 434 0846 [5.082 4]
Cash flow i 6) {138 5} 198 1) 18 - 266 2128
Fairvalue adustments - - 20 - (15 9] - [149]
RPI uplift onindex-linked debt - {4 4) 149 7) - - - 194 1
Fareign exchange (15 - 127 - - - 12
Other non-cash movements - 12) 08) - - D4 i18)
At 31 March 2018 38.5 1,217.4] [4,2239) {113.9] 248 135.6 (5,356.8)

Liabibities from financing actviies comprise bank loans, other loans and fmance leases
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41 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No Uabiry (2017, £nill1s expected to
arise in respect of either honds or guarantees.

42 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract 1o provide water and waste waler services o the Ministry of Defence 'MOD)1s a service concession
arrangerment under the definition set cut in IFRIC 17 The group acts as the service provider under the MOM Project Aguatrine
Package C - 3 2byear contract spanning 1,295 sites across England covering the eastern sea border and from Lancashire in the
North West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MOD infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water Both the operaling services and maintenance and upgrade services are charged under a volumetric taniff, along with
standard charges, which are adjusted with inflation as agreed in the contract.

Since the group has an unconditional nght to receive cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrade services, the amounts
receivable are recogrrsed as a financial asset within prepayments and accrued income At 31 March 2018 the amounts recewable
were £311 mullion (2017 €277 million]

There have been no significant changes to the arrangement during the year,

43 Financial and other commitments
a) Investment expenditure commitments

2018 2m?
£m ln
Contracted for but not authonised in the financial statements 395.0 2210

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include
nvestments to achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director Geperal of Water Serwices [Ofwatl and to provide
for growth in demand for water and waste water services,

bl Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had autstanding operating commutments for future mimimum operating lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2018 2017

£m fm

Within T year 11 37
} - Syears 2.4 76
After more than S years 4.8 70
8.3 178

Operating lease payments represent rentals by the group for certain of its office property, plant and equipment.
44 Post balance sheet events

Sale of land in Nottinghamshire

On 30 April 2018, the sale of land from Midlands Land Portfolio Limtted, a subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc, to Persimmon Homes was
completed. The sale values the land at £21 8 rillion, reabising a group profit of E18.2 mitbon in the year ending 31 March 2219

Payrnents will be made 1n cash and phased over the bfe of the project with £2 3 million payable on 30 April 2018 and the remainder
phased evenly over five furthet yearly payments of £3.9 mithion each ending on 30 Aprit 2023

Dividends

Fellowing the year end the hoard of directors have proposed a final dividend of 51.92 pence per share Further details of this are shown
nnote 14
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

45 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eiminated on consobdation and are not
included in this note. Trading transactions between the group and its jotot venture, Water Plus, are disclosed below

Water Plus

2018 2017

m {r

Sale of services 354.9 3175
Nelmterestincome 2.4 13
357.3 3188

Cutstanding balances between the group and the joint venture as at 31 March were as follows

Water Plus

2018 2017

£m Em

Trade and other recervables due from related parties o 449 376
Amounts due to related parties ~ 8 8
Loans receivable from joint ventures 135.6 108 &
180.5 1374

The reuremnent benefit schernes operated by the group are considered to be related parties. Detaits of transactions and batances with
the rehrement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 28.

Remuneraticn of key management personnel

Key managernent parsonnet comprise the members of STEC during the year

The remuneration of the directors is included wathin the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration

of individual directors is provided i the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 110 to 119

2018 2017

£m i
Short tecrn employee benefits 6.4 72
Post employment benefits - -
Share based payments 3.5 31
9.9 103

46 Alternative performance measures {APMs’)

Financial measures or metrics used in this report that are not defined by IFRS are alternative performance measures The group
uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide additionat useful information on the performance and
position of the group. Since the group dehines rts own alternative performance measures, these might not be directly comparable
to ather companies alternative performance measures These measures are not intended to be a substitute for, or supertor ta,
IFRS measurernents

aj Underlying PBIT

Underlying profit befare interest and tax is profit before interest and tax excluding exceptional iterns as recarded in the ncome
staterment and restated for discontinued operations This provides a consistent measure of operating performance excluding
distortions caused by exceptional items The calculation of this APM 1s shown on the face of the income statement and in note §
for reportable segrients,

bl Underlying earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exclude tha effects of exceptional iterns,
net gams/llosses) on financialinstruments, current tax on exceptional temns and on net gans/llosses) on financial instrurments,
exceptional current tax and deferred tax. The directors consider that the underlying figures provide a useful additional indicater
of performance and remove non-performance related distartions See nate 15
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46 Alternative performance measures [APMs’) continued

c} Effective interest rate

The effective interest rate 15 calculated as net fimance costs, excluding net finance casts from pensions, plus capitatised finance
costs divided by the monthly average net debt dunng the year

{net finance costs — net finance costs from pensions + capitalised finance costs/

{manthly average net debt]

seday ahog !

ERISRSRELY4] I

2018 217

frestated)

€m £m

Net finance costs 219.5 2051
Net finance costs from pensions (15.5) (109)
Capitabised interest 26.2 186
230.2 7128

Average net debt 5134.4 48125
Effective interest rate 4.5% 4 &%

This APM 15 used as it shows the average interest rate that is attributable to the net debt of the business.

d) Effective cash cost of interest

The effective cash cost of intet est 1s calculated on the same basis as the effective interest rate except that f excludes finance costs
that are not pawd In cash but are accreted to the carrying value of the debt [principally RPI adjustments on index-lnkad debt]

{net finance costs - net fnance costs from pensions — R interest + capitatised hnance costs)

[monthly average net debi)

2018 2017

Ire=tated]

£m €m

Net finance costs 2195 2051
Net finance costs from pensions (15.5¢ (109
RP| interest ) (54.1) {302)
Capitalised interest 26.2 186
1761 182 6

Average net debt 5,134.4 48125
Effective cash cost of interest 3.4% 3 8%

This APM s used as it shows the average cash interest rate based on the net debt of the business

e) PBIT interest cover

The ratio of profit from continuing operations before interest, tax and exceptional items to net finance costs excluding net finance
costs from pensions

Undertying PBIT
{net finance costs - net finance costs from pensions)

2018 217

Irectated]

£m £m

Underlying PBIT 541.0 520

Nethnancecosts o 2195 2051
Net finance ¢osts from pensions {15.5) 116 %)

Net finance cosls excluding finance costs {rom pensions 204.0 194 2
T

PBIT interest cover ratio 2.7 27

This APM 15 used to show how the underlying PBIT of the business covers the financing costs associaied only with net debt on
a consistent basis,
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

46 Alternative performance measures [APMs) continued
fl EBITDA and EBITDA interest cover

EBITDA s a cornmonty used proxy for cash flow, for exarnple by ratings agencies and in debt covenants EBITDA interest cover

1s the ratio of EBITDA. 1t 1s calculated as profit from continuing operations before nterest, tax, exceptional items, depreciation

and amortisation
funderlying PBIT + depreciation + arortisation}

Inet finance costs - net finance costs from pensions!

2018 2017

(reatated]

Em £m

Underlying PBIT o 541.0 5201
Depreciation - 308.2 3059
Amortisation 20.5 178
EBITDA 869.7 8438
Net finance costs - - 2195 2051
Nel finance costs from pensions 115.5} 109)
Net finance costs excludmg finance costs from pensions 204.0 194 2
ratio ratio

EBITDA interest cover ratio 4.3 43

This APM 15 used Lo show how the EBITDA of the business covers the financing costs associaled only with nel debl on a
consistent basts

gl Underlying effective current tax rate

Current tax charge for the year on continuing eperations, excluding prior year charges, exceptional current tax, and current tax on
exceptional tems and on hinancial instruments, divided by profit from continung operations hefore tax, net gains/losses on financial

nstruments, exceptional iterms and shat e of net profit of joint ventures accounted far using the eguity method.

[Current year current tax charge m the tcome statement - tax an exceptional items - tax on linancial instruments)

{PBT - share of net profit of JVs - exceptional items ~ net losses on financiat mstruments)

2018

2017
[rectated]

Current tax
thereon

Currem tix
thereon

£m £m &m tm

Profit betore tax 302.4 136.8} 3280 1473}
Adjustments:

Share of net lprofiti/loss of jont ventures 0.21 - 18 -

Excephonal termns 12.6 {0.7} 16 6] iD1)

Net losses on financial instruments 6.7 3.3 18 14.9]

3218 (40.8) 3150 (52 3]

Underlying effective current tax rate 12.7% 16 6%

This APM 15 used to remove distortions in the underlying tax charge and create a metric consistent with the calculation of underlying
earmings per sharein note 15 Share of net profit/loss of joint ventures is excluded from the calculabion because this i1s included after

tax and the tax on joint venture profits 1s therefare not included i the cucrent tax charge.,
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47 Subsidiary undertakings

Detarls of all subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2018 are given below Details of the joint venture are set out in note 17
All substchary undertakings have been tncluded i the consolidation.

Cauntry of operation Pearcentage of Classof share
Owned directly by Severn Treni Plc and incorporation share capitat hald capital hetd
Severn Trent Investment Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary

The following subsidiary undertakings all operate and are incorporated in the United Kingdormn The percentage of share capital held
Is 100% and the class of share capital held 1s ordinary.

All subsidiary undertakings

Agua Deva Lirmited

Biogas Generation Lirmted

Charles Haswell and Partners Limited
Chester Water Lirnited

City Analytical Services Limuted
Debea Debt Recovery Limited
Dee Vailey Group Limited

Dee Valley Linuted

Dee Valley Serwices Limited

Dee Valley Water (Holdings] Linmited

Dee Valley Water Limited

Fast Waorcester Water Limifed

Etwall Land Limaed

Gunthorpe Fields Limied

Midlands Land Portlolio Limited

North Wales Gas Lirnited

Northern Gas Supplies Limited

Severn Trent IW&S] Limited

Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Lirmited
Severn Trent Data Portal Limited

Severn Trent Draycote Lirmited

Severn Trent Enlerprises Limited

Severn Trent Finance Holdings Lirmited Severn Trent Systems Limited

Severn Trent Finance Limited . Severn Trent Trirnptey Limited o
Severn Trent Financing and Investments Limited Severn Trent US Funding Management Limited

Severn Jrent Funding Limrted Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited Severn Trent Uttty Services Limited
Severn frent Green Power Limited Severn Trent Water Lirmited

Severn Trent Holdings Limited Severn Trent Wind Power Linuted
Severn Trent Home Services Lirnited Uk Talks Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited
Severn Trent MIS Trustees Limited

Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Pension Scheme Trustees Lirnited

Severn Trent PIE Trustees Limited

Severn Trent Power Generation Lirnted

Severn Trent Property Sotutions Limited

Severn Trent QUEST Limited

Severn Trent Reservairs Limited

Severn Trent Retall and Utility Services Limited

Severn Trent Services (Water and Sewerage] Limited -
Severn Trent Services Defence Holdings Lirnted -
Severn Trent Services Defence Limited

Severn Trent Services Finance Limited

Severn Irent Services Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Services International {Overseas Holdings) Limited
Severn Trent Services international Limited

B B Severn Trent Services Operations UK Limited B .
Severn Trent Serwvices Purfication Limted
Severn Trent Services UK Lirmited

Severn Trent SSPS Trustees Limited

Severn Treat LOP Limited Wrexham Water Limited
Country of operation Percentage of Class of share
Alt subsidiary undertakings and incorporation share capital held capitat held
Derwent Insurance Lirmited o  Gbraltar ~~ W00% Ordinary
Energy Supplies UK Limited \H‘_‘_\‘:\_‘_ United Kingdam 100% - Aand B Ordinary B
Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited " Guernsey 100% Ordiary T

Procis Software Limited

e UniedKingdom

130%

Aand B Grdinary and Ordinary

Severn Trent Africa (Pty) Ltd - o _ SouthAfnea W00% __ Ordmary
Severn Trent Carsington Limted - . Urdted Kingdom 100% _ AandBOrdinary
Severn Trent Holdings 64~ Belgum  100% . Crdwary
Severn Trent Response Lymited e fretapd o 60%  Ordwary
ST Delta Lirmated United Kingdom 160% Aand B Grdinary
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

47 Subsidiary undertakings continued

Unless stated below, the registered office of the aforementioned entities 1s Severn Trent Centre, 2 St John's Street, Coventry,

CV1 2LZ, United Kungdom

Company

Dee Valley Limited

Dee Valley Water Limited

Derwent Insurance Limited

Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited

Severn Trent Africa [Py} Lid

Severn Trent General Partnership Limited
Severn Trent Holdings SA

Severn Trent Response Limited

Registered office

Packsaddle, Wrexham Road, Rhostyllen, Wrexham, LL14 4EH
Packsaddle, Wrexham Road, Rhostyllen, Wrexham, LL14 4EH
64 Queensway, PO Box b4, Gibraltar

St Martins House, Le Bordage, St Peter Port, GY1 4AU, Guernsey
2 Etgm Road, Sunminghi!, Johannesburg, South Africa

50 Lothian Road. Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9W.J

Rond Pont Schurman 6 box 5, 1040 Brussels, Betlgam

éth Floor, 7 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland

Subsidiary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Plc has 1ssued guarantees over the Labilities of the following comparves at 31 March 2018 under section 479C aof
Cornpames Act 2006 and these enrtities are exernpt from the requirernents of the Act retating to the audit of iIndwidual accounts

by virtue of section 4794 of the Act

Company Company Number

Charies Haswell and Partners Lirmted 2416605

Chester Water Limited 2888872

City Analyhical Services Limited 2050581 hm

Dee Valley Group Limited 43164684

Dee Vailey Limited - 900525 N -

Dee Vatley Water (Hgldings] Limited o 4421854

East Worcester Water Limited - 27578 i,___,_ T
4 Gunthorpe Frelds Limited - 4240764 B - __

Severn Trent (W& S} Limited 3995003 R

Severn Tren! Carsington Lyrited 75703384 -

Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited 43950544

Severn Trent Data Partal Lunited ___ BIBiC4B }

Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784 .

Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159

Severn Trent Frnance Limited 6294618 B

Severn Trent Financing and Investments Lirwted 6212635

Severn Trent Genaral Partnership Limited SC416614 -

Severn Trent Holdings Limited 5656363

Severn Trent Investment Holdings Limited 75600450

Severn Trent LOP Limited 7943554

Severn Trent Metering Services Limited 2569703

Severn Trent Dverseas Holdings Limted 2455508

Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 265131

Severn Trent Reservorrs Limited 3119315 )

Severn Trent Services Haldings Lirnited 43959572 T

Severn Trent Services internalional [Overseas Holdings] Limied 3128131

Severn Trent Services International Limited 2387816

Severn Trent Services Punification Limited 2409826

Severn Trant Services UK Limited 8120387

Severn Trent Systems Limited 2394552

Severn Trent Utibty Serwices Limited 4125286
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Company financial statements

Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
o - £m m
Profit for the year 182.4 1730
Other comprehensive loss
llemns that wilt not be reclassified to the income statemant
Net actuarial losses (9.3 ~
Tax on net actuarial losses o 15 -
Deferred tax anising on change of rate -~ in 1
Other comprehensive loss far the year (7.6] {01
Total comprehensive income for the year 174.8 1729
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Company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity
Far the year ended 31 March 2018

Share Share Other Retained
capital premmum reserves earnings Total
. Em £m Em Em £m
At T April 2016 23473 106 8 1607 298510 34868
Proftt for the year o e - - - 1730 1730
Deferred tax arising from rate changs - - - 01 oy
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1729 1729
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 57 - - 41
__-value of employees services - - - &2 52
OCwidends pad - - - (190 4} 190 4]
At 37 March 2017 2347 125 1607 29737 34816
Profit for the year o - - - 1824 182 4
Net actuarial losses - - - 91 #U
Tax on net actuarial losses - - - 15 15
Total comprehensive ncome fortheyear - - - 1748 1748
Share options and LTIPs
~ proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 52 - - - 56
- value of emplayees services - - - 49 _6_9?
Dividends paid - - - 11970 11970
At 31 March 2018 235.1 117.7 160.7 29584 34719

tnctuded in relained earnmgs are profits of £1.221 2 million that arose from group restructunng arrangements in previous year s and

are therefore not distributable.
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Company balance sheet
AL31 March 2018

2018 2017
Motes £m U
Non-current assets
intangible fixed assets e 2 6.2 03
langible fixed assels B o 3 0.2 03
Investments 1in subsidiaries . 4 3,330.0 33251
Deferred tax asset 6 1.5 a1
Trade and other recervahles 5 527.6 10
3,859.5 33268
Current assets
Trade and other receivables _ 5 44.3 4936
Current tax recewable 15.9 204
60,2 5150
Current Lahilities _ L o o o
Borrowings v 17.2} (54}
Trade and other payables 8 137.0) 1265 2]
Provisions for abilities and charges g 16.0) (2 4]
{160.2) {273 2]
Net current {tiabilthies)/assets {100.0) 2418
Total assets less current liabilities 3,759.5 3,568 6
Non-current liabilities - -
Borrowings 7 (85.4) B2y
Trade and other payables 8 {189.0) 130)
Retirement benefit obligations v 18.7) -
Provisions for babiliies and charges g {4.5) 17
|287.6) (87 0)
Net assets 3.471.9 34816
Capital and reserves o
Called up share capital e 10 2351 2347
Share premium account 11 127 1125
Other reserves 12 160.7 1607
Retained earnings 2,958.4 29737
Total capital and reserves 34719 34816

The profit for the year1s £182.4 million (2017 £173 0 mulbon]

Signed on behalf of the Board who approved the accounts on 22 May 2018

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Frinancral Ofticer

Company number 02366619
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Employee numbers
The average number of emptoyees during the year was 9 {2017 12)

2 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
agftware
o e P £m
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 1.1
Amortisation -
At 1 April 2017 08}
Amortisation for the year [0
At 31 March 2018 [0.9)
Net book value o .
At 31 March 2018 0.2
A3V March 2017 03
3 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Office fixtures
buldings  and equipment Total
e £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 0.1 0.6 0.7
Depreciation e o
At Aprit 2017 N - e 0 4) (4t
Charge for the year S - g3 0
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 - [0.5) [0.5]
Net hook value e e
At 31 March 2018 ol 01 Y
At 31 March 2017 01 0?2 03
4 Investments in subsidiaries
£m
At 1 Apnl 2017 3,3251
Additions 69
impairtrent {20}
At 31 March 2018 3,330.0
Detaits of prinopal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 47 to the group financaiat staternents,
5 Trade and other receivables
2818 2017
im Ern
Current assets
Other amounts recevable 4.4 30
Prepayments 0.5 05
Armounts owed by group undertakings under loan agreements - 4677
Amounts owed by group undertakings 39.4 224
44,3 433 6
Nan-current assets
Other amounts recevable 1.6 -
Loan receivable 264 -
Amounts owed by group undertakings under loan agreements 499.6 10
§527.6 10
571.9 494 6
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6 Deferred tax
Retirement Fairvalue
Accelerated Yax bensafit of financial
depreciation obligations instruments Other Total
£m Em £m £m £m
ALY Apnl 2016 01 ~ 01 05 a7
Charge toncorne e - - ) {0.4)
Credit to income ansing from rate change - - 01 - 01
Charge tc equity arising from rate change - - gl - {01]
At 1 Aprit 2017 01 - 01 {81} a?
Charge/lcreant) to ncome 01 - 101 0} 0
Credit to equity - 15 - - 15
At 31 March 2018 - 1.5 - ~ 1.5
7 Borrowings
2018 2017
o £m £m
Current liabilities n
Bank overdraft T o 17.2 564
Non-current liabilities - - o
Cther loans 85.4 823
102.6 879

Non-current barrowings comprises the company’s RP inked retail bond issued in July 2012 The bond carmes a coupon of 1 3% on

the principal amount which is uptifted by RPL The bond s repayable in July 2022

Al the balance sheet date the company had £100 million (2017 €100 mittion] undrawn borrowing facilies

8 Trade payables
2018 2017
wwwwww o £m £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables 0.5 a2
Sopcial security and other taxes o o 0.5 01
Other payables 2.8 28
Accruals 4.0 11
Amounts due to group undertakings 129.2 2600
137.0 2652
Non-current liahilities
Amouits due to group underfakings 18%.0 30
326.0 76872
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Provisions

Insurance Other Total

£m Em £m

ALl Aprd 2017 - - 41 a1
Charged to income statement - 0% 09
Utibisation of provision - - 161 07
Transfer from group company b4 - 94
At 31 March 2018 5.6 49 10.5
2018 017

e tm Cru

Inciuded in;

Current babiities . . 6.0 24
Non-current labilities T T T 4.5 17
10.5 41

Insurance includes provisions transterred from Derwent insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the group The associated claims outflows are estimated to anse over a peniod of up to five years from the balance

sheet date

Other provisions inciude provisions for diiapidations and commercial disputes. The associated outtlows are estimated to arise over

a petiod up to five years from the balance sheet date

10 Share capitat
2018 2m7

. - L £m B
Total issued and fully paid share capital e L -
240,222,617 ordinary shares of 97 /,p (2017 239793 215) 2351 2347
At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3,948,59% were neld (2017 4 080,9564)
Changes in share capital were as follows

e Number €m
Ordinary shares of 97'/.sp -
AU April 2016 - 239,346,614 2343
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 449301 04
At Apri 2017 L 239793915 2347
Shares 1ssued under the Emplayee Sharesave Scheme 428,702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 235
11 Share premium
2618 2y
e . fm m
ALY April . L 112.5 068
Share premium anising on ssue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 5.2 57
At 31 March 17.7 112.5
12 Other reserves
Capial
redemplion Hedgmng
reserve TESEFVE Totat
£1i £ £

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2017 and 2018 157.1 3.6 160.7

The capital redemption reserve arose an the redemption of B shares

The hedging resarve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions

of 1AS 3% and the transition rules of IFRS 1
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13 Share based payments

For details of employee share schermnes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 37 of the group financial
staternents Details of options exercised and awards vesting during the year and of the weighted average share price of the company
during the year are also disclosed in that note

14 Pensions

Defined benefit schemes

The group operates defined benefit pension schemes, of which some employees of the company are members There s no
contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between the companies that participate in the
schemes As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme 1s recognised in the financial statements of the sponsoring employer,
Severn Trent Water Limited The scherne closed to future accrual or 31 March 2015 The cost of contributions to the group schemes
armount to £0.6 million (2017 ril]. There were no amounts oulstanding for contributions to the delined benefit schemes (2017 nil)

The company has an cbligation to pay pensions to a number of fortner employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap This unfunded scheme 1s part of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme in prioryears,
the unfunded pension scheme was recerded in Severn Trent Water Limited As the obligations under the scherne are borne by Severn
Trent Plc, the unfunded pension scheme obligation and corresponding deferred tax asset are now held within Severn Trent Plc

Information about the plans as a whole 1s disclosed in note 28 ta the group financiat staterments

15 Related party transactions

The retirement benefit schemes cperated by the company are considered to be related parties. Details of transactions and balances
with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 14

The company has given guarantees in favour of Water Plus Limited in respect of the joint venture s Uabilities to wholesalers in the
Open Water market and its loan from Severn Trent Water Limited The guarantee in respect of liabilities to whotesalers is capped
at ££2.5 milhion (2017 £42 5 milbion] and the guarantee for the Severn Trent Water loan 1s for the amount due

16 Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and quarantees in the normal course of business No liahilities are expected to arise In respact
of either the bonds or guarantees

bl Bank otfset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain of s subsidiary undertakings Under these
arrangements participating companes guarantee each cthers overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances, which
can be offset against balances of participating companies As at 31 March 2018, the company had na contingent labilities [2017 nitl,

17 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 5192 pence per share.

18 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid in the year s ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 see note 14 11 the group financial staternents.
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Other information

Five year summary
2018 2017 2616 2015 14
lrestated]
€m () G Em £in
Jurnover 1,694 16380 17937 18013 17567
Profit befor e interest, tax and exceptional items 541.0 5201 a03.4 5403 5238
Net exceptional iterns before tax {12.6) 166 10 {18 7) {152}
Net interest payable before (losses)/gains on financial
nstruments and exceptional finance costs (219.5) (205 1] (209 3] (2400) (2479}
{Losses)/gamns on financial instruments i6.7) 118 77 133 5) o810
Results of joint ventures 0.2 IEN G1 R e
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 32810 3029 14872 3189
Current taxation on profit on ordmary achvities (329 [36.3] (513] 378 (55 8}
Deferred taxation 29.0) 122 4} {137 51 {219
Exceptional tax - h2 7 786 - 2302
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 240.5 3215 3165 1155 4718
Results from discontinued operations 13.2 211 148 47 -
Profit for the year 253.7 3426 3313 12072 4718
Net assets employed
Fuxed assets 8,660.1 83157 78108 76200 74183
Other net liabilities excluding net debt, retirement benefit
obligation, provisions and deferred tax 1960.0 (516 8) 1798 4] (799 0] 16311
Derwative financiatinsiruments: B (104.3] 611 1166 3} 1777 {1971
Net retirement benefit abligation 1519.8) (574 &) {309 51 14689) 1348 3]
Prowisions for liabdities and charges and deferred tax {725.7) {6575} (694 7) 1725 4] {758 5
Net assets held tor sale - - - 726 -
46,3503 60057 58419 55216 54833
Financed by _ o i L
Called up share capital o 2351 2347 2343 2337 2339
Reserves 758.6 688 & 7831 5219 789 4
Total shareholders’ funds 993.7 9233 1.0174 755 6 10233
Non-controiling interests - - 11 13 4 125
Net debt® 5,356.6 50824 48734 4752 4 4,4475
6,350.3 60057 58419 552146 5.483 3
Statistics
Earnings per share [continuing) - pence 102.2 136 8 1335 483 198 5
Underlying basic earnings per share - pence 121.0 Nns7 1021 1072 925
Oradends per share [excluding special dwidend] - pence 86.6 815 807 849 804
Dmvidend cover [before exceptional items and deferred tax) 1.4 04 13 13 12
Gearmng® 84,.4% 84 6% 87 6% B4 1% 811%
Ordinary share price at 31 March - pounds . 18.44 2382 2173 2059 1823
Average number af employees
- Regulated Water and Wasle Water 5,660 5.273 5,234 5532 5,634
- Other 605 5% 2,122 1910 1914

1 Reslated as setoutin note 2 to the graup inancial statements
2 Excludes mstruments hedging forean currens y debt

3 Includes instrurrents hedging foreign currency debt

4 Geaning bas been calculaled as net debt dinded by the sum of equrty and net deht
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The Cornpany s registraris Equiniti Equiniti’'s main
respensthilities include matntarmng the shareholder
register and making dividend payments.

if you have any quertes refating to your Severn Trent Pic
shareholding you should contact Equimt

Registrar contact details

Online: www.shareview.co uk from here you will be able
to securely email Fquimitiwith your query

Telephone: 0371 384 2967¢

Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044

Text phone: (0371 384 2255*

By post: Equnuti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex, BN9% 60DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are ancouraged to visit our website
www severntrent com which provides.

+ Company news and inforrmation,

» lnks to our operational businesses’ websies,

*» details of cur governance arrangements,

« details of our strategy,

« details of the Group’s business models and business plan, and
* the Company's approach to operating responsibly

There s alsp 2 dedicated investors section on the wabsite which
contans up to date information for shareholders inciuding

e comprehensive share price information,
s [mancal resulls,
« a history of dividend payment dates and amounts, and

» access to current and historical sharehoider documents such
as the Annual Report and Accounts

Electronic communications

By registering to recewe shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Ple electronically shareholders can benefit from
betng abte to

» view the Annual Repart and Accounts on the day it1s published,

» recewe an email alert when shareholder documents
are avadable;

cast their AGM vote etectronically, and

manage their shareheolding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview

Electronic shareholder communications also enable the
Company to reduce 1ts impact on the envirenment and benefit
from savings associated with reduced printing and mailing costs

For further information and to register for electromc shareholder
communicatians visit www shareview.co uk

Dividend payments

Bank mandates
Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or building
soclety account
The benelits of doing this are that you will
* recerve cleared funds in your bank account an the
payrmen! date,
* avotd postal delays, and
* remaove the nsk of your cheques getting lost i the post
To take advantage of this service or for further details contact
Equiniti or visit www .shareview co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan 'DRIP’)

The DRIP gives shareholders the opbion of using their dividend
payrnants 1o buy more Severn Trent Plc shares instead of
receving cash if you would bike to participate in the ORIP, please
request a dividend remnvestment ptan mandate fram Equinite
Finanaial Services Limited

Telephone: G371 384 2268~
Telephone number from outside the UK: +44 121 415 7173
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Qther information

Information for shareholders continued

Buying and selling shares in the UK

if you wish to buy or sell certiicated Severn Trent Plc shares, you
may need to use a stockbroker or tigh street bank which trades
on the London Stock Exchange There are alsa many telephone
and online services avatlable to you

if you are selling, you will need to present your share certificate
at the time of sale Detals of low cost dealing services may be
obtained from www shareview co uk or 0345 603 7037**.

Share price information

Shareholders can find share price information on our website
and in most nationat newspapers for a real trme buying or
selling price, you should contact a stockhroker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and high pressure tactics to lure

investors nto scams They may offer to sell shares that turn out

ta be warthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated

price in return for an upfront payment. While high protits are

prormised, If you buy or sell shares in this way you wilt probabty

inse your money

How to avord share fraud.

¢ Keep in mind that hirms authorised by the Financial Conduct
Authonty [FCAT are unlikely 1o contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

» Do not get into a conversation, note the narme of the person and
firm contacting you and then end the call.

» Check the Financial Services Register at www fea org vk to see
if the person and firm contacling you 1s authornised by the FCA.

» Bewat e of fi audsters clanming to be from an authorised finm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details

» Use the furm's contact details bisted on the Registerif you want
to callit back

e Callthe FCA on 0800 111 6768 +f the firm does not have contact
details on the Register or yau are told they are out of date

» Search the list of unauthorised firms to avoid at
www fea.org uk/scams

+ Consider that of you buy or sell shares from an unauthonised
firm you wall not have access to the Ninanctal Ombudsman
Service or Fnancial Services Compensation Scheme

» Think about getting independent financial and professional
advice before you hand over any money

» Remember, if it saunds too good ta be true, it probably 1s

if you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the

share fraud reparting form at www fca arg uk/scams, where you

can hind out mor e about investiment scams

You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 4748,

If you have already pad money to share fraudsters you should

cantact Action Fraud on Q300 123 2040
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Unsolicited mail

The Company 1s legally obliged to make its share register
avalable to the general public Conseguently sorme shareholders
may recewve unsolicited mail [f youwish to limit the amount of
unsoclicited mail you receive please contact:

The Mailing Preference Service [MPS], Freepost 29 LON20771,
Londen WIE 02T

Alternatively, register anline at www mpsonline.arg uk ar call
the MPS Regrstration Line on 0845 703 4599,

American Depositary Receipts {ADRs’)
Severn Trent has a sponsored Level T American Depositary
Receipt {ADR') programme, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which 1s the
prermier tier of the US over the counter {OTC] market under
the symbol STRNY (it 1s not listed on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent Ordinary Share.

It you have any enquiries regarding Severn Trent ADRs
please contact The Bank of New York Mellon

By post: BNY Mellan Shareowners Services, PO Bax 30170,
College Station, TX 77842-3170, US

By telephone:

If caliing frorm wathin the US, [B88] 269 2377 [tall-free]

If calling fram outside the US +1 201 480 4825

By email: shrrelations@cpushareownerservices com

Website: www mybrymdr comn

* bines are open 8 30am te A 30pn Monday tc Friday tearluding publbic hebiday«
in Lngland and Walest

“* Lmes are ppun Monday to Fridgy 8 (09t 4 30pm for drating and onbit
4 U0pm tar enquiries



Financial calendar

Ex dwidend date - firal dindend

4 June 2018

Record date Lo be eugiale for the final dividend 15 June 2018
AGM 18 Juty 2018
Interim managernent staternent - Q[ year ending 31 March 2019 18 July 2018
Final dividend payment date 20 July 2018
Interim results announcernent - year ending 31 March 2019 22 Novernber 2018
Ex dividend date ~ interim dividend 29 Novermber 2018
Recard date to be ebigible for the interim drvdend 30 Novernber 2018

Interim dividend payment date

4 January 2019

All dates are indicative and may be subject to change
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Severn Trent Plc
Registered office
Severn Trent Centre
25t John's Street
Coventry Cvi 217

Tel 02477 715000
wWww.severntrent com

Registered in England and Wales
Regrstration nurnber 2344419
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